THURSDAY

Urban&Civic plc

Registered number: SC149799

*SBYPMIZM*
SCT

13/02/2020 #245
COMPANIES HOUSE

Annual Report and Accounts 2019



Urban&Civic plc

Our purpose

We work at scale and with
partners who value quality,

to create beautiful, sustainable
and community focused places
where housebuilders want to
build and people want to live.

Our vision

As the leading Master Developer of large scale strategic sites, we strive

to be proud of the sustainable communities we are crafting, the quality of
place making we are delivering and the challenges that we are overcoming
through shared innovation and passion. We believe that doing things right
means creating value for shareholders and for our wider stakeholders.

Wae are committed to keeping our promises, maximising our investment
and delivering across an increasing range of sites.

Read more in our CEQ's statement page 16

Our values
Quality
Integrity
Passion
Partnership

Innovation

Read more in cur Chairman's statement page 14




Our sustainability
capitals

Human Soclal

Natural Economle

Read morein our sustainability report
on page 48

From our earliest
days, Urban&Civic
has always sought
to do things right.

Master Developer
differential

Through our new and interactive website
we have sought to answar some of the
most frequent questions about the
Master Developer differential:

Why a Master
Developer is needed?

What makes a.
Master Developer?

How a Master Developer
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Who does a Master
Developer work with?
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AT A GLANCE

Our business at a glance

Who we are

We are now the UK's leading Master Developer having
been specifically created ten years ago to disrupt the
established approach to the promotion and delivery of
large scale residential-led strategjc sites. Our highly
scalable team brings together the significant expertise
and experience necessary to accelerate the delivery of
high quality and sustainabie new communities including
financing, land assembly, planning, project management,
development and estate management. We also have smaller
dedicated teams focusing on shorter-term commercial
developments and smaller seale land promotion.

Readd more in the Company’s business model
page8

Who we work with

Working in partnership with a wide variety of stakeholders
is at the heart of successfully delivering strategic sites.

Qur customers are the increasingly diverse housebuilder
market and we have partnerships with landowners who
share our aspirations for legacy quality, long term developer
relationships with planning and highway authorities and
strong bonds of community with local people and groups.
These stakeholder relationships are detailed throughout
this report and we take pride in being a trusted partner at
all levels.

Read more in our governance report pages B0 and 81
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What we do

At the core of our business are the nine strategic sites
where we are currently bringing forward, either directly or
in partnership, over 8,949 acres of land predominantly
within 100 miles of London. As Master Developer, we take
responsibility for obtaining planning and delivering the
sustainable green, grey and community infrastructure to
establish high quality places within which we market fully
serviced land parcels to housebuilders. We also ensure
that the scale and longevity of our investment benefits local
communities through opportunities, partnerships, jobs and
training. Our commercial developments and smaller scale
land promotion are respectively delivering investmentsin
strong markets and housing in locations of proven need.

Read more on our Master Developer product

page 6
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Our portfolio

Portfolio value by segment

%
4%

86%

Strategic sites
Comrercial
Catesby

Strategic sites

Qur strategic sites are almaost all within 100 miles of London, in key
growth locations with strong transport links and with delivery and
returns achieved over ten to twenty years per site.

No. of sites Hormes consented and submitted

9 33,500

Read more in our operating review pages 44 and 46
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Commercial

QOur commercial sites comprise a number of bespoke
oity centre developments targeting de-risked
shorter-term returns.

No. of sites Total square footage
6 797,000
Catesby

Our Catesby business focuses on smaller scale land
promotion achieving predorminantly planning uplift
based returns.

No. of sites Total acres

Read more in our operating review pages 46 and 47
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MASTER DEVELOPER

Master Developer product

What is a serviced land parcel?

Urban&Civie convert large blocks of unconsented raw land for
which there is an extremely limited market into oven ready parcels
of fully serviced land for which there is both a mature and

growing market.

We de-risk land acquisition and planning, deliver a highly sustainable
green and grey infrastructure framework, take responsibility for
community fagcilities, community relationships and place making
and thereby oreate a serviced land product in prime locations
which allows housebuilders to do what they do best but even

better and faster.

Master Developer:

Raw land Planning

Large blocks of land acquired

ACRES
OF RAW LAND

Application of a flexible and

1,426 ha

The predominance of our serviced land contracts established a low
upfront capital option for housebuilders whilst allowing Urban&Civic
to share in the proceeds of every home sold as well as guaranteeing
us an established forward income stream. This structureis attractive
to all sizes of house builder as well as new types of housing delivery
vehicles entering the market.

All housebuilders on Urban&Civic serviced parcels also benefit
from highly professional and impartial site management and
security, established and innovative jobs and skills programmes,
meaningful community engagement opportunities, site wide
marketing and a consistent and repeatable contractual offer
across all Urban&Civic sites.

Delivery

Green infrastructure

directly or through partnerships innovative planning structure Early delivery of a significant
and sustainable green
Qoneuitation infrastructure framework
[ i E
Design

Adding value at every stage

Land £

In summary:
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1. Urban&Civic create the serviced land parcels...




What the Master Developer delivers on and off a serviced land parcel:

Off Parcel On Parcel

Site wide quality
Established green infrastructure

Site wide place making and marketing

Congistent Full utility

+ Discharge of site wide S.106 obligations oontraotualterms  provision
» Design and project management assistance
« Established planning framework Oven reacy
+ Jobs and skitis programmes land quality
» Further serviced parcels available
+ De-risked and ready to go

Grey infrastructure Community infrastructure

Creation of pipes, wires, roads, Establishing quality via the

cycle lanes and pathways delivery of community facilities

Design code

Health & safety
framework

Housebuilders & businesses:

Serviced land

Housebuilders add the
homes, businesses add the
commercial spaces

M

ACGRE
SERVICED LARD
PARCEL

| ££& | 828

2. ..our customers add the homes
and commercial spaces...

Cash

3. ..and their customers and employees help
create the community.
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL

U&C business model

Ower the last ten years we have established a highly professional and scalable business model to become the market leader in taking
large scale blooks of raw land and transforming them into high quaiity, sustainable neighbourhoods and communities within which a
wide range of housebuilders wish to acquire and build cut serviced land parcels and pecple want to live. By doing this right we have

established a strong reputation and a strong competitive advantage.

Key resources Our strategic site portfolio:

Land Raw land
Large scale unbroken blocks of land within
100 miles of London from land owners who Assessment and
shars our focus on legacy quality is the aoquisition
essential foundation of our Master Devaloper
model with smaller scale sites targeted by
our Gommercial and Catesby businesses.

Employees

Cur team of experts are based centrally
and across our projects providing strength
throughout all elements of acquisition,
funding, planning, development, project

Strategic sites
management and estate management.

Funding

Our Strategic Sites are underpinned by
eguity investment and long dated acceleration
funding provided by Homes England.
Shorter term development finance or
forward funding is sourced for commercial
projects with Catesby funded by equity.

Partners

Large scale sites require long term trusted
partnerships with a wide range of stakeholders.
Reputations and trust are hard earned and
where present mean that projects progress
quicker and with fewer challenges.

Leadership
We are passionate about what we do and

Net capital invested/returned (£) / Land assembly and site purchase

Planning

Engagemaent, technical
+  review, application
submission and consent

Delivery

Green, grey and community
infrastructure delivery

not prepared to accept the status quoif Our wider portfolio:

there is a better, meore efficient, more

h : ! . ot - .
inclusive and more sustainable way ofdomg Commercial —

things. We are proud to be judged by both
the quality of our projects and the support
we garn throughout their delivery.

3

.

Cateshy? :—f........................

Our key stakeholders for each stage:
= Partners + Communities + Contractors
Rﬂmmmﬂﬂd + Local authoritios « Local authorities + Employees
reputation » Advisers = Communities
« Employees + Government
Reinveatment and reputation
Values Quality Integrity Passion
Underpinned by our:

Sustainability Physical Sooial Economic

capitals




Returns

Serviced land (product) We are focused on delivering
shareholder and stakeholder returns
across a range of financial and

non financial metrics.

Homes and employment

Contracted minimum receipts

£101.7m

Plot completions

665 plots

Priors Hall

Cash generation from plot
} completions
£42.4m
Alconbwry Weald {URC share: £34.3m)
RadioStation Rugby Dividend:
ividends

3.9p
Land remediated

154ha

Trees planted

136,608

Cyclo lanes delivered

1. Commercial projects will generally be delivered and sold. See page 48 28 3 40 m
J

2. Catesby sites are generally promoted though planning and sold with
some extending into the infrastructure delivery phase. See page 47

+ Housebuilders Government Employeas Partners

. & regulaters
+ Businesses
+ Partners Suppliers Logal communities Re'"vme‘m and
+ Local authoritios & contraatars Read mare on our reputation
+ Communities Sharehotders Customers stakeholder engagement

on pages 80 and 81
+« Employees
Reinvestment and reputation
Partnership innovation Read more on our values on page 14
Natural Human Read more on our approach to sustainability on page 48



STRATEGY

Market overview

Measures to boost housing supply
remain effective with MHOLG recently
announcing a seventh conseoutive year
of growth in net additional dwellings for
England, an increase of over 241000

in the year to March 2019, Detailed
planning consent reached 367000

in the same period.

New build completions of 214000
account for the majeority of net additions
with change of use a smaller but meaningful
contribution to overall delivery and
achievernent of the government's
targeted 300,000 net additions by the
mid-2020s. Significant shortfall against
targets has become limited to Lendon,
the South East and parts of East of England.

The utilisation of Help to Buy continues
to grow year-on-year, accounting for
near one in four new build transactions
in the year to March 2019 (62,000).
With over 80 per cent of all current

Help to Buy users being first time buyers,
the expectation is that the scheme,
having been extended to 2023, will
remain an important factor in creating
effective demand over that period,
particularly for houses over apartments.

Read more about our markets in
the CEQ review page 16

Strategic objectives

To maximise our compaetitive advantage and further leverage our
scalable business model we have and will focus on the following:

Securing additional strategic
shtes/consents

As the market leading Master Developer for the
delivery of strategjc sites we continue to focus
on identifying and promoting further sites within
100 miles of London, predominantly through
off-markat negotiations and through public
procurement.

Progress by the and of 2019:

« Wa have entered into agreements with the
Tyttenhanger Estate representing over 2,000
acres of land predominantly to the immediate
north of junction 22 to the M25. Tyttenhanger
as a grean belt site will nesd to be promoted
through Hertsmare Borough Counil’s local
plan process which is ongoing,

» Qutline planning permission was granted by
South Cambridgeshire District Council for
8500 new homes and associated employment,
transport, educational, health and community
uses over the former Waterbeach Barracks
site on the outskirts of Cambridge.

Objectives for 2020:
» Seoure an additional strategic site from
a number of active negotiations.

Progress Tyttenhanger through Hertsmere's
Local Plan Process.

« Complete agreements with Basingstoke and
Dean Borough Council, MHampshire County
Council and the Weltcome Trust to bring
forward 3500 homes at Manydown to the
wast of Basingstoke.

= Achiave outline planning permission for
Manydown and revised Zone 2 and 3 outling
planning permission at Priors Hall, Corby.

Accelerating the volume of
serviced residential and
employment parcels for
the market

The combination of cur own capital and
additional funding provided by Homes England
continues to allow us to accelerate the delivery
of sustainable green, grey and community
infrastructure across our strategic sites, bringing
forward additional points of sale ahead of those
previously appraised.

Progress by the end of 2019:

= Homes England has credit approval to commit
an additional £60:6 million of funding for
Waterbeach alongside the infrastructure
funding already provided for Wintringham,
Alconbbury, Houlton, Middiebeck and Priors Hall,
of which we have a total drawn of £123.8 million.

» Tha link road at Houlton opened in November
with Redrow's show home leading the second
front of sales and work has commenced on
the conversion of the listed C-Station building
into the heart of the ¢.1,000 pupi secondary
school with acceleration funding identified
from the Department for Education.

= Significant infrastructure delivery has been
undertaken at Wintringham allowing two
housebuilders, Cala and Morris, to actively
commence alongside the construction of the
first primary school by Cambridgeshire
County Council.

Objectives for 2020:

« Achieve approval of Phase 1 and reserved
matters for the early green and grey
infrastructure at Waterbeach and commence
infrastructure delivery.

+ Agchieve additional serviced land parcel
releases to housebuilders at Houlton,
Middlebeck, Wintringham and Pricrs Hall.




Sustaining and enhancing
the quality of placemaking

With five strategic sites in active delivery and
Waterbeoach expacted to commencs in 2020,
the sustainable cradentials and quality driven
place making is increasingly recognised in the
market as being a point of differentiation for
staksholders and our hgusebuilding Gustomers.

Progress by the end of 2018:

Alconbury won Mixed Use Development
of the year at this year's Planning Awards.

We now have a total of 21 housebuilders
across our portfolio, seven of which are
operating across mare than one site and
continue to work to expand the range and
diversity. This has included a successful SME
house builder confarence held at Moulton in
partnership with Homes England and Savills
and trials of modern methods of construction
alongside a growing roster of traditional
housebuilders such as Crest Nichiison.

As our sites mature so does the landscape
which brings with it demonstrable benefits in
terms of carbon reduction, biodiversity, health and
wellbeing, This year alone we have planted over
72,000 trees nearly doubling tha total number
of trees planted by Urban&QCivic to date.

Objectives for 2020:

The opening of new primary school at
Wintringham, the commencement of delivery
of the new primary school at Middlebeck and
the substantial delivery of the new secondary
school at Houlton,

The establishment of a Sustainability
Framework formalising cur commitment
1o environmental and social improvernents
across our portfolio of Strategic Sites in
discussion with our stakehalders.

Identifying and delivering
further trading opportunities

We continue to resource our Catesby and
Commercial bugsinesses to target shorter-term
projects across a widar geography for which
there is an identified market demand ona
capital-efficient basis.

Progress by the end of 2018:

s This year Catesby disposed of nine sites
totalling 152 (gross) acres with planning
consent for 862 new homes with a total gross
land value of £66.0 million and opened a new
office in Basingstoke.

+ In Manchester, we have topped out on all three
buildings at Manchester New Squars, our
80/50 joint vanture with the Greater
Manchestar Pension Fund, for which there
continues to be strong demand with now
41 per cent forward sold and phased
completion of the scheme taking place
betwesn April and September 2020.

Objectives for 2020:

» Complete Manchester New Sguare and
identify further low risk, low capital
commercial opportunities.

« Continue to resourcs Catesby for promotion
based projects as well as smaller scale
strategic site opportunities which require
the dalivery of infrastructure.

Delivering returns for
investors and other
stakeholders

Our businass model continues to target growth
in EPRA net asset value metrics to underpin
shareholder return whilst delivering a real
difference to the communities in which we

are working.

Progress by the end of 2019:

EPRA NAV per share 86 per cent (560 per cent
from Listing}.

EPRA triple net asset value (NNNAV) per
share 7.6 per cent (48.2 per cent from listing).

Total shareholder return of 7.8 per cent
(2018:19.1 per cant).

Wholesale discount decreases - 6.9 per cent

665 plot completions with a further 152 plots
axchanged or reserved at 30 Septembar 2019.

Objectives for 2020:

Target plot completions and land sales
equivalent to 1,200 units generating total cash
of £80+ million (Urban&Civic share

£80+ million).

Sales commencemant at Wintringham.
Infrastructure funding secured at Waterbeach
to accelerate dalivery.

Funding secured for early delivery of
secondary school at Rugby.

Annual Report and Accounts 2019 — Urban&Civic plc n



KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Measuring our progress

Financial
EPRA NAV EPRA NNNAV
pershare per share

+8.6% +1.5%

Wholesale discount

135p
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Link to strategy Link to strategy
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Definition Definition

EPRA NAV measures (which set out the net asset value
attributahle to equity shareholders adjusted for revaluation
surpluses on trading properties, with (EPRA NNNAY)

or without (EPRA NAVY) associatad tax provisioning),
continue to be a significant descriptor of value growth
for the Group ahead of mature residential plot

sale profiles.

Performance

EPRA NAV per share increased 86 per cent over
the last year with EPRA NNNAV per share increasing
75 per cent - since listing the annual growth rates

in both measures equate to 8.7 per cent and

77 per cent respectivaly.

Linkea to remuneration:

Performance Share Plan
Annual Incentive award

Link to strategy key:
@ Socura sites

@ Accelerate delivery
@ Sustain quality
@ Identify opportunities

@ Deliver returns

In order to provide guidance on the ermbedded value at
our most advanced strategic land sites, where the
Group believes placemaking has been achieved or has
commenced, a self-defined wholesale discount figure
is published. This is caloulated as the difference betweaen
the unsenviced land values imputed by CBRE valuations
(which tzke into aceount site scalo and buildout duration
among other matters) and the current retail prices being
achieved on smaller parcel sales.

The Group expects this wholesale discount 1o unwind
overthe life of sach project, akhough it cannot be certain
ontimings and considers that movements in EPRA NAV
megasures combined with movements in the wholesale
discount is perhaps a more useful indicator of progress.

Performance

The wholesale discount hag fallen to 136p per share

in the year to 30 September 2019, from 146p per share
at 30 September 2018 This is the result of plot sales
{which trigger the recognition of historic wholesale
discount through the income statement in respect of
those plots) and CBRE's reduction of the net discount
rates applied to the strategic sites’ cash flows within
their valuation models - although CBRE reduced the
gross discount rates across the strategic sites, to reflect
development and sales prograss, they also lessened
the benefit of this discount reduction by lowering the
inflation rates applied to future revenue streams within
their modets. This means that the movement inwhalesalo
discount has not fully translated into valuation uplifts
recognised through the income statement and
thaereforg EPRA metrics this year.
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Gearing - EPRA NAV

19.9%

18.6%
19.8%

16.3%

8.4%

2018 007 2018 20

Link to strategy
OIOIORJO),

Definition

The Group has publicly stated that it does not intend to
borrow to acquire land or fund the cost of constructing
infrastructure at its strategic land sites; except where
those borrowings are deérived from Govaernment
sources such as Homes England. Urban&Civic has also
imposed on itseif a gearing limit of 30 per cert {current
third party loan covenants are above this threshold).
Thess parameters help ensure the Group does not
take on more borrowing than it can afford to service,
whilst at the same tirne providing sorme borrowing
capacity should the need anse.

Performance

The Group's net delt position at 30 September 2019
totalled £104.9 milkon (30 September 2018: £78.3 million),
comprising exiternal borrowings of £128.3 million and
cash reserves of £244 miliion, producing a net gearing
ratio of 26.0 per cent {30 September 2018: 201 per cant)
on an IFRS NAV basis and 19.9 per cent {30 September
2018:16.3 per cent) on an EPRA NAV basis. Of the
£129.3 million of axternal borrowings, £89.0 milion

{or 76.6 per cant} are with Homes England.

On a full look-through basis, which additionally includes
the Group's shara of joint ventures net debt, gearing

on an EPRA NAV basis increases to 28.3 per cent; still
within our self-imposed limit of 30 per cent. No Group
covenants are tested on a look-through basis.




Plot completions (total strategic sites}

666

445

o
o
- -
206 2017 208 2018

Link to strategy
1@3 4 (®
Definition

Piot completions to the ultimate home buyer areimportant
for a number of reasons. Firstly, cur serviced land recsipts
under licence arrangerments (including contractual
minierurms due from the housebuilders) are typically linked
1o plot completions and secondly, togsther with resenvations
and exchanges, they provide the Group, its independent
valuers and stakeholders with market information.

Should the Group start to make material land disposals
more frequently, we will saparately identify these land
sales from real plot completions (in order to provide

a true reflection of home occupations in any period).

Performance

The Group's first plot sale was made on 30 September
2016 by Hopkins Homes at Alconbury. in the current
financial year, the Group saw completions in relation to
G665 plots on 18 saparate land parcels at four strategic
sites, with 17 different housebuikders. This was 4.7 per cent
higher than our anticipated 635 plot sales back in
Novermber 2018.

Non-Financial

Health and safety: RIDDOR incidents on
Urban&QCivic directly contracted works per year
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Definition

Ensuring the safety of people who work on our sites
whilst the amaunt of activity is increasing reguires
active management.

Performance

This will be the second financial year in a row where
thera have been no RIDDCR inciderts where we have
directly contractad the works.

Cash flow generation from plot completions

£42.4m £34.3m

{total strategic sites)  (U&C share)
£
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Definition

Strategic land sites now account for 85 per cent of the
Group's property portfolio value and therefore cash
generated from these sites will become more evident
and important in respect of overhead coverage,
dividend payments and future growth strategies.

This measure is usually combined with plot
completions to enable the Group to assess profitability
on a per piot basis, which is also used to consider how
current economics might impact property valuations.

Performance

Cash generation on residential complstions has
increased along with plot completions. In 2016 the
first phot sale realised gross proceseds of £121,000.
This financial year £42.4 million was generated by
666 completions (U&GC share: £34.3 million). This was
30 per cent higher than our anticipated £33.3 million
back in November 2018,

Trees planted to date

136,608

136,608
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Definition
Establishing strong green infrastructure from the outset
that will grow with our sites is essential.

Performance

This year saw a record increase cue to remechal pianting
at Priors Hall to make good the lack of plantingin
previous ownership,

Total shareholder return

1.8%

#
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Definition

The return our shareholders make is a clear priority.
which we menitor through calculating the growth in
value of a sharsholding, assuming reinvestment of any
dividends into shares over a period.

Performance

Urban8Civic's share price has risen 66 per cent over
the last 12 months (from 304.0p at 30 Septermber 2018
to 324.0p at 30 September 2018). Combined with two
dividends paid during the year totaliing 36p, the share
price movernent has resulted in a total shareholdar
return of 7.8 per cent for the year.

Land remediated to date

154ha
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Link to strategy
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Definition
Returning contaminated land to a usable development
platform underpins our serviced land parcel model.

Performance

Due to the delivery programme across our sites the net
adkdition is kower than prewvious years but with Waterbeach
coming forward next year this will increase.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

“

Continued delivery °"";:::=
underpinned by -

strong values Passion

Partnership

Innovation

Urban&QCivic began, very explicitly, by doing
things right. The very nature of the Master :f:t'i“rfe";':e: :::’G";'; ::‘t;:t;"':fhe UK

Developer involves leading from the front. sconomy, | am delighted and reassured to be
able to report a picture of continuing growth

in both value and activity at Urban&Civic.

Our business model as Master Developer has
not cnly proved to be a vital part of the sclution
to the long-term housing issues in this country,
but also a significantly better way of going
about that task. Indeed the values we have
espoused as a business singe it was founded
have become a source of real added value

as our stakeholders increasingly seek out
Urban&Civic as the Master Developer of
choice with whom they wish to work.

ALAN DICKINSON —
NON-EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN

It seems likely that, whatever political choices
are madein the UK, Urban&Civic will be a key
part of the solution to the continuing housing
shortfall. Yet, it is important for all businesses
not to take anything for granted and to continually
assess whether they are appropriately positioned
to meet social and customer needs. Put simply:
“Are we doing the right things for our customers
and other stakeholders - both now and in

the future?”

Urban&Civic plc — Annual Report and Accounts 2019




Every year the disruptive effect of the
internet eats further into many if not most
traditional business models. And now, climate
changeis bringing its own disruption - and
not just to insurance companies who are
mesting the bills for floods and other natural
disasters. Groups built over decades if not
centuries producing traditional fossil fuels
are having to rapidly question their longer
term strategies. As health becomes ever
more important and expensive at one and
the same time, businesses such as food
groups and tobacco companies are forced
to consider how best to meet the needs

of the future. Embracing sustainability is
absolutely essential.

At Urban&Civic, we believe that we must
have sustainability at the heart of our model,
Whilst we are fortunate that the demand

for the housing that we facilitate is highly
likely to subsist for many years to come, we
are in a business where working positively
with a myriad of other stakeholders is
critical to sucoess and value generation.
The very nature of the Master Developer
model involvas leading from the front.

The significant level of infrastructure spend
and the duration of our strategic projects are
such that they afford positive environmental,
social and financial cutcomes. We are
building a new secondary school at Houlton

and a primary school at Wintringham and
are about to start work on a primary school
at Newark. All are hugely positive for the
local communities and local authorities, and
make the developments even more
attractive for family buyers.

Of course, it is not just education. Urban&Civie
is kean to ensure its sites are highly attractive
- to both housebuilders and housebuyers.
Community facilities, mature trees, sensitive
landscaping and quality development are
part and parcel of the way we do things.

At Aloonbury Weald in June we were
delighted to open a new cricket pitch at

an open day with sorme 800 members of
the local community enjoying the event.

All of these align with the values of the
Group identified by our people themselves.

Quality - we deliver places, environments
and outcomes of which we are proud.

Integrity - we keep our promises and do
the right things.

Passion - we love what we do and always
strive to ¢o it ever better.

Partnership - we build strong, lasting
relationships based on trust and shared values.

Innovation - we are unafraid to do
things differently.

CASE STUDY

All of our values help us to develop value for
Urban&Civic and its shareholders. Not only
are EPRA Net Assets per share up 9 per cent
to 380.3p, house sales on our various sites
rose from 445 to 665 and we generated
some £34.3 milion of cash from those sites.
We have a record number of 19 housebuilders
on those sites. We continue to enjoy
substantial financial support on extended
terms from Homes England. We were
delighted to receive planning consent from
South Gambs District Council for our very
special site at Waterbeach and our land
promotion business Catesby had an
excellent year.

One other important development in the year
included the recognition of the Group by the
Premium Listing of our shares in April 2019
We have also been delighted to welcome
Rosemary Boot and Sanjeev Sharma as
Non-Executive Directors during the year,
They are already making very positive
contributions and | am very grateful to them
and indeed to all Birectors and colleagues
for the help in what has been an excellent
year of continued progress.

Alan Dickingon
Non-Executive Chairman
27 November 2019

Alconbury Weald claims major

accolade at The Planning
Awards 2019

Beating off high-quality compaetition from a range of projects
around tha UK, Alconbury Weald was named "Best Mixed-Use
Development” at the 2019 Planning Awards organised by
Planning Magazine, The Planning Awards recognises
excellence in both planning and placemaking over the past
year. Judges praised the entry led by Urban&Civic and its
partners; JTP Architects, planning consultancy David Lock
Associates, infrastructure consultants PBA, and Bradlsy
Murphy Design (BMD), as a "great example of a master
developed approach, producing a great long-term
placemaking strategy.”
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

A proven model
with strong
consistent
performance

Urban&Civic was founded on the impracticality
of meeting housing requirements in the South

East without an increased contribution from
large developments.

NIGEL HUGILL —
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

8 Urban&Civic plc — Annual Report and Accounts 2019

Key observations

Financials

EPRA NAV 360.3p per share: near nine per
cent growth. EPRA NNNAV 339.5p per
share up 7.5 per cent.

Annual contracted minimums up 89 per
cent over Sept 2018 to £101.7 million.

Plot sales

Actual 2019 plot sales five per cent ahead of
2018 forecast by number and three per cent
by revenues, reflecting different mix

not prices.

Additionality

Each new strategic planning consent
affords the realistic prospect of an
additional 15-year plus income stream.

Waterbeach takes number to six.
Dividend

Final dividend 2.bp per share.

114 per cent annual increase to recognise

maintained strong performance and
maturing project profile.

Growth
Keys are location and stakehoider alignment.

Large site discount

Down partly through realisations but still
adds a further £197 million (EPRA NAV +
large site discount = 495.3p per share
at 30 September 2019).




Introduction

The Urban&Civic Master Developer model
continues to return sustainable growth in
generally static market conditions. Witness
another strong performance even after a
rmovement in valuation assumptions to
reflect current cautions: EPRA net asset
value per share up 88 per cent at 360.3p
as at 30 September 2019, A commensurate
increase in EPRA NAV to £527.5 million,

as compared with £481.2 million at

30 September 2018. The debate about
large site contributions to meeting housing
shortfalls in Sputh East England is aver.

The attention has turned to delivery quality
and practicalities. Home ground for our
company. Whilst the published indices

are that political uncertainty is weighing

on land values, the Company maintains
upward performance by creating new prime
environments where housebuilders want

to build and homeowners want to live. Given
the now maturing nature of Urban&Civic
projects and the extent of existing pipeline,
the reasonable assumption is for further
medium term acceleration,

Profits before tax at £16.3 million were down
from £22.3 million last year but fully in line
with expectations. The previous 12 months
had been boosted by residual commercial
realisations as part of the strategy to
deploy the Group balance sheet in strategic

Dolman Commoen at Houlton, Rugby.

residential assets where the Company
is seen to have maximum competitive
advantage. The number and net cash
generated from plot realisations to
September 2019 werse both modestly
above November 2018 expectations.

Some analysts and commentators prefer

to use EPRA NNNAV as the bass measure:
in our case that involves ignoring any benefit
from the terms of funding from Homes England
and making an adjustment for the estimated
fair value of deferred tax liabilities. EPRA
NNNAY per share was calculated as 3396p
as at 30 Ssptember 2019, up 7.6 per cent on
the comparable figure 12 months previous.
In future, we will headline with both net asset
per share calculations. It is noteworthy

that Urban&QCivic has reported successive
increases in net asset value — across all
measures - in each interim and full year
period since coming to market in May 2014,

Particular points of note

(Good progress has been recorded across
the board, including at Catesby, our land
promotion business that contributed
significant sales during the pericd. Four
particular aspects merit highlighting.

First, the minimum value of contracted
future licence sales on Group projects
reached £101.7 million. The infrastructure
investment for those realisations is all made.

Second, planning consent was issued

for 6,500 new homes at Waterbeach, on
the northern perimeter of Cambridge, in
September 2019 following the Resolution
to Grant anncunced in May. We are in
advanced discussions for an associated
£606 mitlion infrastructure facility, Both
consent and facility represent our largest to
date. Preliminary works are on site with the
start of the substantive capital programme
early in the New Year. Initial new build
occupations are scheduled for 3G 2022.

Third, whilst it remains early days, the signs
are good for the proposed rew settlement
at Tyttenhanger in Hertsmere, Hertfordshire.
Agreements were signed in February 2019
over 2000 acres, predominantly to the
immediate north of junction 22 to the M26, 18
miles from Marble Archin Central London.
The Development Management arrangsments
provide for Urban&Civic having responsibility
for planning and delivery, including site
servicing costs, for which we stand to
receive a substantial minority participation.
The project requires release from the Green
Belt and, as such, necessarily is to be taken
through the Local Plan. On the other hand,
Hertsmere Borough is 79 per cent Green
Belt; it is simply infeasible to reach local
employment and housing aspirations
without a major release. The current Council
timetable is for Local Plan adopticn during
2021, There are no local authority elections
for Hertsmere during that period providing
a correspondingly stable governance base.

Fourth, the valuers made some changes

to the weighting of their assumptions at the
year end, including inflation and discount
rates. The impact of those changes was

to lower the level of reported net asset
uplift by approximately £26 million when
compared with the assumptions used at
30 September 2018. Partly as consequence,
the estimated large site discount also
reduced by £13 million to £197 million,
equivalent to 135p per share. The calculation
is made between the current open market
value of a standard 180-200 plot parcel on
our consented sites only, as then discounted
by CBRE into a balance sheet valuation to
acoount for the strategic size of our actua!
holdings. Adding back that discount to
EPRA NAV gives a figure of 486p per share
at 30 September 2019, up from 477p on

12 months previous and notwithstanding
the alteration in valuation assumptions.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT CONTINUED

Regional differentiation across

the UK land market

Urban&Civic was founded on the political
impracticality of meeting housing requirements
in the South East without an increased
contribution from large developments.
Young families and inward movement,

net just from abroad but also from other
parts of the country, combine to produce
local population growth often approaching
1 per cent ayear. That translates into a
requirement for somewhere approaching
10,000 new homes in each borough or
district over the next 10-12 years. That
simple calculation demonstrates the
necessity for strategic projects in our
chosen areas within 100 miles of London.

Strategic site delivery: 2000 -

(by calendar year}

Alconbury Weald

National land indices show no real price
movement since the start of 2018,
Housebuilders have sought to protect
margin and mitigate risk through careful site
selection. The nationals are able to point to
good land buying opportunities in benign
oonditions. Government policies and
interventions are having a greater national
impact than is often credited. Recently
published official statistics are that the
housing supply in England increased at the
highest annual rate to March 2019 at any
time in the past 30 years. Significantly, the
net addition figure was almost 8 per cent
above the pre-financial crash peak,
despite the aggregate number of housing
transactions for the year being 30 per cent
lower than the high of 2006-2007.

Purchasers {especially first time buyers)
are staying longer, having families later and
mostly choosing houses over apartments,
leaving the secondary market to stagnate
relatively, while demand for new-build
property strengthens assisted by the
continuation of Help to Buy.

The statistics also serve to reinforce an
observation mads in previous reports:

the regional shortfalls in new houses being
built against the Government's Standard
Methodology for measuring those
requirements are limited to London, the
South East and some parts of the East of
England. In the rest of the country, the
official targets are now being met or, in
some cases comfortably, exceeded.

e 2014

p 2016

RadicStation Rughy

Lo

Middlebeck Newark

Priors Hall

Waterbeach

Wintringham St Neots
.

Manydown Basingstoke
.

Calvert Buckinghamshire

Tyttenhanger Hertfordshire
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As consequence, outside the South East,
the actual limitations are not the availability
of consented land on which to build but the
axtent of customer demand and the fierce
determination of housebuilders to maintain
cost efficiency.

UK employment remains close to arecord
high and earnings growth exceeds inflation.
Fortunately, these are the two principal
historic housing drivers, regardless of the
prevailing political turmoil. Qutside London,
the subdued economic environment is
impacting upon house prices but much less
on absorption rates. Positive underlying
demographics, supported by good servicing
affordability from low maortgage interest

2017 —

2018 ——p 2019 — P 2020 ————————p

rates, sustain demand nationally without
meaningful house price inflation. The
evidence from our own projects is for
continued build out at a pace above contractual
minimums but with house price growth at
Corby and Newark.

Urban&Civic’s performance

relative to those markets

Pulling those strands together explains why
the Company has been able to cutperform
the land indices and affords good confidence
for new openings arising from our established
competitive advantage. The success achieved
by Urban&Civic to date has not beenin
especially supply constrained locations.

Sales are taking place currently on four
strategic projects plus Europa Way at
Warwick, which is smaller at 736 units but
aiso fully infrastructured. Alconbury is on
the margin of the area for which ourrent net
additions are falling short of official housing
requirements. The remainder, Houlton in
Rugby in particular, are in high demand/well
supplied areas. The differentiation lies in our
ability to create new quality places and
schocling. As illustration, there are 18 new
housing outlets in Rugby Borough, where
there is a2 current shortage of school places.
The initial intake at the primary school on
our project at Houlton is approaching capacity
after little more than two years. The consented
design provides for ready expansion.

Timeline key:

Acquisition/appointed

Further land acquired

Local plan allocation

Community engagement

Outline planning

Infrastructure

Residential delivery

Receipts

Ongoing

For more detail on our
strategic sites view:
www.urbanandcivic.com
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT CONTINUED

Urban&Civic’s performance

relative to those markets continued
Work has started on the secondary school
which is on course for September 2021
opening. Our devised funding structure,
whereby the Department of Education
advances £356.6 million, interest free and
repayable only against section 106 hurdles,
has been extended to a national pilot.

The £25 million link road, accelerated with
favourable funding from Homes England,
is now open. The greenspace investment
looks terrific. The anecdotal evidence is
that Houlton is cutselling other new outlets
in Rugby by 50 per cent per housebuilder.

Asg progression, our next two projects stand
squarely in areas of limited supply. Wintringham
is within walking distance of the East Coast
mainline raitway station at St Neots on the
Cambridgeshire/Bedfordshire border.
Contracts on parcels totalling 455 units

are completed; one to Cala Homes, a new
customer, the other to Morris Homes, who
are also building at Alconbury and Rugby.
Two further contracts are in dogumentation
for approximately the same number again:
both new customers. Those four licences
will comprise arcund one third of the total
2,800 consented plots. The frame is erected
for the first primary school that will open

in September 2020 to coincide with initial
residential occupations.

Bids have been received from nursery
operators and from metro food retailers.
The 33 per cent in the project was acquired
from our partners, Nuffield College in Oxford,
in April 2017 at an acquisition consideration
equivalent to £14,286 per unserviced
residential plot. The equivalent CERE
valuation as at September 2019, which took
account only of the first two contracts, was
almost double at £2.700 per plot. The date of
first cccupation will be a little shy of our
original ambitious target, but well within
three years of first application sutmission.

Waterbeach, three miles to the north of the
Soience and Business Parks in Cambridge,
will follow clossly after Wintringham. Planning
consent took longer here but in an area

of greatest shortfall. The section 106 was
signed in September 2019, giving rise to a
valuable interest in the former barracks land
to Urban&Civic, as well as a right to draw
down in accordance with the development
management contract. An initial valuation
of the combined interests included in the
year end accounts gave rise to an uplift over
cost of £24.6 million. Occupations of the
first new homes are scheduled for third
quarter of 2022. From the outset and
regardless of the extragrdinary lakeside
environment, Waterbeach has been
positioned as affordable Cambridge.
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If Urban&Civic was established
out of the practical necessity
for more strategic projects,
the virtues of well managed
infrastructure led development
are now apparent.

The madel for the new secondary
school at Houlton, Rugby.

The valuations are based on starting prices
well below £400 per sq. ft. The completed
conversion of the barracks buildings for
nursing accommedation to Papworth
hospital supports the assumption that

the demand for PRS looks settobeofa
different order from other Group projects
to further boost likely delivery rates.

Environmental and social virtues
from operating at scale

If Urban&Civic was established out of
the practical necessity for more strategic
projects, the virtues of well managed
infrastructure led development are

now apparent. Put simply, large projects
afford the opportunity of creating new
gresn environments with good practices
and guality education designed in from
the outset in a manner that infill sites
never can.

Whilst the advantages of infill are speed and
lack of risk, as Master Developer, Urban&Civic
can provide the same to our housebuilders
customers on their serviced land parcels
whilst creating new social fabric for all
stakeholders across the site. Strategic
projects are necessarily infrastructure led.
The funding suppert from Homes England
is correspondingly important. That is being
repeated at Waterbeach.




Securing planning consent also required
empirical demonstration to South
Cambridgeshire planners of net carbon
improvement emphasising the importance
of our Sustainability Framework.

We are on site with new schools ar Rugby
and Wintringham and about to commenoe
the primary school at Newark. The link
road at Rugby is open five years ahead of
planning obligation. The Urban&Civic way is
creating a level of goodwili and ingtitutional
alignment that will take some matching,
The stream of official visitors to our sites is
testimony to the prevailing level of interest.
The monetisation that comes from building
our own prime becomes shared with our
housebuilding customers via the licence
arrangements. The price profile may have
flattened but the stepped growth since first
salesis marked.

Operating at scale is underpinned by our
natural enthusiasm for consulting widely
and with genuine intent; early tree planting
creating usable and sustainable green
landscape; recycling and reusing as much
material as we can; establishing meaningful
programmes for jobs and skills and forging
strong bonds of trust with the communities
in which we are delivering.

We know that what we do makes a difference.
| am proud of what we have achieved to date
and very aware of the increasing focus on
these issues, From having extensively
reviewed standard metrics and measurements
we found that none encompass accurately
the role of the Master Developer across large
soale sites. Accordingly, a bespoke assessment
of metric options for Alconbury identified
five key sustainability capitals which will
underpin our work during 2020 to forge a
detailed, repeatable and relevant assessment
we can report on more widely. We welcome
comments on the analysis to date and
shareholder involvement in the process
going forward.

Catesby

The Group's land promotion business
continued to capitalise on its planning expert
positioning, | am pleased to report that the
two outstanding Supreme Court hearings
and the judicial review were all determined
in Catesby's favour. Total sales in the year
amounted to £101 million giving a realised post
tax contribution after overheads of £6.3
million. The net EPRA movement on sites for
which consents have been secured but the
land not yet sold was a further £14 million.
Capital invested in Catesby was £290 million
as recorded in the balance sheet at

30 September 2019. The EPRA uplift included
within capital invested aggregated £12.9 million.
Operating conditions are not getting any easier
but a good pipefine is being maintained with
approximately 11000 units across 62 sites
on 2,000 acres. At the time of writing four
projects are at appeal or subject to judicial
review. A small satellite office has been
opened in Basingstoke to provide better
coverage to the south and west of London.

Manchester

Completion of the three residential blocks at
Manchester New Square is programmed
between April and September 2020.

The development is in joint venture with

the Greater Manchester Pension Fund, who
provide all incremental funding. Sales are
steady with a noticeable increase in footfall
now that the hoardings are down. 145 units
exchanged/ reserved out of 3561, Help to Buy
finance will be available on remaining
apartments early in the New Year.

Refurbishment works contracted at £4 million
are about to commence on the Renaissance
hotel in Deansgate, in conjunction with a
new five year operating lease to Marriott.
Manchester City Council has ratified a
Strategic Regeneration Framework to confirm
the subsequent redevelopment potential.

The Big Summear Bash at
Alconbury Weald with the
restored listed watchtower
bottom left and the new
crigket pitch top nght.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT CONTINUED

Immediate priorities

We must always look to improve but last year
was one of few project disappeintments. The
obvious frustration is the time that is being
taken to get started at Manydown. The
conversion of the procurement process into
contract has taken longer than anticipated but
does now appear close to completion. An
industry leading joint venture between

a local authority, a county council, a Master
Developer and the world's second largest
charity was never going 1o be entirely
straightforward but, once formed, will

have significant experience and firepower.
The outline planning application, being run
to date by the Councils, shows that large site
approvals are not easy even when a local
authority is effectively making an application
to itself. We look forward to putting our
shoulder fully to the wheel post contract.

Work will start in earnest at Waterbeach
where we enjoy the advantage of making
the most of an already established natural
environment, really for the first time.

The outcome of the deliberations over HS2
have obvious ramifications for Calvertin
Buckinghamshire. Qur interests in 785 acres,
with a working understanding over more, are
at the intersection of the programmed HS2
route and the track beds of the Oxford to

Cambridge Univeraity Eco
Racing (CUER) testing their
solar vehicle at Waterbeach.

Cambridge railway line. The rail connections
are fundamental, whereas the now unlikely
Oxford to Cambridge Expressway is not.
Woe are making the case. Several new projects
in which we can look to capitalise on platform
advantage arein early due diligence. But

no more than that. The priority is for early
income realisation.

The Executive Management Committee is
working well and helps integrate not only
internal decision making but also external
stakeholder engagement. The operating
structures are in place for further expansion
and the Chairman has articulated clearly
how the growing business has coalesced
around clear values.

Outlook

Expressing confidence a fortnight before
the most significant General Election in
living memory is the preserve of the brave,
not to say foolhardy. The level of large
project realisations last year amounted

10 1066 plots (6656 strategic sites plus 401
Europa Way). The total combined exceeded
guidance, albeit not by as much as for
2017118. Predicting the current year is more
difficult again. The resilience in mid-range
housing demand is demonstrably hard to
suppress, just as the UK economy has
faltered, not stalled, despite all bleak
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prognoses. Maintained uncertainty and
further parliamentary gymnastics were
there not to be a majority cutoome must
test the resolve of new purohésers. probably
heyond previous limits. Housebuilders may
also choose to run slower in securing
detailed planning approvals ahead of
starting on site.

The contrary is also perfectly plausible.

The emphasis is manifestly different but
there is much common ground across the
political manifestos. Housing priorities are
unusually detailed. A growing population has
to live somewhere and, with the possible
exception of Waterbeach, buying is cheaper
than renting on and around our projects.
Climate and social concerns will continue to
acoelerate. Our housebuilding customers
will be able to apportion some of the benefits
in driving down impacts that large sites can
provide. To maintain revenues when facing
continued politioal uncertainty, housebuilders
may regard Urban&Civic sites as a preferable
{ow risk route to return on capital employed.
Build cost pressures are abating. We are
seeing those signs in the interest for new
parcels from existing and new customers
aliker current licences and forward realisations
number 28 with a further 11, including some
smaller sales, in legal docurentation.




The most straightforward ¢course in estimating,
the coming year i$ to use our central business
plan assumptions, acknowledging the extent
to which external events could impact in
either direction. On that basis, the 2019/20
sales profile remains sharply upwards at 1,200
strategic sité realisations {approaching double
last year), with an additional 334 at Furopa
Way. The downside risk is mitigated by the
structure of the licence contracts. The
average length of forward sales at 3.3 years
with progressively higher minimumg affords
significant comfort if we are to face another
bout of unstable minority administration.

Looking further forward, the Board is
determinexd to play to the Company’s strengths
and clear platform advantage. Group projects
including Catesby amount to 32,000 consented
or allocated plots, with a further 15000
moving through the planning process.

That represents a tripling of holdings in five
years. We offer a rapid and pre-consented
route to sales in affordable and well
connected locations with strong underlying
demographics in the South East. By contrast,
our expectation is that the buyers' market
for land will maintain elsewhere and may yet
become more pronounced.

NPPF guidance envisages circumstances in
which councils might need to plan for more
housing than the standard method calculation.

A recent report from, planning consultants,
Liohfields reviewed the plan making progress
of all local autharities in England, excluding
London. The research found that of one
third of submitted or emerging Local Plans
went above the pro rata 273000 home
target but that the sponsoring authorities
were overwhelmingly in the North and
Midlands. Plans in the South East either
matched or were providing for less,
predominantly citing constraints on supply.

That is our area and those are the authorities
with which Urban&Civic, as the leading
Master Developer, can command most
leverage. Tyttenhanger exemplifies where
we are concentrating our attention and
resources. Equidistant betwsen St Albansg
and Potters Bar, in one of the most supply
constrained locations in Southern England.
The covering agreement was made bilaterally
with a single landowner and takes our total
number of strategic projects to nine, much
the highest of any UK Master Developer.
We are working on more.

Looking further forward, the
Board is determined to play
to the Company’s strengths
and clear platform advantage.

Roman con discovered during
the archaeology nvestigatons
at Priors Hall

Dividend

The final dividend of 2.5p per share
maintains the stated policy of increasing
shareholder distributions by 10 per cent

per annum in the normal course. The 114 per
cent increase in the current year recognises
the planning consent at Waterbeach and
continued strong Group performance, It
goes without saying that the Board will
review at the half year, at which point the
landscape will hopefully have become
clearer, or perhaps not.

A scrip dividend alternative will be made
available for the 2019 final payment, for
which | shall again be electing.

Continuing thanks

Ever grateful thanks to Board and staff
colleagues alike. An inclusive stakeholder
approach has been part of the DNA of
Urban&Civic from the very outset. Doing
things right is just how we work.

Nigel Hugill
Chief Executive
27 November 2019
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Sustained and
robust growth

The Group has delivered a 9.6 per cent
growth in EPRA net asset value in the last

12 months - this is also the annual equivalent
growth rate since our 2014 listing.

DAVID WOOD —
GROUP FINANCE DIRECTOR
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Key observations

EPRA net asset value up 86 per cent at
£6276 million {30 September 2018:

£4812 million) with Waterbeach revaluation
contributing £24.6 million to the uplift.

EPRA net assets per share 86 per cent higher
at 360.3p (331.8p at 30 September 2018).

EPRA triple net assets 339.6p per share;
up 7.6 per cent.

Large site discount per share represents a
further 135p per share (30 September 2018:
145p per share),

660 strategic site plot completions

(+49 per cent over last year) generating
£424 million of cash of which Urban&QCivic's
share was £34.3 million (+63 per cent over
last year).

Gearing of 19.8 per cent on an EPRA NAV
basis (30 September 2018: 16.3 per cent).
A large proportion of this increase relates
to Homes England drawings.

Gross profit £284 million (year to

30 September 2018: £294 million).

Reduced commergial disposals were
compensated by residential property profits.

Final dividend of 2.5p per share; 114 per cent
year-on-year increase to recognised
continued strong performance.




Introduction

The Group has delivered a 96 per cent growth
in EPRA net asset value (or 85 per centon
an EPRA triple net asset value basis) in the
last 12 months, through a combination of
planning uplifts (including outline consent for
6500 homes at Waterbeach), acoelerated
infrastructure delivery and placeraking across
the Group's strategic sites and completion
of B65 plot sales (1,066 plots if you include
our sub-strategic site at Europa Way). These
665 strategic site plot sales generated
£34.3 million cash for the Group, which

was around & per cent above expectations
in terms of numbers and 3 per cent higher
in respect of values (the slightly lower cash

generation outperformance was the result

of variations to sales mix rather than pricing).

This level of sales was achieved without
having any housebuilders commencing
sales on new parcels in the second half
of the year.

All consented strategic land sites are now
benefiting from house completions except for
Waterbeach, which has just received consent,
and Wintringham, where two housebuilders are
now on site and building homes (completions
due in 2020). At 30 September 2018, the
Group had sales contracts in place with

19 housebuilders across five sites, which

will generate minimum total receipts of
£101.7 miillion (up from £96.8 million at

31 March 2019 and £934 million at
30 September 2018) — an annual minimurnm
equivalence of £30.7 million.

Gross profits are slightly down on last

year and have mostly been derived from
residential and Catesby sales rather than
the historic commercial property disposals.

Key performance indicators

The Group's key performance indicators
for the year to 30 September 2019 remain
consistent with last year, although | have
increased the prominence of the EPRA
triple net metric this year (EPRA NNNAV)
and | have also added a total NAV return
measure (which is defined in the glossary
of terms),

Year endad Yearended  Annual increase/
30 September 2018 30 September 2018 (decreass)
EPRA NAYV (EPRA net assets) £627.56m £4812m 96%
EPRA NAV per share 380.3p 331.8p 86%
EPRA NNNAYV {EPRA triple net assets) £4970m £4681m 85%
EPRA NNNAYV per share 339.5p 3159p 75%
Total shareholder return 78% 191%
Total NAV return 8.6% 9.2%
Gearing - EPRANAV basis 19.9% 18:3%
Look-through gearing - EPRA NAV basig 28.3% 206%
Strategic site plot completions' 665 plots 446 plots 494%
Europa Way plot completions 401 plots — n/a
Cash flow generation from strategic site plot completions? £34.3m £210m 630%
Large site discount per share® 136.0p 1450p (6.9)%
EPRA NAYV per share + large site discount per share (gross of tax)* 496.3p 476.8p 39%

1. Inciudes 144 plots at Alconbury Weald {six months endod 31 March 2019: 80; year ended 30 Septarmber 2018: 100); 155 at Rugby (six months to 31March 2019: 62; year ended
30 September 2018: 78); B7 at Newark (six manths to 31 March 2018: 63; year ended 30 September 2018: 37); 53 plots from new contracts ar Priors Hall and 226 plots from
pre-acquisition contracts at Priors Hall (six manths to 31 March 2018 226; acquisition to 30 September 2018: 230).

2. Represents Urban&Civic's {U&OC's) share of cash generated by strategic site plot completions.

3. Largo sito dicoount reprosents the differonce between the unserviced land values ascribed by CBRE strategic site valuations (which considor site soate and build-out duration among
other matters) and the current retail prices being achieved on smaller parcel sales

4. EPRANMNAY per share + large site discount {net of tax) equates to 4516p (30 September 2018: 436.3p) Tha tax aliowance was calculated by applying a tar rate of 7 per cent ta the

gross large site discount.

EPRA NAV metrics and total sharehalder return remain the Group's principal performance measures, particularly when assessing value
growth. CPRA balance sheet measures record the net asset value attributable to equity shareholders, adjusted for the revaluation of trading
properties without tax (EPRA net asset value) or with tax (EPRA triple net asset value),

Given the impaot that revaluations of trading properties have on the Group's EPRA NAV metrics, we continue to engage CBRE Limited
(our independent valuers) to provide Red Book valuations for all our consented strategic land sites (as well as others property valuations)
using discounted cash flows as a basis for their assessment.

| mentioned above that | have increased my focus on EPRA NNNAY in my commentary this year. This reflects the Group's increasing
profitability and usage of its historic tax losses; both of which are likely to mean that the Group will pay more tax in the future (especially

as the Group is not a REIT).

Qur justification for selecting the other KPls is set out on pages 12 and 13.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

Net Asset Value - EPRA NAV, EPRA NNNAV and IFRS NAV
| havo prosontod bolow a non statutory analysic oxplaining the movemants in net aseot value over the last 12 months (and comparablo poriod).

‘Yoar ended Year ended

30 Septembar 2018 30 September 2018
Joint veanture and
Group amecCistes Total Totad

£m £Em Em  Pence pershare £m Pence per shara
Revaluation of investment properties and write
downs of trading properties*? 51 —_ 6.1 3.5 a1 8.3
Profit on trading and investment property sales® 18.3 81 274 187 278 190
Rental, hotel and other property income 23 —_ 23 16 25 18
Project management fees 29 — 29 20 30 22
Administrative expenses (19.9) (o1} (20.0) a3n (18.8) {(130)
Tax and other income statement movements (51) _ (61) (3.5) {4.8) 39)
Total comprehensive income movament 48 80 126 88 188 131
Dividends paid 6.2 — 56.2) (3.5) 45) {31)
Other equity movements 33 — 33 23 29 20
Effect of IFRS 15 adoption? 24 08 32 22 — —
{FRS movement 6. 88 139 8.6 172 120
Revaluation of retained trading properties? 38.6 28 383 268 351 242
Release of trading property revaluations on
disposalg® a.n — 4.7 (3.2) (1n.6) 80)
Deferred taxation? 1.0 — 1.0 07 12 08
Effect of IFRS 16 adoption? (2.4} {0.8) 3.2) (2.2) — —
Effect of share issues and dilutive options — (3.2) — (16}
EPRA NAV movement 35.6 108 483 285 419 274
Deferred taxation? {14} — (74) {4.9) (B7) (3.8)
EPRA NNNAV movement 281 10.8 389 236 362 236
EPRA NAYV at start of year 481.2 331.8 4393 3044
EPRA NAYV at end of year 5275 3603 4812 3318
EPRA NNNAV at start of year 4581 316.9 4219 2023
EPRA NNNAV at end of year 4970 338.6 4681 3159

1. Comprises surpluses on the revaluation of investment properties (£6.8 million) net of trading property write downs (£0.7 million).
2. Tatal classified as property revaluations for the purposes of the below EPRA NNNAV growth commentary.

3. Comprises profits from trading and residential property sales (£22.6 million), construction contracts (£1.3 milion) and investrment property sales (whether earmed by subsidiaries or
joint vonturoo} as woll as unwinding of discounts applied to long term rosidential property salos dobtors (£2.6 million) and surplupoc on rovaluation of average ontittoments that woro
acquired with the Priors Hall asset (£0.9 mliioe).

4. Total glassified as profit on property sales for the purposes of the below EPRA NNNAV growth commentary.

As reported at the half year, following the adoption of IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' overages as well as minimums are
now recognised ahead of house exchanges or house compietions to the extent they are not expected to reverse in the future. The £3.2 million
total set out in the table above represents the estimated additional discounted overages, net of tax, receivable up to 30 September 2018
and is accounted for as an opening reserve adjustment.

You will alsa neto from the table that proporty revaluations contributod 23.9p2 to the Greup's EPRA NMMNAY growth of 23 8p, while profits on
property caloo pontributod a further 17.7p* Ovorheads, dividends and tho dilutive offeet of charo options not 206p from these gains.

A more detailed reconciliation between IFRS, EPRA NAV and EPRA NNNAV is provided in note 22.
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Total shareholder and NAV return

Urban&Civio's share price increased 200p {or 66 per cent) over the financial year (from 304.0p on 30 September 2018 to 3240p on
30 September 2019). This increase, combined with the payment of a 2.2p final dividend and 14p interim dividend, has resulted in total
shareholder return of 7.8 per cent for the financial year.

Total NAV return, which substitutes movements in EPRA NNNAYV for movements in share prices when compared to sharsholder retumn

caloulations, has increased by 86 per cent over the 12 months to 30 September 2019.

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Gross profits, including the Group's share of joint ventures, are broadly in line with last year despite not making the significant commergial

asset disposals that have been a feature of prior periods.

The Group's profit after tax was down £61 million over the comparative financial year, which (given consistent gross profits) is predominantly
as a result of lower property revalyations going through the income statement, following the reclassification of maost of the Group's property

interests into trading stock in this and prior years.

| have provided further explanation of the income statement movements below.

Yaur andad 30 Septamber 2018 Year ended 3C September 2018
Joint ventures Joint ventures
Group and associates Total Group and associates Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue 1021 204 131.6 1604 88 159.2
Profit on trading property sales* 18.7 72 239 243 21 264
Rental and other property profits 0.6 — 06 08 — 08
Hotel operating profit 17 —_ 1.7 18 — 18
Project management and other fees® 29 - 29 30 — 30
Write down of trading properties* (o) — (0.7 (28) — (2.6)
Gross profit 2712 72 284 273 21 294
Administrative expenses {net of capitalised costs}® {19.9) (o) (20.0) (18.8) — (18.8)
Profit on investment property sales? — — —_ 12 — 12
Surplus on revaluation of investment properties® 68 — 58 106 — 106
Surplus on revaluation of receivables? 09 _ 0.9 1 — 11
Share of post-tax profit from joint ventures 8.0 (8.0) — 21 (2.1) —
Unwinding of discount applied to long-term debtors? 1.7 0.9 26 08 — 08
Tax and other income statement movements (6.1) — (1) (58) — (686}
Profit after tax 126 — 126 187 — 187

1 Comyxises profits from trading property sales and residential property sales and profits on construction contracts as disclosed in nate 2.
2. Tetal classified as profit on trading and investment property sales in the EPRA movemant table above.

3. Recurring project management fees comprise £2.1 million of the total (30 September 2018: £2.1 million) and are earned through recharging administrative expenses to jaint ventures

where Group ernployees are engaged on joint venture activitios.

4. Total classified as revaluation of investment properties and write downs of trading properties in the above table.

Gross profit

Qross profit is slightly down on last year at £284 million (including £7.2 million generated by joint ventures), predominantly due to reduced
commercial disposal profits (down £76 million - reflecting last year’s sale of the Stansted Hilton Hotel development and Skelton Retail
Park), which have been compensated by increased residential property profits (up £2.8 million), and significantly lower property write-downs

(down £1.9 million).

Profits from trading property sales of £23.9 million (which make up 84 per cent of gross profit) include residential profits at Alconbury Weald,
Newark and Priors Hall (£2.8 million), £7.2 million in respect of Urban&Civic's share of residential profits at RadioStation Rugby and Wintringham,

£3.2 million generated by the disposal of Canningford House commercial property, £1.3 million of Europa Way residential profits and
£94 million from Catesby land promotion transactions.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

Consolidated statement of
comprehensive income continued
Gross profit continued

Included within the residential profit's figures
are profits from the Group's strategic site
licence arrangements. These arrangements
are complicated from an acoounting perspective,
however they are predominantly recognised
in two places in the income statement,
although often at different points in time.

Firstly, we typically recognise the total
minimum amounts due under a licence
arrangement when the land has been
transferred to the housebuilder (usually

on contract completion). This minimum sum
is discounted and recorded through gross
profit line together with an estimate of the
overages that the Group expects to collect
from the housebuilder when the homes
are ultimately sold. This overage sum is
also discounted, due to the length of time

it takes to earn that overage, and it is only
recognised if we do not believe thereis a
high probability that it will reverse due to
market conditions prior to collection.

At each subsequent reporting period our
estimates will be compared with what has
taken place and adjustments made.

The second place where you might consider
that ‘residential profits’ are recorded, is
through the finance income line. Itis here
that the discount applied to the long-term
minimums and overage debtors unwind,
through either the passage of time or upon
receipt of the licence proceeds, minimum
sum and/or overage.

Key Phase | of Aloonbury Weald.

Duiring this financial year, residential profits
at Alconbury Weald, Newark and Priorg Hall
included £2.6 million from the complation
of 26 Hopking Homes and £1.6 million

of pre-completion profit recognition of
discounted overages across all three sites.
A further £1.7 million of discount unwinding,
in respact of minimum and overage receivables,
was recognised in finance income.

Of the £7.2 million of joint venture residential
profits, £56.0 million was attributable to the
contractual minimums and discounted
overages following the sale of 3 248-plot
parcel to Redrow at Rugby (£4.0 million)
and the sale of a 177-plot parcel to Cala

at Wintringham (£10 million). A further

£2.2 million of other profits from Davidsons
Homes, Morris Homes and Crest Nicholson
agreements were also recognised. Joint
ventures also booked a further £0.9 million
of discount unwinding, in respect of the
overage receivables, through finance income.

| have provided a breakdown of plot
completions by site, with comparatives,

as afootnote to the KPl table above. You should
note that 226 completions at Priors Hall in
the period relate to existing contracts that
were in place whan the Group purchased the
site in October 2017 and therefore receipts
against these acquisition receivables have
been credited to the balanoce sheet receivables;
rather than the income statement.

The terms minimums, overages and
licences have been defined within the
glossary and our accounting policy notes
sets out how we recognised revenue.
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Administrative expenses

The Group’s gross administrative costs have
increased by £1.8 million {to £2%.3 million)

in the 12 months to 30 September 2010,
This is largely as a result of increased staff
costs (headcount has increased by seven
employees this year) and one-off costs
associated with the Group's move to the
Premium Listing segment of the London
Stock Exchange in April. After capitalising
overheads assocciated with development
activity, this gross amount falls to £20.0 miillion
compared with £18.8 million last year.

It is worth noting that the Group's recurring
project management fees, which are fees
earned by our employees for the provision
of project management services to our
joint ventures (or other third parties), now
amount to £2.1 million (30 September 2018:
£21million), These project management
sarvices and associated fees contribute

to overheads as well as actingas a

profit centre.

Surplus on revaluation of

investment properties

The residential-led planning application for
the Alconbury Weald expansion land, better
known as Grange Farm has now been
submitted and therefors, on
commencement of early development
works, we reclassified this property into
trading stock on 1 October 2018.

Following this reclassification, and as a
resuit of prior period reclassifications and
disposals, the Group's only investment
properties now gomprise commercial
buildings, commercial development land
at Alconbury Weald and a proportion of
the Group's interest in Waterbeach, which
could deliver both commercial buildings and
residential rental properties in the future.
Consequently there are very few property
revaluations accounted for through the
income statement under International
Financial Reporting Standards.

In order to help the reader, understand the
value of the Group's total property portfolio,
as well as recongile the movements in values
at IFRS and EPRA leveals, | have produced
the table below, which pulls together the
property interests that arise throughout

the balance sheet.




Trading Trade and cther

Investment Trading Proparties Trade and propertes receivables  Total (including
Property portfolio properties proparties withn PPE  other receivables Subtotal (share of joint (share of share of joint
£m (wholly owned)  (wholly owned)  (whollyowned)  (wholtyowned)  (wholly owned) ventures) jont vantures) ventures)
Valuation at
1October 2018 869 3412 37 313 4531 1344 16 8091
Less: EPRA adjustment
{trading properties) — 874 — — 874 179 — 863
IFRS carrying value at
10ctober 2018 869 2738 37 313 3957 165 1B 5238
Impact of adopting IFRS 16 — — — 31 31 — 08 39
IFRS carrying value at
1October 2018 - restated 869 2738 37 344 3088 nss 124 8277
Capital expenditure (including
capitalised overheads) 21 444 — — 4850 418 — 881
Transfer to trading properties 49 419 — — — — — —
Disposals/depreciation/
write downs — (631) (05) 182 (3564} (150) 163 (351)
Revaluation movements
(investment properties) 58 — — — 58 — — 58
IFRS carrying value at
30 September 2019 52,9 307.0 32 62.6 4157 1431 277 5865
Add: EPRA adjustment
{trading properties) —_ 9b4 — — 954 2086 — 8.0
Valuation at 30 September 2019 529 4024 32 526 5111 163.7 277 7025
Memc: movernment in EPRA
adjustrnent (trading properties) — 28.0 - — 280 27 — 307
Comprising;
Effect of IFRS 15 adoption’ — (31) — — (31 (0.8} — (39)
EPRA adjustment on sites sokd' — 470 - — @7 — — 47
EPRA adjustment on
retained properties — 3568 — — 368 35 — 393

1. Classified as EPRA adjustments reversed as properties sold or profits recogrised in below commentary.

From the above table you can see that investment properties generated £5.8 million of revaluation surpluses in the year (under IFRS}
with a further £39.3 million derived from revaluing retained trading properties (wholly owned and held by joint ventures) at the EPRA level.

Against this, £4.7 million of EPRA adjustments have been reversed as properties have been disposed of or profits recognised.

Of the total £451 million uplift, £24.6 million (54.5 per cent) was the result of the revatuation of our interest in Waterbeach following the
grant of outline consent for 6500 homes. Alconbury Weald, Wintringham and Priors Hall strategic land sites contributed a further £6.5 million,

£38 million and £4.6 million respectively and Catesby planning consents generated a further £14 million of uplifts.

The revaluation movements in respect of Alconbury Weald, Wintringham and Priors Hall reflect on-site progress, both in terms of sales
and infrastrusture works (which have resulted in a reduction in the discount rates that CBRE apply to their valuation cash flow models) and
Catesby uplifts are derived from changes in planning status of several of its promotion sites. Alconbury Weald remains the Group’s most
significant property asset comprising 407 per cent of the total property portfolio value.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

Consclidated statement of comprehensive income continued

Taxation expense

The tax charge as a proportion of profits has increased over recent reporting periods as historic tax losses have been utilised and changes
in legislation have restricted how much of these historic tax lesses can be utilised in any one period. In the 12 months to 30 September 2019
the Group's tax charge of £3.7 million amounted to 22.7 per cent of profit before tax, higher than the 18 per cent UK corporation tax rate;
predominantly due to share based payments and costs such as depreciation being either non-deductible or non-deductible until settlement
in the case of share-based payment costs. Taxable profits relate in most part to residential property sales and Catesby disposals.

Dividend

The Board proposes to pay a final dividend of 2.5p this year; subject to shareholder approval at the AGM on 6 February 2020. Assuming the
final dividend is approved, this witl mean that the total dividend for the year amounts to 39p, up 114 per cent over the prior year and broadly
in fine with the Group’s EPRA NNNAV growth.

The final dividend will be paid on 21 February 2020 to those shareholders on the register on 10 January 2020. Investors choosing to
participate in the dividend reinvestment scheme will need to make their election by 24 January 2020.

The Group paid its 2018 final dividend of 2.2p per share (£3.2 miliion) in February 2010 and the interim 14p per share (£2.0 million) in July 2019.

Consolidated balance sheet
Overview
At 30 September 2019 At 30 September 2018
Joint Jaint
venture and venture and
Group ARBOCIAtE Total Group assooiatas Total
£m £m £m Em £m £m

Investment properties 52.9 — 529 868 — 869
Trading properties 3070 1431 4501 2738 1165 3903
Properties within PPE 3.2 — 3.2 37 — 37
Properties' 3631 1431 506.2 3644 166 4809
Investment in joint ventures and associates 121.3 (121.3) —_ 1034 {1034) —
Trade and other receivables
Non-current property' 45.9 221 68.0 204 16 320
Current property’' 87 6.8 123 109 — 109
Current ~ other ns 1268 244 181 100 281

844 403 104.7 404 26 7o
Cash 244 30 274 166 05 17
Borrowings {120.3) (4a78) (176.9) (94.9) (21.3} (nse.2)
Deferred tax liability (net) (6.9} - (6.9) (4.1) — @A
QOther net liabilities {35.0) {17.56) (62.5) (45.8) (139) (607}
Net assets 403.0 — 403.0 3890 — 3890
EPRA adjustrments - property’ 855 206 16.0 674 179 863
EPRA NAV adjustments - deferred tax 86 — 856 69 — 69
EPRA NAV 6070 205 5275 4833 179 4812
EPRA NNNAV adjustments - deferred tax (30.56) — (30.5) (231 — (231
EPRA NNNAV 476.6 205 4970 4402 179 4581

1. Total property related interests: £702 5 milion (30 September 2018 £6091 million.
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Non-current assets

Investrment properties

Investment properties at 30 September 2019
amounted to £62.9 million and comprised the
commercial development area at Alconbury
Weald (£43.0 million) and a proportion of
the Group's interest in the Waterbeach site
that could deliver both commercial buildings
and residential properties for rent in due
course (£9.9 million).

The Group's total period-end property
portfolio, irrespective of balance sheet
classification, was valued at £702.5 million,
94 per cent by independent valuers CBRE
and 6 per cent by Directors.

Investment in equity accounted

joint ventures and associates

The Group's Rugby joint venture has been
included in the balance sheet at £86.6 million,
which along with a half interest in the

351 apartment Manchester New Square
development (£i5.2 million), a one-third
interest in a 2,800 plot site at Wintringham,
St Neots (£170 million) and £2.5 million of
other residual interests, combine to form
an overall Group investment in joint
ventures and associates of £121.3 million.

During the year joint ventures generated
£80 million of profits for the Group (£70 million
at Rughy and £1.0 million at Wintringham)
and received £9.2 million of loans from the
Group to fund development and infrastructure
works at Rugby, Wintringham and
Manchester New Square.

Non-current trade property

and other receivables

The £46.8 million disclosed on the face

of the balance sheet comprises both the
non-current proportions of the acquired
Priors Hall receivables and the discountad
values of the contractual minimums and
pre-completion discounted overages with
Hopkins Homes, Morrig Homes, Crest
Nicholson and Redrow at Alconbury Weald,
Kier at Priors Hall and Avant and Bellway
at Newark.

Equivalent receivables (Urban&Civic's share)
are owed to the Rugby joint venture by
Crest Nicholson (£4.0 million} and again
Morris Homes {£6.8 milion) and Redrow

(£121million) and to the Wintringham joint
vanture by Cala (£5.8 million).

All sums due will be received as and when
the houses to which they relate are sold,

or if earlier, when the housebuilders are
contractually obliged to pay minimum sums.

Current assets

Trading properties

The carrying value of trading properties
increased by £33.2 million in the year to
£307.0 million.

This increase was the result of capital
expenditure of £38.3 million (including
£36.8 million in respect of Alconbury Weald,
Priors Hall, Waterbeach and Newark
development works), capitalised overheads
amounting to £61 million, capitalised finance
costs of £31 million and £41.9 million of
raclassified investment properties - all net
of £64.5 million of disposals {including
residential disposals at Alconbury Weald,
Priors Hall and Newark of £44.9 million and
£6.1million in respect of the sale of Catesby
sites) and £0.7 million of written off land
promotion and other projects costs; where
it was decided not to progress.

Cash

Group cash balances at the year-end
totalled £244 million, up £7.8 million since
last year-end; largely due to sales receipts
(£54.0 million) and loan drawdowns

{£42 0 million) exceeding development
expenditure (£46.8 miliion), loan repayments
{£5.3 million), loans to joint ventures (£9.2 million}
and other expenses (£27.9 million).

Sales receipts comprised £231 million of
Catesby promaotion receipts (including cost
reimbursement), £26.3 millicn of residential
sales receipts and £4.6 million of commercial
sales receipts.

Liabilities

Current and non-current berrowings

The Group has put in place four new fagcilities
during the year (totalling £858 million). The
first was a five year extension to the expiring
£40.0 million Revolving Credit Facility with
HSBC Bank, the second was an £8.6 million,
three year and ten month, housebuilding
facility at Alconbury Weald with Homas
England, the third was a £26.0 million

infragtructure loan for our Wintringham joint
venture, again with Homes England, and the
tast facility was an £11.2 million investment
facility with HSBC against our hotel in
Deanggate, Manchester.

In addition to these facilities and following,
the receipt of outline planning consent.

at Waterbeach, terms have been agreed

in respect of a ten year, £606 million
infrastructure facility. Urban&Civic will be
the borrower {i.e. it will be on balance sheet)
with security provided by the landowner
(the MOD). This wil! significantly reduce
recourse to the Group. The facility will help
accelerate delivery at Waterbeach.

At the year-end, total Group borrowings
amounted to £129.3 million (30 September
2018: £64.9 million} with the Group’s share
of joint venture borrowings adding a further
£478 million (30 September 2018

£21.3 million).

Drawings predominantly funded infrastructure
expenditure at Alconbury Weald, Priors Hall
and Wintringham and construction costs at
Manchester New Square and Civic Living,
Alconbury Weald.

Financial resources and

capital management

The Group's net debt position at

30 September 2019 totalled £104.9 million
(30 September 2018; £78.3 million), which
after taking into account the Group's

cash reserves produces a net gearing
ratio of 26.0 per cent (30 September 2018:
201 per cent) on an IFRS NAV basis and
19.9 per cent {30 September 2018:

16.3 per cent) on an EPRA NAV basis.

A large proportion of this increase relates
0 Homes England drawings (including
Civic Living house building facilities, which
will be repaid whan homes are sold).

Qur Homes England infrastructure facilities
are typically long dated and only require us
to repay an agreed proportion of the loans
when we distribute proceeds (i.e. we are
typically not required to repay the full
amount of the distribution in priority to
Homes England); if there is an agreement
to recycle distributable funds into further
project works then no repayment will be
made at that time.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

Financial resources and capital management continued

On a full lock-through basis, which additionally includes the Group's share of joint ventures' net debt, gearing on an EPRA NAV basis increases
to 28.3 per cent (30 Septernber 2018: 2086 per cent). The increase is predominantly dus to ongoing development works at Manchester New
Square, where the joint venture's capital costs are being fully met by £76.6 million of development facilitios. These facilities will be repaid out of
apartment sales proceeds when phased practical completions commence {expected in the second quarter of next year).

Gearing on all measures continues to remain within our self-imposed limit of 30 per cent, even including the shorter-term Civic Living and
Manchester New Sqguare development facilities.

At 30 September 2019
Jeint venture and Proportion of
Group Proporton of assocciates Look-through look-through
£m  QGroup borrowings Em £m borrowings
Homes England 990 766% 238 1226 693%
Corporate RCF 163 126% — 163 9.2%
Manchester New square — 00% 240 240 136%
Other 14.0 10.8% — 140 78%
Borrowings 1293 1000% 476 1769 1000%
Cash (24.4) 30 (274)
Net debt 1049 446 14956
EPRA NAV 5275 6276
Gearing 19.9% 283%

The Group's weighted average loan maturity at 30 September was 6.7 years (30 September 2018: 79 years) and weighted average cost of
borrowing on drawn debt was 3.8 per cent (30 September 2018: 3.3 per cent).

The Group has no loans maturing over the next three years, except for the Newark Homes England facility (£9.2 million currently drawn), the
Deansgate hotel facility (£11.2 million) and the joint venture development loans at Manchester New Square. The Newark facility is amortising
along with residential plot sales and is due for repayment by March 2021 and the Manchester New Square borrowings will be repaid from
sale proceeds as previously noted. The term of the Deansgate facility will be reviewed once new hotel management arrangements (which
are currently under discussion} are Hinalised.

The Group continues to assess its long-term viability using the procedures set out on page 33 of the 2019 Annual Report and Accounts.

David Wood
Group Finanoe Director
27 Novernber 2019
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Long-term viability statement

In accordance with the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance
Code, the Directors have assessed the prospects and financial
viability of the Group, taking into account both its current position
and circumstances, and having made reasonable assumptions
about its future trading performance and the potential impact of its
principal risks set out in the risk review on pages 34 to 43,

The Directors' detailed viability assessment was made in respect of
a five year period ending 30 September 2024, although where the
duration of a particular development project extended beyond five
years, the lifetime business plan for that development was reviewed
toensure commitrnents beyond five years did notimpact ongoing viability.

The five year review period was considered appropriate for the
following reasons:

« the Group's annual strategic review covers a five year period;

+ serviced land sales contracts in respect of the Group's strategic
land sites, which account for over eighty per cent of the Group's
EPRA NAV, typically take the purchaser four to five years to build
out and sell;

« contractual arrangements in relation to capital expenditure do
rnot normally exceed five years; and

availability of finance and forecasting uncertainty reduces
reliability over longer periods.

Assessing viability

The Directors assess ongoing viability principally through:

« Five year business plans, which are presented periodically at
Board meetings and which detail quarterly and annual cash flows,
balance sheets, income statements for each business segment
or material asset, as well as financial covenant cormpliance.

Sensitivity analysis on key assumptions and/or principal risks
embedded within the five-year business plans (including sales
rates, sales price and cost price inflation assumptions and timing
of expenditure and land promotion receipts).

« Scenario madelling (including investment and divestment
opportunities), which is overlaid on the five-year business plans
and which is assessed against the Group's existing cash position,
committed borrowing facilities, committed expenditure and
normalised overhead.

Stress testing of the five year business plans, assuming that
valuations fall significantly.

+ Review of mitigating actions that could be taken to counter these
reduced revenue scenarios, This review in¢ludes an assessment of
non-contracted capital expenditure, which for Urban&Civic is
significant at any point in time and provides the Group with
significant optionality; especially as the Group has limited future
developrment obligations in respeot of ourrent contracted
strategic land receipts— meaning that development costs could
be significantly reduced in relatively short time scales without
affecting short-term revenues.

« Annual strategy days, which are used by the Board to agree annual
priorities and budgets, which are then owned and monitored by the
Executive Management Committee and relevant senior employees.

« Review of unutilised facilities, borrowing capacity and risks
associated with refinancing any maturing facilities {including
assessment of ongoing negotiations in relation to extensions or
renewals and/or ability to repay maturing facilities from existing
Group resources,).

Further explanations in respect of the Group’s maturing facilities
have been set out on page 32 of the Financial Review.

Severe downside scenaric

For this year end, the Group has assumed that half of the forecast
uncontracted land promotion receipts are delayed by six months,
that sites currently under a planning appeal are refused and that
ten per cent of forecast promotion receipts are fully abortive. Also,
to provide an even more severe tast, we have assumed that sales
rates at the strategic land sites are reduced to minimum levels as
provided for by contragted licence arrangements; these combine to
form an extreme downside scenario which reduces the base case
cash flows by a maximum of £68 million during the five year review
period. Mitigating actions that could be taken to address such a
reduction include making further drawings from the Group's Revolving
Credit Facility, stopping or slowing discreticnary investment into
new projects, reducing digcretionary site expenditure and selling
land parcels, rather than entering into licence arrangement, at
possibly reduced prices.

The Board is satisfied that these mitigating actions will insulate the
Group’s against the severe down scenario set out above. No key
metrics were breached during the assessed period and sufficient
cash headroom was forecast with the corporate LTV remaining
below 30 per cent throughout.

Qualifications and assumptions

The Directors consider that the sensitivities, scenarios and stress
assumptions set out above more than compensate for the
significant uncertainty surrounding the UK’s future economic
prospects, especially in light of Brexit and current cyolical
positioning of the housing market.

Based on the assessment detailed above, the Directors confirm
that they have a reasonable expectation that the Group has
adequate resources to continue in operation and meet its liabilities
as they fall due for the next five years and that it is appropriate to
continue to prepare financial statements on a going concern basis,
as discussed in the Directors’ report on page 128.

This long-term viahility statement was approved by the Board on
27 November 2019,

David Wood
Group Finance Director
27 November 2019
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RISK REVIEW

Risk review

Where canl find...?
Principal risks
pages 38 to 43

Long-term viability statement
page 33

Board risk oversight
page 72

Audit Committee activities on risk framework
and internal controls

page 100

Risk environment

Qur risk management framework is established, monitored and
managed in the knowledge that:

= alarge part of the Group's operations is focused on facilitating UK regional
housing development and delivery;

» housing markets have historically been cyclical;

« our customers (housebduilders), or our customers' customers {(homebuyers),
are influenced by mortgage availability, job security and disposable income
{amongst other matters) when deciding to buy (or build) homes;

*

politics around residential delivery, and in particular around planning consents
and Help to Buy availability, is challenging and historically volatile;

« changes in legislation and regulation can impact the way the Group operates,
both directly and indirectly; and

the ability to acquire development sites and bring them forward, so that
homes may be built, is heavily dependent on our in-house skillset.
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Principal areas
of focus in 2019

The following reviews or
improvements to the Group’s risk
rmanagement framework were
undertaken or implemented during
the financial year:

Board and Executive Management
Committee (EMC) reviewed key risk registers
together with a summary of corporate and
business unit level risks (including emerging
risks) at each meeting.

Board, Audit Committee and EMC each
reviewed the Group's risk appetite and
detailed top-down rigk registers during
the year.

Audit Committee oversaw the completion of
the initial three-year internal audit programme
{carried out by Grant Thornton), with three
internal audits being undertaken on health
and safety, investment and divestment and
outsourced contracts management. Each
audit was undertaken to an Audit Committee
agreed scope. A follow-up assessment of
previous internal audit recommendations was
also carried out and concluded that all agreed
and due actions had been implemented.

Audit Committee agreed a further three-year
intermnal audit programme, which will see all
key risks covered and provide assurance
that the Group's internal controls are
appropriate, in place and functioning.

Board monitored the palitical and economic
environrent at each Board meeting, including
giving consideration as to what might be the
impact of the UK's exit from the European
Union over the short, medium and longer term.

Health and safety consultants RPS Group
continue to ba employed to oversee periodic
reviews of the health and safety practices at
the Group's sites and offices.

New employee induction programmes have
helped to reinforce the Group's risk appetite
from the outset.

More detailed credit checking processes
for the Group's subcontractors and suppliers
were instigated.




REVIEW AND

REFINE
Bottom-up input from:
g
Subcommittees (SDC, CDC' Manage al d.
and Catesby) and staff report on risk:
Executive Directors,

EMOC

TEST
Seek assurance
over mitigation:

Executive Directors and

Audit Committee

Meet strategic
objectives for
stakeholders

CONTROL

DEFINE
Establish risk appetite
and regularly review:
Board

IDENTIFY AND
ASSESS
Identify and assess
relevant risks: Executive
Directors and EMC

Design and
Assistance from: Third party consultants implement mitigation: Bottom-up input from: Subcommittees
(such as Grant Thornton - internal auditor) Executive Directors (SDC, COC and Catesby) and staff

and EMC

Embedded through: Subcommittees (SDC, SDC
and Cateshy), staff and third party consultants
(suchas RPS Group - health & safety)

1. The terms SDC and COC are defined in the glossary.

Urban&Civic continues to seek to deliver (on behalf
of its stakeholders) its strategic objectives through

operating a Board-ied risk management framework that:

« establishes the nature and scale of risk that the Group is
prepared to take (risk appetite);

+ identifies and assesses risks applicable to the Group's strategy
and operations (both existing and emerging);

« designs and implements mitigating actions, controls and procedures;

« seeks assurance over the effectiveness of those mitigating
actions, controls and procedures; and

» manages the Group’s risks on an ongoing basis against risk
appetite, acknowledging that risk cannot be fully eliminated.

Risk management framework

Qur risk rmanagement framework has remained largely unchanged
during the financial year, although through additional training and
internal discussion, the understanding of the framework and how to
report risk under the framework has become more embedded,
stable and consistent across the Group.

Urban&Civic's operational size and regional office network provide
the Group with an opportunity to collate, assess and mitigate risks
effectively, but only if supported by effective communication and
reporting up, down and across the Group: The EMC and Subcommiittees
(Strategic Development Committee or SDC, Commercial Development
Committee or CDC and Catesby) continue to act as hubs for this
communication and both play a significant role in helping the Board
implernent the risk management framework, especially at grassroots
levels, where emerging risks are typically identified first.
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RISK REVIEW CONTINUED

Risk management structure

The Board continues to have ultimate responsibility for risk
management and internal control, with a particular focus on defining
the Group's risk appetite, regularly assessing and monitoring the
Group's principal risks and reviewing reports produced by internal
auditors on internal controls and risk reports from the EMC and
business segment Subcommittees.

The Audit Committee reviews the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Group's financial and non-financial internal controls and risk
management systems on behalf of the Board. The Audit Committee
algo moniters and roviows tho oxtornal audit, inoluding tho auditor's
report. The work undertaken by the Audit Committee in relation to
risk during the year and its anticipated 2019/20 work programme are
further set out in the Audit Committee report on pages 99 to 106.

The Executive Directors, with the assistance of the EMC, design and
manage the internal controis and risk management systems,
ensuring that risk registers and risk reporting are maintained
throughout the year. The EMC further relies on business segment
Subcommittees to heip fulfil its risk reporting responsibilities by
maintaining live cperational risk registers. These procedures give
the Executive Directors the ability to provide assurance that the
Group's internal controls are appropriate, in ptace and functioning,

Key features of our risk management framework
» Clear and well communicated risk management framework
and structure {including reles and responsibilities).

» Regular reviews of risk {including appetite and registers —
including emerging risks) and internal controls by the Board,
Audit Committee and EMC.

» Immediate communications to the Board and Audit Committee
of material risk events, These events are then investigated by the
Executive Directors and EMC, with lessons leamt fed back into
the risk management framework.

+ Open door policy to all employees, which aids early identification
and resolution of issues.

+ Clear reporting lines and delegated authorities.

+ Formal and informal opportunities for intra-group debate
and communication.

Sensibly paced systems evolution - avoids shocks to the
control framework.

+ Maintenance of a stable senior management team.

- Nobust and regular reporting systerns (operational and e wial
as well asrisk).

« Appropriate training {including induction for new employees so
they understand the Group's risk appetite).

« Ensure employees understand and have confidence in the
Group's whigstleblowing policy. Details of this policy are
communicated through an employee handbook.

Risk management framework components

The pringipal components of the Groug's risk management
framework, which the Board, Audit Committee and EMC use to
monitor and manage risk, comprise:

« Risk appetite table {see below).

+ Risk heatmap (see opposite).

» Risk summary table — which highlights the principal risks across the
Group and the changing risk profiles and emerging risks over time.

Risk registers (and associated scoring matrices) - encompassing
key risk registers, detailed top-down risk registers, business unit
risk regjsters and corporate risk registers,

The following table summarises the Board's risk appetite and risk behaviour across the Group's identified risk areas.

Risic desoription Risk appetite Risk behaviour

Change in rigk
appetite in the year

External environment  High

The Group is prepared to operatein a volatile environment, but only when enhanced
returns compensate for increased risk. Long-term viability is a key override.

Moderate/ The Group undertakes planning and development activities, both of which have

Operational strategy ., elevated risk profiles.
The Board seeks to deliver developments effectively; complying with all
Operations Low legislation and avoiding actions that could adversely impact reputation and/or
stakeholder returns.
The Group seeks to put in place non or limited recourse funding lines, with
Finance Low non-onerous covenants (on a flexed basis) and does not sesk to borrow against
serviced land (except through infrastructure loans provided by Homes England),
The Group cannot function without a motivated and well trained workforce and aims
People Low

to recruit, train, promote and retain staff, ensuring a succession plan is in place.

You will note that the Group's appetite across the key risk descriptions (into which all risks are classified) has not changed since last year,
which given the Group's long-dated model is in line with our expectations. However, the Board recognises that the current volatile political
environment which may or may not impaet tho Group in say 20 or 30 yoara (tho time horizon of our strategic land sites) certainly has

shorter-term consequences.
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Qur risk focus over the shorter term

The UK has been ina well publicised period of uncertainty since the
EU membership referendum decigion in June 2016, and this looks
set to continue for a period given the recent announcement of a
December general election and an extension to the Brexit deadline.
While a no deal hard Brexit would see the UK leave on World Trade
Organization rules (with its assoociated tariffs and regulations), the
current direction of travel appears to lean towards a softer deal
(with an agreed transition period). Whatever the eventual outcome,
itis clear that unoertainty will continue until new EU and intemational
trade agreements are finalised.

Although it is not possible to fully assess the impact of Brexit on
our business, the Board is taking appropriate action to ensure the
Group is resilient to short-term disruption and well positioned over
the medium and longer term.

Qur principal areas of focus over the shorter term (in addition to
those already mentioned) have been and will continue to be:

- Developments - although our strategic land sites benefit from
relatively low forward development commitments at any one time,
we have: increased our due diligence on the financial robustness
of our subcontractors and suppliers; put in place performance
bonds or guarantees where appropriate and entered into fixed
price contracts for material works (at Manchester New Square
for example). These measures help to protect the Group from
a downturn in UK performance and consequential rising input
prices (at least in the near future).

- Customers - homebuyer confidence and ability to access
finance and meet mortgage obligations are principal demand
drivers for our customers (the housebuiders). While sales rates
and demand for land parcels from the housebuilders have
maintained to date, we cannot say for certain that this trend will
continue. Building up forward sales of £101.7 million (with minimum
annual contracted receipts of £30.7 million) has been akey
feature in the Board's strategy to manage any short-term
disruption (Brexit or otherwise).

Risk after mitigation
O High O Medium O Low

—> Movement in the year

Key

Rl  Market risk R7. Planningrisk

R2. Strategic risk RAB. Health and safety risk
R3. Competition risk R9. Delivery

R4. Legal and regulatory risk R10. Financial

RB6. Peocple risk RN. CGiimate change

RB. Cyber risk

« Values - post the EU referendum the value of our strategic land
portfolic has continued to grow (reflecting maintained demand,
sales rates and pricing); however, falling values {on the back of
falling demand, sales rates and pricing for example) would reduce
loan covenant headroom. At 30 September our principal valuation
loan covenant, in a subsidiary, is based on EPRA net asset
value, which would have to fall by 43 per cent before this gearing
covenant was breached. Falling values are not all bad news for
the Group, as reduced land prices would most likely provide
more and better land acquisition opportunities.

+ Debt - in addition to the constant stress that falling values may
create (as referred to in the previous paragraph), increased
interest rates, falling sales rates or other adverse market changes
may also increase covenant pressure. In order to monitor and
manage the Group's debt over the shorter term our selfimpesed
gearing limit of 30 per cent of EPRA NAV is monitored at each
bi-monthly Board meeting, as are all the factlity covenants
{to ensure compliance and identify emerging issues). More
information on our approach in this area can be found inthe
long-term viability statement.

« Sustainability - including climate change is an increasing
focus for the Board. Qur approach to sustainability is set out
on pages 4810 63.

As previously noted, a key component of the Group’s risk management
framework is the maintenance of risk registers. The Group maintains
corporate and business unit risk registers, which are used to revise
and educate dstailed top-down registers that are pericdically reviewed
by the Board, Audit Committee, and EMC. The top-down registers
typically include around 35 risks at any one time and the most recent
11key risks are set out on the following pages. This is one higher than
last year having added climate change as an amber risk. Ofthe other
ten key risks some emerging issues have altered the overall key risk
rating if not the key risk itself. During the year, seven key rigks have
increased their risk rating (after mitigation) although none have crossed
the threshold to either amber or red categonisations from previously
assessed levels. One risk has moved down and two have remained
the same. The movements are discussed in more detail below.
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RISK REVIEW CONTINUED

Principal
risks

All of our risks are aligned to both our
KPls and strategic objectives

Key

Link to strategy:

@ Secure sites

@ Accelerate delivery
@ Sustain quality

@ ldentify opportunities
@ Deliver returns

Read more on our strategy
pages 10and 1

Risk rating after mitigation:

Low
Madium

High

Change during the year:

Increase in risk
No change

Decrease in rigk

Read more on our KPis
pages 12 and 13
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External environment

R1. Market risk

Strategic objectives KPIs EPRA NAV per share; Wholesale discount;

Total shareholder return; Gearing ~ EPRA NAV; Health
and Safety.

Impact of risk

The business model may be affected by external factors such as economic
conditions, the property market, quoted property sector and political and legislative
faotors, such as olimate change, tax or planning policies. Adverse movements in
thesa market ponditions increasa the risk of lower stakeholder returns, even though
investment opportunities may be more evident.

Controls and mitigation/action

Strategy is considered at each Board meeting and specifically at the annual
business strategy day.

EMC and other Subeomimittee meatings just prior to Board meetings provide
better quality, bottomn-up, information.

When making decisions consideration is given to external markets, dynamics

and influences.

Prass, economic data subscriptions, industry forums and adviser updates are used
to keep executives up to date in respect of external markets.

Regional focus and local knowledge in areas with strong undertying economics
{such as job creation} mitigate the impact of market and economic shocks.
Inoreasexd focus on putting in place forward sales contracts with contractual annual
minimum receipts in raspect of tha Group's most prominent segrment: strategic land.
Pricr to investment, detailed due diligence and financial appraisals are carried out
and flaxed to establish the financial outcome on a downside-case basis.

Business plan [one-year) and rolling long-term cash flow forecasts (one-year,
five-year and ten-year) with sensitivity analysis are maintainei.

Ongoing monitoring with the assistance of appropriate professional advisers

(tax, accounting, regulatory and legal).

Typical risk indicators

Reduced sales rates and prices (homes and land parcels).

Increased interest rates.

Legislation enactmerit.

Falling shase price or real estate indices (reflacting reduced investor appetite).
Increased construction cost.

Press or sogial media narrative {may provide an early warning).

Movement description

Although the Group's sales rates and pricing points at its strategic sites have

been maintained, the UK's general economic position has weakened (largsly due
to a weaker global economy and uncertainties around Brexit). This weakening
could ultimately kead to potential hemebuyers postponing their decision to
purchase a new house, which in turn could impact not only the timing of currently
contracted serviced land overages (minimum receipts are locked in, subject 10
the creditwarthiness of our customers - the housebuilders), but also the behaviour
ofthe housebuilders themselves, allleading to increased market risk.

Political commentary around sustainability, the environment and use of greenfield
and greenbelt sites increases uncertainty and therefore market risk. See climate
change key risk for further considerations.

Increased scrutiny around economic, social and corporate governance (ESG)

by stakeholders increases compliance risk and risk of penalties for breaches.




Operational sirategy

R2. Strategic risk

KPls EPRA NAV per share; Wholesale discount;
Total shareholder return; Plot completions; Cash flow
generation from plot completions.

Strategic ohjectives

1 2 3 a(s)

Strategic objectives

OORINO)

R3. Competition risk

KPIs EFPRA NAV per share; Wholesale discount;
Total shareholder raturn; Plot completions; Cash flow
generation from plot complations.

impact of risk

Imnplementing a strategy inconsistent with market environment, skillset and experience

of the business could devalue the Group's property portfolio or have an adverse
impact on the Group's cash flows, consequently ercding total shareholder return.

Impact of risk

Competition could result in assets being acquired at excessive prices, potential
assets not being acquired because pricing is too high or developments commencing
at the wrong point in the cycle.

Controls and mitigation/action
+ Board annually approves a businass plan and produces rolling longer-term cash
flow forecasts with sensitivity analysis,

« Business planis pariodicaily monitored by the Board, EMC and Subcommitteas
and remedial actions are identified, approved and implemented where necessary.

- Material capital commitments, which have not previously been approved in the
Group business plan require additioral Board approval.

« Employment of suitably qualified and experienced staff.

Typical risk indicators

« Adverse variances to the business plan.
« Fallin independent valuations.

« Litigation.

» Contingency utilisation.

+ Covenant breaches.

Movement description

+ EMC and other Subcommittee meetings are now hald just prior to Board meetings

- providing better quality, and timely, bottorm-up information.
- Third party internal auditor reviews in raspect of investment and divestment

decisions, outsourced contract management and heaith anc safety have provided

additional assurance to the Executive Directors, Board and Audit Committee.

- Confirmation {by Grant Thornton - our internal auditor) that praviously agreed
and due recommendations from prior period internal audits have been
implemented now received.

« Reported variances 10 the business plan have not caused the Board undue

concern over the last 12 months, which helps demonstrate that current processes

are supportive of a reduced risk rating.

« Continued improvements in Board reporting have provided additional comfort
that issues around operational strategy, which could be prcked up through
operational reporting, have bean.

Controls and mitigation/action

Experience and expertise used to determine suttable offer prices and optimal
project timings (1o maximise returns).

Investment, divestment and development decisions are benchmarked against
market conditions prior to contract execution or deveiopment cormmmencement
{using in-house and third party research and advice}.

Assessment of competition before acquiring assets (such as competing sites
close to a propesed acquisition that might impact the Group's intended strategy).
Qpen, honost and fair rolationghips with partnars, land ownore, agents and other
stalwoholdors provide tho Group with a compatitive advantage through enhancing
its reputation of delivering on its promises.

Typicalrisk indicators

Ratio of successful to unsuccessful bids.

Adverse variances to business plans and/or investment memorandums.
Significant or persistent abortive costs,

Low rates of return.

Movement description

Like last year, our competitors continue to benefit from strong cash generation
and capital availability, particutarly in strategic land and land promoction segrments.
Institutional investrnent, such as Legal & General's acquisition of a strategic land
site in North Horsham, is becoming more common, which increases direct
competition for sites.

As planning consents get harder to achiave {see planning key risk on page 41

for details), site availability reduces, thereby increasing the risk of competition.
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RISK REVIEW CONTINUED

Operational strategy continued

R4. Legat and regulatory risk

Strategic objectives KPla EPRA NAV per share; Wholesale discount;
Total sharsholder returr; Health and Safety.
"D e ® -

People strategy

RE&. Peoplerisk

Strategic objectives KPls EPRA NAV per share; Wholesale discount:

Total shareholder return; Plot completions; Cash
@ 2 3 @ @ flow generation from plet completions.

Impact of risk

Nui i-cuniplianue with laws and regudations could resuft in projec delays, fallurs
to obtain planning congents, inability to raise finance, penalties and fines and
reputational damage.

Impact of risk

Cvar-raliancea bn key people or inabsity t6 attract and retain people with appropviate
quaiities and skills, making the Group operationally vulnerabte to both time delays
and replacement cost.

Controls and mitigation/action

+ The Group employs highly qualified and experienced staff and specialist
consultants whore appropriate, 19 ensure complianco with laws and rogulations.

« Calendar/diary ofimportant dates maintained.

» Kayreports ar announcements reviewed in draft by the Board/Audit Committee.

« Training and continuing professional development undertaken.

«  Board/Audit Committee review of UK corporate governance compliance.

« Regular Board/Audit Committee updates and training on regulatory obligations.

= EMC taskforcog formad to take responsibility for emerging laws and regulations.

Typical risk indicators
« Litigation.

« Investigations or enguiries {LSE, HMRC or Health and Safety Executive for example).

« Frequency of reportable incidents (health and safety).
» Penalties.

Movement description

» Increasing ESG requirements and a new governance code and accounting
standards have ingreased the risk in this area.

+ Ingreased use of advisers and training hava holped to mitigato thia risly, as hoos 6
third party internal audit on heaith and safety.

» A furthor roview of GO acroas the Group ks ongoing (following its introduction
in May last year), which should provide additional assurance.

+ Tho CGroup has introducod governanca chagldista to holp enguro sompiianco
with legislation.

» A now olootronic training systam (HASCO) has been rolied cut to augmont face
to face training. Areas such as monoy taundering, bribory, whictloblowing and
equality will be covered by this training method.

Controls and mitigation/action

» The Group offers a competitive remuneration package including both long and
ahort tarm inoentivas.

= Employees generally work on a number of projects across the Group and are not
dedicated 10 one particular site.

= Short reporting lines and delegated authority ensure staff fesl they are
contributing to the success of the Group.

+ Nomination and Governance Committea reviews succession planning.
« Appropriate notice periods to minirmise disruption,

« Adequate resourcing.

= Performance reviews and training

« Exitinterviews with results fed back to the EMC.

Typical rigk indicators
= High erincreasing staff turnover.
« Critical appraisal or exit interview feadhack.

« Complaints or grievances.

Movement description

o Introduction of an amployes advisory groop in progress This is a repwasentatie
bedy made of non-Board or EMC amployees, which sets its own agenda and can
tring forward {to the Board and EMC} any workforce matters it sees fit.

» New HR Manager appointed.

= Annual parformance appraisal procass embedded.

« New induction process to help monitor/freinforce corporate cuylture.

- Loarning and Developrent Manager ncve fully ermnployed in deliver ing staff training.
Lesprte these imiprovériénts this risk has been mantained at the same level as last
yoar (which is low post-mitigation).

Link to strategy:

@ Secure sites @ Accelerate delivery @ Sustain quality @ Identify opportunities @ Deliver retums
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Operations

R6. Cyber risk
Strategic objectives

v o2 3 (@)

KPis Limited impact on any KPIs dus to the Group's
low reliance onIT.

RT. Planning risk

KPIs EPRA NAV per share: Wholesalae discount;
Total shareholder return; Plot completions; Cash flow
generation from plot completions.

Strategic objectives

OIORIRNO

impact of risk
Loss of business credibility due to lack of timely, accurate information.
Cost of reinstatement.

Cost and reputational damage of breaches in data protection regulations.

Controls and mitigation/action

= Passwords, protocols and protections.

» Physical access to premises and computer servers restricted.

« Firewalls and anti-virus software with regular updates.

« {Computer data back-up and recovery procedures and periodic 1esting,
« Hardware replacement programme to reciuge vulnerability.

« Administration rights restricted.

Typical risk indicators

« Servar downtime.

« Loss orcorruption of data.

« GDPR complaints/penalties.
+ Volurme of IT support calls.

Movement description

+ Hardware and software upgrades (including maove to Office 366) completed
and ongoing.

+ New service agreament signec with third party IT support {The Final Step).

» Data recovery processes tested in the year,

+ Quarterly review meetings now establishect with The Final Step to discuss network
performance and work programmaes.

+ Woeekly reports on [T performance received.
+ Internal audit recommendations were all implemented.

The above progress has produced a stable [T environment and the small increase in
risk rating {which is not sufficient to tumn this risk to amber) is due to the general increase
intha numier and complexity of cyber attacks that UK business is encountering,

Impact of risk

Appropriate planning consents are not achieved or are challenged once granted.

resultingin:

« loss of promotion costs;

« value proposition not being maximised;

« time delay {e.g. from judicial review or call-in) - increasing costs or creating other
issues within property cycles; and

- difficulties in arranging finance.

Controls and mitigation/action

»  Internal planning expertise to navigate planning faw and regulation.

» Expert advice obtained before proceading with planning work.

+ Before significant planning applications are made, the Group, together with its
advisers, undertakes detailed consultations with the relevant planning authority,
statutory authorities and other stakeholders.

- Alternative uses considered in case initial application not achieved.

« Ingreased focus on political landscape pre-investment (particularly where thalocal
autherity does not have a majority control).

Typical risk indicators

« Longer than average times to achieve consent.

+ Planning budget cverruns.

» Increased appeals and judicial reviews.

» Inability {at all or below expectations) to finance, build out or sell consented scheme.

Movement description

« During the year, appeals and judicial reviews have, in our experience, become
more likaly in the aboenco of full looal authority support. Achioving this support
may be harder to achieve given a significant nurmber of local authorities have gone
to "no overaltcontrol” and the politics of planning has become more changeable.
This has therefora increased likelihood of not achieving consent, but the Group
remains confident it has the experience to work within these constraints.

Risk rating after mitigation:

Low Medium High

Change during the year:

tncrease inrisk No change Decrease in risk
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RISK REVIEW CONTINUED

Operations continued
R8. Health and safety risk
Strategic objectives KPiIs EPRA NAV per share; Wholesale discount;

1(2) 3 4 ()

Total shareholder return; Plot completions; Cash flow
generation from plot completions; Health and Safety.

R9. Delivery risk

Strategic objectives

1 (2 3 a(s)

KPIs EPRA NAV per share; Wholesale disoount;
Total shareholder return; Plot completions; Gash flow
generation from plot completions.

Impact of risk
Sericus injury and loss of life could lead to development site closure, delays and cost
overruns, as well as reputational damage and Directorg’ liability.

Impact of risk
Ineffective delivery of projects could lead to delays, reduced build quality and increased
COSt Pressunes.

Controls and mitigation/action

Health and safety procedures are reviewed by third party health and safety
advisers (RPS Group) and the Group appoints principal contractors and principal
designers in line with the Construction (Design and Management) Regulations.
Periodic raviews by thind party internal auditor {Grant Thornton).

Maintain health and safety procedures and policies at operational sites and
Qroup offices.

Due diliganca carried out (including appropriate refarences) on principal
contractor and design consultants pricr to appointment.

Appropriate insurance cover is carried by either the Group or its contractors.

Training by third party consultants provided and hoalth and safety handbook
issued to all employees.

Safety log.

Typicai risk indicators

Incidents {reportabie and non-reportable).

Penalties.

Investigations (by the Health and Safety Executive or similar} and enguiries.
Adverse health and safety audit findings.

Litigation.

Movement desoription

Internal audit on health and safsty matters {undertaken by Grant Thornton)
now complete.

RPS Group role now established {altthough scope is likely to be expanded).
Increased heaith and safety awareness training.

Induction process for new staff now includaes health and safety matters.
Health and safety bocklet periodically issued to all staff,

A fatality post year end {at one of our housebuilders’ construction sites at
Alconbury Weald) rerninds us to keep vigilant at all times on health and safety matters.

Updated health and safety policy and procedures in place.

Daespite the improved working practices set out above, the risk rating has been held
until the internal audit recommendations have been actioned.

Controls and mitigation/action
» Projects are monitored on an ongoing basis by the Board, EMC and Subcommittees.
» Internal development and project. managemant teams manage project delivery.
» Fixed price contracts are used where appropriate.

+ Third party internal audit review of project delivery mechanisms.

»  Material subcontractors and customers are credit checked and performance
bonds, guarantees and charges are used as appropriate to safaguard delivery.

Typical risk indicators

» Customer/subcontractor complaints.
« Adverse budget variances.

» Delayed completion dates.

» Adverse internal audit findings.

« Subcontractor or customer default.

Movement description

The Groups approach to delivery remains largety unchanged, atthough during the
year the Group enhanced its credit check procedures (content and frequenoy} in
response to current economic uncertainties. These uncertainties have caused us
toincrease this risk's rating this year (although tha risk remains low}.

Link to strategy:
@ Secure sites @ Accelerate delivery @ Susgtain quality @ Identify opportunitios @ Deliver returng
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Financial

R10. Financerisk

Strategic objectives

CE®+®

KPls EPRA NAV per share; Wholesale discount;
Total shareholder return; Plat cormnpletions; Cash flow
generation from plot completions.

External environment

R1l. Climate change

Strategic objectives

M2 3 a(s

KPis EPRA NAV per share; Wholesale discount;
Total shareholder return; Plot completions; Cash flow
generation from plot completions; Trees planted.

Impact of risk
Lack of funding, cost overTuns o failure to adhere to loan covenants coild result in
financial loss or affect the ability to take advantage of opportunities as they arise.

Controls and mitigationfaction
«+ Detailed annual business plan prepared, approved and regularly menitored by the
Board and EMC.

- Continuous monitoring of ¢apital and debt markets (with advisers).

= Maintenance of relationships with lenders and investors.

- Review of principal terms of prospective loans prior to documentation.
+ Ongoing monitoring of covenants/reguirements to ensure compliance.

Typical risk indicators

« Inoreased gearing metrics.

« Covenant breaches.

« Reduced deal flow (reduces options to realise assets to lower delst levels).

Movement description

» Additional contractual minimums with housebuilders at the Group's strategic land
gites continue to iMprove certainty over short-term cash receipts (subject to
ongoing viability of the counterparty housebuilder).

+ Reduced commercial portfolio has increased the financial risk as the Group
becomes mora strategic land focused.

» Additional Homes Engtand facilities {on Civic Living and Waterbeach - where the
loan is in documentation) have or will accelerate delivery of these projects and
reduce the Group's ecuity requirernant (which helps to mitigate the financial risk);
however, introduging more debt and covenants into the Group's capital structure,
increases financial risk.

« A five-year extension to the HSBC revolving cradit facility was agreed in March 2C19
and a new £11.2 million facility in respect of our hotel at Deansgate, Manchester
was put in place in August 2019 (akso with HSBC). Increased borrowing and additional
covenants, like increased Homes England borrowing, increase financial rigk.

« Onbalance (and in light of the above movements) the Board considers thera to be
aningcreased financial risk this year, predominantly due Lo increased borrowings
and covenants.

Impact of risk

Climate change and/or regulatory controls aimed at preventing climate change create
arange of possible impacts for the delivery of large scale $ites including impacts on
design, delivery timings, costs, values and sales rates (amongst other matters).

Controls and mitigation/action

- Maximise the advantages of large site delivery (which reflect the inbuilt optionality
of delivering sites of scale over the long term) to minimise the impacts of delivery
onghimate factors.

« Continue to prioritise the delivery of extensive green infrastructure.

« Settle and adopt a Sustainability Framework with clear metrios to ensure business
witle compliance with relevant standards.

» Work with housebuilder custormers and other third party stakeholders to direct,
influence and encourage consistent and congruent stakeholder best practice.

«  Identify, intarrogate and trial innovations and then promote and adopt where they
make a diffarence.

Typical risk indicators

+ Flooding

«  Heat damage to structures.

«  Community complaints.

« Reduced sales levels.

« Regulatory challenges or fings.
+ Negative press comment.

Movement description

- This is a clear globalimperative that has increased inimportanoe over a relatively
short space of time.

+ Investors and other stakeholders have made an increased number of enguires on
this matter over the fast 12 months.

The Group has started to formalise its approach to sustainability by the extensive

review of sustainability metrics at Alconbury Weald and the identification of five key

sustainability capitals. This builds upon the work already undertaken at each site and

during the course of 2020 this will then be further developed into a Sustainability

Framework with specific business wide metrics and targets.

Rigk rating after mitigation:

Low Medium High

Change during the year:

Increase inrisk No change Decrease in risk
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OPERATING REVIEW

A scaleable model of success

Over the last ten years, the business has grown and evolved
through a number of key stages. Originally a private equity
backed property start up in 2009, focused on changing the
large scale strategic land market, we became a public
company in 2014 through the reverse takeover of a
commereial development business and then added
Catasbyy in 2015. These component parts still form the
bedrock of UrbanCivic ten years on and we have spent
the last five years adding more strategic sites, earning
stakeholders’ trust, delivering demonstrable quality and
implementing robust internal commercial and risk focused
procedures. As such, we have an established a fully scalable
business model to continue to do things the right way and
deliver further strategic sites in key growth locations.

ROBIN BUTLER —
MANAGING DIRECTQOR

Strategic land

Our strategic projects are large scale, predominantly
brownfield areas of land for mixed-use housing
led development.

Whilst a number are owned outright, Urban&Civic have
extensive historic and active experience of working in
partnership with like-minded land owners and investors
to deliver significant projects. Our current partners
include Aviva Investors, the Nuffield Trusts, the Defence
Infrastructure Qrganisation, the Wellcome Trust and the
Church of England. We also work extensively with Homes
England to acoelerate infrastructure delivery. All parties
share our focus on quality.

Each project is at a slightly differant state of maturity
requiring Master Developer focus from across the skills

of our team and allowing us to run a portfolic of projects
whilst maintaining active senicr management involvement.
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Alconbury
weald Cambridgeshire

In delivery - 100% interest

1,426 6,500 1,012

acres homes anticipated, serviced land plots sold,
including 6,000 homes contracted or on own
consented account

Wintringham
St Neots cambridgeshire

In delivery - 33% interest

400 2,800 455

acres homes consented servicad land plots
sold or contracted

Waterbeach
Ba rra CKS Cambridgeshire

In delivery - 9% interest

716 6,600

acres homes consented

1. Plug option to acquire 100 per cent of cormnercial land {including PRS) and
35 per cent of residential land.




RadioStation
Rugby

in delivery — 50% intorest

1,170 6,200 862

acres homes consanted serviced land plots
sold or contracted

Middlebeck
Nework
In delivery — 829% inerost

694 3,150 382

acres homes serviged land plots
consented sold or contracted

Priors Hall

Northamptonshire

In delivery = 100% interost

965 4,320 782

acres homes consented serviced land plots
sold or contracted

Manydown
Basingstoke

794 3,600

acres homas anticipated

Calvert
Buckinghamshire

785 5,000

acres homes anticipated

Tyttenhanger
South Hertfordshire

Pre-planning

2,000 4,000

acres homes anticipated

For more detail on our strategic
sites view our pdf brochure at:
www.urbanandcivic.com
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OPERATING REVIEW CONTINUED

Commercial

Completion of the three residential
blocks at Manchester New Square

is programmed between April and
September 2020. This joint venture with
the Greater Manchester Pension Fund
accounts for around a half of this
segment's £78.7 million value.

We continue to seek out new opportunities
in strong markets where we can minimise
occupational and delivery risk, whilst
concurrently keeping capital exposure
to a minimum through financial joint
ventures and forward sales.

Total square footage:

797,000 sq.ft.
20:; —l l/ g;r;'npleted

L

In planning In construction
{38%) (49%)

Sold 9% Completed 4%
Scale: Scale:
T,000 sq.ft. 31,000 sq.ft.
Sites sold during the year: Sites completed;
2 1
Sites: Sites:
* Bude, Cornwall ® Hudson Quay
* Canningford House
In construction 49% In planning 38%
Scale: Scale:
394,000 sq.ft. 301,000 sq.ft.
Sites in construction: Sites in design/planning:
1 2
Sites: Sitas:

& Manchester New Square

Manchester New Square
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* Deansgate, Manchester
* Westside, Wolverhampton

Westside, Wolverhampton




Catesby Estates plc

Qur Catesby sites are smaller scale
consented and de-risked residential sites
of up to 2,000 units in locations of proven
housing need, which we seall on to our
housebuilding customers.

This year has seen Catesby incorporate
infrastructure delivery to unlock the
larger scale of site.

The revenue created by these
developments also allows us to reinvest
in our strategic site portfolio.

We continue to seek out further unconsented
land parcels to promote via discussion
with agents and landowners and to utilise
the skills of the Catesby team across our
business as opportunities arise.

Who we have sold to:
Total acreage:

2147 acres

In pre-planning Sold

(9%) J J (7%)

In planning Consented
{76%} (8%)

Sold 7% Consented 8%
Soale: Sites sold: Scale: Sites consented:
152 acres 9 177 acres 8
Sites: Sites:
* Wilingdon ® EuropaWayoneparcel ® Shefford ® Bude
* Haughley * Sudbury * Europa Way cne * Fanwick

rcel
* Bude e Bertram P ® Kedleston
* Crowborough ® Armadale

® [ onghedge, Salistury ® (reat Gransden o Kilmarmogk
® Farnham

In planning 76%
Scale: Sites in planning:
1,634 acres 44
Sites:
* | onghedge, Salisbury ® Alfold * Stanstead, * (Godstone
« Marston Moretaine * Crowboraugh St Margarets * North Weald
® Witchford ¢ East Horsioy ¢ Countasthorpe ® Stoke Poges
* Cropredy * Didoot * HamptonLane. * Shillingon
® Marcham ® Kenilworth Woodside * Hellingly * Radlett
* Cosby ® BalsaliCommon * Meriden * Ardleigh
* Bromsgrove ® Crew Lane. Keniworth Finchampstead * Wylde Green
& Fleckney L] Egg;:g;[s::am. * Wyatts Green * Mealksham
* Boxford . * Southwater * Heswall

Pulboreugh
® Headcorn * Wooton * Southmoor
@ Hoddesdon

® Harrold ® Bourne End ® Lychstt Matravers
* Wilingdon * Middleton Cheney

In pre-planning 9%
Scale: Sites pre-planning:
184acres 4
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SUSTAINABILITY

[o) @
Pen et

Our approach to
sustainability

Given our role in creating new communities with significant infrastructure, sustainability
has always been fundamental to the quality of what we deliver and the way we work with
our partners, the communities around us and our pecple.

-

Physical

To design high quality places
that mature with age and
allow people to navigate

easily on foct or by bike

/ Human Soci_al
{ To focus on people, To create. ylbranct’
\ improve their quality b gommun|t|es anh
of life and create a rrl:‘lg pe:ple toget. or /
i through community /
sense of pride Our Five peihaai
Capitals

' Natural

To build in harmony with
nature to protect the
existing value and make a
positive contribution

As a Master Developer, we recognise that both the journey towards
delivery and the dalivery itself must embrace an approach that is
holistic and ensures we leverage the investment we are making for
the banefit of the communities where we operate. Sustainability has
always been part of this ethos and it is interwoven throughout our
corporate DNA. We are proud of the places we have created and
tha impacts we have achiaved to date, many of which have been
described in the pages of previous reports.

As Urban&Civic has grown, so has the need to formalise our
approach to governance at a business and a project ievel and
sustainability is no exception. We have, however, been aware for

a while that standardised means of assessment do not accurately
reflect the role of the Master Developer and that simply applying
these would not generate the intelligence or the yardsticks that will
support us inour endeavours to do more.
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Economic \
To build lasting partnerships /
and provide economic /

opportunities

Dwring 2019 we have therefore commenced a sustainability review
in order (o be able to adopt a Sustainability Framework in 2020
which is tailored to the Master Devaloper model. We have
undertaken this review with input from across our intemal
stakeholders and using expert advice from our consultants. Over
the course of this year we have looked at the common principles
that have been established via our approach to community
engagemant and jobs and skills together with the design guides and
sustainability statements that have underpinned our delivery. in
addition, with have analysed our core business risks. including
climate change (see page 43). formally defined our core values (see
page 14) and reviewed our engagement with key stakeholders {sea
pages 80 and 81). Through this series of steps we have distilled a
number of sustainability capitals and objectives that are at the
heart of who we are and what we do.
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As part of the sustainability review, we have also carried out a
deep dive into Alconbury Weald, our most significant strategic
site, to look at the range of data currently available and what
additional information may need to be gathered. The review is
ongoing but has so far gonfirmed that we are creating value in
five capitals: physical, social, economic, natural and human, all
of which reflect our own values and the importance we place on
building quality communities that bring people together, whilst
enhancing the environment now and for future generations.

Our performance at Alconbury is illustrated on the fold-out
beneath this page and the five capitals are discussed and applied
to the wider business subgequently. Very often activities such as
community tree planting will incorporate a range of capitals and
so ¢lassification within one capital should not be regarded as
ignoring the others. Creating quality places with lots of outdoor
space (physical) promotes community {social), and means people
can lead healthier Hfestyles (human} and are more likely to get
involved and maintain the environment {(natural).

The preliminary assessment that follows forms the basis for
further engagement in 2020 with both internal and especially
external stakeholders. Ag the Master Developer we create the
framework for the strategic site, so it will be vital to engage and
partner with our housebuiider customers given their role in
delivering the homes, as well as the authorities and communities
in and around the sites which we are developing to discuss their

CASE STUDY

Big Summer Bash at
Alconbury Weald

Urban&Civic hosted the Big Summer Bash at Alconbury Weald on a
warm summer’s day in June, as a celebration to mark a key milestone
in the development of the growing community. More than 600
members of the public flocked to see local cricketers take partin
what we hope will become a regular event. Visitors were entertained
throughout the day by the first cricket match ever to be played on
Alconbury Weald's ngw pitch, coaching sessions, baking
masterclasses, face painting and live music.

Guest of honour and former Huntingdonshire MP The Rt Hon Sir
John Major KG CH officially opened the new cricket pitch, alongside
former England cricket stars Charlotte Edwards and Lydia Gresnway.
The match itself was organised by Cricket East and played out by
local players who had expressed aninterest in finding a new cricket
club, and to help inspire the future generation of Huntingdonshire
oricket stars, Charlotte and Lydia held a super-skills coaching session
for boys and girls, giving them a taste of the game.

“Having grown upin Huntingdonshire there is no better sight than to
see a new cricket pitch, with new players all getting involved and
wanting to play ericket. This is a fantastic new facility for the
community and hopefully a catalyst to get more people excited
about the game”

Charlotte Edwards CBE

priorities. Being a company that has always sought to do things
right, we are extremely supportive of the increasing market foous
around sustainability and are keen to engage with others to
establish a meaningful and progressive Sustainability Framework
for farge site delivery.

Our ambiticn for 2020 and beyond is to develop this approach,
continuously refining the framework and seeking to align our
capitals and objectives with relevant international objectives such
as the UN's Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs). We fully
anticipate that this will include the setting of targets and minimum
standards to apply across our portfolic which will help inform our
decisions, drive further innovation and guide our teams right
across the portfolio.

This staged approach to the creation of a framework will enable
us to create something which is both useful and reflective of our
Master Developer role. Most importantly it will help us continue
to do things right and make a positive contribution. For large site
delivery, we are on a journey with our partners, stakehoiders and
customers to understand what matters to them, what will make
a difference and how we can directly effect change, influence
behaviour and provide the competitive nudges which will
encourage everyone to do better and aim higher. We welcome
your feedback on the approach to date and your involvernent

in the journey to come.

“Having lived in the area for many years, | am delighted to see
what Urban&Civic has achieved, here at Alconbury Weald, to
encourage sports participation and active and healthy lifestyles.
It gave me great personal pleasurato “open” the new pitch,
which will be used by many generations to come. Hopefully,
hefore long, we will uncover our next Charlotte Edwards”

Sir John Major

Annual Repoert and Accounts 2019 — Urban8,Civic plo



incubator workspace:

« 2740m? of flexible incubator
| floorspace for small and

i start-up businesses

‘ provided to date

\

|

Total business
floorspace:

71,028m?

of total commercial
floorspace built

Innovation:

* Innovation in the demolition of
reinforced aircraft hangars
reduced time spent on each
hanger from 23 to four days

Significant disruption and capital
costs saved through early
engagement with Anglian Water
to route pipework away from
public highway

Economic
Joh creation:
« EDGE - Jobs and Skills: « EDGE Construction and Skills Centre:
— 774 people provided with » 7715 hours of training provided via the
Information, Advice and Guidance Construction and Skills Centre
(1AG) since I.EDGE started with + 136 learners are employment ready and
267 placed into employment . . .
are actively job seeking
~ EDGE has held six career fairs « 16 learners successfully employed
to date, with ¢.500 students Y employ
visiting per fair + Five housebuilder partners engaged
. with the jobs and skills programme
EDGE c;rr:‘ets 3”:1::6" SChOOIr (Redrow, Breheny, Morris, RG Carter
_engag?a. ent events per ye:a ' and Crest Nicholson)
in addition to the career fairs
Staff engagement:

+ 420 hours’ employee time
supporting community
programmes in 2019

« 100% of on-site staff voluntesring
time for local community groups

Social

Considerate

Constructors Scheme:

« All directly appointed contractors
are members

+ Average score of 38,5 (out of 60)
achieved by our directly
appointed contractors to date

Community events:

« Three major events in 2019
- Big Summer Bash, Christmas
Carols and Outdoor Cinema

+ Weekly community activitios
supported through provision
of space

Extensive planning
consultation events for outline
and Key Phase applications

Community beneficiaries:

= Seven advisory groups, school boards,
networks and trusts supported including
Fusion, Groundwork, Huntingdon BID, iMET,
Ermine Street Church Academy, Natural
Cambridgeshire and Cambridge Ahead

« 18 community groups sponsored within
a 25-mile radius

« 14 community groups supported for over
three years




Affordable homes:
« Minimum of 12% within Key
Phase 1 with a viability review
Contractor procurement: providing increases per
+ 100% of directly procured phase to policy of 35%
contracts over £1 million from
within a 25-mile radius

+ We have three contractor
frameworks and six consultancy
frameworks

8106:

+ £10.8 million committed
through S106 for education
and transport facilities

in 2019
51,000+
trees will store over 170
tonnes of carbon each year
Trees for life:
« Within Key Phase 1 there will be ¢.51,000 Energy
trees from over 87 different species: « Average energy performance

- providing a tree canopy Gover of 33%; this certif_icate fo.r five commercial
compares to the average canopy cover buitdings dell\-/ered by
across the UK at 17%; Urban&Civic is 25 (A Rating)

+ 1384 tonnes of CO_e produced

— gtoring over 170 tonnes of carbon each year;
from the new buildings

- removing a total of .24 tonnes of airborne operated by Urban&Civic
pollutants each year; Biodiversity net gain:
- creating total leaf area of 74.6ha; * When completed Key
Natural Phase 1is predicted to

- reducing runoff by an estimated 1,630m3
ayear; and

—with a total replacement cost,ona  Water use:

like-for-like basis, of £4.77 million . All homes are designed with

water saving fixtures to help
residents only use 110 litres

achieve a 3.7% net gain in
biodiversity value

Materials: of water per person per day;
- 31% of new grey infrastructure this exceeds building Priority species:
by tonnage is from material regulations of 125 litres; The design of
recycled on site per person per day Public open space: andscaping and ecology
. 86% of new green « 100% of our green rridors protects
infrastructure by tonnage i infrastructure has five-year  Iltiple priority species
from material recycled on site management plans for both sirds, bats and bees

ecology and landscaping



Public space:
« 496% of Key Phase 1is public
open space

sustainabi'ity il‘l acti°n= . if;?::ﬁuuie open space
Alconbury Weald Key Phase 1

« 100% of homes are no more than
69m from a green corridor

« 100% of homes are no

Design: more than 147m from
» Winner of the Mixed Use aplay area
Development of the Year
- Planning Awards 2019

Education facilities:

« Ermine Street Church Academy,
opened September 2016 - 2FE
{2432m?) to date

« iMET Building, opened
2018 - 3124m?

Households:
+ ¢.300 homes occupied




Renowable energy:

+ Housebuilders are required to
provide a minimum of 10% of
the energy for their homes from
sustainable or renewable sources

» Solar panels on the roof of all
commercial buildings, providing
37408kWh of electricity per
year, saving approximately
19,786kg of carbon per year

Bringing heritage

to life:
Physical

Land remediation:

89ha

of land returned to usable development
platform to date; this is equivalent to the
size of 108 football pitches

» 489,000 tonnes of concrete taxiways
excavated, processed and reused on site
and 445,000 cubic metres of material
remediated to date

» Grade l listed Second World
War watchtower - fully

Sustainable transport:

refurbished and opened asa + 12.8km of dedicated CVO|B
community facility and office routes provided to date
opened in 2019 - 210m?

Healthy eating:
+ Ermine Street Church Academy
allotments opened in November 2018

- 1727m? of permanent growing space
provided across Key Phase 1

+ 1590m? of orchards provided across

Key Phase 1
Human
Mental health:
+ Eight employees have
E completed mental health
mergency support: first aid training

+ 79% of dwellings are within
250 meters of an Automated
External Defibrillator (AED)

= All homes are within a five to
six minute walk of a bus stop

Healthy lifestyles:

« Alconbury selected as a case
studly for Sport England's Active
Design Principles

« In addition to footpaths,
cycleways and exercise trails,
the Club building houses an

on-site gym

Health and safety:

91% of on-site employees have attended a
health and safety briefing in the last six months

100% of the on-site project management
team have attended a CDM course within the
last 12 months

22% of on-site employees are trained fire
wardens and 11% are trained first aiders

There have been no RIDDORSs on site
since 2017

Three safety meetings held per quarter
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SUSTAINABILITY CONTINUED

Physical

Our approach

“Creating high quality places is absolutely what we do. We tailor
the designs of our sites to oreate long-term physical value and
increase the longevity and walkability of our places.”

Everyone agrees: the UK needs more housing and it needs housing
in places that people want to live in and that provide the services -
transport, schools, recreation - that are equally important. Achieving
planning for and then delivering large scale sites which make this
kind of quality and differentiated housebuilding possible, with increasing
levels of market absorption, is our job as a Master Developer.

Our mantra that “flexibility is better than prophecy” ensures we
design our developments with the ability to evolve and respond to
innovations and changing trends. We continue to create places that
support people to live sustainable and healthy lives, designing
sustainability into our sites from the very beginning. Travel planning
is an essential part of this, to ensure pecple living and working on
our sites can access what they need quickly and sustainably.

To support our approach within this capital, we consider the
following cbjectives describe what we do and ensure we create
long-term physical value across cur developments:

Unlock value through physical infrastructure

The physical infrastructure we build, such as schools, bus stops,
roads and utility services, not only generates links with the existing
communities, but it also provides value to the communities we
create. As a Master Developer, we seek to recycle, decontaminate
and reuse materials wherever possible on site and we embed
“Active Design” Principles at each stage of our design process.

CASE STUDY
Delivering Active Design

An essential component of the approach to designing and now
delivering new development at Alconbury Weald has been the
embedding of Sport England’s Active Design Principles.

In 2019, Alconbury featurec as a Sport England case study
which stated:

“An important aspect to ensuring the success of embedding the
Active Design Principles into the schame has been the long term
‘Master Developer’ role that Urban&Civic (U&C) have taken.

U&C have retained the fong-term overall control of the site, which
ensures that there is proper phasing of build out and adherence to
the design principles and vision for the overall development.”
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In combination this enables us to deliver a sustainable and
considered structure of multifunctional green spaces and public
realms that are well connected to homes and jobs, creating
everyday opportunities. We are also a signatory to NHS England's
Healthy New Towns Network.

Develop a future-looking and flexible energy strategy

The way we power homes in the UK is rapidly changing this is why
we ensure that our energy strategy for each develocpment is flexible
and meets the changing demands of the future. Our mantra
continues to be based upon a fabric-first approach to embed
energy conservation and use within the design as well as continuing
to utilise self and regenerated energy through photovoltaic, ground
source heat pumps, battery storage, hot waste water recycling, stc.
However, we recognise that dependence on electricity from the grid
will not provide the solution to our future energy supply strategy
alone and are investing in off-site generation from sustainable and
renewable sources of energy alongside localised on site generation
and recycling of energy. This will also reguire close working and
alignment with our housebuilder customers which are responsible
for the delivery of the homes on our sites.

Resilience to climate change

Wa acknowledge the UK government's commitment to achieve net
zero carbon by 2050, and the part new housing developments have
to play in achieving the transition 1o a low carbon economy. As part
of our approach to build places that are resilient to the impacts of
awarming climate, we are already modelling the potential effects of
the future decarbonisation of our utilities network and changing building
fabric requirements as part of all technical and financial appraisals.




Sample metrics from Alconbury KP1:

489,000 12.8km

tonnes of concrete taxiways of dedicated cycle routes
excavated, processed and provided to date
reused on site

CASE STUDY

Restoring heritage

The remarkable Second World War-era RAF Watch Office has been
restored at Alconbury Weald. The Grade |l listed buitding has been
transformed into a library and heritage space for the community to
use. Built in 1940-41, the Watchtower was the first permanent control
tower at Alconbury. The Watchtower is an outstanding example

of a standard type build for bomber satsllite stations during the
Sacond Warld War. Only 214 wera built in the UK in total, with just

a handful remaining.

Taking almost one year to complets, the Watchtower had to be
restorad with the original features retained or reinstated where
passible, inofuding external stairs, timber door sets, original walls and
flooring, a roof access ladder and the roof balustrade, breathing new
lifeinto the period features. The result is an outstanding new heritage
space to be enjoyed by many generations to come.

We are building upon the current SAP (Standard Assessment
Procedure} and SBEM (Simplified Building Energy Mode!) modsliing,
air tightness test data, and daylighting and thermal medelling on
each of our commergial buildings to understand the impacts of our
fabric-first approach employed to date on any potential overheating
scenario and on the perfarmance of the buildings and comfort of
the people who use them. In addition, we install extensive Sustainable
Urban Drainage Systems (SUDS) to ensure appropriate ground
water management. All drainage systems are designed for onein
30-year flows with overland flows and attenuation tc onein
100-year events, such flood data is under constant review as
external modelling is updated by our statutory partners.

Bring heritage to life

The development of large-scale sites creates new places, but itis
essential to anchor those places in the site and the surrounding
ared’s heritage to provide a genuine sense of place. Whilst this does
not mean preserving everything it does require a sympathetic, creabve
and proactive approach to heritage. From the recent restoration of
the listed watch tower at Alconbury to the incorporation of the listed
C-Station Building at Houlton into the new secondary school we
also seek to ensure that heritage buildings have a long-term viable
future and will be fully adopted by the new community.

Design sustainable transport

A great place supports people going about their daily lives.
Travel planning is essential to ensure people living and working
on our sites can access what they need quickly and sustainably.

watchtower fully refurbished and

89%ha

of contaminated land remediated
and returned to a usable
development platform to date

One

Grade 2 listed Second World War

openad insummer 2019 as
a community facility and office

“It has been an honour to work on a restaration project of such
high historical significance. We are pleased that Urban&QCivic has
integrated this fine example of war-time architecture into the
masterplan, ensuring it benefits the community by raising
awareness of the heritage of the site and providing new facilities.”
Nick Armour, Local Conservation Officer at
Huntingdonshire District Council

We promote a culture of ¢ycling and walking and have integrated
these considerations into our plans right across our portfolio of
sites; this aims to not only limit the impact of our new developments
on existing transport networks, but to also encourage our residents
to enjoy healthy lifestyles. Working at scale, this means that we have
already delivered over 28km of cycle routes within our sites alone.
At Alconbury Weald one of our founding principles has been to
deliver a “walkable community”, ensuring that all residents have the
option to walk 10 schools, shops and parks. As a result, allhomes
have been designed to be within a 5-6 minute walk of a bus stop
and a 10-12 minute walk from a local shop. At Houlton, Rugby, the
link road, which opened this year, also incorporated a dedicated
footpath/cycleway providing direct access to the town and allowing
a sustainable option for commuting to the station.

Build quality outdoor public spaces and facilities

We create quality outdoor public spaces and facilities for people to
enjoy. As part of our design we ensure that the provision of the green
infrastructure network and also gcore community faciities, such as
oricket pitches, allotments and schools, is available as soon as
possible and continues to grow with the community. Our role as
Master Developer is to ensure that these essential community
infrastructures meet the daily needs of the new residents. At Priors
Hall, this yoar whero wo taok over an exicting development, we have
delivered eight play spaces, two fitness areas, a new community
café and a dedicated on-site Urban&Civic office and planted over
46,000 trees to ensure that this site not only has the provision
originally intended but is also uplifted by our focus on quality and
our belief in the importance of this capital.
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SUSTAINABILITY CONTINUED

Social

Our approach

“We want to create vibrant communities that bring people
together. We do this by forging strong relationships with residents
and local stakeholders, supporting the services and activities they
want and need, and nurturing a culture of community citizenship.”

With our sites at different stages and in different areas, our activities
at each projoot vary but our Mastor Devoloper objectivea remain
the same. Qur engagement with local communities starts early, as
no onec knowe their area better than the people already living thore.
We want to incorporate that knowledge into our plans from the
outset. We develop community hubs and schools early whilst

also supporting events and organisations in response to specific
local neodc. We encourage our poople, our cuntomora and our
contractors to get involved with community projects that support
our sites, and to donate their time and enthusiasm to charities
beyond our developments.

Whilst we have a long-term alignment during delivery, it is vital that
these developments become thriving and independent communities.
Qur work to create physical assets which create spaces for community
and nurture a culture of community engagement, by providing
advice and support to advisory groups, sohool boardo and trustcos,
ansures people coma togother and are empoworod for gonorations
to come. Wa are proud of the communities that flourish in the places
we create.

CASE STUDY

Strategic involvementin
schools in Rugby

As a founding member of the Houlton Multi-Academy Trust (MAT),
which runs our first primary school on site, our involvement has been
extensive - reaching far beyond the traditional developer role of
designing and building schools. Following our innovative collaboration
with the Diocese of Coventry, we have overseen the visioning and
strategic direction of the MAT, developed and helped articulate our
collective athos, as well as providing strategic direction, financial
rmanagement and performance standards.

At Govarnor level within St Gabrief's Academy, this best manifests
itself in our ability to forge strong links between the school and
other local stakeholders involved in the creation of Houlton such
as our housebuilders whoin 2018-19 supported the school through
purchasing books for the library and creating a Forast School.
Most importantly, through our role in the school, we are able to

get to know local families and children and watch them grow

and flourish in our new school communities.
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To support our approach within this capital, we consider the
following objectives describe what we do and ensure we increase
social value across our developments:

Support the community

Looking at the type of support we provide to communities from the
offsat ensures we take a whole-life approach to creating community
cohesion. We sit on a number of advisory groups, school boards and
trusts, and in particular the support we provide to the schools we
build ensures that we are the curators of the wider communities
around them. This enables us to play an active role in supporting our
schools’ performance and ensure that, as well as being high quality
buildings, they becorne high performing schools.

Bring people together

Creating communities is ultimately about bringing people together
and inspiring positive behaviours. To facilitate this, we hold regular local
community events; for example, at Houlton, Rugby, in May 2019, TV
ecologist Mike Dilger and Warwickshire Wildlife Trust experts took
residents on a Really Wild Adventure with a series of nature-inspired
games and educational presentations.

This is part of our ongoing commitment to conneoting the
community with nature and is an example of an activity creating
value and co-benefiting multiple capitals.

As we now embark on the develcpment of a secondary school at
Houlton, we do so upholding the common principles we lay down in

all Urban&Civic schoels and that were evident in the development of
St Gabriel's, being investment in design, rooting in history and retaining
a long-term stake for Urban&QCivic, all underpinned by partnership
working at every level. Qur invitation to be involved at both Director
and Governor level in the Transfarming Lives Educational Trust which
will run our new secondary school, along with several other within the
town, is testament to the added value and development expertise we
bring to this sector.




Sample metrics at Alconbury KP1:

420 hours 1

of employea time supporting advisory groups, schoo!boards,
community programmes in 2019 natworks and trusts supported
in2019

S
18 38.5
community groups sponscred average CCS score achieved by
within a 25-mile radius to date our directly appointed contractors

to date

CASE STUDY
Connecting the community through science

We have recently provided the East Anglian Astrophysical Research Organisation
{EAARC) with an existing and vacant building at Alconkury which they have
converted into a new space observation centre dedicated to the search for
extra-terrestrial intelligence {SETI). With the installation of a two petabyte data
centra donated from General Elactric, the centre has the processing power and
space to store and sift through the weak radio signals that reach the UK from space.

EAARQ founded in 2011, is on a rmission to inspire interest in science, technology,
engineering and mathematics (STEM} subjacts through the wonders of space. The
team of three which runs EAARQ hopes to appeal to all ages, invigorate an interest
in space exploration within the local community and engage local schools. The new
building has also allowed EAAROQ to throw its doors open to the public, with recent
events inciuding get-togethers to watch meteor showers and demonstrations of
how radio waves ¢an be bounced off the super-heated trails of meteors, resulting in
adistinctive sound.

Givan that Houlton was once the world's most powerful radio transmitter and was
used by a self-proclaimed British interplanatary psychic in 1926 to try to send a
message to Mars, we may now, through Aleconbury, also be home to the means of
listening for the response.

Engago with stakeholdors through design and oporation

At a business lovol, our community engagemont extonds to activo
market and governmental involverent. We regularly hold site visits
for key stakeholders and recently showed the beards and senior
officers of the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local
Government (MHCLG) and Homes England around Alconbury to
explain the Master Developer approach in action. We hold regular
consultation meetings with the existing community throughout the
planning process, to ensure we listen and respond to what the local
community needs. In addition, we encourage cur housebuilder
stakeholders to meet the principles of the Considerate Constructors
Scherme (CCS). The scheme scores contractors on a set of standards

on their site presentation, management and, albove all, neighbourliness.

All of our direct contractors are currently registered with the scheme
and achieve an average scora of 38.6 out of 50,

Partner with third sector organisations

We continue to invest significantly into community initiatives in the
places we work through sponsorship. At Rugby, for exarmple, we have
been supporting the wider community for many years. As a
stakeholder in the town, our work to create Houlton and position

Urbané:Civio ac a credible and trusted local partner began back in
2015 whon wo ombarked on building rolationships and integrating
into the wider community and sogial fabric of Rugby through
involvement in a range of initiatives and events. Our partnerships
continue with Rugby Borough Council's Festival of Culture and
Rugby in Bloom and with Rugby FM's Pride of Rugby Awards
amongst others. These all provide great opportunities for us to
introduce the new community of Houlton and support much-needed
local causes. In total, we support around twelve initiatives in Rugby
with investment of over £30,000 per year.

Volunteer

We encourage our people, our housebuilder customers and our
contractors to get involved with community projects that support
our sites and now have several roles which are dedicated to
supporting and developing site communities. This year alone,
Hopkins Homes has enabled Ermine Street Church Academy

at Aloonbury to purchase 16 djembe drums as part of a new
initiative designed to support its students’ reading and writing,
and Morris Homes funding for the allotments at the school has
now underpinned the creation of a weekly nature group.
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SUSTAINABILITY CONTINUED

Economic

OQur approach

"By building iasting partnerships and leveraging our investments,
we aim to oreate a positive economic impact for our local
communities, both during development and in use.”

We promote innovation and entrepreneurship, investing in the areas
where we work. We are continucusly seeking opportunities to help
local people into construction and upskill the existing workforce.
We run work experience schemes with local schools and recruit
apprentices and trainees from within our communities. We consider
the longer-term economic impacts of our developments and
aclvocate that all procuromont decicione prioritice local businesses.
Supporting local business puts money back into the local economy,
driving prosperity for local people.

Within 100 miles of London, there is a shortage of quality homes
from across all tenures and operating at the Master Developer scale
provides the opportunity to help meet those needs. Although each
site has a different composition, all sites will generate space for
businasses to develop whethar they be servioing tho rocidential
mood lilie safés or chopo or otandalone enterpricos roquiring inoubater
or much larger space. We understand the need for an effective mix
of usca and worlc to encuro that these uses are mutually beneficial.

CASE STUDY

Anglian Water - co-operative
relationships leading to
wider savings

At Alconbury, initiat discussions with Anglian Water identified the
need to provide extensive off site works to deliver a suitable supply
of clean water to the site. During the course of these discussions,

we collectively identified an alternative and innovative approach

to reinforce Anglian Water's wider existing network of clean water
distribution by running a new strategic reinforcemant main through our
land from Huntingdon rather than along the existing adopted highway
of Ermine Street through the Stukeleys, which saved the excavation
of over 4km of public highway with the commensurate disruption that
would have caused to both transport and genera! movemant over

a nine-month period. Undertaking the design and construgtion of

the works in this manner not only positively correctad the potential
environmental impact of the scherme but also contributed positively
to the financial viability of the strategy for the overall development.

66 UrbardCivic ple — Annual Report and Accounts 2019

To support our approach within this capital, we consider the following
objeotives describe what we do and ensure wa create lasting
partherships and increase economic value across our developments:

Harness local identity and entreprensurship

The Master Developer role enables us to work with partners to shape
the vision for a new community right at the start of the planning
process. Through this process at Alconbury Weald, we identified that
there was a shortage of office space for small and start-up companies
and responded to this local need by building an award-winning
incubator before anything else, which is now home to eight
comparnies with 220 employees. | his year we opened a second
incubator, with both buildings providing flexible and inspiring space
to help grow local companies. We have seen companies move from
Incubator 1to the larger space in Incubator 2, demonstrating how
our approach te support a range of companies and organisations
has helped them expand further on site. Cambridgeshire County
Council's decigsion to move from its costly six-acre Shire Hall site

in nantral CGambridge, to a smaller, more flexible purposa-built
huiilding alnngside the Incubatars at Aleonbury, which will opean in
December 2020, further establishes Alconbury's civio/business
huh stati s




Sample metrics at Alconbury KP1:

100% 2,740m?

of directly procured contracts of flexible incubator floorspace

over £1 million from within a provided to date, for up to 360

26-mile radius people to work for small and
start-up businesses

Focus on long-term amployment

Our developments actively seek to leverage our investment to create
a positive economic impact, both during development and once in
use. We have a dedicated full-time in-house lead who supports skills
development across our sites and is actively engaged with arange
of organisations such as EDGE, the looal jobs and skills partnership
which we helped establish, and iMET, the on-site advanced training
centre at Alconbury for which we donated the land. iMET continues
to build its unique role in delivering business-led courses and high
level technical apprenticeships across the local area, focusing on
advanced manufacturing and the built environment. With 16 apprentices
enrolled across civil engineering, composites and digital courses,
iMET will be expanding next year with the launch of mechatronios
and machinist courses. Our business engagement and regular
industry events continue to draw target sectors to Alconbury Weald
and atongside EDGE ensures that skills remain a core part of the
economic development strategy for the wider area. Furthermore,
the Alconbury Weald Construction Training Hub, funded by a grant
from the Construction Skills Fund and also run through EDGE,
directly supports local people and target groups into construction
training jobs, The project works with five of our housebuilder
partners and contractors to engage local training partners, charities
and organisations supporting people returning to work, as well as
local schools and colleges. 225 learners have commenced training
to date, with 136 learners now employment ready and seeking jobs.

CASE STUDY

Giving apprentices the EDGE

2019 has been anothar great year for the EDGE Jobs & Skills Brokerage
which via local partnership has yet again demonstrated its drive to deliver
Information, Advice and Guidance (IAG) to local job seekers, support local

businesses with their recruitment needs and raise career aspirations
amongst local sohool and college students.

EDGE has now delivered IAG to over 774 local job seekers, many of whom

have gone onto employment, volunteering or training and education as
a result of our interventions. Furthermore, in terms of local schools and

£10.8m 6

committed through S106 for
education and transport facilities

career fairs have taken place
to date, with over 500 students
visiting per fair

We are also working alongside the West Midlands Combined
Authority on a hub as part of the Houlton project.

Promote economic opportunities and social inclusion

The diverse range of housing, in terms of size, type and tenure
across our sites, generates a range of opportunities for people
getting on the housing ladder, moving up it or downsizing. We work
with our housebuilders and affordable housing providers to ensure
that the opportunities for government support, such as Help to Buy,
are property harnessed. Our planning centributions, however, include
not only investment in affordable housing but also community facilities,
transport infrastructure, schools and green spaces. During 2019,
we contributed £15.5 million through our $106 planning obligations
used for education and transport facilities.

Buy from the local community

As a Master Developer, it is our polioy to procure services from the
local economy first. To date, 100 per cent of contracts under our control
have been located within a 25-mile radius of each site. This is monitored
by our procurement team and it is part of our ethos to put money back
into the local economy to help it thrive. We are also delighted that
the cafés operating on site at Alcenbury, Houlton, Priors Hall and
Middlebeck are all run by local businesses which are starting up or
expanding their operations and also make exceedingly good cakes.

educational establishments, EDGE has been able to widen its programmes

beyond Alconbury to incorporate both Wintringham and Waterbeach
this year supporting and delivering meaningful engagements to over
700 students across seven secondary schools as well as driving the

regicnal apprenticeship agenda by hosting Cambridge County Council's

annual apprenticeship celebration at Alconbury Weald in March.

With the return of the EDGE Annual Careers Fair at Alconbury Weald
in Decamber, for students from seven local schools, hosting over
500 students for the day, EDQE is at the heart of helping all ages
broaden their employment horizons.
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SUSTAINABILITY CONTINUED

Natural

Our approach
“We buitd in harmony with nature toc protect the existing value
and make a positive contribution to the environment.”

As a Master Developer, the environmental impact of our operations
is a key consideration in everything we do and operating at scale is
both a challenge and an opportunity in this regard. We reuse materials
on site wherever possible and recycle materials we cannot reuse.
We measure and report our greenhouse gas emissions and work

to minimise our carbon footprint — all new buildings are designed
with efficiency in mind and we are continuously making improvements
to increase the operational efficiency of our portfolio.

Across our strategic sites we not only work to preserve and
promote biodiversity, we ensure that our developments provide a
net bicdiversity gain and green infrastructure and access to green
spaces are delivered as soon as possible. Another key criteria for
us in terrms of building sustainable green spaces is to educate the
community about their role and their value beyond the obvious
visual and amenity benefits. This is so that as the sites mature,
the community continues to protect and enhance these assets.

To support our appreach within this capital, we consider the
following objectives describe what we do and ensure we enhance
natural value across our developments:

CASE STUDY

Treeconomics at Alconbury Weald

Treaconomics is a social enterprise that seeks to highlight the benefits
of troas and works to understand how they improve our urban spaces,
making thern better places to live. Given the number of trees we plant
each year, we worked with Treeconomios this year on the data set for
Alconbury Weald to assess our projected tree stook for Key Phase 1
and understand its objective value. This was done using a variety of
assessment tools and methods, including the most widely used i-Tree
Eoo model. From this we learnt that onoe the first phasae of Alconbury
is complete. 61130 traes, from Bt different species, will remove over
1.24 tonnas of airborne poallutants, and store over 170 tonnes of carbon,
every year. We also found that after rainfall the projected extent of
water held in the tree canopy cover of 24.85ha before it evaporates,
will divert 1630m? of storm water runoff away from local sewer
systems, providing annual discharge savings of £2,500.

This data can now be used to provide further education about
Alconbury's trees, assist with mapping the future benefits of further
tree planting across future phases and undertake a gap analysis to
help inform which trees are needed to optimise ecosystem services.
Given that trees grow with the development so does their replacement
valug which for the trees within Key Phasse 1 stands at £4.8 million.
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Create valuable, accessible and educational

green and blue infrastructure

Our research into the benefits of green and blue infrastruoture
investigates how well-planned spaces can provide benefits to both
physical and mental health. This directly links back to the physical
capital where we discussed "Active Design” and “Mealthy New
Towns” In all cases we seek to develop a green infrastructure and
movement strategy from the outset which is then given direct effect
through each phase's desigh codes. We have found that a significant
user of our green spaces and therefore people purchasing homes
on our developments are dog owners. Thig is because they can
directly access the green spaces and take their dogs for a long walk
without leaving the site. We use on-site information boards and
events as well as sohool projects to then provide information on the
flora and fauna all around them. Working at scale means that across
alt of our projects we have already created 88 6ha of public open
space and have planted over 136,000 trees, 72,000 of whioh were
planted this year.

Enhance biodiversity and ecological value

Our commitment to increasing ecological value on our developments
is not new, but we have refined our approach to measuring the value
of nature we provide this year.




Sample metrics at Alconbury KPt:

100% 51,000 trees

of new build commercial buildings  will store over 170 tonnes of
achieve an EPC ratingof Aor B carbon each year

100%

of our green infrastructure has
five-year management plans

3.7%

net gainin biodiversity value to be
achieved when completed

CASE STUDY

Waterbeach hosts the launch of
Natural Cambridgeshire’s Doubling
Nature Initiative

Urban&Civic was deiighted to host Natural Cambridgeshire Partnership's
announcement of ambitious plans to double the area of rich wildlife habitats
and natural green space across Cambridgeshire and Paterborough over the
next 30 years at Waterbeach in July.

The Doubling Natyre initiative has been drawn up by the partnership - which
includes local authorities, statutory agencies, conservation charities, community
groups and develapers like Urban&Civic - with the aim of creating a world-class
environment where nature and people thrive, and businesses prosper.

The Doubling Nature Initiative was launched by Tony Juniper, Chair of Natural
England and James Palmer, Mayor of the Cambridgeshire and Peterberough
Combined Authority, at separate events at Waterbeach Barracks and the
Hamptons, Paterborough, both of which have been heralded as outstanding
exarmpies of how high-quality housing development can deliver new areas of

nature rich landscape.

We have partnered with external consultants BMD to develop our
"Healthy Infrastructure Toolkit” using the Warwickshire County Council
calculations to assess biodiversity gains. As part of this we have
committed to meeting a net gain on two recent outline planning
applications - Waterbeach and Wintringham - and at Aloonbury Weald
with the current design we will achieve a net gain of 3.7 per cent once
completed. We are currently locking at ways to better understand
the other benefits that our green infrastructure assets are providing
and record, measure and communicate those benefits to investors,
stakeholders and resitients. We have started this process through our
research work with Treeconomics at Alconbury Weald, which uses
unique software to understand the value of the existing and new
tres stock on site. Trees are vital to healthy ecosystems and make
them better places to live. We are committed to planting more tress
across our developments to improve the environment and wellbeing
of the residents. The data we are collecting will allow us to make
better management decisions about cur natural assets in the future.

Use resources responsibly

We provide a set of minimum standards within our design guides

to our housebuilder partners that include a range of features in the
homes to enable residents to live comfortable lifestyles with minimal
impact on the environment. For example, all homes are designed

to minimise water usage and use 10 litres per person per day,

which is 15 litres less than the current building regulations from 2013,

In addition, all of our commercial properties this year have achieved
an Energy Performange Certificate (EPC) of an A or B.

Understand our impacts

We reuse materials on site where possible and recycle materials
we cannot reuse. At Alconbury over 31 per cent of the materials
used for grey infrastructure works is from recyoled content.

This is primarily road stone and pipe bedding for drainage created
by crushing and recycling the concrete old taxiways. In addition,
within our green infrastructure works 86 per cent of materials

are recycled for reuse, due to our ability to ameliorate the topsoil
directly on site. Across our projects we have already remediated
over 150ha of land. Any waste produced from our direct contractors
is reused or recycled where possible with 82 per cent of their waste
diverted from landfill.

Climate change is a core risk to the business (see page 43), and
we are committed to driving down our carbon consumption and
alleviating our impact on the warming climate. Our greenhouse gas
emissions can be seen on page 62, which details our approach to
recording carbon across the Group. At Aiconbury, for example, the
differential between the energy consumed in the old and new buildings
is particularty stark. Whilst the wider estate, which encompasses
the inefficient former military buildings, uses 875 per cent of the
total carbon consumed on site, the modern buildings we have
developed represent a significant improvement at 12.5 per cent.
Other than the listed buildings, the redevelopment of Alconbury
will see the demolition of the former military buildings and the
continuance of this trend.
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SUSTAINABILITY CONTINUED

Human

Our approach

“It is by focusing on people that we are able to deliver, build and
grow. Placing an absolute focus on safety for all, we seek to
improve the quality of life for the people in our communities and
for our empioyees we invest in training and promote personal
development to ensure thay feel empowered and proud to be
working with us.”

It is essential that we look after the people who work for us as well
as those building, working and living on our sites. Health and Safety
i8 a top priority and we review our policy and procedures annually
and engage with contractors, housebuilders and other stakeholders
to ensure our approach is effective and up to date.

Previous capitals have addressed the environment, opportunities
and health of the communities in which we work, and these clearly
overlap with our human capital. We also want our people to feel safe,
confident and able to grow and therefore encourage and investin
staff at all levels to attend seminars and training courses relevant to
their role. We are also committed to regularly engaging with
employees and involving them in how the Company is run.
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To support our approach within this capital, we consider the
following objectives describe what we do and ensure we nurture
hurman value across cur developments:

Create high levels of mental and physical wellbeing

It is our responsibility to ensure that the places we design and build
improve the quality of life for the people within our communities.
Woa ensure that mental and physical wellbeing is considered at
every step of our planning and development process, and we take
a number of actions to aid this. For example, we promote healthy
eating within the communities by designing allotments into the
master plan, and in November 2018 we opened the Ermine Street
Church Academy allotments at Alconbury which teach children
about health and nutrition.

Foster a culture of safety

Wae believe in fostering a culture of safety and in taking action

to address key issues through behavioural change campaigns.

Our health and safety policy is independently audited and reissued
to all staff every two years to incorporate recent guidance and
legislative updates.

CASE STUDY

Defibrillator awareness training
at Houlton

Safety is non-negotiable in our eyes; and this year we noticed a gap
in the Emergency First Aid at Work and First Aid at Work courses

in providing in-depth training in the use of automated external
defibrillators {AEDs). We have therefore joined forces with St John's
Ambulance at Houlton, Rugby, to provide regular community training
$es5i0ns, improve awareness about what they can do, and make
defibrillators more accessible. Defibrillators are proven to save

lives and are therefore an invaluable addition to our health and
safety provision,

To date we have installed four defibritlators at Rugby, and we are
committed to providing everyone with the skills needed to use a
defibrillator and confidence to know what 1o do in an emergency.
The feadback from the wider community has been really positive
and we hope that the knowledge we are proving people may halp
to save alife one day.




Key achievements at Alconbury:

79% 1,727m?

of dwellings are within 250m of permanent growing space
of an Automated External provided to promote healthy eating
Defibrillator (AED)

To ensure we influence positive behaviours on our sites we hold
regular health and safety consortia meetings for contractors and
housebuilders at all our strategic land sites (see case study below).
As well as acting as general co-ordination meetings, the frequency
of these meetings helps us to identify and resolve igsues quickly and
reinforces the importance of health and safety to us and our
contractors and housebuilders. Now a requirement of our
housebuilder agreements, the intention is to expand the scope of
the consortia agenda to include matters such as modern slavery
and mental health at future forums.

Invest in our people

it is essential for the growth of our business to invest in the skills

of all our employees; this year we have implemented a new online
training system - iHasco. The online platform provides flexible
health, safety and human resourge compliance training for all of

our employees. We also hold regular in-house training sessions

led by team members and cur ¢onsultants who report on current
praoctice/legislation and allow time for discussion around historical
examples/best practice for newar members of the team. In addition,
we recognise the importance of improving mental health awareness
and providing our staff with the teols te support each other.

100%

of commercial buildings have
completed thermal comfort
modelling

1.2 tonnes

of airborne pollutants removed
each year by nature

We recently trained eight direct employees as mental health first
aiders in partnership with Mates in Mind, a oharity fooused on
improving mental health in the construction industry. It addresses
stigma and encourages people to talk about mental health issues.
We have also held talks on site about mental health awareness for
our wider stakeholder community and will be holding a further significant
event at Alconbury on “Blue Monday” in January whioh is claimed to
be the most depressing day of the year. At a Group level, we continue
te take action to ensure that our business and supply chain are free
of modern slavery in accordance with our Modern Stavery Statement.

Enable people tc express their ideas

Within any business but especially a growing business, it is
important to give your employees a voice. This year has seen the
creation of an Employee Advisory Group through which all staff
across all levels of the Company are able to express their thoughts
and ideas. We have also increased our use of regular surveys on
different topics and our performance review process spegcifically
includes time for a discussion around issues the business is facing
and improvements that could be made. This applies equally to the
emerging communities and we now have a range of resident forums
and associations that we support and engage with regularly,

CASE STUDY

Health and safety consortia
meetings

These meetings were originally set up to plan and co-ordinate
activities between the Urban&Civic directly contracted works and the
housebuilder works at our large strategic sites. Subsequent meetings
would then review thesa activities and understand how matters may
be improved going forward.

The meetings were quickly broadened to include operational heaith
and safaty matters, with the safety log reports from the previous
menth baing discussed with members and in turn they are invited to
share safety moments in order the expand a lessons learnt culture
aoross the site.

Now a requirament of our housebuilder agreements, the intention is
1o expand the scope of the consortia agenda te include such matters
as modern slavary, mental health and sustainability at future forums,
advocating the team nature of these |arge strategic settlements.

At Priors Hall, where such consortia meetings were intreduced in
March 2018, we have seen a 42 per cent decrease in the monthly
resident reported incidents concerning housebuilder activities and
a 260 per cent annual increase in NHBC health and safety awards
on the site between 2018 and 2019.
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SUSTAINABILITY CONTINUED

GHG emissions

We measure and report our greenhouse gas emissions (GHG), across our entire portfolio, providing a good proxy for our overall environmental
impact. Our greenhouse gas emissions statement includes all emission sources required under the Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report
and Directors’ Report) Regulations 2013 for the financial year ended 30 September 2019 and inciudes comparison on a like-for-like basis for

the past five years.
Reporting Reporting Reporting Reporting Reporung
yearend year end year end year end year end
30/08/19 30/09/18 30007 30/09N8 30/08N6
CO.e COe C0e COe CO.e
wonnes tonnes tonnes wnnes onnas

Emissions source

Combustion of fuel and operation of facilities 1141 1136 1,068 864 708
Elgotricity, haat, steam and cooling purchased for own use 1,727 1707 197 1,879 2,046
Total CO e tonnes 2,888 2,843 3039 2,743 2,764
Finanoial turnover £k £102114k £150.398k £60333k £95168k £55478k
Intensity ratio: CO_e tonnes/turnover £k 0.0281 [elq)13%¢) 00804 0.0288 0.0496
Intensity ratio: CO,e kg/turnover £k 2809 18.90 BO.37 2882 4964
Intensity ratic: CO,e kg/turnover yearly % change +48.6% (625)% +748% (41.9)% +13.1%

The following methodologies have been used to calculate the above
CO,e emissions:

+ The Greenhouse Gas Protocol Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard (revised edition).

« The Department of Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA)
Environmental Reporting Guidelines (2019).

The scope 1and 2 emissions reported are for all facilities across
the Group under our operational control. This includes all offices
occupied by the Group as well as former military buildings at
Alconbury Weald which are within Urban&Civic's ownership.

Carbon emissions produced from asssets that are not owned by
Urban&Civic pic but where the Company is acting under a development
management agreement for the assets' development, such as at
Waterbeach, are deemed the responsibility of our client and have
therefore been excluded from the figures. The assets will be included
only when the land is drawn down under the relevant agreement in
future periods.

Qur overall carbon emissions remain relatively the same, with a
marginal increase of 0.8 per cent compared to 2018. Our carben
intensity has increased by 488 per cent; however, this is predominantly
due to the 311 per cent decrease in turnover as the boundaries

of our carbon footprint have remained largely unchanged. Due to
fluctuations in annual turnover, we recognise that this may no longer
be providing easily comparable data trends and we will be locking
into using an alternative intensity ratic next year.
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The Company's hotel at Deansgate, Manchester, and our site at
Alconbury Weald continue to be the largest producers of CO,
emissions. The hotel remains in operation ahead of a complete
redevelopment of that site and is therefore not a medium or long-term
use. At Alconbury we continue to redevelop the site from its former
airfield use. Whilst ultimately the new development will be served
from the new energy sources for the development, at present our
ownership includes many pre and post-war buildings ocoupied by
temporary tenants and served from a historical Ministry of Defence
anergy source whose transformers have inherent energy losses.
We have calculated that 87.6 per cent of the energy generated at
Aloconbury is across this wider former military estate. For the new
commercial buildings we have built and are under our control we
have incorporated a range of energy saving features including a
fabrio-first design, installing an efficient Building Management
Systermn (BMS), PV panels and LED lighting, to ensure our buildings
run as efficiently as possible and keep energy demands low and,

as such, only produce 12.5 per cent of the total carbon consumed.
Average energy performance certificate for the commeroial
buildings delivered by Urban&Civic is 25 (A Rating).

We have recently submitted our ESOS Phase 2 comgliance energy
audit, and we will be fully reviewing the cutcome of the report once
available and implementing the energy saving opportunities
identified where appropriate.




What’s next

Having always strived to do things right, our staged process to the creation of a Sustainability
Framework in 2020 has allowed us to review our activities to date, establish relevant capitals, identify
useful metrics and move on to set targets which will ensure continuous improvement and innovation.

The analysis we have undertaken this year has identified the range
of Master Developer activities which are delivering meaningful and
sustainable benefits right across our stakeholder base and to the
environment. As a company and as team we are proud of what we
have achieved and are keen to do more both individually and
working with those stakeholders.

The creation of a Sustainability Framework with clear objectives,
metrics and targets in 2020 reflects the continuation of a journey
which, for us, started with the formation of Urban&Civic ten years
ago. We believe that operating at scale, whilst bringing significant

Sustainability review
Risks Values Stakeholders
Sustainability capitals
% Physical Sooial Economic Natural Human
. _— Assessment against Key
Met:
otrios and objectives Phase 1 Alconbury
v
Annual Report and Accounts 2019

Alignment with Stakeholder
8 Intermational standards Engagement
&

Sustainability Framework

v

Targets and Reporting

challenges which we have evolved to address, also creates material
opportunities to make a strongly positive difference. The 136,000
new trees, 28km of new ¢ycle ways and 154ha of remediated land
delivered to date are still a small proportion of the totals to come from
our strategic sites and are as important as the homes delivered.

This is why sustainability has always been fundamental to the way
we do business and why we welcome the growing focus and
structure which international targets, such as the UN's Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs), have brought. We are working towards
a clear Sustainability Framework which reflects the activities and
scale of the Master Developer and means we can address local,
national and gfobal environmental chaffenges through our values of
quality, integrity, passion, partnership and innovation.

It has often been said that there is no silver bullet to the housing
crises and that applies equally to the sustainability challenges we
face today. As the leading Master Developer, however, we are
determined to be open with our stakeholders on how we are
establishing our Sustainability Framework and then how we are
performing against it,

Physical

Human Soclal
/ o
Capitale )
/
Natural Economic

The strategic report contained on pages 4 to 63 was approved
by the Board on 27 November 2019,

On behalf of the Board

Nigel Hugill \ \‘\A
Chief Executive
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This saction of the Annual Report
contains the following reports:
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Board leadership and Company
purpose/division of responsibilities
Board of Directors

pages 68 to 69

Corporate governance report
pages 70Oto 87

Composition, succession and evaluation
Nomination and Governance Committee report
pages 88to0 98

Audit, risk and internal control
Audit Committee report
pages 8810106

Remuneration
Introduction
pages 106 to 113

Diregtors’ remuneration policy report
pages 114 to 117

Annual report on remuneration
pages 11810126

Directors’ report
pages 126 to 128

Directors’ responsibility statement
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INTRODUCTION

Dear Shareholder,

This governance section of the Ahnual Report (including the
Nomination and Governance Committes report on pages 88 to 98,
the Audit Committee report on pages 99 to 105 and the Directors'
Remuneration report on pages 106 o 126} describes how the Company
has applied the main principles contained within the UK Corporate
Governance Code (the ‘Code’). The 2018 edition of the Code (the
'2018 Code'} is applicable only to accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019 but, given the increasing rigour of the 2018
Code and as explained in last year's Annual Report, the Board has
taken the decision to adopt a year earlier than formally required.

The Company confirms that, throughout the year ended

30 September 2019, it has complied fully with the principles and
provisions of the 2018 edition of the Code and, other than areas
where work is ongoing as explained in the reports, with the principles
and provisions of the 2018 Code. Accordingly, set out in the following
pagesis a demonstration of the Company’s compliance during the
vear ended 30 September 2019 with the 2018 Code, which includes
cross-references to other parts of the Annual Report to assist with
reviewing compliance during the year. Compliance with Section &
{Remuneration} is set out in the Directors’ Remuneration report on
pages 106 to 125.

A copy of the 2018 and 2018 editions of the Code can be found on
the Financial Reporting Council's website at www.ircorguk.

During the year, the Board agreed that the Nomination Committee
remit should be expanded and, as a result, this committee has been
renamad the Nomination and Govemance Committee. This committes
will oversee all matters relating to oorporate governance arid will
report to and advise the Board on such matters. Whiist the Board
retains responsibility for governance, the new structure will enable
full and detailed discussion of all governance issuss in a dedicated
forum. The Committes will report to the Board after every meeting
and will make recommendations and proposals as appropriate.
The Board will continue to have ultimate responsibility for approval
of all Group policies and governance related matters.

During the year, the Board appointed two new independent
Non-Executive Directors to the Board and | am delighted to welcome
Rosemary Boot and Sanjeev Sharma to the Company. Both bring
valuable knowledge and experience to the Board and we look forward
to the contributions they will bring to Board discussions. Rosemary's
experienceindludes being chief financial officer of Future Cities Catapult,
group finance director of the Carbon Trust and aninvestment banker.
Sanieev is chief property portfolio officer of M&G Real Estate and was
previously Head of Human Resources at NatWest Life Agsurance
Limited. The Nomination and Governance Committee report sets
out the processes (0 support these changes and the induction
programme provided to the new Directors. Both Rosemary Boot
and Sanjeev Sharma will stand for election at the 2020 AGM.

Tha Nomination and Governance Committee considers sucoession
plans for both the Board and senior management, ard an explanation
of this processis in the Nomination and Govermnance Comimittes report.

Earlier this year, Duncan Hunter, our Senior Independent Non-Executive
Director, resigned from the Board and following his departure,

lan Barlow was appointed as Senior Independent Non-Executive
Director. lan stepped down as Chair of the Audit Committee although
he remained a member of this committee. Jon Di-Stefano was
appointed as Chair of the Audit Committee and as a member of the

Nomination and Governance Committee. All the above changes
took effect on 13 February 2019.

Subsequent to the year-end, Telford Homes (of which Jon Di-Stefano is
Chief Executive) was acquired by Trammell Crow Company whichisa
wholly owned subsidiary of CBRE Group Inc. ("CBRE"). CBRE isalarge
global organisation with various business divisions and Trammell Crow
Company is a separate entity from CBRE Limited, which acts as the
Company's valuers. The Board is satisfied that, notwithstanding this
business relationship, Jor's role as Chief Executive of Telford Homes
does not currently conflict with CBRE's role as the Company's valuers.
The Board has therefore agreed that it considers Jon to be independent.
To avoid the possibility of any potential or actual conflict of interest
in the future in matters relating to the valuation of the Company's assets,
Jon stepped down as chair and member of the Audit Committee on
18 November 2018 and lan Barlow resumed the role of chair on the
same date.

Roserary Boot has been appointed as a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Audit Committee and Sanjeev Sharma as

a member of the Remuneration Committee, all with effect from

23 May 2019. With effect from 1 January 2020, Jon Di-Stefano

will be appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee.

| would like to record my gratsful thanks to Duncan for his unfailing
support and vital contribution to the Group during his tenure as
a Director.

Biographical details of all Directors are included on the following
pages and our Board and Committee structure and membership
is set out in the corporate governance report. In line with the 2018
Code, the specific reasons why the contribution of each Director is
important to the Company’s long-term sustainable success are set
out in the notice of the 2020 Annual General Meeting, posted with
this Annual Report.

As a Board, we assess annually the skills, knowledge and experience
of the Directors and believe that the Board continues to demonstrate
a good spread of background and experience and to operate
effectively and in the best interest of the Company and its stakeholders.
An analysis of the Board’s skillset can be found in the Nomination
and Governance Committes report.

Our commitment to good governance extends beyond the boardroom
and is strongly supported by management and by the culture of the
Group. The Board is working on enhancing our engagement wath
employoes and a description of this process can be found in the
corporate govemance report.

All Directors will attend the AGM to be held on 6 February 2020 and
we look forward to meeting shareholders, who are allinvited to attend.
The meeting provides a productive forum with the opportunity to
present a brief update on the Group’s operations and to answer
questions by shareholders.

Each Board committee presents its own detailed report in the following
pages, including its main activities during the year and the key focus
areas for 2019/20.

Alan Dickinson
Non-Exeocutive Chairman
27 November 2019
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1 Committee key

A Audit Committes

NG Nomination and Governance Gommittee
R Remuneration Committes

EMC Executive Management Committee

Bold Committee chair

2 Tenureis as at 30 Septamber 2019.

1. Alan Dickinson NG
Non-Executive Chairman

Appointed to the Board Independent
22 May 2014 Yes, on appointment as

Appointed as Chairman Chairman

24 March 2016 Tenure
b years and 4 months

Experience

Alan has spent more than 50 years in banking, joining the
Rovyal Bank of Scotland in 1973, having started his carser
with Westminster Bank in 1968. A former chief executive of
RBS UK, he is an experienced retail and corporate banker
with a strong strategic focus and considerable experience
of the corporate world and the impact of current and past
economic cycles upon markets and market participants.

External appointments

a Alan is a non-executive direotor of Lioyds Banking Group
and a director of the Engjand and Wales Cricket Board.
Alan will be appointed as Senior Independent Director of
Lloyds Banking Group on 1 December 2019 and will assume
the additional role of deputy chairman in May 2020.

2. Nigel Hugill EMC
Chief Executive

Appointed to the Board Terure

22 May 2014 5years and 4 months

Key reaponsibilities

Nigel is responsible for the development and achievernent
of Group objectives and strategy, as approved by the
Board. He ensures effective communication with
investors and other stakeholders.

Experience

Nigsl has held numerous senior positions within the
property and regeneration industry over a career spanning
30 years, including serving as speoial policy adviser 1o

Sir Bob Kerslake at the HCA. He was chief executive officer of
Chelsfield pic from 1992 to 2005 and executive chairman of
Lend Lease Europe from 2006 to 2008, having joined the
company through the joint acquisition of the residential
developer Crosby. Nigel was a founding director, along with
Robin Butier, and executive chairman of Urban&Civic
Limited, which was established in 2002 and was a precursor
toUrban&Civic plc. He was presented with the Estates
Gazette Lifstime Achievement Award in 2016.

External appointments

Nigel is chairman of the Royal Shakespeare Company and
the respected urban think tank Centre for Cities. He is 00 chair
of the Finance and Estates Committee and is 2 member of
Council of the London School of Economics.
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3. Robin Butler EMC
Managing Director

Appointed to the Board Tenure

22 May 2014 S years and 4 meonths

Key responsibilities

Robin has averall responsibility for the operational
performance of the Group's business and tha management
of the regional offices.

Experience

Robin joined Elliott Bernerd in 1985 and in 1986 became

a founding director of Chelsfield plc and was a main board
director until the sale of the business in 2004. At Chelsfieid
he was involved in regeneration projects of metropelitan
scale and international significance, including Merry Hill,
Paddington Basin, White City {now Westfield} and Stratford
City in London, He joined Lend Leasa Europe in 2005 and
was appointed chief executive in 2006. Robin was a
founding diractor of Urban&Civie Limited with Nigel Hugil
in 2009, which was a precursor to Urban&Civic plc.

External appointments

Robin is on the board of the Royal Academy of Music
and is chairman of New Heritage, the regeneration
body for Dudley MBC.

4, David Wood EMC
Group Finance Director

Appointed to the Board Tenure

1.July 2016 3years and 3 months
Koy responsibilitios

David is responsitle for financial strategy, treasury,
management and statutory reporting and tax.

Experience

David joined Urban&Civio in April 2010, having previously
held senior finance positions at Minerva plc, Multiplex
Davelopments and Chelsfield ple. Maving qualified as

a chartered accountant with Deloitte & Touche, David
has over 20 years of experience in the real estate sector.

External appointments
None.

5. lan Barlow A/NG/R
Senior Independent Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board independent
1September 2016 Yes
Tenure

3vyears and 1 month
Experience
lan was senior partner (London) at KPMG until his retirementin
2008, Other previcus roles include chairmarnt of WSP Group plc
and Think London, the direct inward investment agency for
Londan, and board member of the London Development
Agency. |lan is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and of the Chartered Institute of Taxation.
He holds an MA in engineering science from the University
of Carbridge.

External appointments

lanis a non-executive dirsotor of The Brunner Investment
Trust ple, Foxtons Group plc and Goodwood Estate Company
Limited. lan will be appointed as chairman of Foxtons Group plc
at or before their AGM to be held in May 2020,




6. June Barnes A/NG/R

Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board
22 May 2014

Independent

Yes

Experience

June left the East Thames Group, a housing association,
in 2014 after serving as group chief executive for over 16 years.
Shetrained as a towh planner and is also a member of the
Charterex Institute of Housing, June has served on anumber
of boards and working groups over the years concerned
with the built environment and poverty. She was chair of the
London Sustainable Development Commissicn from 2006
to 2008 and, more recantly, vice chair of the National Housing
Federation, a board memiper of the Institute for Sustainability
and a member of the London Mayor’s Design Advisory Group.

Tenure
Syears and 4 months

External appointments

June is currently a trustee of the Building Research
Establishment, a member of the Jersey Architecture
Commission and the London Borough of Sutton Design
Panel, and a board member of the Hornsey Housing Trust.

7.Rosemary Boot AR
Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board Tenure
10 May 2019 4 months
Independent

Yas

Experience

Rosemary was the chief financial officer of Future Cities
Catapuit, one of a network of technology and innovation
centres established by the UK Government. She has also
worked at Circle Housing Group and was involved in
setting up the Government-owned Low Carbon Contracts
Company and Electricity Settlements Company. From 2007
1o 2011 she was group finance director of the Carbon Trust
and, prior to that, she worked for 16 years as an investment
banker primarily advising large listed UK companies on
mergers and acguisitions.

External appointments

Rosemary is a non-executive director of Impact
Healtheare REIT ple, a UK care home real estate
investmant trust that is listed on the London Stock
Exchange, and is a non-executive director of Southern
Water Services Limited. She is also a trustes of Green
Alliance, the environmental think tank and a director of
Chapter Zero, the organisation that seeks to raise
awareness of climate change as a business issue with
non-axacutive directors.

8. Jon Di-Stefano NG
Non-Executive Director

Appointed to the Board Tenure
18eptember 2017 2 years and 1 month
Independent

Yes

Expearience

Jon joined Telford Homes as financial director in October 2002
where hs built up a strong finance function and played asignificant ¢
role in establishing relationships with the group’s banking

partnars and institutional investors. Jon became chief

executive on 1 July 2011 and is responsible for the group’s

strategic diraction, the approach to risk management and

all other long-term business planning. He recently played

a key role in the group’s acquisition by CBRE. Prior to joining

Telford Homes, he had cne year with Mothercare following

five years with Arthur Andersen.

External appointments
Jon is chief executive of Telford Homes.

8
9. Sanjeev Sharma R
Non-Executive Director
Appointed to the Board Tenure
10 May 20189 4 months
Independent
Yes
Expetience
Sanjeev has been a director of M&G Real Estate since 200t e
and is chief property portfolio officer, where he has global
rasponsibility for portfolio management, operational teams,
governance and operational risk. Prior to joining the M&G
group, he was Head of Human Raesourcas at NatWest Life
Assurance Limited. Sanjeev is a fellow of the Chartered
Institute of Personnel and Davelopment.
External appointments
Sanjeev is chief property portfolio officer of M&G Real Estate.
10. Heather Williams EMC 1
Company Secretary
Appointed

26 August 20156

Attends all meetings of the Board and the Nomination

and Governance, Audit and Remuneration committees.

Key responsibilitice

Heather is responsible for the Group's corporate governance
and compliance with listed company requirements and Group
policies. She provides suppert and advice to the Chairman
and to the Board and its committees and is respensible for
the management of Board progedures.

Experience

Heather is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators with over 20 years’ experience of workingin the
company secretanial area. She was previously company secretary
to Petropaviovsk ple and to Helical plc. Her experience also includas
nearly nine years as an investment trust company secretary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate
governance report

Introduction
The 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code (the ‘2018 Code’) was
published in July 2018 and applies to financial periods commencing

on or aftor 1 January 2010. Ac explained in last yoar's Annual Report,

the Qompany is thorofore not roquired to roport on itc complianog with
the 2018 Code until the financial year ending 30 September 2020.
We undertock to seek early adoption and to report to shareholders
on compliance with the provisions set out in the 2018 Code.
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The Board considers the
Company's stakeholders in its
discussions and takes account
of their views and feedback.




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The governance section of the Annual Report (pages 66 to 129)
sets out the actions taken by the Board and its committees to work
towards full compliance with the 2018 Code.

Key steps taken Inclucle:

= Areview by each of the cormmittees of its terms of
reference and recommendation to the Board to adopt
revised terms of reference reflecting the provisions of the
2018 Code and the continued compliance with the 2016
edition of the Code. Subsequent adoption by the Board of a
revised schedule of matters reserved for the Board and
approval of the updated terms of reference of the
Nomination and Governance, Audit and
Remuneration committees,

A review of whistleblowing procedures and agreement
that the Board should receive whistleblowing reports at
each Board meeting. Previously, this review was the remit
of the Audit Commiittee. During the year, there were no
incidents of whistleblowing.

»

Analysis of the Group's stakeholder engagement and its
compliance with seotion 172 Companies Act 2008.

Agreement of the introduction of a mechanism for
engagement with employees. Work is ongoing in this area.

The Board has approved (on the recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee) amendments to the rules of the
Group's Performance Share Plan and Annual Bonus Plan
to reflect the provisions of the 2018 Code.

The Board considered and agreed a definition of the
workforoce to ensure consistent and fair treatment in
relation to Group policies and practices, whistieblowing,
and remuneration and relatad policies, including pension
This also ensures consistency in the investment in and
reward of the workforoe and engagement with the workforce.

Leadership structure

The Group has five independent Non-Executive Directors in addition
to the Chairmnan, Alan Dickinson, who was independent on appointment.
lan Barlow has been appointed as Senior Independent Non-Executive
Director, The Board has reviewed the composition of the Board
during the year and is of the opinion that the current Board and
committee structure works effectively and to the benefit of shareholders
and the Group as a whole. Given the nature and size of the business,
it believes that the balance of Executive and Non-Executive
Directors is appropriate and works efficiently.

The Code requires that the Board, its committees and individual
directors should demonstrate sufficient knowledge, skills, experience
ard independence to carry out their respective duties and responsibilities
effectively. Appointments to the Board are led by the Nomination
and Governance Committee and a description of the process is
found in the report of that committes.

The Board has estabiished three committess with a membership
of Non-Executive Directors: the Nomination and Governance,
Audit and Remuneration committees. The chair and members
of these committees are appointed by the Board, following
recommendation by the Nomination and Governance Committee
and consultation with the relevant committee chair. The committees
operate in accordance with their terms of reference which can
be found on our website. The Board receives a report from each
committee chair at the Board meeting following each committee
mesting. Minutes of committee meetings are circulated to the
Board following each meeting.

Information on the committees and reports of their respective
chairs are found on:

Nomination and Governance Committee
page 88

Audit Committee
page 89

Remuneration Committee
page 106

Operation of the Board

The Board held six scheduled meetings during the year. [n addition
to these meetings, the Board held a Strategy Day and a number of
unscheduled Board and committee meetings. These unscheduled
meetings were held to discuss ad hoc issues, routine or administrative
matters or matters of a time sensitive nature, The Chairman and the
Company Secretary, in conjunction with the Executive Directors,
identify any requirement for additional meetings. Ad hoc meetings
do not necessarily require full Board attendance but all Directors
aro given the opportunity to attend and to commont on the propooals,
with papers being circulated in advance. Directors are eéxpected to
attend all scheduled Board meetings, the annual Strategy Day, the
Annual General Mesting and all meetings of committees of which
they are a member. Afl Directors in office at the time attended the
AGM in February 2019 and the Board strategy meeting held in

July 2019, If a Director is unable to attend a meeting they have

the opportunity beforehand to discuss any agenda items with the
Chairman or with management, and their comments and views will
be recorded in discussions at the meeting. The attendance record
of the Directors at the scheduled Board meetingsis shown on the
following page. Attendance at committee meetings is shown in the
individual reports of the Nomination and Governance, Audit and
Rernuneration committees. Non-oommittee members attend committee
meetings by invitation and, where appropriate, members of the senior
management team are invited to give a presentation at Board meetings.

The Board congiders the Company's stakehaolders in its disoussions,
including shareholders and employees, and takes into account their
views and feedback.
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CORPORATE GQOVERNANCE REPORT CONTINUED

Board meetings attended/eligible to attend

Meetings attended/
eligibleto attend
Chairman
Alan Dickinson 6/6
Executive Directors
Nigel Hugill 8/6
Rabin Butler 6/6
David Wood 6/6
Non-Executive Directors
lan Barlow 6/6
June Barnes 6/6
Rosermary Boot 3/3
Jon Di-Stefano 6/6
Sanjeev Sharma 3/3

Anannual calendar of agenda items for the Board and all committees
is maintained by the Company Secretary and the process ensures
that all governance, regulatory and financial matters are reviewed
at appropriate intervals and that each committee complies with its
duties as set out in its terms of reference. The Company Secretary
discusses the Board agendas with the Chairman and this process
ensures that the papers circulated to the Board contain sufficient detail
to enable the Board to fulfil its duties. Board papers are circulated
electronically to all Directors in advance of each meeting to enable
them to fully consider the issues to be discussed. Meetings are led
by the Chairman, who encourages open discussions and debate.
Where appropriate, Non-Executive Directors constructively challenge
and guestion the Executive Directors on the progress and strategy
of the Group and provide support and experience, from an independent
perspective, to senior management. They offer guidance and advice
and ensure that management is accountable for its actions in managing
the Company's operations. Selected members of the Executive
Management Committee (EMC) attended Board meetings during
the year presenting on topics of relevanoce, thus increasing the range
of views and input available to the Non-Executive Directors.
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The Board has ultimate responsibility for the Group's risk management
and internal controls and carries out a review of the Group's risks at
every Board meeting. The Board recognises the dependence on
managerent in the internal controls and risk management of the
Group and the EMC is fully engaged in this process. At an operational
level, the Strategic Development Committee (SDC), Commercial
Development Committee (CDC) and Catesby Estates assess the
risks of each individual project and their reports and assessment
of risk are reviewed by the EMC, for upward reporting to the Board.
The Board has previously agreed that, due to the size and structure
of the Group, it does not recommend the appointment of a separate
risk committee and has instead allocated responsibility to the Audit
Committee. The Board has appointed Grant Thornton to fulfil the
internal audit function, a process overseen by the Audit Committes.
For further details see the risk review on pages 34 to 43 and the
report of the Audit Committee on pages 99 to 105.

During the year, the Chairman helg meetings with the Non-Executive
Directors without the Executive Directors present and the Senior
Independent Director maintained regular contact with the
Non-Executive Directors. The Board also meets regularly on an
informal basis to facilitate discussions on the Group's business

and the wider environment outside the more formal structure

of a Board meeting.

Directors’ conflicts of interest

Under the Companies Act 2008 (the ‘Act’), Directors are subject
to a statutory duty to avoid a situation where they have, or can have,
a direct or indirect interest that conflicts, or may possibly conflict,
with the interests of the Company. As is permissible under the Act,
the Company's Articles of Association aliow the Board to consider
and, ifit sees fit, to authorise situations where a Director has an
interest that conflicts, or may possibly conflict, with the interests
of the Company. Directors are required to notify the Company under
an established procedura as soon as they become aware of any
situation that could result in a conflict or potential conflict of interest.
Any conflicts or potential conflicts are noted at each Board mesting
and a register of conflicts is maintained by the Company Secretary.
The Board considers these procedures to be working effectively.

The Board has considered the position of Jon Di-Stefano following
the acquisition of Telford Homes by Trammell Crow Company,

a wholly owned subsidiary of CBRE Group Inc. (“CBRE™) andis
satisfied that Jon's role as Chief Executive of Telford Homes does
not currently conflict with CBRE's role as the Company’s valuers.
This is further explained on page 67.




The Board has ultimate responsibility for
the Group's risk management and internal
controls and carries out a review of the
Groups risks at every Board meeting.

The Board recognises the importance
and value of the involvement of management
in the internal controls and risk management
of the Group. Management throughout the
Group is fully engaged in this process.

Board information

All Directors have access to the advice and support of a professionally
qualified and experienced Company Secretary, who works with the
Chairman to ensure that adequate information is made available to
the Board and its committees. The Company Secretary is responsible
for corporate govemance, planning the agendas for the annual cycle
of Board and Committes meetings and maintaining Group policies,
processes and procedures that ensure the effective and efficient
functioning of the Board and its committees. The appointment or
removal of the Company Secretary is subject to Board approval.

Prior to all Board and committee meetings, Directors receive
agendas and supporting papers, which contain market, property,
financial, governance and risk updates together with any other
papers relating to specific aganda items as required. Presentations
and verbal updates are also given at each Board meeting and open
discussions take piace on all agenda topics. In between scheduled
Board meetings, ad hoc and transactional papers are circulated

to Directors to allow appropriate review and consideration. There
is open communication between Non-Executive and Executive
Directors and the wider workforce and objective and constructive
chalienge by the Non-Executive Directors is welcomed. Directors
are able to make enquiries or requests for further information from
management. The Company Secretary facilitates professional
development and ensures compliance with Board, regulatory

and corporate governance procedures.

Minutes of all Board and committee meetings, including ad hoc
meetings, are circulated to all Directors after sach meeting and
are included in the following Board pack, providing the opportunity
for review and for the Board to confirm that they accurately reflect
the discussions heid and the decisions taken, prior to signature by
the chair of that meeting. Committee chairs also provide a verbal
update to the Board on matters discussed at every committee
meeting. This process also enables full Board discussion of any
items of business as required. A detailed action list is circulated
following each meeting and the Company Secretary co-ordinates
the agendas and Board papers to ensure that management has
dealt with all outstanding action points, the progress of which is
reviewed at each subsequent meeting.

If requested, Directors are able to seek any further information or
take independent professional advice that they may require in the
performance of their duties, at the expense of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT CONTINUED

Division of responsibilities

The key responsibilities are summarised below

There is a division of responsibilities of the Board and its
committeas and of the Chairman, Senior Independent
Director and executive management. The Board has adopted
a formal scheduie of matters reserved for its decision and,

Board of Directors

Key responsibilities:

whilst a division in responsibilities between the Board and - Leadership and direction - satting the

its committees is important, it is vital that the Board retains Company's purposs, values, strategy, objectives
control of key decisions. The Board has delegated specific and standards and aligning with culture

areas of responsibility to the Nomination and Governange, = Achisvernent of the long-term sustainable
Audit, Rermuneration and Executive Management committees. sucosss of the Company, generating value for,
Each of these committees has the authority to make decisions and balancing tha interests between, its

in accordance with its terms of referance, which ars reviewed shareholders, employses and other stakeholders
on an annual basis to take into account any changes to * Health and safety management and reporting

regulations and/or best practice. The terms of reference
of all committees and the schedule of matters reserved for
the Board have been updated during the year and now reflect

the provisions of the 2018 Code. Any amendmentsto a
committea’s terms of reference are subject to Board approval.

Committoes

Nomination and Governance Committee

Key responsibilities:
BOARD « Review of the structure, size and composition
of the Board and its committees
T T T = Oversight of succession planning for the
Board and senior management
Nomination and ) . .
Audit Remuneration . . » Recruitment and appointment process
Governance - ; Alan Diokinson {Chair) )
. Committea Committee for new Directors
Committee lan Barlow !
June Barnes « Tooversee the annual Board evaluation
Jon Di-Stefano + Develop and review the Group's
’ Executive Management Committee governance framework
+ To oversee and monitor all matters
T T T relating to corporate governance
Strategic Commercial
Development Development %::::":
C ittee Committ:
omm mittes Executive Management Committee

Robin Butler {Chair)
Executive Directors
Members of the seniof management team

Read more on page 77

Strategic Development Committee

Key responsibilities
+ Ovarsight and reporting on infrastructure projects
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= Maintenance of effective risk management
and intermal control systems

« Approval of significant acquisitions
and disposals

= Qvarall financial performance of the Group

» Approval of interim and annual
financial statements

» Dividend policy
» Corporate governance

» Environmental and sustainability policies

Approval of procedures for the detection
of fraud and the prevention of bribery, and
review of the Group's whistieblowing policy
and related reporting

Appraisal of other core Group policies

Understanding of the views of stakeholders
and consideration of their interests and
the matters set out in section 172 of the
Companies Act 2008 in Board discussions
and decision making

+ Review of the processes for effective
engagemnaent with the warkforce,
shareholders and other stakeholders

= To assess and monitor culture and to
ansure that policies, practices and
behaviour throughout the Group are
consistent with the Company's culture
and values and supportitslong-term
sustainable success

Audit Committee Remuneration Committee
Key responsibilities: Key responsibilities:
» Finanoial reporting and the integrity » Review and recommendation to the Board of
of the financial statements the remuneration policy for Executive Directors
« Risk management + Review of the structure of remuneration
+ Tooversee and menitor internal for senior management
controls and the work of internal audit . . ine th i
an Bk e opoSTOTNK dnoBamestonan © PTTISle eneoceane e
June Barmes . Super\nmon| ofthe relationship with lan Barlow o s:;nior e er:nent pany ry
Rosemary Boot the external auditor Rosemary Boot A
Sanjeev Sharma « Review the Executive Directors' objectives
and achievements
+ Review workforce remuneration and related
policies and engagemsent with the workforce
on remuneration matters
Key responsibilitios: » Implamantation of all Group policies and legislation where
« Implementation of the Group strategy determined by the Board applicable throughout the Group
« Oversight of the day to day management of the Group and its « Qversight of the Group's HR policies, office management

employees, including the development, progress and risk

management of projects
» Effective health and safety management

anc workforce issues

+ Owverview of Group communications

Commerclal Development Commkttee

Key responsibilities

« Qversight and reporting on commerciat projects

Key responsibilities

+ Oversight and reporting on the Group's land promation business

Annual Report and Accounts 2019 — Urban&Civic plc
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT CONTINUED

Division of responsibilities continued

Chairman - Alan Dickinson
Key responsibilities:
* Leadership of the Board

Ensure constructive communication between
Executive and Non-Executive Directors

-

Ensure appropriate delegation of authority
from Board to management

Promotion of high standards
of corporate governange

.

Ensure that new Directors participate in an
appropriate induction programme and that the
ongoing development needs of the Directors
aremet

Ensure that the performance of the Board,
committees and individual Directors is
assessed at least annually

* Representation of the Company to stakeholders
and communigation with shareholders

Senior Independent Director — lan Barlow
Key responsibilities:
* Alternative point of contact for investors
* Intermediary between the Chairman
and the other Directeors
*+ Sounding board for the Chairman
on Board matters

+ Tolead the Chairman’s annual
performance appraisal

Chief Executive ~ Nigel Hugill
Key responsibilities:
* Leadership of the Company

+ Development and achievement of the Group's
objectives and strategy

ldentification of acquisitions and disposals of
rmajor projects and new business oppartunities

Effective implementation of Board decisions

Representation of the Company to
stakeholders and communication
with shareholders

Managing Director - Robin Butler
Key responsibilities:
* Leadership of the Company

* Development and achievement of the Group's
objectives and strategy

Review of the operational performance of the
Group's business

Identification of acquisitions and disposals of
major projects and new business opportunities

+ Day to day responsibility for risk management
and internal controls

* HR policies and management

Finance Director - David Wood

Key responsibilities:

* Review of the operational performance of the
Group's business

* Day to day responsibility for risk management
and internal controls

* Financial strategy and management, including
budget, banking and finance

T8 Urban&Civic plc — Annual Report and Accounts 2018

Company Secretary — Heather Williams
Key responsibilities:
= Secretary to the Board and its committees

* Advice on corporate governance
and regulatory matters

* Implementation of Group policies
and procedures

* Management of Board
and committee procedures

* Inductions for new Directors




Executive Management Committee

Robin Butlar (Managing Director} {Chair}
Nigel Hugill {Chief Executive)
David Wood (Group Finance Director)

Rebecca Britton (Communities, Communications
and Partnerghips Manager)

Paul Brogklehurst (Chief Executive - Catesby)

Richard Coppell (Development Director - Strategic Land)
Richard Hapworth (Director of Project Management)
Tim Leathes (Development Director - Strategic Land)
Philip Leach (Property Director - Commercial)

David Marris (Planning Director - Catesby)

Myron Osborne (Land and Developrment
Dirsctor - Catesby)

James Scott (Director of Planning and Communication)
Nigel Wakefield (Development Director - Strategic Land)
Heather Williams {Company Secretary)

Role

The EMC was established with the key aim of overseeing the
implementation of Board strategy and policies and to provide feedback
and recommendations from the executive tearn and the workforce
to the Board. The EMC is responsible to the Board and the Chair

of the EMC reports to the Board at each meeting, The Board has
access to all EMC papers and minutes. The EMC's role is to support
the Board in the performance of its duties within the bounds of its
authority, in areas such as the development and implementation

of strategy, operational plans, policies, procedures and budgsts, health
and safety and the monitoring of operating and financial performance
against targets, chjectives and key performance indicators set by the
Board. The EMC will examine all investments, realisations and major
capital expenditure proposals prior to recommendation io the Board,
and is responsible for optimising the aliocation and adequacy of the
Group's resources. The EMC assesses, controls and monitors risk
and internal controls and health and safety reporting. The EMC also
develops and oversees HR policies and procedures and the workforce
remuneration policy (below Board level). During the year, the EMC met
six times, with meetings scheduled shortly before Board meetings,
providing relevant and current comment to the Board on any matters
of significance. Non-Exsecutive Directors attend EMC meetingsona
rotational basis which helps to ensure that the Board maintains a good
understanding of management and staff views onissues ofimportance.

The management committee structure ensures a strong working
relationship between the Board and the executive management team
and has provided senior management with a structured forum to
address a range of issues.

Three other committees report to the EMC: the Strategic
Development Committee, the Commercial Development
Committee and Catesby Estates.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT CONTINUED

Main activities of the Board
during the year ended
30 September 2019

Strategy

A Strategy Day was held in July 2018 and provided the Board with an
in-depth review and discussion of Group strategy. This annual forum
provides the opportunity for Non-Executive Directors to share their
expertise and experience and to provide guidance and an independent
perspective to the direction of the business.

Presentations to the Board by management and iterns discussed included
the businass plan, financial plan, capital allocation, risk review, shareholder
base and share price performance.

8

Operations

= Reports and presentations from Executive Directors and sanior
management at every Board meeting covering the progress of
aach of the Group’s developments.

+ Periodic recommendations and risk assessment by management
for site acquisitions requiring Board approval.

Review of health and safety reports covering the Group's
strategio and commarcial sites and the Group's offices.

Site visits by Non-Executive Directors.

Review of the procadures in place for credit check processes
for counterparties.

Financial
» Approval of the Report and Accounts and preliminary
announcement of results for the year ended 30 September 2018,

« Approval of interim results for the six months to 31 March 2019,
Approval of Group loan facilities.

= Approval of business ptan and budget for 2018/18.
= Review at every Board meeting of:
- budget/oash fiow;

- the Group's borrowing facilities in relation to current strategioc
foracasts; and

- loan covanant compliance.




Risk

+ Atevery Board meeting, reports are reviewsed on:

The Group's risk identification, management and mitigation process;

Project risks for each of the Group's developments;
Internal controls reports;
GDPR monitoring.

Governance

+ Adoption of the 2018 Code and monitoring of actions taken to
ensure compliance,

« Review of the cutcomes and resulting actions arising from the 2018
Board evaluation.

= Discussion on the mechanism for employee engagement including

updates of the progress in establishing an emplayee advisory group.

+ Extension of the remit of the Nomination Committee to include
responsibility for governance.

+ Review of any actual or potential conflicts of interest of Directors
at every meeting,

= Approval of the process for the 2019 Beard evaluation.

« Approval of updated terms of reference of all committees and the
schedule of matters reserved for the Board, in ling with 2018 Code.

Policy and procedures
» Annual review and approval of the Group’s modern slavery
and human trafficking staternent.

« Sustainability review.

» Review of Group policies:

Anti-corruption and bribary policy.
Gifts and haspitality policy.
Diversity policy.

Equal opportunities policy.
Charitable donations policy.

Directors
» Appointment of Rosemary Boot and Sanjeev Sharma
to the Board.

« Appointment of new Senior Independent Director.

Review of the membership of all Board committees.

+ Review of Non-Executive Directors' fees.

+ Consideration of each Director's commitment to and effectiveness
in their role and recommenclation for re-election at the AGM.

« Training and development of Directors on relevant argas,

including the continuing obligations and responsibilities
of directors under a premium listing.

Sharehoiders
» Atevery Board meeting a major sharaholder analysis
report is reviewed. The Board also reviews feedback
from any investor meetings.
+ Approval of any final and interim dividend proposais.
The Company operates a dividend reinvestment scheame
allowing cash dividends to be automatically reinvested as shares.

Approval of the transfer of listing category of ordinary shares
from the standard to premium listing segment of the Official
List of the FCA.

+ Annual General Mesting held in February.

Key actlvities of the Board In 2018/19

+ Appointment of two new independent Non-Executive Directors.
* Adoption of the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code.

* |n depth review of Group Strategy.

* Approval of financial results for the year ended
30 September 2018 and the half year ended 31 March 2019

* Transfer of listing category of ordinary shares from standard
to premium listing segment of the Official List of the FCA.

* Approval of new Group loan facilities.

Key focus areas for 2019/20

Implementation of strategic priorities.

Development of succession plans of the Board
and senior management.

Sustainahility review.

Continued focus on risk managerment and internal audit review.

Raview of the Directors’ remuneration policy.

Ongoing work towards full compliance with the 2018 UK
Corporate Governance Code.

Continued programme of communication and interaction
with stakeholders.

.

Employee engagement.

Progress work on culture.



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT CONTINUED

How the Board engages to deliver value

The long-term success of our business is critically dependent on the way we work with a large
number of important stakeholders. We aim to create value for our stakeholders every day.
The table overleaf sets out our focus on the key relationships and shows how we engage with
stakeholder groups to oonsider the intorosts of stalkehelders in our deeision making process

and to help inform our strategy and delivery.

Employees
Read more on
pages 8B3to 85

Shareholders
* Investment funds
« Private investors

Government

and regulators

* Loocal authorities

¢  Government
departments

Homes England

Customers
*  Housebuilders
* Businesses

* Homeowners

Local communities
* Individuals

*  Community groups
* Local businesses

*  Homeowners

Suppliers and contractors
* Principal contractors
* Consultants

*  Utility companias

Partners

* Local autherities
* | anded estates
+  Government departments
* Homes England
Investment funds
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Key stakeholder relationships:
Shargholders Custamers Suppliers & contractors | Partners Qther stakshoiders
What do wowant fromthem? | What do we want from them? | What dowe want from them? | What dowe want fromthem? ;| What do we want from them?
+ Trust + Trust « Trust = Trust « Trust
« Confidence » Quality + Flexibility « Understand what we do » Understand what we do
+ Understand what we do = Value + Reliakility — consistenoy » Investment = Support
+ Valye how we dait + Repeat business + Sustainable approach » Freedom to operate ¢ Investment
+ Increase investment « Diversity « Safe environment » More opportunities « Recommendation
+ Grow investor base « Sustainable approach » Recommendation + Jobs/skills
« Recommendation
What do they want from us? | What do they want fromus? | What do they want from us? | What do they want fromus? | What do they want from ug?
+ NAV growth « Serviced fand supply + Certainty of payment « Transparency « Delivery
» Prafit growth = Quality + Regularity of work = Timely and accurate » Quality
+ ESGileadership « Site marketing + Flaxible procurernent reporting + Timely and accurate
» Transparenoy « Jobs and skills support « Cost control and efficient reporting
» Timely and accurate + Health and safety support budgsting + Long-term alignment
reporting + Equality » Delivery « Jobsand skills
+ Olear strategy + Quality «  Meaningful community
and exacution + Legacy engagement

= Dividends

Our engagement with stakeholders:

= Rscogrition

Koy staksholder How we engaged with them
Shareholders * Annual Report * RNS announcements
= Strategic site brochure * Site tours
* Investor presentations * Conference participation
* Website * Press
Employees * Internal communications * Open door culture
Read more on pages 83to 86 * Engagement with * |_earning and development
Non-Executive Directors * All staff events
Customers * Site-specific branding * Websites
* Sales information * On-site service and consortia meetings
* Press * Consistency of contractual arrangements
Suppllers and contractors * Framework arrangements * Two-stage procurement
* Regular meetings * Negotiation
+ Client points of contact
Partners * Site-specific reporting and Board = Annual Report
meetings * Strategic site brochure
* Site tours * Informal feedback
Local communities * Project work * Newsletters
* Community engagement * Press
Government and regulators * Consultations * Statutory processes
* Industry meetings * Informal dialogue
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT CONTINUED

| How the Board engages to deliver value continued

| CASE STUDY
| SME Housebullder Conference

‘ Homes England, Savills and Urban&Civic brought a group of SME

| housebuilders together from across the Midlands and South of England
in May at Houlton, to discuss the SME's role in addressing housing need
and to increase the diversity of delivery on large scale developments.

context, focusing particularly on the challenges and opportunities faced
by the sector. Homes England described its clear support via the Home
Building Fund which is responding to the constraints within the SME
sector by providing targeted development finance. Urban&Civic then
explained its delivery model and how its approach to providing service
land parcels is reducing barriers to entry for SMEs on its large scale sites.

|
|
\
\
| Savills set the scene through the broad housing market and delivery
|
\
|
|

Family owned company, Francis Jackson Homes, are already on site at
Urban&Civic owned Priors Hall in Corby. Managing Director Nick Jackson
attended the event and said; “Access to land and finance continue to be
the main constraints faced in the market for many SME builders and it is
encouraging to see U&C and Homes England addressing that. The U&C
model de-risks land and provides a really strong development platform
for us to deliver our high quality product alongside national house builders.
Combined with the injection of cash through Homes England to accelerate
infrastructure on these sites, we are collectively creating really attractive
and popular places to live.”

CASE STUDY
US&.C take on This Morning in Manchester

Employee engagement was overhauled in 2019 with a new format for the
annual staff conference where members of the team took on the roles of
daytime talk show hosts, aimed at creating and presenting more engaging
content. The day featured a mix of ong-on-one in-depth interviews,
entertaining activities with audience participation and fun segments linking
the U&C business to food, fashion and fitness. Refreshingly informative, the
agenda covered business growth, culture and values, and an insight into
our gavernance as well as features on HR, Learning and Development

and Internal Communications, and contextual analysis of the political

and economic landscape and our navigation through this. We even had

a cooking session on how to bake the Master Developer way. We piloted
the use of polling app Slido to provide us with real time audience feedback,
insight and gquestions. The annual conference ranked one of the most
influential and powerful tools for internal communications in an employee
survey in February 2019, driving the continued investment into innovating
and growing this valuable engagement tool for the business. The conference
forms a key part of our internal communications strategy for 2020.
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Employee engagement

We aim to maintain an open, diverse and inclusive working environment and
we encourage strong links between the workforce, management and the Board.
Examples of how we develop and engage with our employees are below.

Employee Internal

voice

EMC feedback )
/

N -

Inductionflearning \\ & &

and development

—. -

—

o

/

Engagement with
the Board

Employee voice

The Board and management, by consuitation with
employees, are in the process of assessing the most
appropriate approach for engagement with the workforce
to ensure that the Directors fully understand and appreciate
their views and feedback on a variety of matters, including
issues such as employment policies, practices and
conditions, and to put in place a structure to promote

an open and transparent oulture, buikding on our existing
mechanisms. This will supplement our existing channels
o ensure that employees’ views are heard at Board level.
Working group mestings have been held with members
of staff from a range of business streams and office
locations and our current intention is to establish a
waorkforce engagement forum at which any matters

communications

K o
Oyee ong2®
\\\ /

Remuneration
and benefits

Anti-bribery/
Whistleblowing

Open door
culture

affecting the workforce can be discussed for onward
engagement with the Board and/or relevant Board
committees. No members of senior management will
be appeinted to this panel to ensure open debate of a
range of topics or matters of concern, dictated by staff
requests. The Board will review the effectiveness of this
structure and, if it is felt that a different approach may
be more suitable, will review alternative options. We will
report back further on the progress of our engagement
with the workforce in next year's report. Methods by which
we already engage with and support the workforce

are set out below, demonstrating our broader
employee engagement.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT CONTINUED

Employee engagement continued

Internal communications

Open door culture

The growth of our business, in both employes numbers
and offioe locations, means that internal communications
is an evolving challenge to management. We hold an
annual staff offsite meeting at which all employees
attend for a variety of presentations and interactive
activities. The event is led by employees, who drive the
format and take part in the presentations. This provides
useful two-way feedback between the workforce and
management on a range of issues. Management takes
forward key findings and recommendations arising from
these lively discussions, which provide a valuable means
of communicating employees’ views. All employees are
invited to join the live webcast of the Company’s interim
and annual results presentation and we also publish a
regular newsletter which is circulated internally, updating

In line with the Bribery Act 2010, the Group has in place
written policies on avoiding and not tolerating bribery or
corruption. The Board has approved an anti-corruption
and bribery policy, a gifts and hospitality policy and a
whistleblowing policy, which have been circulated to

all Directors and employees. The anti-corruption and
bribery policy and whistleblowing policy are also found
on our website. Allemployees are provided with copies
of these policies on joining the Group and are required
to undertake online training at the commencement of
amployment and annually thereafter. They are required
to confirm in writing, on an annual basis, that they have
complied with the anti-corruption and bribery pclicy
and gifts and hospitality policy throughout the year.
The Audit Committee reviews, on a six-monthly basis,

All our offices are open plan, which creates
an opportunity for open discussion, effective
communication and direct feedback from
employees to management.
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on strategic, operational and employment issues.

Woe have carried out two employee surveys during the
year, one on internal communications and one on
perceptions of the Group’s core values. We introduced
anew facility this year to enabile staff at our offices to
artend internal mesetings via video conference and by
a desktop link. This was in direct response to a request
communioated through the results of the internal
communications survey. The impact of this facility is
that Group employees across all our offices can now
feel more connected to each other and can attend
meetings without the need to travel to one central
location. This facilitates improved communication
between offices and therefore enables the workforce
to be more informed about the business.

Antl-corruption and bribery and whistleblowing procedures

declarations made by Directors and employees under
the Group's gifts and hospitality policy above an agreed
threshold. Any non-compliance is reported to the Board.
There were no such matters reported during the year.

Under the whistleblowing policy, Directors, management,
employees and external stakeholders can reportin
oconfidence any concerns they may have of malpractice,
financial irregularity or breaches of any Group procedures.
During the year, the respeonsibility for the review of
anti-bribery and whistleblowing reports (submitted by
management) moved from the Audit Committee to the
Board, in line with the 2018 Code and reports are
reviewed at each Board meeting. No issues were
reported during the year under review.

Remuneration and benefits

The Remuneration Commitiee oversees

all Group remuneration and benefits policies
and, with the assistance of the HR Manager,
considers employee opinions and feedback
on remuneration policies and processes. We
consider external market data and seek to
ensure that cur employees are competitively
rewarded. Staff have access to an Employee
Asgsistance Programme providing confidential
advice and support.




Engagement with the Board

Good communication with employees is key to our
business and Non-Executive Directors maintain ongoing
contact by regular site visits and informal meetings at
the Group offices, both in London and at our regional
offices. They are encouraged to spend time with staff
in the absence of the Executive Directors, which has
strengthened the relationship with senior management and
contributed to a greater understanding of Group oulture
and of issues affecting the workforoe. Non-Executive
Directors attend, on a rotational basis, meetings of the
EMGC at which views of employees and issues affecting
them are discussed.

Induction/learning and development

The Group's polioy is to invest in its workforoe and we
actively encourage all employees in the broadening

of their skills and experience. An internal learning and
development fungtion has been established to oversee
and co-ordinate the training and personal development
of employees. During the year we appointed an HR Manager
whao works closely with this function. We recognise the
value of our pecple and seek to develop that asset.
Employees are actively encouraged to develop in their
role and to use their talents and skills across the organisation.
Several of our employees volunteer in roles outside the
organisation enabling them to utilise their knowledge to
the benefit of others and to gain experience elsewhere.
This is viewed as a useful and incentivising tool for
development. A register of all such roles is maintained
by the Company Secretary to ensure that no conflicts
ofinterest or undue time demands are placed on employees.

EMC feadback

Members of senior management are regularly invited to
attend Board meetings, enhancing the open dialogue
between Non-Executive Directors and those below
Board level.

The Board also received a report on the outcome

of the employee surveys conducted during the year
and on the feedback from the staff offsite meeting.
The report included the actions proposed and/or taken
by management in direct response to the feedback.

Newly appointed employeess attend a presentation by
Executive Directors and senicr management, introducing
them to the Group, covering areas suoch as the history
and structure of the Group’s business, vision and values,
operations and Group policies and processes. This forms
part of a wider induction process whichis led by the
learning and development function and the individual's
line manager.

During the year, we have enhanced our performance
review system by introducing a more formalised process.

Exit interviews take place with all leavers and an annual
report is made to the Remuneration Committee on any
significant issues or trends.

The EMC has the direct responsibility for seeking employee views and feadback on areas such as the performance
review and annual compensation review processes and the employment and governance policies of the Group.
The EMG, through its Chair, reports to the Board on these issues at each Board meeting. The Board also reviews the
minutes of each EMC meeting. The establishment of an employee advisory group, the progress of which is expected
over the coming year, will change the role of the EMC in relation to employee feedback. We will report back further

next year.
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CORPORATE QOVERNANCE REPORT CONTINUED

Relations with shareholders

Communication with existing and potential shareholders is given

a high priority by the Board, which believes that understanding

the views of sharehaciders is key to the success of the Company.
The Chairman, the Chief Executive and the Finance Director are
the Group’s principal representatives and hold meetings with investors,
analysts and other interested parties throughout the year to
communicate the Company's strategy and performance. lan Barlow,
as Senior Independent Non-Executive Director, is available to meet
with shareholders at their request to discuss any issues or concerns
they have or, if other communication channels fail, to resolve queries
raised. He is willing to hold meetings with shareholders whenever
requested. The chairs of each commiitee are also available to
discuss with sharsholders any matters relating to their responsibility.
No such requests were received from shareholders during the year.

Calendar of events

At each Board meeting, the Board reviews a report on the Company's
major shareholders and feedback from any meetings with investors
and analysts. This enables Directors to develop a strong understanding
ofthe views of the Company's major investors. Shareholder engagement
and communication occur throughout the financial year, including
presentaticns, one-to-one meetings, conferences and site visits.
The Group's website is an important source of information, enabling
shareholders to keep up to date with the Company's activities.
Regulatory announcements made by the Company are maintained
on the website which also contains all other material information
including Annual Repaorts and share price information. A live webcast
of the presentation of the Group's half and full year resuits is broadcast,
enabling shareholders to raise questions directly with the Chairman
and Executive Directors.

Investor Relations activity for the financial year ended 30 September 2018

October 2018 —

November/December 2018 —

* Roadshow - meetings with investers and analysts
following the announcemsnt of the preliminary resuits

February 2019

* Annual General Meeting

* Payment of 2018 final dividend of 2.2p per share
« Strategic sites tour with investors

April 2018

* Transfer of the listing category of the Company's
ordinary shares from a Standard Listingto a
Premium Listing on the Official List of the FCA

May/fJune 2019
* Roadshow - meetings with investors and analysts
following the announcement of the half year results

August 2019
* Strategic sites tour with investors and analysts

* Meetings with investors
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— November 2018
* Publication of preliminary results
* Meetings with investors

— January 2019
= Meetings with investors

— March 2019
= Strategic sites tour with investors

— May 2018
* Publication of half year results

F— «July 2019
* Payment of 2019 interim dividend of 14p per share
* Strategic sites tour with investors and analysts
* Meetings with investors

— September 2019




CASE STUDY
Seeingis believing

During the course of the year we have run many stakeholder
tours around our sites for a wide range of investors, Homes
England, government departments, local authorities and
community groups, These tours allow stakeholders to
experience the scale and quality of the Master Daveloper
delivery in person and allow us to explain the various
ingredients that go into creating fully serviced fand parcels.
They form an esgential part of our external outreach and
wider knowledge sharing, ensuring we Gan promote
innovation and best practice. Seeing really is believing when
operating across a large scale strategic site.

Annual General Meeting

The Company's Annual General Meeting provides an opportunity
for shareholders to raise any questions or points of concern with
Directors and to vote on the resolutions proposed. At the 2020
AGM, to be held on 6 February 2020 at 1000 a.m. at The Savile
Ciub, 89 Brook Street, London WIK 4ER, it is intended that all
resolutions will be voted on by pell. This will allow more time for
shareholders attending to raise any concerns and to ask questions.
Details of the number of proxy votes for, against and withheld on
each resolution will be disclosed at the meeting and will be posted
on the website after the meeting,

The Board has adopted the polioy that all Directors will be subject
to annual reappointment by shareholders. Biographies of Directors
ara on pages 68 and 69 and separate resolutions relating to their
election or re-election are contained in the notice of meeting for
the 2020 AGM, circulated with this Annual Report.

The Company will give shareholders at least 20 working days'
notice of Annual General Mestings. Details of the resolutions to be
proposed at the 2020 AGM can be found in the notice of meeting,

Al resolutions at the 2019 AGM were passed with at least 80 per cent
of votes in favour. If 20 per cent or more of votes are cast against a
resolution at the 2020 AGM, we will explain what actions we intend
to take 1o understand the reasons behind the result.

All Birectors will attend the 2020 AGM and welcome the
opportunity to meet shareholders.

Annual Report and Accounts

The Board has considered the Group's Annual Report and Accounts
for the year ended 30 September 2018 and, taking account of the
recommendations of the Audit Committee, is satisfied that taken
as a wholeit is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
necessary information for sharsholders to assess the Group's
performance, business model and strategy.

Heather Williams
Company Secretary
27 Novermnber 2019
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COMPOSITION, SUCCESSION
AND EVALUATION

Committee members

Alan Dickinson (Chair)
June Barnes

lan Barlow

Jon Di-Stefano

Key activities in 2018/19

* Change in the remit of the Cornmittee

* Appointment of two new independent
Non-Executive Directors

* Ongoing review of succession plans for the Board
and Senior Management

= Review of Board committee membership

+ Approval of updated diversity policy and
equal opportunities policy

Key focus areas for 2019/20

* Review and action the results of the 2019
Board evaluation

+ Continued review of succession plan for the
Board and identification of clear succession
plan for the Chair

* Foous on sucecession plans for
senior management

+ Monitor compliance with the diversity
and equal opportunities policies

Theterms of reference of the Nomination and Governance
Cormmittee are on the Company's website:
www.urbanandoivic.com/about-usfoorporate-governance/
nomination-governance-committes/
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Woe seek to ensure effective succession
planning and the development of a diverse
Board. We encourage diversity throughout
the Group.

Alan Dickinson
Chair of the Nomination and Governance Committee

Nomination and
Governance
Commiittee report

Dear Shareholder,

| am pleased to present the report of the Nomination and
Governance Committee dsscribing our work in the year ended
30 September 2019,

Introduction

During the year, the Nomination Committee was renamed the
Nomination and Governance Committee. This committes retains

all the duties and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee,
including regular review of the size, structure and composition of the
Board and its committees, review of the adequacy of succession
planning of the Board and senior management, leading the process
for new appointments to the Board, cversesing a diverse pipeline
for succoession, and leading the Board evaluation process. In addition,
the Committee will be responsible for reviewing and monitoring
compliance with relevant corporate governance rukes and guidelines,
such as the UK Corporate Governance Code, and guidelines issued
by institutional investor bedies. The Committee is responsible for
the ongoing development and review of the Group's governancs
framework and policies, designed to promote proper governance
within the Group. Such compliance will be reviewed at lsast annually.
Uttimate approval of Group policies and governance matters remains
with the Board but this Committes will oversee and, where appropriate,
make recommendations relating to governance arrangements across
the Group. The Committee is alsc responsible for review of the
diversity and equal opportunities policies in place and for ensuring
that these policies are conveyed throughout the Group in relation

to recruitment, retention, development and succession planning,




During the year

During the year, the Committee undertook a review of Board and Committee membership following the retirement of Duncan Hunter
from the Board and in light of ongoing succession planning, taking into account the requirernents of UK Gorporate Governance
guidelines. A summary of Board changes that took place during the year is below:

13 February 2019 10 May 2019

lan Barlow was appointed as Senicr Rosemary Boot and Sanjeev Sharma

Independent Non-Executive Director were appointed as independent

and stepped down as Chair of the Non-Executive Directors

Audit Committes
13 February 2019 13 February 2019 23 May 2019
Duncan Hunter, Senior Jon Di-Stefano was appointed Rosermnary Boot and Sanjeev
Independent Non-Executive as Chair of the Audit Cornmittee Sharma were appointed as
Director and member of the and member of the Nomination members of the Remuneration
Nomination, Audit and and Governance Committeg' Committee; Rosemary Boot was
Remuneration Committees, appointed as a member of the
rasigned from the Board Audit Committee

1. Subsequent tothe year end, on 18 Navermnber 2018, Jon Di-Stefanc stepped down as member and chair of the Audit Committee and lan Barlow resumed the role of chair, as
explained further on page 67.

The Committee also agreed the approach for the 2019 Board evaluation, as described later in this report. The terms of reference
of the Committes were reviewed during the year and amended to reflect the revised remit of the Committee and to ensure compliance
with best practice guidelines.

Membership and meetings
On 13 February 2019, Jon Di-Stefanc was appointed as a member of the Committee. Duncan Hunter resigned as a Non-Executive Director
and member of the Committee on the same date. There were no other changes to the Committee membership during the year.

Attendance by the members of the Committee at the five scheduled meetings held during the year ended 30 September 2019 is shown below:

Data of appointment Committea tenure ag at Meetings attended/

Independent to the Committee 30 September 2019 eligible to attend

Alan Dickinson Chair Yes' 22/0614 B years 4 months b/6
lan Barlow Member Yes 01/09/16 3years1month 6/
June Barnes Member Yes 22/06/14 B years 4 months 6/5
Jon Di-Stefano Member Yes 13/02N1¢ 7 months 3/3

1. Onappointment.

Committee mestings are attended by all members of the Committee and the Company Secretary. Cther Directors and advisers attend by
invitation. As Chair of this Committee and the Board, | will not chair meetings when dealing with the appointment of my successor or with
any matters pertaining to the role of Chair.

Agenda items are linked to an annual calendar of discussion items to ensure that the Committee carries out a thorough and effective review
of key regulatory and governance areas. The calendar is updated on a regular basis to ensure that it is current and reflects up-to-date guidance
and requirements and it was updated during the year to reflect the requirements of the 2018 Code.

The composition of the Committes, which is reviewed by the Board annually, complies with Provision 17 of the 2018 Code with all members
being independent Non-Executive Directors.
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NOMINATION AND GOVERNANGE
COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

Board and senior management at a glance

Board composition Age of Directors Age of senior management’
Non-Executiva Chairman 40-60 years: 2 30-39 years:1
(independent on )
apporntment 1 51-60 years: 3 40-B0 years: 4
B81-70 years: 4 B51-60 years: 6

Exsgutive Directars: 3

independent
Nen-Executive Directors: b

1. Excluding Executiva Directors.

Gender diversity
H 1
Board Senior management Employees
Male: 7 Male: 12 Male: 66
Female: 2 Female: 2 Female: 32
1. Employees other than Executive Directors.
Ethnic diversity
. ] 1
Board Senior managemant Employees
White/Brivsh: B White/Briush: 14 White/British: 72
Asian/Asian British: 1 Whita/Cther: 6
AsianfAsian British/Black/
Black British &
Mixed/ Multi heritage: 4
1. Employees other than Executive Directors.
Senior management length of service' Length of tenure of Directors
Asat30September 2014 2016 2016 2017 208 2019
3-Gyears: 3 Lessthan | year. 2
Alan Dickinson |
8-9years: 4 1-3years:1 \an Barlow I
More than 8 years: 4 3-Byears' 8 June Barnes I
Rosermary Boot [
Robin Butler
Jon Di-Stefano i
Nigel Hugil |
Sanjeev Sharma ]
1. Excluding Executive Directors. David Wood [
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Composition of the Board

When considering the composition of the Board and committee
membership, which we do annually, we take into account the balance
of Executive Directors to Non-Executive Directors and the background,
skills and experience, independence and diversity of Directors.

We recognise the need to balance continuity with refreshment

of the Board and seek to ensure effective suocession planning

and the develepment of a diverse Board.

Details of the compaosition of the Board, its committee structure
and respongibilities, and the division of responsibilities between

the Chairman, Senior Independent Director and Executive Directors
are contained in the corporate governance report. The Board has
three standing committees (Nomination and Governanoe, Audit
and Remuneration) and reports from the chairs of all these committees
setting out their composition, duties and activities, are contained

in the governance section of the Annyal Report.

The Board consists of a Non-Executive Ghairman (independent
on appointment), three Executive Directors and five independent
Non-Executive Directors.

During the year, we oarried out an analysis of the Directors’ skillsets
and experience (summarised below) and have concluded that the
Board demonstrates a good spread of background, skills, effectiveness
and experience and provides strong and effective leadership.

We endeavour to retain and enhance this balance when appointing
any new Directors and will use the analysis as a useful tool to identify
areas of focus to consider when appainting new members of the
Board and when considering the succession planning and talent

Skills and experience of Directors

management of senior management. The range of skills and
background enables each Director to bring the benefit of their
experience to boardroom debate. The analysis also included a review
of the number of appointments held by Directors outside of this
Group and the time commitment of these roles. We are mindful of
the need to ensure that Directors do not overcommit to roles in
addition to their position on the Board of this Company and are
satisfied that external appointments held by Directors do not
impact their ability to allocate sufficient time to discharge their
responsibilities to the Company. Any changes to outside commitments
are reported to the Board, following approval by the Chairman.
Cutside directorships of the Executive Directors are permitted
(subject to Board approval) but they are required to devote
substantially all their working time to their role at Urban&Civic.

The ability of the Board as a whole and of individual Non-Executive
Directors to maintain an sffective and constructive relationship
with the Executive Directors is important, ensuring shared values
across the Group. We believe that the current composition of the
Board and its committees is appropriate and will continue to hold
this under regular review.

Appointment process

The Nomination and Governance Committee is responsible for
overseeing the appointment process for new Directors, from the
identification of the need for appointment through to the selection
of candidates and the eventual recommendation to the Board for
their appointment.

Nan-Exeoutive Directors Exscutive Directors
Experience Dokinaon  Gulow  Bames Boot DiSwlw S tugl  Buer  Woos
Property industry experience @) ' O O @) ) O O @)
Knowledge of sector O O O O O O O O O
Strategy - planning, development and implernentation O O O O O O O O O
Accounting - O O O O O @, O O
Finance and banking O 9 O O O O o o QO
Risk management experience O @ O @) O O @ & O
Project management experience O Q O O O O O O O
Health and safety knowledge O O O O O O O O O
Environment knowledge O O O O O O O O O
Leadership and people management O O O ) O O O @) @,
Executive performance management O O O O O O O O O
Mentoring abilities O O O G O @ O O O
Investor relations O O ) O O @] O @) O
Gorporate governance O Q 0 ® O O @ O Q

Highly experienced
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NOMINATION AND GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE REPOCRT CONTINUED

Appointment process continued

The appcintment process involves the selection of an external
recruitment consultant and discussion with them of the candidate
specification. The Board believes that the overriding criteria for
selection should be suitability for the role based on independence,
skills, knowledge, experience and ability to promote the success
of the Company.

It has previously been decided not to impose a quota relating
to gender balance at Board level, but the Committee gives full
consideration to achieving a diverse working environment when
considering the appointment of any new Directors.

Following a review of potential candidates identified by the consultant,
the Committee will select a shortlist for initial interviews with members
of this Committee, followed by interviews with other Board members.
The Committee will then make a recommendation to the Board for
appointment to the Board and any Committess.

Following this process, an induction programme will be organised
by the Company Secretary, as described below.

All Directors will be proposed for election by sharehclders at the
first AGM following their appointment.

On the appointment of a new Director, a formal letter of appointment
or service agresment will be issued. For Non-Executive Directors,
this will contain details of the terms of appointment, including the
time commitment of the role. All new Directors are also asked to
declare any interests which may constitute a conflict or a potential
conflict ofinterest and details of these are included on the Company's
register of conflicts, which is maintained by the Company Secretary.
This is updated throughout the year as required, with a standing
itemn on all Board agendas. All Directors sign a compliance
declaration as at the financial year end.

In 2019, we engaged the services of an external search consultancy,
Russell Reynolds, for the identification of suitable candidates for
Neon-Executive Director roles. They were instructed to identify
candidates with a range of backgrounds and experience.

This process culminated in the appointment of Rosemary Boot
and Sanjeev Sharma as Non-Executive Directors. Russsll Reynolds
did not have any prior connection with the Company or its Directors
other than in relation to the previous appointment of Directors.

We ensure that any executive search consultant we engage has
adopted an industry standard Voluntary Code of Conduct
addressing gender and ethnic diversity.

Board induction

Following the appointment of a new Director, the Company Secretary
organises an induction process tailored to their individual needs.
This process will be agreed with the Chair and the Director involved
and ensures that meetings and activities meet the individual
requirements of each new Director and their role.

Rosemary Boot and Sanjeev Sharma both joined the Board

in May 2012 and were provided with a comprehensive pack

of documents including Board and committee minutes and
related papers, Group policies and procedures, and information
on annual Board timetables and governance matters.
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During their first few months in office a detailed itinerary of meetings
and site visits took place. One-to-one meetings were arranged with
key members of the senior management team and with extemal
advisers such as the Group's auditor, BDO, and valuers, CBRE.
Detailed briefings with the Chief Executive, Managing Director and
Finance Director were also arranged. Visits to key sites led by senior
management, including Alconbury Weald, Waterbeach, Priors Hall,
Wintringham, RadioStation Rugby and Manchester took placse,

to enable a good understanding of the Group's operations.

Cngoing training for Directors takes place with regular presentations
at Board meetings by management and advisers and attendance at
axternal seminars, workshops and lectures. Non-Executive Directors
vigit our Group offices and operational sites throughout the year and
receive updates on all operations at each Board meeting, In between
Board meetings, bespcke guidance on technical, regulatory or
governance matters is issued to Directors on topics as required.
Directors are encouraged to identify any additional areas in which
they require information, briefings or training.

The induction programme is designed to ensure that
new Directors have a sound understanding of the Group's
long-term strategy, business operations and performance.

The induction covers:

Strategy, culture and values

Visits to our key strategic sites

* Meetings with the Chief Executive
and Managing Director

Operations

* One-to-one mestings with all Executive Directors
* Meetings with senior management
* Meetings with key advisers

Governance

* Guidance on the Group's policies and
procedures and on the legal, regulatory
and governanoe framework of the Board

Finance

* Meetings with the Group Finance Director
* Meetings with the Group Auditor




Board induction

with our new Independent Non-Executive Directors,
Rosemary Boot and Sanjeev Sharma

@ What attracted you to the role of NED at UBC?

A RB: It brings together a number of areas of interest to me.

| am interested in contributing to fulfiling the UK's need for
housing and had previously spent some time working for a
large social housing business. The Master Developer business
model was something that | hadn’t seen before and looked very
compelling. | knew of and was impressed by Nigel and Robin and
their track record. The other Board members were pecple that
| respected and wanted to work with. | felt that | would be able
to make a complementary contribution to the Board based on
my experiences as an investment banker, in climate change
mitigation, housing, care homes, utilities and future cities.

I have alsa spent time as the Group FD of a growing business.

$§8: Following my own research and the in-depth selection and
interview process for the role, a number of factors make
U&C very appealing.

Time and time again from my real estate contacts, including
within my business (M&G Real Estate), there is very high regard
for what Nigel Hugill, and Robin Butler, have achieved within the
industry over 30+ years. This respect carries into what U&C
stands for and what is regarded as its unique competitive
position as a “Master Developer”.

Not only are the Executive Directors and senior management
team at URC of some of the highest calibre, the significant
experience and knowledge of the current Board was a huge
appeal. | felt | would gain a great deal from the current Board
and also be able to bring a different perspective as someone
who is still in a full-time executive role within the industry.

What are your initial impressions of the Group?

RB: The strategic sites are very impressive and the business
model is working well. | think we have high quality, committed
people who are ambiticus for the success of the Group.

The culture seems to be very open and supportive.

88: Better than | expected, and my expectations were high to
begin with. From the recruitment, selection process and inducticn,
and through to ongoing Board responsibilities, the high standards
and professional approach shown has been very impressive.

| also feel that everyone's contributions are welcomed. The Group
is extremely well managed, with staff clear about the business
and its objectives and with a real enthusiasm to deliver to all
stakeholders whilst providing a very much needed social purpose
to the UK economy - housing. The general environment and
culture is one of everyone “pulling together”.
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NOMINATION AND GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

@ How valuable has the induction process been?

A RB: It has been invaluable to meet people and see the sites.
Meeting people and seeing sites during the induction is vital to
really “get under the skin” of the Group to enable me to contribute
from an understanding of how things actually work on the ground.,

88: Extremely. The induction has been a very extensive, thorough
and well organised process. This has enabled me to get to know
and understand the business and therefore contribute far more
quickly than would otherwise be the case. Everyone | have met
has been welcoming, open and wanting to engage.

@ How do you feel that your background and experience
equips you for your role at U&C?

A RB: See my response to the first question above. | am also a
NED at a couple of other companies and there are banefits from
sharing experiences of issues being considered at other boards,
and audit and remuneration committees, not least with the
recent changes to the UK Corporate Governance Code.

886: | have worked within the real estate sector for over 30 years,
across a number of organisations and in various roles. | believe
this gives me a very good insight into the sector, as wellas a
broader pergpective across a number of functions that would be
of benefit to U&C. | have held senior roles in HR and operations,
in large established organisations — NatWest Corporate Property
and M&G Real Estate Limited, my current employer, which is one
of the largest real estate investors globally with £33 billion assets
under management). | am able to bring this to bear within URC
be that at meetings of the Board, or the Remuneration Commitiee,
of which | am a member. | have been a member of the M&G RE
board since 2001, during which the company has expanded
considerably both in terms of product base and geographical
spread, not to mention its focus on sustainability. | believe | have
picked up invaluable insights into what is required of businesses
and their people during such periods to sustain not only growth
of new clients and opportunities but also to ensure existing clients
and business continue to be managed to the highest standards.

@  What have you enjoyed the most about your role so far?

A RB: Mesting the people and visiting the sites. The quality
of Board disoussion and experiencing the Board dynamics.

88: The diversity of the organisation, be that the nuances of each
of U&C's strategic sites, or meeting and getting to understand
various stakeholders' contributions and expectations of the
business. Most of all, | am excited by the considerable cpportunities
that the business has for the future.

@ What skills and competencies make an ideal
Non-Executive Director?

A RB: It obviously depends on the company, but the role of the NED
is to provide an appropriate balance of challenge and support to
the executive team, focusing on oversight and governance, and
looking forward - considering strategy and possible bumps in
the road, and having the right people and culture.
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So the board as a whole needs to have competence in the areas
of importance to the company, bringing diversity of opinion as
well as a good mix of relevant experience from the directors’
previous and other current roles. A good NED needs to be

a good listener and know how to contribute effectively ina
non-executive capacity, as well as to know when to stick to

an unpopular line!

88: Having a broad set of experiences and skills to bring to bear
rather than a narrow spegcialised background. Clearly any NED
needs to understand the expectations of shareholders, cther
stakehoiders and the Corporate Governance Code but it is very
much about having an open mind, listening and being able to
distil complex issues to support the strategy and objectives

of the business.

What do you foresee the next 12 months will entail?

RB: Parscnally I'm looking forward to getting fully up to speed
and meeting more of the people. For the Group, probably
balancing the progression of the existing strategic sites and
continuing to prove the business model by identifying and
bringing forward the next strategio sites. Alsc we may see the
impaot of Brexit on the housing market and whether it affects
the resilience of our business model.

8§8: With Brexit, anyone’s guess! However, for our sector, recognising
the Government’s commitment to building 300,000 new homes
a year means that a company like U&QC clearly has significant
demand-led opportunities and its unique position and reputation
make it an ideal partner for both the Government, Government
agencies like Homes England and others such as housing
associations, house builders, etc. This will help to ensure that our
focus is very much on making the most of the opportunities and
growing the business whilst ensuring we deliver on our already
substantial pipeline of sites that are at varying stages. The Board
and senior management will clearly have a lot to focus on to ensure
the business continues to deliver to all stakeholders.

What do you think makes U&C unique?

RB: The listed Master Developer is extremely unusual - there's

a tension about the use of cash flows to grow the business

vs paying dividends.

The degree of high level political support and also funding from
Homes England.

The quality of the relationships with landowners and local
authorities as well as housebuilders, which all depends on
the quality of the team.

88: Having some of the best strategic sites in the country and a
reputation for high quality delivery.

The culture of the business and its entrepreneurialism that runs
throughout the Company.

The quality of its partnerships, be that Government agencies,
suppliers, househuilders, ete.

Thelack of real competition as an established, proven
“Master Developer”.
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Main activities of the Committee during the year
ended 30 September 2019

Board balance and skills

Reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board.
Oversaw the process for the appointment of two new
Non-Executive Directors during the year.

Carried out a review of committee membership.
Assessed the skills, knowledge and experience of the
Board members.

Carried out a review of the contribution to the Board by
the Directors proposed for reappointment at the AGM.
Reviewed the training and development needs of Directors.

Leadership

Continued menitoring of the Group's talent management
structure by the review of the measures in place for the
development, progression and retention of senior management.
Received updates on the employee performance review
system and the induction process, both of which are
important tools in the wider remit of development and
retention of employees.

Evaluation
Agreed the approach to the 2018 Board evaluation.

Carried out a review of the Committee’s performance
and compliance with its terms of reference.

Diversity
Updated the Group diversity polioy and equality policy
and recommended their approval to the Board.

Reviewed the management structure and gender diversity
throughout the Group.

Governance

Approved the Nomination Committee report for inclusion
in the 2018 Annual Report.

Carried out a review of Non-Executive Directors' fees prior
to review by the Board, in relation to changes to the Board
structure and committee membership.

Approved revised terms of reference for the Committee
reflecting governance regulations and best practice and
updated to reflect the Committee’s expanded remit

to include governance rasponsibilities.

Succession planning

Throughout the year, the Nomination and Governance Committes
has continued to foous on succession planning, paying due regard
to diversity within the Group. The Committee has reviewed the
succession plans in place for the Board, including both Executive
and Non-Executive Directors. The year under review saw

a refreshment of the Board by the appointment of two new
independent Non-Executive Directors. We continue to be

mindful of the tenure of the current Directors and regularly review
the succession plans for the Board to ensure that the refreshing
of the Board is properly planned and managed in an orderly way.

The Committee reviews regular reports on the ways in which we
seek to retain and develop the senior management pipeline and
considers the sucgession planning of management. We assess
areas such as:

= financial incentives;

* non-finangcial incentives;

* potential for career progression;
* learning and development;

* internal communication and access to Executive Directors
and Non-Exeoutive Directors;

¢ involvement across projects; and
* team environment.

The input of the Chief Executive and Managing Director is crucial in
these discussions and the Committee values their opinion, guidance
and recommendations. During the year, we carried out a review of the
organisational structure across the Group allowing us to gain a useful
overall view of the team structure in place and succession plans for
management and Executive Directors. We are satisfied that suitable
progression, talent management and succession plans are in place
for both Executive Directors and for the management layer below
Board level.

The importance of employee engagement is a key factor in encouraging
staffretention and the activities in this area of the Board, its committees
and management are set out in the corporate governance report.
All Non-Executive Directors hold meetings with employees in the
absence of Executive Directors throughout the year and these
meetings provide invaluable insight into the issues affecting the
workforce and employee retention.

Structured employee performance reviews take place on an annual

basis, with six-monthly follow-up meetings. This is part of an ongoing
feedback process and provides a useful forum to identify objectives
and progression throughout the Group.

During the year, an internal learning and development function was
established and, together with the input from the HR Manager, this
workstream ensures that employees are developed to their full
potential and that training addresses any issues that may have
been identified as part of the performance review process.
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NOMINATION AND GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

Succession planning continued

This forms animportant part of the development and enhancement
of our talent pool, facilitating an orderly succession plan, and also
encourages retention of employees. This is reflected in the Group’s
low turnover rate, indicating loyalty and satisfaction with both the
working environment and remuneération arrangements. During the
year, 15 new employees were appointed and only seven resigned.

The learning and development role cversees and co-ordinates

the training and personal development of employees, implementing
the Group's policy of investing time and resources inits workforce.
Employees are encouraged to seek development by the broadening
of their gkills and experience.

Ags part of ongoing succession planning discussions for Non-Executive
Directors, the Committee gives due consideration to corporate
governance guidelines on length of service. Non-Executive Directors
are appointed to the Board for a fixed initial term and will typically serve
a second three-year term. A third term of up to three years may be
served in certain ciroumstances but this would only be considered
following a thorough review of the individual and of the Board
composition. All appointments are subject to annual re-slection.
Charts found earlier in this report set out the length of service of the
Directors and senior management as at 30 September 2019

Diversity and equal opportunities

The Group is committed to the principle of equal cpportunity in
employment and recognises the importance and value of diversity
across the Board and the Group. We reviewed and updated the
Group's diversity policy to ensure that it reflects current governance
guidelines and to strengthen the personal responsibility of employees
to comply with the policy and to strive towards our diversity objectives.
Qur policy promotes diversity and inclusion and ensures that there
is no discrimination on the basis of age, gender, race, disability or
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social background. Through this policy, the Board and senior
management undertake to be an inclusive employer and to
eliminate discrimination. We commit to creating a culture where
difference is valued and all forms of diversity are considered
beneficial to the Company. We provide equality and fairmess in all
aspects of recruitment and employment, and ensure that equal
training, development and progression cpportunities are avaitable
to all employees. We will not tolerate any form of harassment,
victimisation or bullying in our working environment.

In conjunction with our diversity policy, we also adopted an

equal opportunities policy with the stated commitment of equality
of opportunity in all areas of employment, thus ensuring that all
employees and those applying to work for the Company are treated
fairly and equally and offered the same opportunities. Both policies
can be found on our website:
www.urbanandcivic.com/aboutus/corporategovernance.

We believe that by creating an open, diverse and inclusive working
environment we encourage the optimmum performance of all our
employees which drives the successful attainment of our strategic
goals. To alarge extent, our performance is detarmined by the quality
of our recruitment and development of employees, and by the
enthusiasm and commitment to our goals by employees across
the Group.

The Company ensures compliance with these policies by monitoring
the composition of job applicants and resulting recruitment decisions,
maintaining records to analyse the composition of our workforce
(age and gender profiling), ensuring equal access to benefits,
training, promotion and other opportunities and monitoring

the criteria considered in the case of any dismissals and other
terminations. We continuously assess the impact of our empioyment
policies by open discussions with employees and by taking into
account the views of management.

Board vigit to
Middlebeck, Newark.




During the year, we carried out a review of succession plans in place for management and their reports and a more general review of
tha diversity of the Group. In reviewing the management and reporting structure throughout the Group, we reviewed the gender diversity
of senicr management and their direct reports, grouped by business unit and job family.

The overriding principle for the appointment and succession plans of employses is merit and ability to perform in the role but the Group's
policy is to promote gender, social and ethnic diversity and diversity for all minority groups. The Company is committed to achieving a working
crvironment providing equal opportunities to all and we seek to encourago the recruitment, devolopment and rotontion of a diverse workforce
and to eliminate discrimination. We recognise the challenges faced by the property industry in addressing gender diversity and acknowledge
that diversity of recruivneny will be subject 1w the availability of suitable candidatles. We actively engage with recruiters (o ensuie g diverse
candidate selection and monitor compliance with our equal opportunities palicy.

We do not tolerate any form of discrimination and all our employees are expected to act in accordance with the Qroup's diversity and equal
opportunities policies.

Gender and ethnic diversity of the Board, senior management and employees as at 30 September 2019 is shown in the charts earlier in this report.

Board performance and evaluation
The Board undertakes performance evaluations to ensure its continued effectiveness and, as explained last year, undertook to carry out an
externally facilitated evaluation at least every three years.

In 2018, the review of the effectiveness of the Board and its committees took the form of the completion by Directors of online questionnaires,
with the Company Secretary collating responses and providing reports for consideration by the Chairman and the chairs of each committee.
The queetionnaires had been devised by Independent Audit in conjunction with the Company Secretary and covered the opsrations of the
Board, Nomination Commiuge, Remuneration Comirnitiee, Audit Committee and oun managenngnt and reporting of tisk. The findings were
discussed by the Committee and reported to the Board, which tracked progress on the outcomes identified. The 2018 process followed an
external evaluation carried out by Independent Audit in 2017

The progress against actions for the Board identified in the 2018 internal evaluation and as reported last year is as follows:

Action ) Progress made

Board to review past decisions for lessons learnt. Board meeting discussions facilitate such review.

Grant Thornton was engaged to carry out an internal audit
of joint venture relationships.

Joint venture relationships to be further reviewed.

Ensure that there is scope for the Directors to further Directors are enceuraged to seek additional training on any
enhance and refresh their knowledge. relevant area.

The rale of the Remuneration Committee has been expanded
to reflect the 2018 Code raquirements. Further details are
found in the report of the Remuneration Committee.

Review the role of the Remuneration Committee in light of the
2018 UK Corporate Governance Code.

. . . Agendas of the Audit Committee and Board devote time to
Devote more time to risk discussions.

risk discussions.
Nomination Committee to put in place adequate succession Succession plans for the Board and senior management are
plans for Non-Executive Directors and senior management. regularly disoussed at Committee meetings.

Overall, the conclusion of the review was that the Board continues to work effectively and efficiently and operates well,

Our intention, as set out in last year's report, was to carry out an internal evaluation in 2019, being Year 3 of our evaluation cycle, and for
Year 4 (2020) to see a secord external evaluation process. However, in light of the changes to the Board composition and committee
membership this year, it was decided to engage Belinda Hudson Limited, an independent consulting firm, to carry out an externally
facilitated assessment in 2019,
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NOMINATION AND GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

Board performance and evaluation continued

This Board evaluation will cover an in-depth review of the Board and its commitiees, including the governance framework and the alignment
between the Board and committees in terms of accountability, information and communicaticn. The feedback will also cover a review of the
Chair’s performance and of individual Directors. The agreed approach is:

October 2019 Research and fact finding  Analysis of Board and committes papers and
governance documents in addition to other published
material about the Company and its operations.

Phase1 October/ Interviews One-to-one interviews with all Directors and the

November 2019 Company Secretary.

November 2019 Board observation Attendance and observation at a Board meating.

\/ January/ Reporting Written report for discussion with the Chairman.
February 2020 . . .
Phase 2 Presentation of this report at a Board meeting,
\/ 2020 Follow-up Discussion and implementation of suggested
areas for development.
Phase 3

\/

The evaluation process not only reviews the effectiveness of the Board and its committees but also seeks to identify areas for enhancement
in processes, performance and future development, enabling continuous improvement. The Committee will ensure that individual Directors
and the Board as a whole address any areas where weaknesses have been identified and also enhance areas whare strengths have been

recognised. | wilt report further in next year's report.

The year ahead

Woe will continue our focus on succession plans for the Board

and senior management, paying particular attention to succession
plana for tho Chair and far managoment bolow Board level, and will
ocontinue 1o sock to encouraga diversity in tho Group and to monitor
compiliance with the Group’s diversity and equal opportunities
policies. The Committee will review the results of the 2019 Board
evaluation process and will monitor and oversee the adoption

of any recommendations.

Annual General Mesting

All Direstors are subjoct to annual olection by sharcholders, Onthe
recommendation of the Committee, the Board considers it appropriate
to propose the reappointment of those Directors seeking election or
re-alection at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 6 February 2020,

Accordingly, the following resolutions relating to the appointment
of Directors will be proposed:
= the re-election of Alan Dickinson as Chairman;

* the re-election of Nigel Hugill, Robin Butler and David Wood
as Executive Directors;

* the election of Rosemary Boot and Sanjeev Sharma as
Non-Executive Directors; and

= the re-election of lan Barlow, June Barnes and Jon Di-Stefano
as Non-Executive Directors.
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The Chairman was independent on appointment and the Board
considers all other Non-Executive Directors seeking election or
re-election to be independent.

Further biographical information on all Directors can be found
on pages 68 and 69.

The Nomination and Governance Committee has concluded
that all of the Directors seeking election or re-election continue
to be effective and to demonstrate commitment to their role,
and confirms to sharsholders that they have the necessary skills,
knowledge and experience to continue to discharge their duties
effectively, The Board considers that eachindividual Director
provides valuable input to the operation of the Board and that their
contribution is important to the Company’s long-term sustainable
success, bringing a diverse range of skills from different sectors
and experience. Further details are set out in the table on page 91
and in the notice of AGM. | hope that shareholders will support
the Committee and vote in favour of these resolutions.

Alan Dickinson
Chair of the Nomination and Governance Committee
27 November 2019




AUDIT, RISK AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Committee members

lan Barlow (Chair)
Jung Barnes
Rosemary Boot

Key activities in 201819

.

Changes to membership

-

Overview of the process and fees related to the
premium listing of the Company’s shares

Financial reporting including the adoption
of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15

Focus on the assessment and monitoring
of risks. Ensured this is occurring at all levels
of the business

Agreed the internal audit plan and reviewed
the work undertaken

Compliance with the 2018 UK Corporate
Governanoe Code requirements

Key focus areas for 2019/20

* Financial reporting
+ Adoption of IFRS 16 Lease Accounting’
* Monitor the impact of other planned or expected
changes in financial reporting requirements
* Risk identification, management and mitigation
* Maintain and manage the ongoing internal
audit programme

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are on the
Company's website: www.urbanandcivic.com/about-us/
corporate-governancefaudit-committee

We monitor the integrity, accuracy and
consistency of financial reporting to ensure
that it enables an accurate assessment of
the Company's position, performance,
business model and strategy.

lan Barlow
Chair of the Audit Committee

Audit Committee
report

Dear Shareholder,

| am pleased to introduce the report of the Audit Committee for the
financial year ended 30 September 2018. | have been a member of
the Committee since September 2016 and was appointed as chair
on that date. in February 2019, Jon Di-Stefano was appointed as
chair of the Committee succeeding me, although | have continued
to act as a member of the Committee. Subsequent to the year end,
with effect from 18 November 2019 and as explained further on
page 67, Jon stepped down as member and chair of the Commitiee
and | have resumed the role of chair. Further details on the membership
of the Committee are contained in this report, which also covers the
key activities of the Committee during the year.

Introduction

The Committees key responsibilities are to oversee and report to
the Board on the accounting, financial reporting, risk management
and internal control processes of the Group and to supervise the
relationship with the external auditor.

Company position and prospects

We ensure that all finanaial reporting by the Board is a fair, balanced
and understandable assessment of the Company's position and
prospects and we specifically review the long-term viability and
going concern statements and recommend their adoption to the
Board. We receive reports from managemant and the auditor
sufficient to satisfy the Committee of the integrity of financial

and narrative statements and any related disclosures.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

Introduction continued

Risk and internal controls

We assess the risks and risk appetite of the Group and review the
procedures to manage risk and the mitigation rmeasures in place.
We report to the Board on these matters. The Board and committee
structure ensures that a robust assessment of the emerging and
principal risks facing the Company, including those that would
threaten its business model, future performancs, solvency or liquidity,
has been undertaken. The SDC and CDC assess rigk at their
rmeetings and report to the EMC, which reviews the risk register

at every meeting which is then updated as required toreflect
discussions and reported upwards to the Audit Committee and
uitimately to the Board. We oversee the internal control systems

of the Group and agree and monitor the workstream of the internal
auditor, Grant Thornton, with regular reporting by them to the
Committee. We are satisfied that the internal controls in place
across the Group are fit for purpose and that the Executive Directors
and senior management take any appropriate action as may be
identified by internal audit reports and/or Board discussions.

The Audit committee is responsible for the review of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group's internal control and risk management
systems but the Board retains ultimate responsibility. Further details
are in the risk review on pages 34 to 43.

Audit function

We oversee the process of ensuring the independence, performance,
quality and efficiency of the external audit performed by BDOLLP.
This enabled us to assess their effectiveness.

The Committes maintains a degree of independence from, and
oversight of, management to ensure appropriate protection of

stakeholders’ interests in respect of financial reporting, risk and
internal controls. We ensure that the reporting to shareholders is
clear, concise and understandable.

The Board has adopted the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code
(the ‘2018 Code') and the Committee abides by the principles and
provisions applying to audit committees and complies with the
relevant provisions set out in the FRC Guidance on Audit Committees.
We ensure that the Group complies with all regulatory and governance
requirements and guidelines in relation to financial reporting and
acoounting matters, including accounting policies and practices.

During the year

Buring the year, the Committee has overseen all financial reporting, with
its workstreams being consistent with prior years. The Committee has
spent time discussing the emergence and adoption of new accounting
standards, particularly IFRS 16 on revenue recognition, the impact
of which is explained in note 1 to the financial statements. We have
continued to review risk management processes at all levels of the
business, including the mitigation of risk. Thig is set cut in more
detail in the risk review on pages 34 to 43. We oversee the internal
controls in place throughout the Group and internal audit programme.
Woa review outputs from the reports of the internal auditor and the
associated action points. This process is further explained later in
this report.

Under the 2018 Code, the responsibility for whistieblowing has moved
from the Audit Committee to the Board and, as a result, itis the Board
that now reviews the whistleblowing process and receives regular
whistleblowing reports, rather than this Committee. We updated our
terms of reference to reflect this and other provisions of the 2018 Code.

Membership and mesetings

During the year, the membership of the Audit Committee was
reviewed by the Nomination and Governance Committee and
the Board. Following the resignation of Duncan Hunter as a
Non-Executive Director and member of the Committee on

13 February 2019, | was appointed as Senior Non-Executive Director
and stepped down as Chair of this Committes, but remained a
member. Jon Di-Stefano replaced me as Chair on the same date.
On 23 May 2019, Rosemary Boot was appointed as a member of
the Committee. All members are independent Non-Executive
Dirgctors. There were no other changes to the Committee
membership during the year.

On 18 November 2019 and as explained further on page 67,
Jon Di-Stefano stepped down as member and chair of the
committee and | resumed the role of chair.

The Board is satisfied that the Committee has appropriate skills,
experience and competence relevant to the Company’s sector in
crder to fulfil its responsibilities.

This experience includes financial reporting, risk management,
internal controls and strategic management.

| bring sigrificant financial experience to the Committee as a chartered
accountant with a long career in finance and accounting. | was senior
partner (London) at KPMG until 2008 and am chair of the audit
committees of two other listed companies. June Barmes has experience
of running a large business and of risk management and Rosemary
Boot has experience of working as a group finance director, as an
investrment banker and is currently a member of two other

audit committees.

Attendance by the members of the Committee at the seven scheduled
meetings held during the year ended 30 September 2019 is shown below:

Data of appointment Committee tenure as at Maetings attended/

Indspendent to the Committes 30 September 2019 sligible to attend

lan Barlow Chair Yes 01/09/18 3years Tmonth 7
June Barnes Member Yes 22/06M14 6 years 4 months 7
Rosemary Boot Member Yes 23/06/19 4 monthg 2/2
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Membership and meetings continued

Committee meetings are attended by all members of the Committee,
the Chief Executive, Finance Director and Company Secretary.
The Chair of the Company is invited to attend all meetings. Other
Directors, senior members of the finance team, the external auditor
and the interna! auditor attend by invitation only, if required. This
enables a full contribution to the matters considered at meetings.

Agenda items are oe-ordinated to an annual calendar of discussion
itams which is closely linked to the financial year and related reporting
requirements. This ensures that the Committee carries out a timely
review of all financial, audit (both internal and external), risk, regulatory
and governance items to enable it to discharge its duties effectively
and in accordance with its terms of reference. The Committee is
satisfied that it receives sufficiently detailed and relevant information
from the Company’s management, external auditor and internal
auditor. As Chair of the Committee | report to the Board following
each Committee meeting, providing a summary of the items discussed
and conclusions reached, highlighting any issues requiring Board
discussion. The minutes of @ach Committee meeting are circulated
to all Directors and reviewed at a subsequent Board meeting,

The Company Secretary ciroulates an action list setting out the points
arising from each Committee meeting together with attributed
responsibility for completion and this action list is updated for
monitoring and review at the next Audit Committee meeting,

Members of the Committee spend time with executive management
outside of the scheduled Committee meetings, sesking guidance
and clarity on any issues as required. These meetings are crucial to
the process of gaining a strong understanding of key and emerging
areas, thus facilitating informed and constructive discussions at
committee meetings.

The Committee mests privately with the external auditor at least
twice ayear.

Internal audit

The Group's internal audit function is outsourced to Grant Thornton.
Their role is to review the governance, risk management and
internal controls framewark in place across the Group.

We consider annually the need for this function and whether the
Company would benefit from the establishment of an internal
(rather than cutsourced) function. As part of this review, we monitor
the effectiveness of Grant Thornton. Having reviewed this during
the year, we have confirmed to the Board that the current cutsourced
arrangement works efficiently, is productive, beneficial to management
and the Board in our oversight role and cost effective to the Group.
We have therefore recommended that this arrangement should
remain in place. It is designed to cover all key areas of financial and
enterprise controls over a three year cyole.

At each meeting, the Audit Committee reviews updated reports
from Grant Thornton on the audits in progress and the review of
findings from completed audits, including a schedule of actions
identified and management’s response to, and implementation of,
any recommendations. We monitor the progress made against these
recommendations with Grant Thornton reporting to the Committee
on any areas where action has been identified but not completed.
Grant Thornton discuss first with management and then report to

the Committee on the explanation if any specific recommendation
was not actioned and also assess and evaluate any other mitigations
that may have been put in place. We also received a report on the
alignment of key risks to the internal audit plans. Grant Thornton
regularly attend Audit Committee meetings, presenting an
opportunity for an in-depth discussion of their reports.

The Committee is satisfied that Executive Management has provided
adequate assurance that the Group's internai controls are working
effectively and is also satisfied that Grant Thornton's review of
internal controls has not highlighted any significant weaknesses

or failuresin the operations and processes of the Group.

The Committee approves the internal audit programme of work
and holds this under review in light of progress made on audits
and issues arising from the reports.

The internal controls review during the year ended
30 September 2019 covered:

Investments and divestments
* Assessment of the procedures in place when making
investment and divestment decisions.

Outsourced contract management
* Review of the effectiveness of the governance in place
when outsourcing contraots.

Health and safety
* Review of the processes for identifying and mitigating key
risks that could affect the Company's ability to operate.

Provious audits
* A detailed follow-up on actions from previous audits.

The audit cycleis now in its third year and we have assessed
the scope and value of the audits that have been done to
date and have assessed which areas require follow-up or
should be repeated. The proposed 2019/20 audits will cover:

Property and estate management
+ To review the processes and controls in place and the
mitigation of key property risks.

Risk management
* To assess the adequacy of the risk management
framework for identifying and managing key risks.

The Catesby Estates business unit
+ To review financial controls and the reporting and
maintenance of accurate financial records.

HR and succession planning
* To cover various areas within the HR function including the
compliance with key Group policies and regulations.

In 2019/20 we will plan the next three-year cycle so that we
continue to gain assurance over all areas on which we make
assumptions on the controls in place within the Group.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

External audit

The Committee is responsible for overseeing the relationship with
tha external auditor and for reviewing the terms of their engagement
and remuneration, their independence, thei effectiveniess and the
quality of their output.

BDO was previously auditor to the Terrace Hill Group and has been
the auditor to the Urban&QCivio Group cinoe ity Liating in May 2014
The Committee has previously reviewed the requirements relating
to tho tender of auditorc and concluded that the date of appointment
of BDO is deemed to be May 2014 As reported last year, a competitive
tonder will therefore be required by 2024 and the Committee will
ensure that a compotitivo tender proceos takos place within thic
timescale. Audit engagement partners are required to rotate every
five years and a rotation will not be required for the Group's audit
partner, Ed Goodworth, until the year ending 30 September 2021.

The Audit Committee reviews annually the effectiveness and quality
of the exctornal auditor taking inte ageount thoir indepondonco,
abjootivity, oxportiso and resourcas and has concluded that both
the audlit and audit process ware effactive. The key elements of this
judgement are informed by:

+ the manner in which the audit plan was fulfilled;

* the observed guality of BDO's assessment of, and challenge to,
the key accounting and audit judgements;

* the content of the audit clearance report issued by them; and

* the completion of an effectiveness questionnaire by Committee
members and key members of the finance team.

The questionnaire assessed the execution of the audit plan, the
understanding and perfoermance of the auditor during the year-end
audit, the relationchip with and, ac appropriate, the challongo to
management and the quality of the reporting to the Committee.
BDO also provides an annual report on their independence and
abjoctivity and thoir compliance with statutory, regulatory and
othical ctandards. The Company cupports BDO' policy that senior
managoment of tho audit team chould rotato after soven years.

During the year the Committee approved the audit and non-audit
fees paid to BDO. The non-audit fees related to the interim review
and to work undertaken in connaction with the transfer of the listing
category of the Curnpany's ordinary shares from the Standard
Listing segment to the Premium Listing segment of the Official List
of the Financial Conduct Authority.

Dotailo of tho total Croup auditor fees paid to tho axtornal auditor
for the year ended 30 September 2019 are set out below and in
note 3 to the accounts.
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Year to 30 September s%(’(;g s:%gg s.%:)‘;
Audit feas R PR? 2R2
Review of interim results 43 37 36
Mon-audit fees 70" 1

Total 433 341 28R
Non-audit fees (including interim review)

as a parcentage of total fees 28% 23% 13%

1. Fees incumred for reporting accountant services in relation to the Company's premium
listing application.

We do not consider that the non-audit work impacted the

independence and objectivity of the external auditor and confirm

that the focs wers incurred in accordarnce with ow policy for the

provision of non-audit services, This palicy ensures that the

it e daness angd objectivity of the gudilor are maintained.

After reviewing the external auditor's performance during the year,
the Committee has concluded that BDO remain effective in their
role as external auditor and recommends to the Board that they

be reappointed for a further year. A resolution to this effect and a
resolution to authorise the Directors to set the remuneration of the
dudditur will be proposed at the 2020 AGM. | hope that shareholders
will support the Committee and vote in favour of these resolutions.




Main activities of the Committee during the year ended 30 September 2019

Financlal reporting

Ensgured that the information contained in the 2018 Annual
Report was accurate and that the information contained in the
strategic report was congistent with the financial statements
and notes to the accounts. We reviewed the appropriateness
of the Group's policies, assurptions, judgements and estimates
as applied by management to the financial statements.

in respect of the financial year ended 30 September 2018,
reviewed and approved the letter of representation and
external auditor’s letters of engagement.

Discussion of the audit findings report in relation to the
financial year ended 30 September 2018.

Discussion and assessment with the external auditor on the
following significant areas of judgement in relation to the year
ended 30 September 2018:

+ Valuation of investment properties and carrying value of
trading properties - the Committee discussed the valuation
of each property with the external valuers and/for management
if held at Directors’ valuation. The Committee assessed the
integrity of the valuation process. Key judgements and
assumptions applied to each valuation were considered as
well as the valuation movement in the year. The Committee
considered the key inputs to the discounted cash fiow model
(used for the largest assets valued, Alconbury Weald,
RadioStation Rugby, Priors Hall, Newark and Waterbeach}
or other valuation models and concluded that the
assumptions applied werg appropriate.

* Revenue and profit recognition - consideration of revenue
and profit recognition in respect of sales of residential land
paroels and individual units constructed on strategic sites,
assessing the conditions of the licence arrangements, with
the conclusion that they were appropriate.

Approval of the going concern and long-term viability staterents
and supporting documents including the business plan and
five-year forecast.

Review and recommendation to the Board the approval of the
audited financial statements and preliminary annocuncement
of results of the Group for the year ended 30 September 2018
and the Group’s interim financial statements and announcement
of results for the six months to 31 March 2019 together with

the respeoctive investor presentations of results, concluding
that the presentations were consistent with the audited
financial statements.

.

.

.

.

Review of the audit planning report prepared by the external
auditor in refation to the year ended 30 September 2019,

confirming materiality thresholds and agreeing the key audit
matters for consideration by the auditor as part of the audit.

Review and approval of audit and non-audit fees incurred by
the external auditor.

Approval of the audit timetables for the 2019 half year and
year end.

Assessment of the impact of new accounting standards and
the adoption of IFRS 9 ‘Finanoial Instruments’ and fFRS 16
‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

Review and approval of the Group policy for the accounting
treatment of promaotion agreements, having received assurance
from the external auditors that they agreed with our approach.

Discussion of dividend recommendations for the final dividend
for the year snded 30 September 2018 and the interim
dividend for the year ended 30 September 2019, in line with
the Company's dividend policy.

Governance

Approval of the procedures in place in relation to the
delegation of authorities for incurring expenditure, prior to
approval by the Board.

Review and assessment of the credit checks process in place
in relation to the appointment of third party contractors.

Review, on a six-maonthly basis, declarations made by Directors
and employees under the Group's gifts and hospitality polioy
above an agreed threshold.

Review at each meeting of reports on the Group’s actions to
ensure compliance with General Data Protection Regulation.

Review of charitable donations made by the Group during the
year under review and confirmation that these donations were
in compliance with the Group's charitable donations policy.

Assessment of its own performance against the role and
responsibilities set out in its terms of reference. Further
assessment of the effectiveness of the performance of the
Committee will be considered as part of the 2019/20 Board
evaluation process.

* Review of terms of reference in light of the 2018 Code and best

practice recommendations and approval of changes for
recommendation to the Board for adoption.
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.

Main activities of the Committee during the year
ended 30 September 2019 continued

Risk and internal controls
Assessment of the Group's risk management framework
and risk appetite.

At each meeting the Committee receives a report on key
risks and a summary of movement during the financial
year to date and reviews the mitigation measures in
place and the impact of this mitigation on the risk profile.
This enables a review of the effectiveness of risk
management processes.

Approval of the risk review for inclusion in the 2018
Annual Report and Accounts,

Further details on the Group's key risks and our
approach to risk management are found in the risk
review on pages 34 to 43.

Internal and sxternal audit functions

The Group's internal and external audit arrangements
and activities during the year are explained elsewhere in
this report.

Other activities

The Committee oversaw the process of the transfer

of the listing category of the Company’s ordinary shares
from the Standard Listing segment to the Premium
Listing segment of the Official List of the Financial
Conduct Authority and approved the fees of external
advisers, including the external auditor, in relation to

this work.

The Committee provided assistance tothe
Remuneration Committee by providing verification
of the assessment of the achievernent of the cash
generation targets for the year ended 30 September
2018, in relation to the Directors’ bonus objectives.

Training and development

The Committee received briefing updates on financial
reporting, covering the following areas:

Acecounting standards relating to revenue and
financial instruments

Accounting treatment of leases
Brexit disclosures
Critical judgements and estimates disclosures

Developments in narrative reporting

Urban&Civic pic — Annual Report and Accounts 2019

The Committee’s focus for the year ending
30 September 2020 will be the ongoing
assessment of risk identification,
management and mitigation within the
Group and continued overview of the
internal controls programme.

Financial year ended 30 September 2019

Since the year end, the Committee has reviewed and
recommended Board approval of the Annual Report and Accounts
and preliminary announcement for the year ended 30 September 2019
and the investor presentation of results. We are satisfied with the
integrity of the financial statements and have reviewed the significant
financial reporting judgements as set out below. The Committee

is satisfied with the accuracy and consistency of information
included in the Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended

30 September 2019 and that, taken as a whole, they are fair,
balanced and understandable and that the financial statements
represent a true and fair view of the financial state of the Group

and enable an accurate assessment of the Company's pesition,
performance, business model and strategy.

Going concern and long-term viability statements

The Committee has reviewed the assumptions upon which the
going concern principle has been adopted for the preparation of
the financial statements, has assessed the prospects and financial
viability of the Group and has approved the long-term viability
statement set out on page 33.

Finanoial reporting and significant judgements

The significant areas of judgement considered by the Committee
and discussed and assessed with the extarnal auditor in relation
to the year ended 30 September 2019 were as follows:

1) Valuation of investrment properties and carrying value
oftrading properties

The Group's property interests are valued in order to ascertain the
fair value of investment properties and the carrying value of trading
properties, which are held at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. These valuations also inform the caloulation of EPRA NAV
and EPRA NNNAYV and at 30 September 2019 the total EPRA value
of the Group's property interest was £702.6 million, comprising
investment properties, trading properties, properties within
property, plant and equipment, property related trade and other
receivables and the Group's share of properties and related
receivables held under both joint ventures and joint operations.
CBRE, independent valuers valued 96 per cent of the Group’s
property interests and the Directors valued the remainder.




Significant judgement is required due to the subjective nature

of property valuations. Members of the Committee met with the
external valuers, without management present, as part of both the
half-year and full-year valuations. Each property vaiuation was
discussed individually with consideration given to the key judgements
and assumptions applied to each valuation as well as the valuation
movement generated in each pericd. A discounted cash flow model
is used by CBRE to value the strategic land assets, reflecting the
scale of the assets and length of time over which the assets will be
realised. The Committee considered the key inputs to the models,
namely the timing and quantum of significant cash outflows, land
prices, forecast house prices, inflation, housebuilder profit
assumptions and discount rates, and concluded that the
assumptions applied were appropriate.

Members of the Committee also discussed and reviewed Directors’
valuations and considered that the key assumptions applied
were appropriate.

2) Revenue and profit recognition

The Committee considered revenue and profit recognition under
IFRS 15 for the first time during the year in respect of sales of
residential land parcels on its strategic sites.

Licence sales contain both a fixed minimum price as well as a
variable overage ¢lement with revenue recognised when the risks
and rewards of ownership transfer on completion. The sales
receipts are ultimately dependent upon the onward sales prices
achieved by the hougehuilder. Variable consideration including
overages are estimated, taking into consideration the time to
recover overage amounts as well as factors which may give riss to
variability and are recognised to the extent that itis highly probable
that there will not be a significant reversal in the future. Members

of the Committee assessed the conditions attaching to these
arrangements when deciding how much and at what point revenue
should be recognised and the requirements of IFRS 15, taking into
account contractual terms, forecast timescales over which amounts
were payable and the ability to reliably measure variable consideration.
The Committee also considered the methodology and allocation of
directly attributable servicing costs of each land parcel prior to sale
which includes an allocation of site-wide infrastructure costs.

The Committee reviewed these methods of revenue and profit
recognition and concluded that they were appropriate.

Future accounting changes

The Audit Committee has been briefed by management and the
external auditor on the effect of the following new accounting
standard from the financial year 2020 onward.

{FRS 16 ‘Lease Acoounting'

Leases will now be raquired to be brought on balance sheet as both
aright to use asset and an associated liability. This new standard will
result in the Group bringing on balance sheet operating Jeases for
the first time. The impact of the incoming standard on this year's
results, which is not expected to be significant, is set outinnote 1

of the financial staternents.

2019/20 priorities

The Committee's focus for the year ending 30 Septernber 2020 will
be the ongoing assessment of risk identification, management and
mitigation within the Group and continued overview of the internal
controls programme.

The next phase of the internal controls review will cover property
and estate management, risk management, the Catesby Estates
business unit and HR and succession planning,.

The Committee will also continue to focus on financial reporting
related to the half year and year-end processes. During the year
ending 30 September 2020, the Committee will work with
management and the auditor to ensure appropriate adoption

of the new accounting standard as disoussed above.

| will report further on the activities of the Committee in next year’s
Audit Commitiee report.

| look forward to meeting shareholders at the 2020 AGM to answer
any questions on the Audit Committee’s activities and responsibilities.

lan Barlow
Chair of the Audit Committee
27 November 2019
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BALANCING REWARD AND PERFORMANCE

The Remuneration Committee continues
to lead discussions on remuneration of
Executive Directors and senior
management and on the wider Group
policies. We aim to apply best practice
across our remuneration structure.

June Barnes
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

Committee members

Directors’
remuneration report

June Barnes (Chair)
lan Barlow
Rosemary Boot

Sanjeev Sharma

Key activities in 2018/19

* New members appointed to the Committee This Directors’ remuneration report is divided into
¢ Review of the impact of the 2018 UK Corporate the following sections:
Governance Code
* Approval of the remuneration for Executive R tion at
Directors and senior management emuneration at a glance
107
* Review of workforce remuneration policies page10
* Amendment to Group policies
Introduction by the Chair of the
* Review of terms of reference Remuneration Committee
page 108
Key focus areas for 2019/20
Directors’ remuneration policy, as approved
* Review the remuneration policy prior to seeking by shareholders at the 2018 AGM
approval at the 2021 AGM page 114
« Review workforce remuneration arrangements and
alignment with the Directors’ remuneration policy Annual report on remuneration setting out the
* Set the remuneration for Executive Directors and operation of the policy during the year under
senior management review and how the policy will be implemented

Review of continuing evclvement of governance in 2018/20
standards and best practice page 18

Continue the workstreams already in processin

ralation to the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code

Consider additional ways to engage with
employeas on the remuneration policies in place
for Executive Directors and senior management

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committse are on
the Company's website: www.urbanandoivic.com/about-us/
corporate-governancs/remuneration-committes
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Remuneration at a glance

N

/
/
1
|
|

Salary + bonus

Other benefits %I-] Pension

YN

PSP award ; —

| Total
remuneration

\ /K/\J/\ /’

{
) Cash settled ramuneration:} } Benafits ) } Benefits / J Share awards }
’ Short term :| Shortterm ‘ Longterm J ‘ Long term
Group performance in 2019
EPRA NAV EPRA NAV per share Cash flow generation
from plct complsetions
£527.5m 360.3p £34.3m
Dividends per share'
1.8% 3.6
«O /0 0P
1. Paid during the year.

Remuneration across the Group

Total spend on pay

£14.9m
97%

of the workforce? received a
bonus in respect of the year
ended 30 September 2019

Average increase to Executive
Directors’ base salaries!

2.5%
19%

of the workforoe?® were granted
PSP awards during the year
ended 30 September 2019

1
2.

Annual Report

Average increase to
employees' base salaries'?

2.5%

10ctober 2018 to 1 October 2019,
Employees other than Executive Directors.
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

INTRODUCTION

Dear Sharsholder,
| am pleased to introduce the Directors’ remuneration report
for the financial year ended 30 September 2019,

| have chaired the Remuneration Committee since 2017, 1 led
the avolution of tho ourront Dirootors' romuneration polioy, ao
approved by sharoholdoro at the 2018 ACM, and have overseen
its implementation since that date.

This inboduction covers the key activities of the Committee over
the year, work undertaken in relation to the 2018 UK Corporate
Covornanoce Code (the '2018 Code’) and an avorviow of expoaotod
activities for the year ahead. This is followed by the Directors’
remuneration policy and a report on the operation of the pelicy during
the year undor roview. The annual report on rémunoration ontaing
details of payments during the financial year and how we intend to
implement the remuneration policy for the next financial year. This
part of the raport is subject to an advisory vote at the 2020 AGM.

Introduction

The Remuneration Committee's key role is to ensure that the
remunaration policy for Executive Directors is appropriately designed
to promote the long-term success of the Company and is a fair
reward suucture W incentvise Executive Dileutors W deliver the
Group's otratogio objectives and to align their pay and incontivos
with the delivory of those objoctivos and with financial roturnc for
shareholders. The Committee ensures that the remuneration policy
and praoticos for gonior managemont and tho wider worlsforoo aro
aligned with the policy for Executive Directors.

Tho romuneration struoture takes inte acgount the performance

of the Group and of individuals. The Committee also considers
market comparicons and the attraotion, rotontion and motivation

of high calibre individuals throughout the Greup. The Committee is
regpcnsible for the remuneration structure for sanior management,
whioh hag been definod as mombors of tha Exeoutive Managament
Committes, and has oversight of Group workforee reward policies
and remuneration and benefits for all employees. The Committee
works with the Group's I 1R Manager (who was appointed during the
year) and, whoro appropriate, with external ooncultantg, to chouro
that remuneration levels for employees are in line with market
expectations for their level and contribution to the Company.
Executive management, in conjunction with the HR Manager,
assesses the structure and groupings of job families which ensures
analysia and compariacn of comparable roles iy ensure a consistancy
of approach across the Group. The Committee reviews all elements
of remuneration, including salaries, pension, bonus and PSP awards,
which provides a comparison of total remuneration rather than
focusing on individual elements.

The Committee reviews the performance of Executive Directors
against agreed cbjectives when considering remuneration.
Objectives for all other employees, including senior management,
are identified as part of the annual performidnce ieview process
and are assessed in relation to remuneration awards.
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The Committee ensures that the
remuneration policy and practices for
senior management and the wider
workforce are aligned with the policy
for Executlve Directors.

The Executive Directors review the performance objectives of senior
management and it has been agreed that they will report back to
the Remiineration Ciornmittee with an assessment of parformance
apgainst these objectives. This will enable the Cornmittee to have a
clear oversight of the performance objectives of senior management.
The Board also reviews the buginess plans and budgets of projects,
which reflect team cbjectives.

All employees have defined maximum bonus opportunities upon
which the payment of any bonus depends.

During the year

We have spent considerable time reviewing the new governance
reguirements. We have looked at the ways in which we already
comply with the 2018 Code and the agtions required to ensure full
compliance. Included in this report is a sumrnary which sets out the
work we have undertaken to date and the areas on which we remain
focused. The Committee's terms of reference have been updated
to reflect the recommendations of the 2018 Gode and are available
on the Company’s website.

The Committee also reviewed the current Directors’ remuneration
policy during the year to ensure that it is working effectively, is
aligned to the interests of shareholders and stakeholders and is
QR WU it lino with tho Companys long -term businoss strategy,
culture and values. No changes are proposed at the 2020 AGM and
itis anticipated that any revisions to the policy will be proposed at
the 2021 AGM. The structure of our remuneration arrangements for
2019/20 will therefore remain unchanged from that applied in 2018/19.

The Group has adopted a policy of paying more than the living
wage benchmark published by the Living Wage Foundation and is
committed to providing a fair wage for all employees. The Group
operates generous benehts policies in which all employees are
aligible to participate.




Membership and meetings

During the year, the membership of the Remuneration Committes was reviewed by the Nomination and Governanoe Committee and the
Board. On 23 May 2019, Resemary Boot and Sanjeev Sharma were appointed as members of the Committes. Duncan Hunter resigned
as a Non-Executive Director and member of the Committee on 13 February 2019, There were no other changes to the Committee
membership during the year. Jon Di-Stefano will be appointed as a member of the Committee with effect from 1 January 2020.

Attendance by the members of the Committee at the five scheduled meetings held during the year ended 30 September 2019 is

shown below:
Dats of appointment Committee tenure as at Mestings attended)/
Independent to the Gommittes 30 September 2010 eligibie to attend
June Barnes Chair Yes ooIT 2 years 3months 5/6
lan Barlow Member Yes 01/09/16 3vyears1month B/6
Rosemary Boot Member Yes 23/0619 4 months "
Sanjeev Sharma Member Yes 23/06/19 4 months i

Committoo mootings are attended by all members of the
Committee and the Company Secretary. Other Directors and
advigers attend by invitation. Throughout the year the Committee
was advissed by Aon Howitt as indcpendent remuneration conaultants.
No Director or employee is involved in discussions on their own pay.

Agendaiterns are linked to a structured calendar of items for disoussion
and/or decision to ensure that the Committee carries out a thorough
and cffectivo roviow of lsay rogulatory and governanos arcas. Thio
process is managed by the Company Secretary who updates the
calendar on a regular basis to ensure that it is current and reflects
up-te-date guidance and requirements. We receive regular updates
on governance, market and best practice developments and review
our role and the operation of our palicies taking this into account.
We aim to apply best practice in our remuneration policies.

A summary of the key agenda items discussed during the year is set
out later in this report.

Employee engagement

We have three Executive Directors and .90 permanent employees
with 14 members of senior management, all of whom are members
of the Executive Management Committee.

Average length of service is.

Executive Directors 976
Senior management 868
All other employees 522

The Group has established a learning and developnient function
enabling employees the opportunity to enhance their skills and to
develop in their roles. This helps employees to meet their career
aspirations and provides an idoal cpportunity to identify and oultivato
succession plans throughout the Group, encouraging stability.

Wo continug to bo committed to the retention and dovelopmaont
of our workforce and to ensure that Urban&Civic continues to
be a company that seclke to attract, retain and roward top talent,
while not overpaying,

A description of our engagement with the workforce is found in the
corporate governance report.

Corporate governance during the year

Tho Company ic not roquirod to roport on itc complianoo with the
2018 Code until the financial year ending 30 September 2020 but,
as reported last year, has sought early adoption. The Company
Cecretary carried out a detailed analysis of the provisions of the
2018 Code and presented the results and recommendations to the
Committes, which reviewed proposed astions in conjunction with
guidance from the Company's advisers. As a result, we have made
some changes to our operation.

The following is a summary of the key provisions of the 2018 Code
relating to remuneration committees and the actions taken to
address them during the year. The Committee will continue to
monitor and consider best practice and market trends in relation
to these requirements.
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

INTRODUCTION CONTINUED

Corporate governance during the year continued

Area 2018 Code provision Actiontaken
Performance objectives Non-Executive Directors should scrutinise The Remuneration Committee has in place an
and hold to account the performance of established process for the review of the performance
senior management and individual of Executive Directors. During the year, the Cormmittee
Executive Directors against agreed reviewed the process by which it reviews the
performanoce objectives. performance objectives of senior management,
as described elsewhere in this report.
Remuneration Before appointment as chair of the The current Chair of the Remuneration Committee

committee chair

remuneration committee, the appointee
should have served on a remuneration
committee for at least 12 months,

had not served as a member of the Committee for
12 months at the time of appointment as Chair,
which took place prior to the introduction of the
2018 Code. She had, however, attended several
meetings as an observer in advance of the
appointment, providing knowledge and experience
of how the Committee cperates.

When forward planning for the appointment

of the next Remuneration Committee Chair, the
Nomination and Governance Committee will
ensure that any candidate has previously served
as a member of a the Remuneration Committee
for 12 months.

The terms of reference have been amended to
reflect these requirements.

Senior management
and workforce

The remuneration committee should
determine the policy and set remuneration
for the chair, executive directors and senior
management. It should review workforoe
remuneration and related policies and the
alignment of incentives and rewards with
culture, taking these into account when
setting the policy for executive

director remuneration.

The remit of the Remuneration Committee has
been expanded to include the setting of the level
and structure of remuneration (rather than just
overview) for senior management and the review
of workforce remuneration and related policies.

The terms of reference have been amended to
reflect the above requirements.

Post-employment
shareholding requirements

The remuneration committee should
develop a formal policy for post-
empiloyment shareholding requirements.

The ¢current remuneration policy includes share
ownership requirements for Executive Directors.
The Committee has held some initial discussions
on the introduction of post-smployment shareholding
requirements and will review further in 2019/20.
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Area 2018 Code provision Action taken

Share awards Share awards should be released for sale PSP awards for Directors are already subject
on a phased basis and be subject to a total to a three-year vesting peried and two-year
vesting and holding pericd of five years holding period.
or more.

Discretion and judgement Remuneration schemes and policies The Remuneration Committee reviewed proposed
should enable the use of disoretion to amendments to the rules of the Group's Annual
override formulaic outcomes and should Bonus Plan and Performance Share Plan to update
include provisions to enable the company them in line with the 2018 Code recormmendations.
to recover and/or withhold payments. The amendments introduced discretion to override

formulaic vesting outcomes and reviewed malus
and clawback provisions. These amendments
have been approved by the Board.

Pension alignment Pension contribution rates for executive The Committee reviewed the pension provisions
directors, or payments in lieu, should for Exscutive Directors and the workforce. The
be aligned with those available to Group currently operates a non-contributory
the workforce. scheme offering a 10 per cent contribution to an

employee's pension scheme (or salary equivalent).
The rate for incumbent Executive Directors is

15 per cent salary but new Executive Directors will
receive 10 per cent salary, in line with the workforce.
The Cormmmittee will keep the rates for incumbent
Directors under review in 2018/20.

Workforce engagement The remuneration committee should report Cur engagement with the workforce is described in
on what engagement has taken place with more detail in the corporate governanoe report.
the workforce. Options are being considered to disouss remuneration

policies and resultant pay with employees, through
our employee engagement mechanism.

Policy and practices Remuneration polioy and practices should The Committee will address this as part of

support clarity, simplicity, risk, predictability,
proportionality and alignment to culture.

its review of the remuneration policy during
2018/20 and in its setting of objectives for the
Executive Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

nz

Malin activities of the Committee during the year ended 30 S8eptember 2019

Salary and bonus

Approval of salary increases to take effect from 1 October 2018
for Executive Directors and senior management, and review
of awards for the wider workforce.

Assessment of the achievement of the Executive Directors’
bonus objectives for the financial year ended 30 September
2018 and determination of the bonus for Executive Directors
based on the achievement of these objectives.

Approval of bonus awards to senior management and review

of awards to all other employees, based on recommendations
by management and noting the performance metrics applied

by management in proposing these awards.

Mpproval of tho vesting of the doforred share bonus awarda grantod
in respect of the financial year ended 30 September 2016,

in accordance with the rules of the Annual Bonus Plan and the
Deferred Share Bonus Scheme adopted by the Company in 2016,

Review and approval of the Executive Directors’ bonus objectives
for the year ending 30 September 2019 and interim review of
the progress by the Executive Directors on the achievement

of these objectives.

Review of shifts in salary and bonus trends across the Group.

PSP awards

Agsessment of the achievement of the performance conditions
of the PSP awards granted in June 2016, in respect of the
performance period 1 October 2015 to 30 September 2018.

PSP awards were granted in December 2018 which are expected
to vest in December 2021 subject to performance conditions.
The Committee reviewed and approved the PSP awards to
Executive Directors, senior management and all other employees,
and agreed the performance conditions in respect of the
performance period 1 Qctober 2018 to 30 September 2021,

Review of a schedule of headroom of shares held by the
Employee Benefit Trust to ensure that there is sufficient
capacity to issue shares on the exercise of PSP awards.
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Qovernance

Review and action relating to the introduction of the 2018 Code
and agreement of 2019/20 workstream.

Review of schedule of compliance with share ownership guiddlines
for both Executive Directors and selected members of
senior management.

Annual review of appeintments of employees with third parties,
outside of their Urban&Civic role.

Review of the performance and effectiveness of the Committee,
taking into account the duties and responsibilities set outinits
terms of reference.

Review and approval of 2018 Directors’' Remuneration Report
for inclusion in the 2018 Annual Report.

The Committee reviewed and updated its terms of reference
to reflect its expanded remit and responsibilities under the 2018
Code and best practice guidelines.

Received training (in the form of brisfings and presentations at
Committee meetings} on reporting requirements, the implications
of the 2018 Code and other remuneration related matters.

Workforce

Review of management responses to a third party
compensation review, which covered the methodology and
benchmarking applied to workforce remuneration and included
an analysis of market trends.

Approval of the structure and criteria for the assessment of
employees’ bonuses with objectives defined as 50 per cent
corporate goals, 30 per cent personal goals and 20 per cent
business unit goals, in line with the structure for Executive Directors.

Annual review of joiners and leavers.




Performance and reward in the year to 30 September 2019
Cur remuneration framowork is alignad with the Companya
strategic direction and performance and thereis a clear link
between results and rewards. The Group's results for the year
ended 30 September 2015 are discussed in the strategic report
on pages 4 to 83. The Group has reported a total comprehensive
income for the year of £125 million, IFRS net assets of £4030 million
and EPRA net assets of £527.6 million at 30 September 2019,

38 per cent and 96 per cent higher compared against the same
respective net asset valuations at 30 September 2018. Reflecting
performance against EPRA net asset growth targets, individual
performance of the Executive Directors against their personal
objectives and perforinance against cash generation targels,
annual bonus awards for the Executive Directors for the year ended
30 September 2019 were between 614 and 644 per cent of salary
(out of a possible 100 per cent). Further details are set out i the
annual report on remuneration.

The Committes has reviewed achievernent against objectives and
beligves that the remuneration of the Executive Directors reflects
the performance of the Group.

Details of the changes to the salaries of the Executive Directors are
get out in the annual report on remuneration.

Performance Share Plan awards

PSP awards granted in December 2016 are due to vestin
December 2019, based on performance from 1 Oolober 2018 1o
30 September 2019. Following an assessment of performance,
72.2 per cent of the shares are expected to vest. Half of these
awards were subject to an EPRA NAV performance condition and
half were based on a relative TSR performance condition. Further
details are set cut in the annual report on remuneration.

The Committes intends to grant awards under the PSP rules for the
performance pericd from 1 October 2019 to 30 September 2022
within six weeks of the announcement of the results for the year
ended 30 September 2018, While award levels and performance
targets have yet to be determined, award levels will be within the
normal maximum annual grant limits and performance metrics will
be based on EPRA NAV and absolute TSR conditions. We believe
that the TSR measure directly aligns our executive team with the
value created for shareholders over the long term.

The year ahead

The main focus of the Cormittee in the coming year will be to
further develop its role in line with the provisions of the 2018 Code
and to continue the development of the employees’ reward framework,
including the setting of senior management remuneration and the
oversight of remuneration policies for all Group employees. We will
ensure the alignment of workforce remuneration arrangements with
the remuneration policy. We will also continue to review the ways we
communicate senior pay issues.

We will continue to assess the role of the Committee to reflect
corporate governance requircmonts, inctitutional sharcholdor
guidelines and best practice.

Wo will ba roviewing our curront romuneration policy and remuneration
arrangements during the year ahead and any changes will be
proposed to shareholders at the 2021 AGM. Performance will be
rewarded with transparent and compotitive remunoration and will
support the strategic aims and values of the Group.

We will continue to monitor gender pay.

Engagement with shareholders

Wi congultad our major sharcholders whon reviewing our remuncration
policy in 2017 (prior to approval at the 2018 AGM), engaging with
them on all of the proposed policy changes. During the year ended
30 September 2019, there were no changes to the remuneration
policy or issues of concern raised on remuneration by shareholders
and therefore there wae no specific consultation with shareholders
on ramuneration. We intend ta carry out a roviow of tho romunoration
policy next year, pricr to seeking approval at the 2021 AGM. We will
cock oonoultation with our major chargholders on any propocod
changes and we will weloome and encourage engagement with
shareholders during this process.

Al Cominitiee members albend Ui AGM and are avallable to angwer
any queries the shareholders may have.

If you would like to discuss any agpect of the remuneration policy,
please contact me through the Company Secretary, Heather Williams
on heatherwiliams@urbanandcivic.com.

2019 AGM

| hope you find this remuneration report clear and informative and

| lock forward to receiving your support for the resolution to approve
the annual report on remuneration at the 2020 AGM.

June Barnes
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
27 November 2019
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY REPORT

The following is the Directors’ Remuneration Policy report, as
approved by shareholders at the 2018 AGM. There have been
no changes since that date. In the interest of clarity, some minor
updates are made when necessary to reflect changes to base
salaries which occur during the policy's effective period.

Introduction and overview

Tho Group's remuneration poligy ic designed to provide competitive
rewards for its Directors, taking into account the performance of the
Group and individual executives, together with comparisons of pay
conditions throughout the markets in which the Group operates. Itis
the aim of the Committes to attract, retain and motivate high calibre
individualo with a compotitive romunoration paskago. Itic eommon
praoticein the indugtry for total remuneration for Excoutivo Dirostors
to be significantly influenced by bonuses and long-term incentives.

The romunoration packages are oonstructad to provide a balanco
between fixed and variable rewards. Therefore, remuneration
packages for Executive Directors normally include basic salary and
benofits in kind with variablo pay bacod on porformanoe related
annual bonus and long-term incentive plans.

Summary of remuneration policy

Consideration of shareholder views

The Company encourages two-way communication with both its
institutional and private sharehclders and the Committee is committed
te considering shareholder feedback received. This feedback, plus
any additicnal feedback received during any meetings from time to
time, is considered as part of the Group's annual review of remuneration
policy. In addition, the Remuneration Committee will seek to engage
diroctly with major sharoholdars and their repreaentative bodies
should any material changes be made to the remuneration policy.

Consideration of employment

conditions elsewhere in the Group

The Croup employc around 90 poople and tho Committac considors
the gonoral base salary increase for all employooc whon dotormining
the annual salary increases for the Executive Directors and considers
quantum and the structure of pay across the Group more generally
when reviewing the Executive Directors’ remuneration policy.

Employees have not been consulted in respect of the design of
the Croup's cenior exeoutive remuneoration policy, although tho
Commiittee will keep this under review.

The Directors' remuneration policy set out below was approved by shareholders at the 2018 AGM.

How compaonent supports Performance targets
Element conporate strategy QOperation Maximum and recovery provisions
Executive Directors
| Base salary To provide a competitive Basic salaries are reviewed on an annual Thersis no prescribed maximum base Not appiicable.
} salary leval to attract and basis. salary or annual salary increase.
::;r;tf::z;callbre The Committoe saeks to establisha The Committee is guided by the generat
basic salary for each position determined  increase for the broader employee
by individual responsibilities and population but may decide to award a
performance taking into account lower increase for Executive Directors or
comparable sataries for similar indeed exceed this to recognise, for
positions in companies of a similar axample, an increass in the scale, scope
size in the sarme market. or responsibility of the role andfor to take
inte ascount relevant market movernents.
Current salary lovels are set out in the
annual report on remuneration.
Pension To provide a competitive Company contribution normally paid Upr 1015 per cent of salary for existing Not applicable.
level of contribution to monthly into the Company’s pansion Executive Directors. Up to 10 per cent for
pension arrangements. scheme, into a personal pension any new Executive Directors {in fine with
arrangement and/or as a cash the rest of the workforce).
supplement.
Bonefits To provide a competitive Car allowance {or company car}, private Provided at approved cost. Not applicable.
level of benefits. madical insurance, permanent health
insuranoe and life assurance provided,
COther benefits may be provided
where relevant.
Annual bonus Todrive and reward Based on parformance during the Up to 10Q per cent of base salary. Performance period: normally

annual performance of
individuals, toams and
the Group.

relevant financial year.

Bonus will be paid in cash.

one year,

The majarity {if not all of the
performancs targets will be based
on financial targets with any
remainder based on personal/
strategio targets.

Clawback provision operates.
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How componant
sUPPOrts oorporate Parformance targets
Elerment. strategy Operation Maximum and recovery provisions
Executive Directors continued
Long-term Todrive and reward the Awards granted under tha PSP 300 per cent of salary for CEQ and MD. Performance pericd: normally
incentives - lc?fngebeer:u p:rm?e have the following features: 276 per cent of for other Exacutive Di three years.
Performance the interests of & . conditional awards or i/ 26 per cent of an award vests at
Share Plan management. nominal Cost options; threshold performanoe.(o per :.:ent
(PSP} = vesting is dependent on the vests balow threshold), increasing
! . to 100 per cent pro-rata for
satisfaction of performance maximum performan
targets and continued service; 8.
and Performanca will be measured
« awards are subjecttoa a.gajngt TSR and/or relgvant
X . financial measures.
two-year holding period.
Clawback provision operates.
Share Tofurther align The Committes requirgs that Minimum of 800 per cent of salary for the Not applicable.
ewnership exgcutives with Executive Directors satisfy a current CEQ and MD and 250 per cent for any
ideli sharehalders, minimum shareholding other Exagutive Director {including the current
guidelines requirement. FD).
Non-Executive Directors
Fees To provide faes Cash feenormally paidcna There is no presoribed maximum individual feeor  Not applicable.
reflecting timg monthly basis. fea increase.
ronpongiitics otogon | Non-Executive Directorsfoss  Tho Board (exclucing Non-Executiva Drctors)
role. inline w:: th sag are determined by the Executive is guided by the general increase for the broader
o rml:i ded by sim"::e Directors having regard to the employee population, ime commitment, scope
sizod compan v need to attract high calibre and responsibility of the role and/or relevant
165 individuals with the right market movements.
experianas, the nme_ and Current fee levels are set out in the annual report
responsibilities entaited and .
. . on remuneration.
comparative fees paid in the
market in which the
Group operates.
Taxable benefits may be
provided where appropriate
including the reimbursement
of expanses.
Notes:

A description of how the Company intends to implement the policy et out in this table is fiound in the annuad report on remuneration.

2. Below Board lavel, a lower or no annual bonus may apply. In general, these differences arise from the development of rernuneration arrangements that are market competitive for
the various categories of individuals, together with the fact that remunaration of the Executive Directors and senior exacutives typically has a greater smphasis on parformance

resated pay.

The choice of the performance metrics applicable to the annual bonus scheme reflects the Committee’s betief that any incentive compensation should be appropriately challenging
and tied to both the delivery of financia targets and specific individual objectives. Further details of the choice of performance measures and performance targets are set out in the
anrual report on remuneration.

. The perfarmanoe conditions applicable to the PSP (see the annual report on remuneration) are selected by the Remuneration Committee on the basis that they reward the delivery
of long-term returns to shareholders and are consistent with tha Compary's obiective of delivering superior levels of long-term value to shareholders.

The Committee operates the PSP in acoordanocs with the plan rules and the Listing Rules and the Committee, consistent with market practice, retains discretion over a number
of areas relating to the operation and administration of the plan. Dividend equivalents may be paid on PSP awards.

Executive Directors may participate in any all-employee share plan to the extent operated.

. For the avoidance of doubt, in approving this Directors’ remuneration policy, authority is given to the Company to honour any commitments entered into with current or former
Directors (such as the payment of a pension, the payment of last year's annual bonus and the vesting/exercise of share awards granted in the past). Details of any payments to former
Directors will be set out in the annual report on remuneration as they arise.
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY REPCORT CONTINUED

Reward scenarios

The charts below show how the composition of each of the Executive Directors’ remuneration packages varies at different levels of
performance under the policy, as a percentage of total remuneration opportunity and as a total value.

£000

Chiaf Exsoutive Offios Managing Director Qroup Finances Direoter

£3000 —

£2578 £28570
£2500 —

£2040 £2032
£2000 —
% 8%
£1500 — 53% 5% £1430
£1172
£2.08 £1008
£1000 — 54%
7% ™% %
2 5% am i1s S £696
£s31 ™ £623 i 2o% |
£500 — £360 o | 25% n%
100% 62% 26% 20% 0% 52% 20% 20%
w0 5% % 26%
£ T | ! [ T T |
Minimum Targmt Maurmum Max+ 50% Minimum Target Maximum Max+ 60% Minimum Target Maximum Max+ 50%
growth grawth Zrowth
O Fixed pay O Annual bonus O Long-term incentives
Notes:

1. The minimurm parformance scenario comprises the fixed elements of remuneration only, including:

* galary, as set out in the annual report on remuneration;
* pension {15 per cont of salary); and

* benefits are approximated.

2. The on-target level of bonus is taken to ba 50 per cent of the maximum bonus opportunity, and the on-target level of PSP vesting is assumed to be 26 per cent of the face value of the
PSP award. These values are included in addition to the componants/values of minimum remuneration.

3. Maximum remuneration assumes full bonus pay-out (100 per cent of salary only) and the full face valus of the PSP {i.s. 250 per cent of salary for the CEC and MD, and 176 per ceet for

the FD}, in addition to fixad companants of minimum remuneration.

4. “Maximum plus 50 per cent growth™ uses the same assumptions as the “Maximum® performance scenaric, but alsc assumes that Urban&Civic's share price increases by b0 per cent

aver the three-year performance period.

B. PSP award sizes are shown as 260 per cent of base salary for the CEQ and MD. and 175 per cent of base salary for the FD: These levels are in ling with the intended award sizes for the
29 PSP grants. Thay are within the policy maximums of 300 per cent for the CEQ and MD. and 276 per cent of base salary for the FD.

Approach to recruitment and promotions

The remuneration package for a new Director would be setin
accordance with the terms of the Company's prevailing approved
remuneration policy at the time of appointment and would take into
account the skills and experience of the individual, the market rate
for a candidate of that experience and the importance of securing
the relevant individual.

Salary would be provided at such alevel as required to attract the
most appropriate candidate and may be set initially at a below
mid-market level on the basis that it may progress towards the
mid-market level once expertise and performance have been
proven and sustained. The annual bonus potential would be limited
to 100 per cent of salary and, depending on the timing of the
appointment, the Committee may deem it appropriate to set
different annual bonus performance conditions to the current
Executive Directors for the first performance year of appointment.
Granits under the PSP would be limited normally to 300 per cent of
salary and can be made shortly following an appointment (assuming
the Company is not in a close period). The Committee may provide
an allowance or reimbursement of any reasonable experses
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(including tax thereon) in relation to the relocation of an Executive
Director. Any ongoing costs will be met by the Company for a pericd
of no more than 12 months.

In addition, the Committee may offer additional cash and/for
share-based elements to replace deferred or incentive pay forfeited
by an Executive Isaving a previous employer if required in order to
facilitate, in exceptional circumstances, the recruitment of the
relevant individual. The Committee would seek to ensure, where
possible, that these awards would be consistent with awards
forfeited in terms of vesting periods, expected value and
performance conditions.

For an internal Executive Director appointment, any variable pay
element awarded inrespect of the prior role may be allowed to pay
out according to its terms. In addition, any other ongoing remuneration
obligations existing prior to appointment may continue.

For external and internal appointments, the Committee may agree
that the Company will meet certain relocation and/for incidental
expenses as appropriate.




Service contracts for Executive Directors

The policy on termination is that the Group does not make
payments beyond its contractual obligations. The Committee will
seek to ensure that no unjustified payments for failure are made.

All Executive Directors are employed on rolling contracts subject to
no more than 12 months' notice from either the Executive Director
or the Company, given at any time. Service contracts do not provide
explicitly for termination payments or damages but the Company
may make payments in lisu of notice. For this purpose, pay in lieu of
notice would consist of basic salary and other relevant emoluments
for the relevant notice period excluding any bonus. In addition, the
Company has discretion in certain circumstances to pay certain
feos relating to the termination, for example, fees for legal advice
received by the Exeoutive Director. The Committee may pay any
statutory entitlements or settle or compromise claims in connection
with a termination of employment, where considered in the best
interests of the Company.

There are no special provisions cortained in any of the Executive
Directors' contracts which provide for longer periods of notice

or additional payments on a change of control of the Company.
Further, there are no speoial provisions providing for additional
compensation on an Executive Director's cessation of employment
with the Group.

An annual bonus may be payable with respact to the proportion of
a financial year served, although it will be pro-rated for time and paid
at the normal payment date. Any share-based entitlernents granted
to an Executive Director under the Company’s share plans will be

determined based on the relevant plan rules. In certain prescribed
ciroumstances set cut in the plan rules of the relevant share plan
{for example, death, injury or disakility, retirernent or other circumstances
at the discretion of the Committee), “good leaver” status may be
applied. For good leavers, awards will usually vest at the normal
vesting date, subject to the satisfaction of the relevant performance
conditions at that time and will be reduced pro-rata to reflect the
proportion of the vesting period actually served, although the
Remuneration Committee has discretion to allow these awards

to vest at an earlier date (although not earlier than the date of
cessation) and/or disapply time pro-rata.

The Board allows Executive Directors to accept appropriate outside
non-executive director appointments provided the aggregate
commitment is compatible with their duties as Executive Directors.
The Executive Directors concerned may retain fees paid for these
services, which will be subjeot to approval by the Board.

Non-Executive Directors

All Non-Exeocutive Directors have a remuneration agreement for an
initial period of 12 months and thereafter on a rolling basis subject
to three monthe’ netico by cithor the Mon Exacutive Director or the
Company, given at any timo. In addition, tomporary additional day
rates can be provided to certain Non-Executive Directors. Full
details on any additional day rates are set out in the annual report
on remuneration.

In the ovent of termination of their appointmont Mon Excoutivo
Directors are not entitled to any compensation.
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

How the remuneration policy was implemented in the year ended 30 September 2019
Directors' remuneration
The details set out on pages 118 to 125 of this report are subject to audit.

Long-term
Basic salary/foes’ Benafits® Bonus® noentivas* Pension® Total fixed Total variable Total

2018 2018 20019 2018 2008 2018 2008 2018 2010 2008 201 2018 2019 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 E£'000 £000 E000 £000 £000 £0O0C  £000 £000 E000 £000 EO0D0 £000

Executive Directors

Nigel Hugil!® 421 408 3B 34 21 364 884 310 63 a1 519 603 1166 664 1674 1167
Robin Butler’ 421 408 2T 26 2N 354 884 310 63 61 511 496 1166 664 1966 1169
David Wood 288 280 19 17 177 234 513 278 43 42 360 339 680 512 1040 851
Non-Executive

Directors

lan Barlow 60 60 - - - — - — - = 60 60 - - 60 60
June Barnes® 60 655 —_- = - = - = —_ 60 b5 —_ 60 55
Rosemary Boot® 8 — - — - - - - - = 18 — - — 8 —
Alan Dickingson'™ 48 125 —_ — —_ — —_ — —_ — 148 126 _ — 148 126
Jon Di-Stefano" 86 45 - — - - - — - — 66 45 - = 66 456
Sanjeev Sharma® 18 —_ _ — - — _ — _ — 18 — —_ — 18 —
Duncan Hunter? 22 60 _ — - — —_ — —_— — 22 80 — — 2 680

1. Basic salary/fees includes salary and fees receivad during the period that each Diregtor was a Director of Lirban&Civic ple.
2. Includes a fully expensed company car of cash alternative and private medical insurance.

3. Further information on the determination of annual bonus payments is set out in the information following this table.

4,

. The 2018 long-term incentiva disclosure refors to the awards granted in Decernber 2018 which had a performance periced which ran from 1 Qctober 2016 to 30 September 2019
Following an assessment of parformanoo, T2.2 por cont of the chares are expected to vest in December 2016, As the awards have not yet vested, the figures shown in tha table ara
based on the average share price in the three months to 30 September 2019, whichis 318 0p. The 2018 long-term incentive disclosure refers to the awards granted in June 2016
which had a performance period which ran fram 1 October 2015 to 30 September 2(18. Following an assessment of performance, 59.7 per cent of the shares vested on 2t June 2019,
These figures have been restated from last year's report using the actual share price on the vesting date {322.0p). The figures shown in tho table in last yoar's report were based on
the average share prica in the three manths ta 30 September 2018 (303.98p). Further details relating to performance targets, weightings and outcomes can be fourd on page 120

5. Pension paymonts oguivalont to 16 por gent of salary are made as a cash supplement to the Directors or directly to a pension scheme.
8. Benefits for Nigel Hugill for 2018 have been restated to include a company car expense claim relating to 2018 which was paid in the 2018 financial year.

7. Aspermitted by the UK Corporate Governance Code, Executive Directors may be permétted to act as a director of a non-Group company and to retain ary eamings they receive for that
role. During the year ended 30 September 2019, Robin Butler was a direator of New Heritage Regeneration Limited and retained earnings of £20.000 for that role (2018: £20.000).

8. Diragtor’s fee increased from £656000 pa to £60.000 p.a on 1 November 2018
9. Rosamary Boot and Sanjeev Sharma were appointed as Diractors on 10 May 2019,
10. Chairrnan's foe inoreased from £125000 pa to £150,000 p.a on 1 November 2018,

. Appointed as Chair of the Audit Committee on 13 February 2019. Directer's fee increased from £46000 p.a, to £60,000 p.a. on that date. Resigned as Chair and member of the Audit
Committee on 18 November 2019. Fee reduced to £50,000 on that date.

12. Duncan Hunter resigned on 13 February 2019,

Determination of the annual bonus for the year anded 30 September 2019

The annual bonus for the year ended 30 September 2019 was capped at 100 per cent of salary, with 60 per cent of the annual bonus
opportunity based on growthin EPRA NAV, 30 per cent based on personal/strategic objectives and 20 per cent based on cash generation
objectives. The total bonus payable was 644 per cent of base salary for Nigel Hugill, 544 per cent of base salary for Robin Butler and

614 per cent of base salary for David Wood. Further details are set out below.

EPRA NAYV growth
EPRA NAV at 30 September 2019 was £6275 million. This resulted in 278 per cent of base salary (out of a possible 50 per cent) being payable to
the Executive Directors. The targets for the year ended 30 September 2019, and the associated potential bonus payments, were as follows:

Annual bonus target EPRANAY Bonus pavabie
Threshold £601.8m 10 per cent of base salary
Target £519.2m 26 per cent of base salary
Maximum £5482m 50 per cent of base salary
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Determination of the annual bonus for the year ended 30 September 2019 continued
Personal/strategic objectives
Personal objectives for the year ended 30 September 2019 were set to measure the individual performance of Executive Directors and included:

Executive Drector  Parsonal objeotive Assaessment of achievernent

NigelHugill = Maintenance and enhancement of relationships with = Continued positivo rolationship with koy sharoholdors. Rocovory and
institutional investors, stability in the share price. Achievement of Premium Listing.

Funding relationships are supportive and stable. Particularly strong
relationship with Homes England.

Development of leng-term funding sources.

Drive progress in achieving planning consents on * Key achisvement during the year was the grant of outline consent
strategic sites. at Waterbeach.

Maintenance of high quality corporate governance. * Corporate Governance continues to develop as the organisation grows.

Continued presentation of developrnent opportunities.
Oveorall strong, consistent progress acress the delivery of all sites.

Robin Butler * The sourcing of additional strategio sites.

Delivery of projects in line with budget and
agreed timescales.

Maintain strong leadership across the Group and * Excellent progress on strengthening management structures and
management and mativation of staff. Development processes as the organisation continues to grow.

of appropriate management and succession

planning structures.

Drive overall performance of Catesby businsss. * Porformance is strong with significant achievement during a challenging period.

David Wood * Development of banking and funding relationships  * Continued positive relationship with Homes England. Bank facilities with

toensure adequate funding of Group borrowing needs.  HSBC niow in place.

Maintenance and enhancement of relationships with * Good progress on building a relationship with institutional investors,
institutional investors, working closely with the Chief Executive.

Achieve Premium L.isting on time and on budget. * Achievement of Premium Listing.

* Management and development of alfexternaland  * Considerable progress in improving financial reporting at all levels.
Board reporting.

The Committes scored the Executive Directors' individual performance based on an unweighted objective assessment of the level of
attainment of each of the Executive Directors having regard to specific areas of responsibility. The Committes approved payments related
to personal objectives in the range of 204 per cent to 234 per cent being paid to current Executive Directors as set out in the table below:

Exacutive Diractor Maximum amount payable Actual amount payable
Current Directors

Niget Hugill 30 per cent of base salary 234 per cent payable
Robin Butler 30 per cent of base salary 234 per cent payable
David Woed 30 per cent of base salary 204 per cent payable
Cash generation

Cash generated from completions on strategic sites during the year ended 30 September 2019 was £34.3 million. This resulted in 131 per cent
of base salary (out of a possible 20 per cent) being payable to the Executive Directors. The targets for the year ended 30 September 2019,
and the associated potential bonus payments, were as follows:

Annual bonus target Reverue Bonus payable
Threshold £260m 4 per cent of base salary
Target £333m 10 per cent of base salary
Maximum £3686m 20 per cent of base salary

Board changes/payments for loss of office

During the year, Rosemary Boot and Sanjeev Sharma were appointed to the Board as Non-Executive Directors on 10 May 2019,
Duncan Hunter resigned as Non-Executive Director on 13 February 2019. On the same date, lan Barlow was appointed as Senior
independent Director and Jon Di-Stefano was appointed as Chair of the Audit Committee (succeeding lan Barlow) and a member
of the Nomination and Governance Gommittes. On 23 May 2019, Rosemary Boot and Sanjeev Sharma were appointed as members
of the Remuneration Committee and Rosemary Boot was appointed as a member of the Audit Committee. There were no other
changes to the Board during the year ended 30 September 2019. Subsequent to the year end, on 18 Novermber 2019, Jon Di-Stefano
resigned as Chair of the Audit Committee and Jan Barlow resurned this role.

There were no payments for loss of office.
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

Payments to past Directors
There were no payments to past Directors.

Performance Share Plan (PSP) awards in respect of the performance period ended 30 September 2019

The awards granted on 7 December 2018 (in accordance with the Performance Share Plan 2016 rules) are expected to vest in December 2019
Half of these awards were subject to an EPRA NAV performance condition and half were based on a relative TSR performance condition.
Following an assessment of performance, as shown in the table below, it is expected that 72.2 per cent of these awards will vest.

Threshod Maximum ‘
vesting vesting Threshold Maximum ‘
Measura (% of award) (% of award) target target Achievernent Quitoome
EPRA NAV growth 12.5% 50% RPI+3%pa RPI+125% pa. Actual EPRA NAV 9.2%
aquivalent to RPI +6.0% 244%
Urban&QCivic TSR rank vs
FTSE 350 Real Estate 125% 50% Median rank Upper quartile rank 956% 478%
Total T72.2%

As a result of this performance outcome, the following number of shares are expected to vest to the Executive Directors:
Nigel Hugill 279,632 shares, Robin Butler 279632 shares, and David Wood 162,207 shares.

Performance Share Plan (PSP) awards granted in the year ended 30 September 2019 which could vest in future years

On 7 December 2018, PSP awards were granted to Executive Directors (in accordance with the Performance Share Plan 2018 rules as
amended and approved by shareholders on 8 February 2018) as set out befow. Executives not on the Board of the Company are typically
eligible for PSP awards.

The number of shares granted to each current Executive Director on 7 December 2018 under the PSP is set out below:

Number Amount Thrashold Weighting
of awards Faoe valua ofbasesajary  End of performance period vesting' {ofaward)®  Performance condition ang performance range
Nigel Hugill 443369  £1,261800 300% 30 September 2021 25% 50% EPRA NAV growth®
25% 50% TSR growth*
Robin Butler 443369  £1.261800 300% 30 September 2021 25% 50% EPRA NAV growth?®
25% 50% TSR growth*
David Wood 177336  £604,700 175% 30 September 2021 26% 50% EPRA NAV growth®
26% 50% TSR growth*

1. Expressed as a percentage of shares subject to the performance condition.
2. Expressed as a percentage of tha shares awarded under the PSP

3. CMAnct sasct valuo parformanese (60 per sont woighting) must increace by more than 5.0 per oent per annum for 26 par cent vasting and must ineraass by mara than 12 () per cant
per annum for 100 per cent vesting.

4. Total shareholder return (S0 per cent weighting) must increass by more than 5.0 per cent per annum for 25 per cent vesting and must increase by more than 12.C per cent per annum
for 100 per cent vesting.

Implementation of the remuneration policy for the year ending 30 September 2020
The following section sets out how the Remuneration Committee intends to implement the remuneration policy for the year ending
30 September 2020.

Base salary

Base salary levels for the Chief Executive, Managing Director and Finance Directer have been increased by 2.5 per cent. These increases
arein line with the increase in base salaries of the general workforce. Base salary levels for the Executive Directors as at 1 October 2019
and 10ctober 2018 are shown below:

Director Title 2019 2018 % increase
Nigel Hugill Chief Executive £431100 £420800 25
Robin Butler Managing Director £431100 £420600 25
David Woed Group Finance Director £2956,600 £288400 26

The next salary review date is expected to be 1 October 2020.
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Pension
The Group will contribute 16 per cent of base salary for all Executive Directors (payable into a pension arrangement or as a salary supplement).
New Executive Directors will have contribution to pension set at 10 per cent of base salary, in line with the rest of the workforce.

Benefits
Benefits provided will continue to include a fully expensed company car or cash alternative, private medical insurance, permanent health
insurance and life assurance. Other benefits may be payable where appropriate.

Annual bonus

For the year ending 30 September 2020, the annual bonus structure will be unchanged from that operated in the prior year, as set out inthe
policy report on pages 114 to 117. The maximum bonus opportunity will be 100 per cent of base salary with 50 per cent of the annual bonus
opportunity based on growth in EPRA NAV, 30 per cent based on personalfstrategic objectives and 20 per cent based on cash generation.
Annual bonus targets for the year ending 30 September 2020 are currently considered to be commercially sensitive although, as in previous
years, retrospective disclosure will ba provided in the 2020 annual report on remuneration. The Remuneration Committee retains discretion
to reduce (but not increase) annual bonuses, for example, in the event that the share price diverges markedly from reported growth in EPRA NAV.

Long-term incentives

Award levels and performanoe targets are yet to be determined. Award levels will be within the normal maximum annual grant limits and
performance metrics will be baged on EPRA NAV and TSR conditions and measured over the performance period from 1 October 2019
to 30 September 2022. Full details of the award levels for Executive Directors and the performance targets will be provided in the relevant
Stock Exchange announcement which will be published immediately following grant.

The Remuneration Committes intends to grant awards under the PSP within six weeks of the announcement of the results for the year
ended 30 September 2019.

Clawback provisions

Consistent with best practice, the Company will operate clawback provisions in respect of annual bonus and PSP awards in the year ending
30 September 2020. The Committee may withhold (malus’) or recover (‘clawback’} awards/payments within a period of three years from
award in the event that the Company materially misstates its financial results, there is an error in assessing the performance targets and/or
participants cease employment as a result of misconduct on the part of the individual.

Non-Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors’ fees are reviewed annually and an inoreass was approved by the Board to take effect from 1 November 2019
The base fae for Non-Executive Directors is £50,000 p.a. (increased from £45,000 p.a.) with an additional £15000 p.a. payable to the
Senior Independent Director and to the chairs of the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination and Governance Committess,

Non-Executive Directors’ fees as at 1 October 2018, 1 October 2019 and 1 Novemnber 2019 are shown below:

1November 1 October 1Qotober

209 2019 2008

Alan Dickinson £155,000 160,000’ £125000

lar Barlow £66,000 60,000 £60000

June Barnas £65,000 80,0002 £55000
Rosemary Boot £60,000 45,000 nfa’

Jon Di-Stefano? £65,000 60,000 £45000
Sanjeev Sharma £50,000 45,000 n/a’

1. Annual fee increased to £15C,000 with effact from | November 2(18.

2. Annual fee increased to £60,000 with effect from | November 2018.

3 Appointed o the Board on 10 May 2019,

4. Annual fee increased to £60000 with effect from 13 February 2019 on appointment as Chair of the Audit Committee. Resigned as Chair and member of the Audit Committee
on 18 November 2018, Fee reduced to £60000 on that date.

Itis expected that the Non-Executive Directors’ fees will next be reviewed with effect from 1 Qctober 2020.

Annual Report and Accounts 2019 — Urban&Civic plo 121



DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

Statement of Directors’ shareholdings and share interests
Full details of unvested performance share awards in the Company held by Executive Directors in office at 30 September 2018, together
with dotails of awards grantod to all Direotors wha hold office during the year, are shown below. Vested shares are included in the table un

page 118.

Number Share price
of awards Date of grant at date of grant Exarcise pricg Exercise period
Nigel Hugill 387302 7 December 2016 20475p Nil 7 December 2019 to 6 Decermnber 2026
406153 8 February 2018 3024p Nil 8 February 2021 to 7 February 2028
443359 7 December 2018 2846p Nil 7 December 2021 to B8 December 2028
Robin Butler 387302 7 December 2018 204.75p Nil 7 December 2019' to 6 December 2026
406,163 8 February 2018 3024p Nil 8 February 202110 7 February 2028
443360 7 December 2018 2846p Nil 7 December 2021 to 6 December 2028
David Woocd 224664 7 Dacember 2016 204.75p Nil 7 December 2019 to 6 December 2026
264,629 8 February 2018 3024p Nil 8 February 2021 to 7 February 2028
171336 T December 2018 2846p Nil 7 December 2021 to 6§ December 2028

1. 72.2 per cent of the shares are expected to vest in Decembar 2019; see table on page 120,

Directore’ shareholdings
The tablo bolow eets cut Directorg’ sharghoidings, which aro bonoficially owned or aubjcct to a performance or service condition,

Deferred shares under Share awards subject 10 Share awards no longer subject to Interasts in
Interests in ordinary shares the bonus schemea performance conditions! performance conditions ordinary
30 Septermber 30 September 30 September 30 September 30 Septamber 30 September 30 Saptember 30 September ?::;;
2019 2018 2018 2018 2019’ 208 2018 2018 of salary®

Current Directors
Nigel Hugill 1,361,689 11,2700 130,174 164,001 1,235,814 963678 164,473 98217 1.042%
Robin Butler 1,413,318 1273843 79136 164,001 1235814 963678 98,260 98,217 1,082%
David Wood 84,776 93627 76,078 76666 666620 623766 109,209 22960 106%
lan Barlow n2,272 12,272 — — — — — — nfa
June Barnes 20,037 20037 - — — — —_ — n/a
Rosemary Boot® 8100 nfa — — — — —_ — n/a
Alan Dickinson 88,889 88,889 — — — — —_ — n/a
Jon Di-Stefano 4,000 4,000 — — — — —_ — n/a
Sanjeev Sharma® — nfa — — —_ — —_ _ nfa

Past Directors

Duncan Hunter 884.842* 864642 — —_ —_ — — — n/a

1. Details of the unvested PSP awards of Executive Directors as at 30 September 2018 are shown in the table at the top of this page.

2. Based on tha numbor of shares boneficially held, tho averago share prioc for the month ended 30 September 2019 {322 Op) and the relevant base salary at 30 September 2019.
Share ownership guidelines as set out in the Directors' remuneration policy are that Executive Directors should satisfy a minimum shareholding requirement: minimum of 500 per cent
for the current Chiof Exogutive and Managing Director and 280 per cont for any other Cxecutive Director, including the current MHnance Director.

If haldings of unvested shares undar the Deferred Share Bonus Scheme and of share awards no longer subject to performance conditions (both net of tax) are included in this
calculation, the percentage of salary increases to: Nigel Hugill 1158 per cent, Robin Butler 1,153 per cent and David Wood 215 per cent.

3. Appointed as a Director on10 May 2019
4. Holding as at 13 February 2019, the date on which Duncan Hunter resigned as a Director.
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Directors’ service contracts

Details of the service contracts of current Directors are set out below:

Executive Directors

Potential payment

Company Unexpired term onchange of
Current Directors notica pariod Contract date of contract' Potential termination payment controlfliquidation
Nigel Hugill 12 months 28 April 2014 Rolling contract 12 monthsg' salary and other relevant Nit
emoluments excluding bonus
Robin Butler 12 months 28 April 2014 Rolling contract 12 months’ salary and other relevant Nil
emoluments excluding bonus
David Wood 12 months 1Jduly 2016 Rolling contract 12 months’ salary and other relevant Nil
emoluments excluding bonus
1. Contracts will continue until terminated by notice either by the Comparny or the Director.
Non-Executive DlreCtorS Netica panod Contract date
lan Barlow 3 months 2 August 2016
June Barnes 3 months 23 September 2016
Rosemary Boot 3 months 9 May 2019
Alan Dickinson 3 moniths 23 September 2016
Jon Di-Stefano 3months 29 August 2017
Sanjeev Sharma 3 months 9 May 2019

TSR performance graph and table

The graph shows the Company’s performance, measured by TSR, compared with the FTSE All Share Index and the FTSE 350 Supersector
Real Estate index over the past ten years. The Committee considers these to be relevant indices for TSR comparison. Note that TSR prior
to admission is based solely on the TSR of Terrace Hill (Urban&QCivic was not listed at that time).
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DIRECTORS® REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

Chief Executive ten-year history

The table below sets out tho single figure of total remuneration for the Chief Cxecutive for the last tan years. Prior to the date of Listing

(22 May 2011} we hava shown the singlo figure for the Chief Exooutive of Terrace Hill.

Single Annual borus PSP veating
figure of total pay-out aganst
remuneration against maximum

Year Incumbent £000 maximum’ opportunity
2018/19 Nigel Hugill? £1674 84.4% 72.0%3
201718 Nigel Hug £ns7 866% 50.7%
201617 Nigel Hugitl £1190 62% 287%
2016/16 Nigel Hugil £675 3% —
201415 Nigel Hugitl £6861 29% —
201314 Nigel Hugill £615 nfa n/fa*
201314 Philip Leech® £636 n/a —
2012413 Philip Leech £662 nfa —
201112 Philip Leech £345 n/a —
2010/1 Philip Leech £400 nfa n/a®
200840 Philip Leech £206 nfa —

1. A discrotionary annual bonus schomo without o maximum was opcrated historically (under Terrace | ill). As & result it is not possile to show the annual bonus payment ag &

R TS

percentage of the maximum opportunity.

Appointed Executive Chairman of Lirban&Civic on 22 May 20W4. Resignod as Chairman and was appointed as Chief Executive on 24 March 2018.

Expected vesting figure. See table on page 120.

No awards were granted with a performance period ended in 2013/14.
Chief Executive of Terrace Hill until 22 May 2014.

No awards were granted with a performance period ended in 2010/11,

Percentage change in remuneration of Chief Executive and employees

Yaar ahded Year anded
30 September 30 September
2018 2018 %
£'000 £000 change
Chief Executive
Salary 4N 408 32
Benefits 35 34 29
Bonus 2n 364 (234)
Total 727 798 87
Average employee"?
Salary 22 100 t210)]
Benefits 1 7 571
Bonus a6 36 (2.8)
Total 138 143 (36)
1. Including all Executive Directors.
2. 208 excluding costs relating te staff employed at the Hampton Hotel at Stansted Airport, which was soid on 16 October 2017,
Relative importance of the spend on pay
Year ended Year ended
30 Beptember 30 September %
200 2018 change
Staff costs (£m)'2 124 4 88
Dividends paid during the year (£m} 6.2 45 16
EPRA net asset value (£m) 62756 4812 96
Total shareholder return (per cent) 79 191 (6886)

1. including alt Executive Directors.

2. 2018 excluding costs relating to staff employed at the Hampton Hotel at Stansted Airport, which was sold on16 Ootober 2017,
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Details of the Remuneratioh Committee, advisers to the Committee and their fees

The Committee determines the specific remuneration packages for each of the Executive Directors and no Director is involved in any
decisions as to his own remuneration. The Committee has aceess to information and advice provided by the Chief Executive and the Group
Finance Director and has access to independent advice where it considers appropriate. Aon Hewitt acts as independent adviser to the
Committee and the Committee is satisfied that there are no connections with the Group that may impact their objectivity and independence.
Aon Hewitt does not provide any other services to the Company and was paid £24.420 in respect of the year ended 30 September 2019.

Statement of voting

The table below shows the voting outcomes of the resolutions put to shareholders regarding the Directors’ remuneration report (at the AGM

in February 2019} and the Direotors’ remuneration policy (at the AGM in February 2018).

Resolution For the resclution’ %  Againstthe resolution % Votes withheid?
Directors' remuneration report (2019) 18406557 9910 10669892 080 4618
Directors' remuneration policy (2018) 123681708 9999 9,360 ool 15,061

1. Includes discretionary votes.

2. A vote withheld is not a vote in law and is not sounted in the calculation of votes for or against a resolution.

As at the date of the meeting there were 146,044,682 ordinary shares of 20p each in issue.

June Barnes
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
27 Novemnber 2019
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Additional disclosure

Additional information which is incorporated into

this Directors’ report by cross reference, including
information required in accordance with the Companies
Act 2008 and Listing Rule 9.84 of the Financial Conduct
Authority's Listing Rules, can be located in the following
sections of the Annual Report:

Note tothe
congolidated

financial statemants Pages
Strategic report
Business model and strategy 8toll
Long-term viability staterment 33
Pringipal risks 3HMwdl3
Futurs business developments 441047
Environmental matters 68t0 b2
Greenhouse gas emissions 62
Engagement with employees 831086
Governance review
Corporate governance B86to 129
Financial statements
Capitalised interast b 153
Financial instruments 19 162
Contracts of significance 23 167
Details of long-term
incentive schemeas 24 B8
Related party transactions 26 17C
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Introduction

The Directors present their report together with the audited
accounts for the year ended 30 September 2018, The principal
activities of the Group during the year continue to be property
development and investment, both direotly and through joint
venture arrangemsnts.

Company status and branches

Urban&QCivic plo is incorporated in the UK and registered in Scotland.
Its registered office is in Scotland and its head offica is in London.

It has no branches. Urban&Civic plo is listed on the London Stock
Exchange Main Market.

Results and dividends

TFhe Group reported a profit for the year of £12.7 million

(2018: £187 million} as shown in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 138. An interim dividend of 14p
per share was paid on 12 July 2019 to shareholders on the regjster
on 7 June 2019. A final dividend of 2.6p per share is recommended
for approval at the 2020 AGM and, subject to shareholder approval,
will be paid on 21 February 2020 to shareholders on the register on
10 January 2020. The total dividend paid during the year amounts
to £6.2 million (2018 £4.6 million), of which 2.2p per share represents
the 2018 final dividend and 14p per share represents the 2019
interim dividend.

Directors
The Directors who held office during the year and up 1o the date
of this report are listed below:

Chairman'

Alan Dickinson Chairman

Executive Directors

Nigel Hugill Chief Exacutive

Robin Butler Managing Director
David Wood Group Finance Director
Independent Non-Executive Directors

lan Barlow Senior Independent Non-Executive Director
June Barnes

Rosemary Boot?

Jon Di-Stefano

Sanjeev Sharma?

Former Directors

Duncan Hunter® Senicr Independent Non-Exeoutive Director

1. Independert on appaintment.
2. Appointed 10 May 2019,
3. Resigned 13 February 2019,




Biographical details of the Directors are contained on pages 68
and 69.

The Directors’ remuneration report, which includes details of Directors’
service agreements and their interests in the shares of the Company,
is set out on pages 106 to 125,

Copies of the service agreements of the Exeoutive Directors and letters
of appointment for the Non-Executive Directors are available for
ingpection at the Company’s registered office during normal business
hours and will be available for ingpection at the Company’s AGM.

In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code, all of the
Directors will offer themselves for election or re-election at the
2020 AGM.

Directors’ liability insurance and indemnity

The Company maintains Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance.
To the extent permitted by UK law, the Company indemnifies its
Directors against claims brought against them as a consequence
of the execution of their duties as Directors of the Company-

Charitable and political donations

Charitable donations during the year were £46,000 (2018: £35000).
In addition, together with its joint venture partners, the Group made
further charitable donations of £22,000 (2018: £9,000). The Group
supported a number of charities including national and local charitable
organisations. These covered a range of causes, including local youth,
sports and social clubs, charities that help train the unemployed back
into work and community environment charities.

Authority was granted at the 2019 Annual General Meeting

(the '2019 AGM'} to enable the Group to make political donations up
to an aggregate amount not exceeding £150,000. That authority
will expire at the 2020 AGM and a resolution will be proposed for
its renewal. The Group made no political donations during the year
(2018: £Nil).

Change of control

There are a number of agreemants that take effect, alter or terminate
upon a change of control of the Company following a takeover bid.
Given the commercial sensitivity of these agreements, the Directors
do not intend to disclose specific details.

The Group's Performance Share Plan contains provisions relating to the
vesting of awards in the event of a change in control of the Company.

There are no agreements between the Company and its Directors
or employees providing for compensation for a loss of office or
employment that occurs specifically because of a takeover bid.

Group structure

Details of the Group's subsidiary undertakings and joint ventures
and assooiates are set out in note 10 to the Company financial
statements on pages 177 and 178.

Share capital

Details of the Company's issued share capital are shownin

note 20 to the consolidated finarcial statements on page 166.

As at 30 September 2019, there were 145,148 088 ordinary shares
of 20p each inissue, each carrying one vote and all fully paid.

There is only one class of share inissue and there are no restrictions
on the transfer of shares in the Company other than those specified
by law or regulation {for example, insider trading laws) and pursuant
to the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority whereby
certain employees of the Group require the approval of the
Company to deal in the ordinary shares.

On a show of hands at a general meeting of the Company, every
holder of ordinary shares present in person and entitled to vote
shall have one vote and on a poll every member present in person
or by proxy and entitled to vote shall have one vote for every ordinary
share held. The notice of the 2020 AGM specifies deadlines for
exercising voting rights and appointing a proxy or proxies to vote

in relation to resolutions to be passed at the meeting, There are

no restrictions on voting rights other than as specified by the
Company’s Articles of Association.

The Directors were granted authority at the 2012 AGM to allot shares
up to a nominal amount of one-third of the Company’s issued nominal
share capital, as well as additional authority to allot a further one-third
on a rights issue. This authority expires at the conclusion of the 2020

AGM and a resolution will be proposed for its renewal.

The issued share capital was increased during the year by fully paid
issues as follows:

Number of

ordinary shares

Date Desoription of 20p each
27 February 2019 Scrip aflotment 72,024
12 July 2019 Scrip allotment. 21482

Purchase of the Company’s shares

Under the Company's Articles of Association, the Company may
purchase any of its own shares. The Company was granted authority
at the 2019 AGM to make market purchases of its own ordinary
shares, subject to market-standard maximum and minimum price
constraints. That authority will expire at the 2020 AGM and a
resolution will be proposed to renew this authority. During the year
the Company, via the Employee Benefit Trust, purchased 262,087
ordinary shares of 20p each at a cost of £7565000 miflion.

The Company does not currently hold any shares in treasury.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT CONTINUED

Employee Benefit Trust

The trustees of the Urban&Civic Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) hold
sharesin Urban&Civic in trust in order to satisfy any awards madeunder
the Company's employee share plans. As at 30 September 2018,
the EBT held 1.491,248 shares (2018: 1,769,935 shares) representing
1.22 per cent (2018: 1.22 per cent) of the Company’s issued share
capital. The trustees have waived their right to receive dividends

on shares held in the Company.

Substantial shareholdings

As at 27 November 2019, tha Company had been notified under
the Disclosure and Transparency Rules (DTR 5) of the following
interests in the ordinary share capital of the Company:

Number of

ordinary shares

at 27 Navernber
2019 %
Aberforth Partners LLP 17480376 1202
Investeo Wealth and Investment Limited 161465616 1044
JO Hambro Capital Management Limited 8387301 b78

APG Asset Management NV 7600000 817

Amendment of Articles of Association

The Company's Articles of Association can only be amended by a
special resolution of the members, requiring a majority of not less
than 76 per gent of such members voting in person or by proxy.

Annual General Meeting

The 2020 AGM of the Company will be held at The Savile Club,
69 Brook Street, London WIK 4ER at 10.00 am. on 6 February 2020,
The special business at the 2020 AGM will include resclutions
dealing with the authority to issue shares, the disapplication

of pre-emption rights, the authority for the Company to purchase
its own shares, the authority to make political donations and the
authority to call general meetings on not less than 14 clear days’
notice. A separate circular containing the notice of meeting and
explanatory notes of all the resolutions to be proposed at that
meeting is circulated with this Annual Report and Acoounts.

All votes will be taken on a poll at the meseting rather than on

a show of hands.

Auditor

BDO LLPis willing to be reappointed as the external auditor

to the Company and Group, and their reappeintment has been
considered by the Audit Committee and recommended to

the Board. A resclution will be proposed at the 2020 AGM

for their reappointment and to authorise the Directors to
determine their remuneration.
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Going concemn

In assessing going concern, the Directors have reviewed the Group's
rolling five-year cash flow forecasts, loan maturities and undrawn
facilities and have run sensitivitios reflecting the Group's risk profile
1o ensure covenant compliance over the next 12 months. The Directors
have oonsidered any facilities that are due to expire in the next

12 months against progress made on their extension or renewal to
date and/or the Group's ability to repay the maturing facilities from
Group resources. The Group's key risks are set out in the risk review
on pages 34 to 43 and the Board's assesasment of long-term viability
is set out on page 33.

Having undertaken the assessment detailed above, the Directors have
a reasonabie expectation that the Company and the Group have
sufficient rescurces to continue to operate for the next 12 months
and the Board considers it appropriate to prepare the financial
statements on a going concem basis.

Disclosure of information to the auditor
The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this
Directors’ report confirm that:

= asfar as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information
of which the auditor is unaware; and

* each Dirsctor has taken ali steps that he or she cught to have
taken as a Director to make himself or herself aware of any
relevant information and to establish that the auditor is aware
of that information.

Post balance sheet events
There were no post balance sheet events.

The Directors' report was approved by the Board on 27 November
2019 and signed on its behalif by:

Heaather Williams - ( %i -

Company Secretary
Urban&Civic plc

Company number: SC149780




DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect

of the accounts

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report
and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements
for each financial year. Under that law, the Directors are required to
prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Union and have elected to prepare the Company
financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable law).

Under company law, the Directcrs must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and Company and of the

profit or loss of the Group for that year.

In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required:

+ o select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistentty;

to make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent;

+ for the Group financial statements, to state whether they have
been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained in the Group financial statements;

* for the Company financial statements, to state whether they
have been prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Acocounting Practics, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the Company financial statements;

* to prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it is inappropriate to presurme that the Group and the
Company will continue in business; and

* to prepare a Directors’ report, a strategic report and a Directors’
remuneration report which comply with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Compary's
transactions and disclose with reasonable acouracy at any time
the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the requirernents of

the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial
statements, Article 4 of the |IAS Regulation. They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Annual Report
and financial statements are made available on the Group's website
and for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on that website. Legislation in the UK governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statermnents may
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Responsibility statement
Each of the Directors confirms that, to the best of their knowledge:

* the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the
relevant financial reporting framework, give a true and fair view
of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the
Company and the undertakings included in the consclidation
taken as a whole,

« the adoption of a going concern basis for the preparation
of the financial statements continues o be appropriate based
on a raview of the current and projected financial position
of the Group, making reasonable assumptions about future
trading performance;

the strategic report includes a fair review of the development

and performance of the business and the position of the Company
and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole,
together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
they face; and

the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, are fair,
balanced and understandable and provide the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Company's position,
performance, business model and strategy.

The Directors' responsibility statement was approved by the Board.
On behalf of the Board

David Waood
Group Finance Director
27 November 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF URBANE&CIVIC PLC

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Urban&GCivic ple

{the ‘parent company’) and its subsidiaries (the 'Group’) for the

year ended 30 September 2019 which comprise the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated and Company
balance sheets, consolidated and Company statements of changes
in equity, consolidated cash flow statement and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant acoounting policies.
The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the
preparation of the Group financial statements is applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Union. The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in preparing the parent company financial statements
is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including
Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’ (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opirtion;

« the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the
Group's and the parent company’s affairs as at 30 September 2016
and of the Group's profit for the year then ended;

+ the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with IFRSs adopted by the European Union;

= the parent company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Acoounting Practice; and

+ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards
the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

Basis for opinion

Woe conductad our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing (UK} (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Qur responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responaibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group and the parent company in accordance
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard
as applied to listed public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our

ather ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Conclusions relating to principal risks, going concern

and viability statement

Woe have nothing to report in respect of the following information in
the Annual Report and Accounts 2019, in relation to which ISAs (UK)
require us to report to you whether we have anything material to
add or to draw attention to:

= the disclosures in the Annual Report and Accounts 2019 set out
on pages 34 to 43 that describe the principal risks and explain
how they are being managed or mitigated;

« the Directors' confirmation set out on page 100 in the Annual
Report and Accounts 2019 that they have carried out a robust
assessment of the principal risks facing the Group, including
those that would threaten its business model, future performance,
solvency or liquidity;

+ the Directors’ statement set out on page 128 in the financial
statements about whether the Directors considered it appropriate
te adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing
the financial statements and the Directors identification of any
material uncertainties to the Group and the parent company's
ability to continue to do so over a period of at least 12 months
from the date of approval of the financial statements; or

» whether the Directors' statement relating to going concern
required under the Listing Rules in accordance with Listing Rule
9.86R(3) is materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained
in the audit; or

+ the Directors’ explanation set out on page 33 in the Annual Report
and Accounts 2019 as to how they have assessed the prospects
of the Group, over what period they have done so and why they
congider that pericd to be appropriate, and their statement as to
whether they have a reasonable expectation that the Group wilt
be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall
dus over the period of their assessment, including any related
disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications
Oor assumptions.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period and include the most significant
assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to
fraud) that we identified, including those which had the greatest
effect on; the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in
the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and

we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.




Key audit matters continued
Key audnt matter

How we addressed the kay audit matter in the audit

Valuation of investment properties and
carrying value of trading properties .
As detailed in notes 11,13 and 16, the Group, directly or
through its joint ventures, owns a portfolic of property
interests which are held as either investment properties
or trading properties.

As described in the accounting policies in note 1,
investment propertias owned directly by the Group,
including those in the course of development, are held

at fair value in the Group financial statements. Trading
properties are caried in the consolidated bafance sheet

at the lower of cost and ret realisable value and remeasured
to fair value in the Group's EPRA reporting.

In respect of the properties held by joint ventures, the
Group has an indirect exposure to fair value changes,
as the Group adjusts the EPRA carrying amount of
these investments for changes in the fair value of the
underlying trading property.

As described in the Group's ¢ritical accounting
estimates and judgements in note 1, determination of
the fair value of investment properties and the carrying
amount and fair value of trading properties is a key area
of estimation.

The Group engaged an independent expert valuer .
to undertake the valuation of the majority (95 per cent}
of'its property portfolio by value, with the remaining
assets being valued by the Directors.

The valuation of the Group's property interests requires
significant judgements to be made by the valuer, some
of which are impacted by the political and economic
uncertainty arising from the result of the EU referendum.
Any inaccuracies in information provided to the valuer
or unreasonable judgements could also result in

a material misstatement of the Group's income
statement, balance sheet and EPRA reporting.

We therefore considered this to be a key audit matter.

QOur audit work included, but was not restricted to, the following:

We assessed the compaetency, qualifications, independence and objectivity
of the external valuer engaged by the Group and reviewed the terms of their
engagement for any unusual arrangements or evidence of management
bias therein.

Real estate experts within our team read the valuation reports for all properties
of the Group and its joint ventures that were subject to external valuation and
reviewed the Directors' valuations of the other properties to confirm that ali
valuations had been prepared on a basis that was appropriate for determining
the carrying value in the Group's financial statements.

Real estate experts within our team met with the Group’s external valuer
independently of management 1o discuss and challenge the valuation
methodology and key assumptions and considered if there were any
indicators of undue management influence on the valuations.

+ We tested the accuracy of the key observable valuation inputs supplied to and

used by the external valuer and Directors as appropriate. In respect of the
properties in the course of development, this primarily involved agreeing terms
of buiid licence arrangements to the underlying souroe dooumentation, agresing
the costs incurred to date to supporting documentation and reviewing the costs
to complete against the latest development appraisals and, where applicable,
supplier contracts or other agreements. In respect of the income-generating
properties, this primarily involved agreeing the passing rental income and lease
terms to underlying supporting documentation.

We compared the key valuation assumptions against our independently formed
market expectations and challenged the valuer where significant variances from
these expectations were identified. We then corroborated their responses to
supporting documentation where appropriate. For the propertiesin the course
of development, the key valuation assumptions were deemed to be the forecast
gross development values, house price inflation, cost price inflation, developer
profit margin and the risk adjusted discount rates. Qur review of these assumptions
included reference to comparable market transactions, the sales data being
generated from the Group's own sites and external market forecasts for house
price and cost inflation. For the income generating properties, the key valuation
assumptions were the market capitalisation yields and estimated rental values,
which we reviewsd by reference to market data based on the location and
specifics of each property. We also tested the arithmetic and mechanical
integrity of formulae in the cash flow models used by the external valuer in

the valuation of the key strategic land sites by value (being Alconbury, Rugby,
Newark, Wintringham, Priors Hall and Waterbeach).

We reviewed the appropriateness of the Group's disclosures within the financial
statements in relation to valuation methodology. key valuation inputs and
valuation unocertainty.

Key observations

We did not identify any indicators to suggest that the valuation of the Group's investment properties and the carrying valus of the Group's
trading properties (both held directly and indirectly through joint ventures) is inappropriate.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF URBAN&CIVIC PLC CONTINUED

Key audit matters continued

Key audit matter How we addressed the key audit matter in the audit
Revenue and profit recognition from Qur audit work in relation to the recognition and measurement of revenue recognised
residential property from the saie of land parcels to housebuilders included, but was not restricted to

As detailed in note 2, the Group's results for the year  the following;

include revenue and profit from residential property » We reviewed the terms of each licence agreement to agree how the sales
sales. This comprises both the sale of residential land proceeds due to the Group or joint venture entity will be determined and when
parcels and the sale of individual units across three they will fall due for payment.

of its strategic land sites. The Group's share of profit .
from joint ventures detailed in note 13 also includes
the profits from the sale of residential land parcels
and individual units on another strategio land site.

We evaluated the revenue recognition policy applied to the fixed minimum amounts
that are receivable over time under the license agreements with housebuilders.

+ We reviewed and challenged the discount factor applied to these minimum
receipts and reperformed the present value caloulations.

As described in the Group's critical accounting estimates |

and judgements in note 1, a number of estimates have

been made in determining the amount of revenue

and profit to recognise from these transactions.

We reviewed management's estimate of the variable consideration receivable
under each of the license agreements with housebuilders that was not expected
to subject to a significant reversal in future periods and evaluated thejudgements
made in arriving at those estimates. This assessment was undertaken as at

We therefore considered revenue and profit recognition 1 October 2018 in respect of those licence agreements completed prior to

from residential property sales as a key audit matter. that date for the purposes of transition to IFRS 15 and at the date of contract
completion in respect of new licence agreements completed during the year.
Estimates in respect of all completed licence agreements were then revisited

at the balance sheet date.

» We evaluated the expected credit loss assessment made by management in
respect of the deferred sales receipts at both 1 October 2018 (being the date
of transition to IFRS 9) and the balance sheet date.

Qur audit work in relation to the recognition and measurement of profit from the
sale of the residential land parcels included, but was not restricted to the following:

« Weevaluated the methcd by which site-wide infrastructure costs have been allocated
to each residential phase and then, where relevant, to each residential unit.

« We tested a sample of actual infrastructure costs incurred to date and reviewed
the expected costs to complete against the latest project appraisals and
contracted costs.

In respect of the recognition and measurement of profit from the sale of the individual
residential units, we also revisited the method of allocating infrastructure ang
construction costs to each individual unit that was established in the previous
year to evaluate whether this remained appropriate in light of current sales,

costs and forecast data.

Key observations
We did! not identify any indicators to suggest that the revenue and profit from residential property sales has been recognised inappropriately.

Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality both in planning and performing our audit, and in svaluating the effect of misstatements. We consider
materiality to be the magnitude by which misstatements, including omissions, could influence the economic decisions of reasonable users that
are taken on the basis of the financial statements. In order to reduce to an appropriately low level the probability that any misstatements exceed
materiality, we use a lower materiality level, performance materiality, to determine the extent of testing needed. Importantly, misstatements
below these levels will not necessarily be evaluated as immaterial as we also take acoount of the nature of identified misstaternents, and
the particular circumstances of their occurrence, when evaluating their effect on the financial statements as a whole.
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Our application of materiality continued

The materiality for the Group financial statements as a whole

was set at £6.5 million (2018: £6.5 million). This was determined
with reference to a benchmark of Group total assets (of which it
represents 11 per cent (2018: 1.2 per cent)) which we consider to
be one of the principal considerations for the users of the financial
staternents in assessing the financial performance of this asset
based business.

The materiality for the parent company finangial statements as
a whole was set at £6.2 million, determined with referenceto a
benchmark of the parent company’s total assets (of which it
represents 1.3 per cent} on the basis that this is an asset based
invogtmont ontity.

International Standards on Auditing (UK) also allow the auditor to
set a lower mateniality for particular classes of transactions, balances
or disclosures for which migstatements of lesser amounts than
materiality for the financial statements as a whole could reasonably
be expected to influsnce the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of the financial statements. In this context, we set a lower
level of materiality of £650,000 (2018: £600.000) to apply to thoso
clasges of transactions and balancot which impact on tho Grougs
earnings before tax, exoluding fair value movements.

Wo got porformanco matoriality at 75 per oent (2018: 76 por cont)
of tho above matoriality lovele, having censidored a number of
factore including the expected total valus of known and likoly
misstatements based on previous assurance engagements and
other factors.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the
Committee all individual audit differences in exoess of £100.000
{2018: £100,000). We also agreed to report differences below this
threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

An overview of the scope of our audit

Qur audit of the Group was scoped by obtaining an understanding
of the Qroup and its erivirony ienl, nuluding the Group's systeri ol
internal contrel, applicablo logal and regulatory frameweork and tho
industry in which it operates, and assessing the risks of material
misstatement at the Group level.

The Group operates solely in the United Kingdom and operates as
two components, each structured through a number of special
purpose vehicle entities. The Group audit engagement team
performed all the work necessary to issue the Group and parent
company audit opinion, including undertaking all of the audit work
on the risks of material migstatement identified above. Our audit
work on each component was executed at levels of materiality
which were lower than Group mateniality, with materiality for each
component set at £4.9 million (2018: £4.8 million) and specific
materiality {for those transactions and balances whichimpact on
the Group's eamnings before tax, excluding fair value movements}
for each compenent set at £488,000 (2018: £375,000).

The extent to which the audit was capable of detecting
irregularity including fraud

The extent to which the audit is capable of detecting irregularities
is affected by the inherent difficulty in detecting irregularities, the
effectiveness of the entity's controls, and the nature, timing and
extent of the audit procedures performed. Irregularities that result
from fraud might be inherently more difficult to detect than
irregularities that result from error,

As part of the audit we gained an understanding of the legal and
regulatory framework applicable to the Group and the industry in
whichit operates, and considered the risk of acts by the Group that
were contrary to applicable laws and regulations, including fraud.
Woea considorod tho Group's compliance with laws and regulationa
that have a direct impact on the financial statements and the UK
Listing Rules including, but not limited to, UK company law, UK tax
logiolation, and we concidored tho extent to which non compliance
might havo a matorial offoot on the Group financial statorments.

We designed audit procedures to respond to the risk, recognising
that the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud
ic highor than tho ricl of not doteoting one resulting from orror, ag
fraud may involve deliberato conooalment by, for example, forgory
or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.

Bacod on our understanding we dosigned our audit procodurcs to
idontify instanoes of non-sompliance with such laws and regulations.
Cur procoduroe included reviowing tho financial statermenta disclosures
and agresing to underiying supporting documentation where necessary.
We made enquiries of management and of the Directors as to therisks
of non compliance and any instances thereof. As in all of our audits,
we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls,
including testing journal entries processed during and subsequent
to the year and evaluating whether there was evidenco of bias by
the Directors that represented a risk of material misstatement

due to fraud.

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable
risk thal we may not have detected some midterial inisslalenents
in tho finanocial statemonts, even though wa have proporly planned
and performed our audit in acoordance with the auditing standards.
For example, the further removed non-compliance with laws and
regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the
financial statements, the less likely we would become aware ofit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF URBANA&CIVIC PLC CONTINUED

Other information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report
and Accounts 2019, other than the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial staternents, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing sc,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowiedge obtained in the audit
or ctherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such
material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we
are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement
in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. i, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we
are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

In this context, we also have nothing to report in regard to our
responsibility to specifically address the following items in the other
information and to report as uncorrected material misstatements of
the other information where we conclude that those items meet the
following conditions:

« Fair, balanced and understandable set out on page 120
- the statement given by the Directors that they consider the
Annual Report and Accounts 2019 taken as a whole is fair,
balanced and understandable and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Group’s performance,
business model and strategy, is materially inconsistent with our
knowledge obtained in the audit; or

« Audit Committee reporting set out on pages 89to 105
- the section describing the work of the Audit Committee does
not appropriately address matters communicated by us to the
Audit Committee; or

« Directors’ statement of compliance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code set out on pages 67 to 87 - the parts of the
Directors' statement required under the Listing Rules relating
to the parent company’s compliance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code containing provisions specified for review
by the auditor in accordanoe with Listing Rule ©810R(2) do not
properly disclose a departure from a relevant provision of the
UK Corporats Governance Code.
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Opinions on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, the part of the directors’ remuneration report
to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course
of the audit:

» theinformation given in the strategic report and the directors’
report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

+ the strategio report and the directors’ report have been prepared
in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and
the parent company and its environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in

the strategioc report or the directors' report.

Woe have nothing to report in respect of the following mattersin
relation to which the Companies Act 20086 requires us to report
to you iff in our opinion:

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent
company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

« the parent company financial statements and the part of the directors’
remuneration report to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and retums; or

« pertain disclosures of Directors’' remuneration specified by law
are not made; or

» we have not received all the information and explanations we
require for our audit.

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ responsibilities
in respect of the accounts set out on page 129, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and

for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's and the parent company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the
parent company or t0 cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.




Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives arc to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstaternent,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or eiror and are considerad
matorial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonatsly ke
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements is looated on the Financial Reporting Council's
website at: www.fre.orguk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description
forms part of our auditor’s report.

Other matters which we are required to address

We were initially appointed in April 2001 to audit the

financial statements of the parent company for the year ending
30 April 2001. In respect of subsequent periods we have been
reappointed annually by the members at the Annual General
Meeting. The period of total uninterrupted engagement, including
previous renewals and reappointments of the firm, is 19 years,
covering the periods ending 30 April 200t to 30 September 2019.
However, for the purposes of mandatory firm rotation, the period
of total uninterrupted engagement is six years, covering the years
ending 30 September 2014 to 30 September 2019,

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard
were not provided to the Group or the parent comparny and we remain
independent of the Group and the parent company in conducting
our audit.

Qur audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the
Audit Committee.

Use of our report

This roport ic made solaly to the paront company's memberc, as a
body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state
to the parent company’s members those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responaibility to anyone other than the parent company and the
parent company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Thornas Edward Goodworth {senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of BDO LLP, statutory auditor
London

United Kingdom
27 November 2019

BDO LLPis alimited liability partnership registered in England and
Wales (with registered number OQC305127).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 30 September 2019

Year endad Year endad

30 Septomber 30 September

2019 2018

Notas £000 £000

Revenue 2 102114 160,398
Direct costs 2 (80.890) (123,127)
Gross profit 2 n224 2727
Administrative expenses (19,8756) (18.812)
Surplus on revaluation of investment properties 1 5,791 10,682
Surplus on revaluation of receivables 16 860 1,080
Share of post-tax profit from joint ventures 13 8,039 2,069
Profit on disposal of investments 13 — o4
Profit on disposal of investment properties 1 —_ 1,244
Operating profit 3 18,026 235628
Finance income & 1777 866
Finance costs 5] (1,470) (2127

Profit hefore taxation 16,336 20,267
Taxation expense 8 (3,707 {(35672)

Total comprehensive income 12,629 18696

Basic earnings per share 9 8.8p 130p

Diluted earnings per share o B8.6p 129p

Tho Croup had no ameunts of other oomprehensivo incomo for tho current or prior yeara and the profit for tho rospoctiva yoars is wholly
attributable to equity shareholders.

The notes on pages K2 to 171 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSQLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

F
as at 30 September 2018
30 September 30 September
2019 2018
Notes £'000 £000
Non-current assets
Investment properties 1 52,937 86918
Property, plant and equipment 12 3,958 4608
Investments injoint ventures and associates 13 121,262 103418
Deferred tax assets 14 2,665 2,788
Trade and other receivables 16 45,898 20445
226,620 2807T
Current assets
Trading properties 15 306,998 273770
Trade and other receivables 18 18,463 29039
Cash and cash equivalents 19 24441 16638
349,802 319447
Total assets 576,622 65375624
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 18 (128,265) (73973)
Defarred tax liabilities 14 (8,509) {(6,851)
{136,774) (80,824)
Current liabilities
Borrowings 18 (1,000) (20891)
Trade and other payables 17 (36,15) {46786)
(36,115} (B7677)
Total liabilities (173,489} {148,501)
Net assets 403,033 389,023
Equity
Share capital 20 29,030 29,000
Share premium account 169,163 168,881
Capital redemption reserve 849 849
Own shares (4,086) 4,748)
Other reserve Nn3,786 n3,785
Retained earnings 94,292 81,247
Total equity 403033 389023
NAV per share 22 275.3p 2683p
EPRA NAV per share 22 360.3p 3318p
EPRA NNNAV per share 22 339.5p 3169p
The financiat statemgn re approved by the Board and authorised for issue on 27 Navember 2019 and were signed on its behalf by:
eMigil David Woo W
Dikector Director
The notes on pages 142 to 171 form part of these financial statements.
Registered in Scotland No. SC149799
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 30 September 2019

Share Capital

Share premium redemgption (o, Othar Retained

captal acoount resarve shares reserve eamings Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 October 2017 289803 168648 849 (4,003} 13785 63608 371,880
Shares issued under scrip
dividend scheme 16 233 — — — — 249
Share option exercise satisfied out
of own shares — — — 647 — — 847
Purchase of own shares — — — {1,392) — — (1.392)
Share-based payment expense — — — — — 3434 3434
Total comprehensive income for the year — — — — — 18695 18695
Dividends paid — —_— - — — (4490) (4490}
Balance at 30 September 2018 29009 168,881 849 {4.748) 13,785 ai24a7 389023
Effect of adoption of IFRS 15 — — —_ — — 3,203 3203
Balance at 30 September 2018
as restated 20,009 168,881 849 (4,748} 113,785 84,450 392,226
Shares issued under scrip
dividend scheme 21 282 — —_ — —_ 303
Deferred bonus award and share option
exeroise satisfied out of own shares — — —_ 147 — 1,677 {160)
Purchase of own shares — — — (755) — —_ {766)
Share-based payment expense —_ —_ —_ —_ —_ 3,966 3,966
Total comprehensive income for the year _ —_ _ _ _ 12,629 12,629
Dividends paid — — — — - (5165) {5165)
Balance at 30 September 2019 29,030 169,163 849 (4,086) 13,785 94,292 403,033
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended 30 September 2019 F
Yeoarondad Yaar endead
30 September 30 Septembear
2019 2018
Notes £000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation 16,336 22267
Adjustments for:
Surplus on revaluation of investment properties (6,T™1) (10582)
Surplus on revaluation of receivables (850) {1.090)
Share of post-tax profit from joint ventures (8,039) {2,059)
Finance income 777 (866)
Finance costs 1,470 2127
Depreciation charge 918 1,148
Write down of trading properties 730 2,670
Profit on sale of investment properties - (1,244)
Profit on disposal of investments — ©4)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 13 2
Share-based payment expense 3,955 3434
Cash flows from operating activities before change in working capital 6,966 15613
Decrease in trading properties 1,034 631
Increase in trade and other receivables {9,243) {15,284)
Decrease in trade and other payables (12,368) (2330}
Cash absorbed by operations (3,612) (1,370)
Finance costs paid (1,126) (3476)
Finance income received 72 39
Tax paid (1,498) ()
Net cash flows from operating activities {6,164) (4.918)
investing activities
Additions to investment properties {2,44) (14.174)
Additions to property, plant and equipment (381) (568)
Loans advanced to joint ventures {9,203) (9685)
Loans repaid by joint ventures and associates 179 2
Profit on disposal of investments — o4
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties — 38825
Net cash flows from investing activities (11,649) 14.604
Financing activities
Newloans 37,336 42818
Issue costs of new loans (580) (408)
Repayment of loans (5622) (42,05)
Purchase of own shares (755) (1,392}
Dividends paid (4,862) (4,241}
Net cash flows from financing activities 27 25,616 (5238)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 7.803 4448
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 Qctober 16,638 12,190
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 September 24,441 16,638
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NOTES TO THE CONSQLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 September 2019

1. Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs and IFRIC
interpretations) published by the International Accounting Standards Board {(IASB} as adopted by the European Union (EU adopted IFRSs)
and with those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies preparing their financial statements in accordance with IFRSs,

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention as modified for the revaluation of investment properties
and certain other receivables. The Company has elected to prepare its individual financial statements, on pages 172 to 178, in accordance with
FRS102.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. The policies have been consistently
applied to both years, unless otherwise stated.

Functional and presentation currency
All financial information is presented in British Pounds Sterling (£), the functional currenoy of all Group entities, and has been rounded to the
nearest thousand (£'000) unless indicated to the contrary.

Going concern

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which assumes that the Group will continue to meet
its liabilities as they fall due. At 30 September 2019 the Group has prepared cash flow projections that show that it is expected to have
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

In arriving at this assessment the Directors have considered any facilities that are due to expire in the next 12 months against progress made
on their extension or renewal to date, and/or the Group's ability to repay the maturing facilities from Group resources.

Adoption of new and revised standards
fn the current period, the Group has adopted IFRS 8 "Financial Instruments” and IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ which has
resulted in a change to certain of the Group's accounting policies.

The adoption of IFRS @ has not had any transitionalimpact on the Group. Financial assets previously accounted for as loans and receivables
continue to be measured at amortised cost and financial assets previously accounted for at fair value through profit and loss continue to be
measured at fair value. No material amendment to provisioning adjustrments was required as a resuit of applying the expected credit loss model
when assessing financial assets for impairment principally because:

« development values are considered sufficient, even in the worst case scenario, to enable repayment of loans to joint ventures; and
« receivables from housebuilders are secured on land which is valued in excess of the amounts due.

The adoption of IFRS 15 has resulted in additional revenue being recognised in relation to the variable consideration to which the Group is
entitled under a certain number of its land parcel sales to housebuilders included within residential property sales. The Group has elected
to adopt IFRS 16 using the Cumulate Effect Methed meaning that full retrospective adjustment of comparative psriods is not required.

The impact on the Group's balance sheet at 1 October 2018 has been to increase trade receivables by £3 078,000, increase the investment
in joint ventures by £781000, increase the deferred tax liability by £656,000 and increase retained earnings by £3,203000. The Group's
new accounting policy in respect of revenue recognition is stated later in note 1.

New standards and interpretations not yet applied
The |ASB has issued or amended the following standards that are mandatory for later accounting years, are relevant to the Group and have not
been adopted sarly. These are:

+ IFRS 16 'Leases' (effective date: 1 January 2019)
The Group has undertaken an assessment of the impact should this standard have been adopted for the current period of acoount.

IFRS 16 'Leases will be effective for the Group from the period beginning 1 October 2018, and will result in the Group recognising a right-of-use
asset and liability on the balance sheet initially at the present value of all future lease payments itis obliged to make for any material leases
for which it is the lessee. These are disclosed in note 26. At 30 September 2019, it has been assessed that this would lead to the recognition
on the balance sheet of assets and liabilities of £4.3 million. There is no net impact on prefit and loss over the lease term, but under IFRS 16
part of the payment currently recognised within adgministrative expenses (£01 million) in the year ended 30 September 2019 would be
recognised as a finance cost. The treatment of leases where the Group is acting as a lessor is substantially unchanged from that currently
appiied under IAS17.
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1. Accounting policies continued

Basis of consolidation

Where the Company has control over aninvestee, it is classified as a subsidiary. The Company controls an investes if all three of the following
elements are present: power over the investes, exposure to variable returns from the investee, and the ability of the investor to use its power
to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.

The consolidated financial statements present the results of the Group as if it formed a single entity. Intercompany transactions and
balances between Group companies are therefore eliminated in full.

Business combinations

The consoclidated financial statements incorporate the results of business combinations using the purchase method. In the consolidated
balance sheet, the acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities are initially recognised at their fair values at the acquisition
date. The results of acquired operations are included in the consoclidated statement of comprehensive income from the date on which
control is obtained.

Joint arrangements
The Group is party tojoint arrangements where there are contractual arrangements that confer joint control over the relevant activities
of the arrangements to the Group and atleast one other party. Joint control is assessed under the same principles as control over subsidiaries.

Joint arrangements are accounted for as joint ventures where the Group has rights to only a share of the net assets of the joint
arrangements.

In the consolidated financial statements, interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method of accounting whereby the
consolidated balance sheet incorporates the Group's share of the net assets of the joint ventures. The consolidated statement of
comprehensive income incorporates the Group's share of the joint ventures’ profits after tax.

Where thera is objective evidence that the investment in a joint venture has been impaired, the carrying amount of the investment is tested
for impairment in the same way as other non-financial assets.

Joint arrangements are accounted for as joint operations where the Group, along with the other parties that have joint control, have the
rights and obligations for assets and liabilities respectively relating to such contractual arrangements.

In the consolidated financial statements, where the Group has interests accounted for as joint operations, the Group's share of jointly
controlled assets, liabilities, income and expenses are reflected on a line by line basis.

Associates

Where the Group has significant influence but not controi or joint control over the financial and operating policy decisions of another entity,
itis classified as an associate. Associates are initially recorded in the consolidated balance sheet at cost. The Group's share of post-acquisition
profits and losses is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, except that losses in excess of the Group's
investment in the associate are not recognised unless there is an obligation to make good those losses.

Where the Group has a legal obligation to a third party in relation to the losses of an associate, the Group fully provides for its share and the
charge is recognised in the consolidated staterment of comprehensive income.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held for long-term rental income and/or for capital appreciation and are measured initially at cost,
including related transaction costs, and subsequently at fair value, Changes in fair value of an investment property at the balance sheet
date and its carrying amount prior to remeasurement are recorded in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Investment properties are recognised as an asset when:

+ it is probable that future economic benefits that are assoociated with the investment property will flow to the Group;
+ there are no material conditions present that could prevent completion; and

+ the cost of the investment property can be measured reliably.

Additions to investment properties in the course of development or refurbishment include the cost of finance and direotly attributable
internal and external costs incurred during the period of development until the properties are ready for their intended use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
for the year ended 30 September 2019

1. Accounting policies continued

Investment properties continued

An investment property undergoing redevelopment or refurbishment for continued use as an investment property will remain as an
investment property measured at fair value and is not reclassified.

Aninvestment property is classified as held for sale when it is available for immediate sale, management is committed to a plan to sell,
an active prograrmme to locate a buyer has been initiated and a sale is expected to oocur within 12 months.

A transfer of a property from investment properties to trading properties will be made where there is a change in use such that the asset
is to be developed or held with a view to sale.

Trading properties

Trading properties comprise both direct interests in property and indirect beneficial interests in property held through land promotion
agreements or other contractual arrangements. They are classified as inventory and are included in the consolidated balance sheet at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the expected net sales proceeds of the developed property in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs to completion and associated selling costs. A provision is made to the extent that projected
costs exceed projected revenues.

All external and internal costs, including borrowing costs, directly associated with the purchase, promotion and construction of a trading
property are capitalised up to the date that the property is ready for its intended use. Property acquisitions are recognised when legally
binding contracts that are irrevocable and effectively unconditional are exchanged.

Properties reclassified to trading propertiss from investment properties are transferred at deemed cost, being the fair value at the date
of reclassification.

Properties reclassified from trading properties to investment properties are transferred at cost when there is a change in use of the asset
such that it is to be held for long-term rental income andfor for capital appreciation.

Leases

Where the Group is the lessor, the Directors have considered the potential transfer of risks and rewards of ownership in accordance with
IAS 17 ‘Leases’ and in their judgement have determined that all such leases are operating leases. Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Where the Group is the lessee, leases in which substantially all risks and rewards of ownership are retained by another party are classified
as operating leases. The Direotors have determined that all of their lessee arrangements constitute operating leases. Rentals paid under
operating leases are charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost or fair value at the date of transfer less accumulated depreciation and acoumulated
impairment losses. This includes costs directly attributable to making the asset capable of operating as intended.

Depreciation is provided on all plant and equipment at rates calculated to write off the cost less estimated residual value, based on prices
prevailing at the reporting date, over its expected useful life as folows:

Freehold property — shorter of expected period to redevelopment and 2 per cent straight line
Leasehold improvements — shorter of term of the lease and 10 per cent straight line
Furniture and equipment — 20-33 per cent straight line

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that a significant reversal is not expected in future pericds and performance obligations have been
satisfied. The below recognition policies have been applied in respect of each of the Group’s principal revenue streams. Note that the only
material change in the Group's revenue recognition policies since the previous year is that under IAS 18 variable revenue was only recognised
to the extent that it could be reliably measured. Under IAS 18, revenue relating to overages on sales of land parcels to housebuilders was
typioally only recognised when the housebuilder had made an onward sale of the properties being developed on the relevant parcel. The
adoption of IFRS 15 has resulted in overage revenue from certain of these sales being recognised earlier, at the point of sale, to the extent
that it is considered such revenue will not be subject to a significant reversal in the future,
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1. Accounting policies continued

Revenue recognition continued

Trading property sales

The sale of trading properties, including beneficial interests held indirectly through land promotion and other contractual agreements,
usually have contractual performance obligations such as seouring planning conserit or a buyer for the property that are satisfied at a point
in time. Revenue is recognised when the performance obligation is satisfied, which ocours when control of the Group's interest has passed
to the buyer oh completion of contracts. Any variable consideration is estimated, taking into account the timing and variability of consideration
and only recognised where it is considered highly probably that there will not be a future significant reversal. Any deferred consideration is
discounted to present value with the discount being unwound to profit and loss as finance income. Costs, which prior Lo sale are included
within trading properties on the balance sheet, are expensed to cost of sales at the point of sale.

Residential property sales

The sale of residential properties, including land parcels sold to housebuilders for residential development, usually have performance
obligations such as securing planning consent and transferring legal title that are satisfied at a peintin time. Revenue is recognised when
control of the property has passed to the buyer on completion of contracts. Any variable consideration including overages is estimated at the
point of sale taking into consideration the time to recover overage amounts as well as other factors which may give rise to variability. It is only
recognised to the extent that it is highly probabile that there wilk not be a significant reversal in the future and is reassessed throughout the
duration of the sales contracts. Any deferred consideration is discounted to present value with the discount being unwound to profit and
loss on finance income. Costs, which prior to sale are included within trading properties on the balance sheet, are expensed to cost of sales
at the point of sale.

Revenue on construction contracts

Revenue on construction contracts is recognised in line with when performance obligations are deermed to be satisfied. Performance
obligations in respect of construction contracts where the Group has no interest in the land are typically determined as being satisfied over
time, meaning that revenue is recognised as these obligations are satisfied, which is usually on the basis of pereentage of work completed
using the input method {reflecting the enhancement in value of the oustomer’s asset). Associated costs are expensed as incurred,

Where contracts contain multiple distinct performance obligations, revenue is allocated to each performance obligation in proportion to the
assessed stand-alone selling price of the services being provided. For any such performance obligations that are determined as being
satisfied at a point in time, revenue is recognised at the point of satisfaction of the relevant performance obligations. Associated costs are
initially recognised in trading properties and expensed as a cost of sale at the point of sale.

Rental and other property income

Rental and other property income arising from praperty is accounted for under 1AS 17 and recognised on a straight line basis over the term
of the lease. Leassincentives, including rent free periods and payments to tenants, are allocated to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on & gtraight line basis over the lease term as a deduction from rental income.

Hotel income
Hotel income comprises revenues derived from hotel operations, including the rental of rooms and food and beverage sales. Revenue is
recegnised at the point in time when reoms are cocupied and services are rendered.

Project management fees and other income, including recoverable property expenses
Fees from development management service arrangements and other agreements are determined by reference to the relevant agreement
and recognised over time as the services are provided, typically using the output method.

Taxation

Current tax

The charge for current taxationis based on the results for the year as adjusted for items that are non-taxable or disallowed. It is calculated
using rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Tax payable upon realisation of revaluation
gains on investment property disposals that were recognised in prior periods is recorded as a current tax charge with a release of the
associated deferred taxation.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet and the corresponding tax base cost used in computing taxable profit.

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled. It is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income except when it relates to items credited or charged directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax
is also dealt with in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
for the year ended 30 September 2013

1. Accounting policies continued

Taxation continued

Deferred tax continued

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when the Group has a tegally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to the same taxable entity and the same tax authority.

A deferred tax asset is recoghised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised.

Under IAS 12 Income Taxes' a deferred tax liability is recognised for tax potentially payabie on the realisation of investment properties
at fair values at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax balances are not discounted.

Share-based payments

The fair value of granting share awards under the Group's performance share plan, and the other share-based remuneration of the Directors
and other employees, is recognised through the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. The fair value of shares awarded is
calculated by using an option pricing model. The resulting fair value is amortised through the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on a straight line basis over the vesting period. The charge is reversed if it is likely that any non-market-based vesting criteria will
not be met. The charge is not adjusted for failure to achiave a market vesting condition or where a non-vesting condition is not satisfied.

Employee Benefit Trust

The Group is deemed to have control of its Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) and it is therefore treated as a subsidiary and consolidated for the
purposes of the consolidated accounts. The EBT's investment in the parent company's shares is deducted from equity in the consolidated
balance sheet as if they were treasury shares, Other assets and liabilities of the EBT are recognised as assets and liabilities of the Group.
Any shares held by the EBT are excluded for the purposes of calculating earnings per share and net assets per share.

Retirement bensfits
Contributions to defined contribution pension schemes are charged to the consclidated statement of comprehensive income in the period
to which they relate.

Government grants

Government grants received in relation to property asset capital expenditure are generally deducted in armiving at the cost of the relevant
asset. Where retention of a Government grant is depandent on the Group satisfying certain criteria, it is initialty recognised in other loans.
When the criteria for retention have been satisfied, the balance is nettad against the cost of the asset.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised when they become legally payable. In the case of interim dividends to equity shareholders, this is when the
dividends are paid, following approval by the Directors. In the case of final dividends, this is when the dividends are approved by the
shareholders at the AGM.

Impairment of non-financial assets (excluding trading properties, investment properties and deferred tax)

Impairment tests on the Group’s property, plant and equipment and interests in joint arrangements are undertaken at each reporting date
to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication becomes evident, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated
and an impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive inoome whenever the carrying amount of the asset
exoesds its recoverable amount.,

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The value in useis determined as the
net present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial habilities are recognised in the consolidated balance shest when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, deposits with banks and other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less from inception. For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and
deposits with banks net of bank overdrafts.

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables arising in the nermal course of business are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently at amortised
cost or recoverable amount.
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1. Accounting policies continued

Financial instruments continued

Trade and other receivablas continued

For significant receivabies, particularly in respect of amounts due from housebuilders, the Group menitors the expected annual and lifetime
credit loss by undertaking periodic reviews of housebuilder WACCSs, at least six monthly credit checks and the continual menitoring of
payment track records and housing sales. Additionally, six monthly comparisons are performed monitoring third party valuations in respect
of particular land parcels upon which the receivables are secured compared to those receivables recognised in the balance sheet in
respect of such land parcels. As part of this consideration, the Group considers the recoverability of the receivable in the event ofa
downturn inthe market,

For all other trade receivables and amounts recoverable under contracts, the Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses using a lifetime expected credit loss provision. To measure expected credit losses on a collective basis, trade
receivables and amounts recoverable under contracts are grouped based on similar credit risk and ageing, The expeoted loss rates are
based on the Group's historic credit losses experienced prior Lo year end and adjusted for current and forward-iocking information on
magroeconomic factors affecting the Group's customers.

Receivablaes acquired by the Group that include a variable right to receive cash are recognised initially at fair value and are subsequently
remeasured to fair value at each reporting date with fair value movements recognised within the income statement.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially recorded at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost.

Borrowings
Interest-bearing loans are initially recorded at fair value, net of any directly attributable issue costs, and subsequently recognised at
amortised cost.

Borrowing costs
Finance and other costs incurred in respect of obtaining borrowings are accounted for on an accruals basis using the effective interest
method and amortised to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income over the term of the associated borrowings.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of investment and trading properties are added to the costs of
such properties until the properties are ready for their intended use.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they are incurred.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and judgements,
It also requires management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Group's acoounting policies. Estimates and judgements
are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, Although these estimates are based on management's best knowledge of the amount, event or
actions, actual results may differ from those estimates.

Areas requiring the use of estimates and critical judgerment that may impact on the Group’s earnings and financial position include:

Accounting estimates

Valuation of investment and trading properties

For the purposes of calgulating the fair value of its investment property portfolio and the net realisable value (and, for EPRA reporting
purposes, the fair value) of its trading property portfolio, the Group uses valuations carried out by either independent valuers or the
Directors on the basis of market value in accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation Standards of the Rovyal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors. The valuations are based upon assumptions including future rental income, sales prices and rates, estirnates of typical profit
margins and finance ¢osts, anticipated maintenanoe oosts, development costs, inflation forecasts and appropriate discount rates.
Assumptions used in the valuations of the Group’s significant investment property interests carried at valuation and trading properties
valued for EPRA reporting purposes at 30 September 2019 are disclosed later in note 1. Details of the Group's trading properties that
are measured at net realisable value are disclosed in note 15, The valuers and Directors also make reference to market evidence for
comparable property transactions and principal inputs and assumptions.

Due to the nature of development timescales, it is routinely necessary to estimate costs to complete and future revenues and to allocate
non-unit-specific development costs between units legally completing in the current financial year and in future periods.

Arnual Report and Acgounts 2019 — Urban&Civic ple 147



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
for the year ended 30 September 2019

1. Accounting policies continued

Critical accounting estimates and judgements continued

Accounting estimates continued

Revenus

Estimates are involved when determining how much revenue to recognise at the point in time of residential property sales where thereis
deferred consideration and/or variable consideration which is only determined at the peint of the future onward sale of constructed homes
by the Group's housebuilder customers.

In determining the amount of revenue recognised, the Directors consider the following factors:

Absorption rates - licence sale contracts contain minimum sales rates as well as minimum prices. The Direotors consider as a base case
assumption that houses will be sold by hcusebuilding customers in line with the contracted minimum sales rates. Deferred revenue is
therefore discounted by reference to these rates.

Discount rates - the onward sale of constructed homes by housebuilder customers will occur over a number of years. Consequently, the
time value of money and the credit risk of the housebuilder must be taken into account when measuring the present value of the consideration
receivable. The Directors consider the WACC of the housebuilder, or third party cost of borrowing where WACC is not available, to be an
appropriate rate at which to discount deferred consideration for the sale of the land. These discount rates are kept under review in the
event of indications of a significant change in ciroumstance of the housebuilding customer. The impact of a change in the discount rates
of one per cent either up or down oh the Group’s revenue recognised would be £1.3 million.

Overages - lioence sale contracts consist of fixed minimum prices as well as variable overage elemerits based on the future onward sale
value achieved by the housebuildaer customer. When determining how much of the variable revenue to recognise at the point of sals, the
Directors estimate the amount that they would expect to receive based on market evidence for current house prices and house price
inflation forecasts. They then consider the risk of a significant reversal of this revenue in future periods and constrain it accordingly. For the
current year, the Directors have assessed that a 20 per cent reduction in house prices, being the approximate peak to trough fall in house
prices in the last two recessions, and a one-year delay to the expected receipt of overage payments, to take into account a significant fall in
sales rates in a downturn, are appropriate constraints in response to the risk. The impact of a change in the assumed house price reduction
by five per cent up and down would be to decreasefincrease overage recognised in the year by £1.2 million and £1.3 million respectively.

Inflation rates - some contractual minimum prices are subject to annual review and inflation. The Directors consider publicly available
inflation forecasts when caloulating minimum amounts receivable over the licence contracts.

Cost of trading property sales

The sale of parcels or units of strategic land requires an allocation of costs, (where applicable including site-wide infrastructure, any
construction costs directly attributable to individual land parcels and capitalised administrative expenses) in order to account for cost
of sales associated with the disposal. The costs being allocated, based on plot numbers as a proportion of total project plot numbers,
include those incurred to date together with an allocation of costs remaining estimatad with reference to latest project forecasts.

Taxation

There are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. As a rasult, the Group recognises tax liabilities
based on estimates of whether additional taxes and interest will be due. The Group believes that its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate
for all open years based on its assessment of many factors including past experience and interpretations of tax law. This assessment relies
on estimates and assumptions and may invelve judgements about future events. The Directors have also exercised their judgement in
relation to the recognition of certain deferred tax assets and liabilities. In order to assess whether the Group should recognise a deferred
tax asset or liability and the tax rate at which that asset or liability should be measured, the Directors consider the timing and likelihood of
expected future profits along with how these expected future prefits match up with the existing tax losses within specific Group entities.
The propoertion of the Group's estimated available tax losses for deferred tax has been disclosed in note 14. The impact of a two per cent
increase/decrease in the tax rate would change the net deferred tax liability by £0.7 million up or down at 30 September 2019,

Share-based payments
The value of share-based payments is estimated using an option pricing model as at the date of grant and using certain assumptions that
are disclosed in note 24.

Judgements

Distinction between investment properties and trading properties

Where there is a strategic decision taken to develop any element of an investment property for sale rather than hold for investment
purposes, then that element is remeasured to fair value at the decision date and transferred to trading properties. Where there is a strategic
decision taken 1o hold any element of a trading property for long-term capital growth or income, then that element is transferred to
investment properties at cost and subsequently held at fair value.
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1. Accounting policies continued
Property value assumptions
Significant uncbservable inputs

The key inputs to the strategic property valuations, for both investment properties and trading properties valued for EPRA purposes,

including properties wholly owned, within joint venture vehicles, or subject to joint arrangements included:

30 September 30 September

2019 2018

House price - private (£psf) 215-300 210-300
Housge price - affordable (£psf) 126-200 1256-200
House price inflation (per cent) 2.6 30
Cost price inflation (per cent) 20 20-226
Residential land prices (£'000 per NDA) 694-1,622 682-1460
Cormmercial land value (£'000 per acre) 160-400 150-400
Risk-adjusted discount rate (per cent) 8.0-100 60-1056

Inter-relationship between significant unobservabie inputs and fair value measurement
The estimated fair value would increase/(decrease} if:

» expected house prices inflation were higher/(lower);
+ expected annual cost price inflation was lower/{higher);
« commercial land prices was higher/({lower), and

+ rigk-adjusted discount rate was lower/(higher).

The significant valuation inputs to the Group's strategic land interest are too interdependent to meaningfully present the impact of varying

these inputs.

2. Revenue and gross profit
for the year ended 30 September 2019

Strategio sites

and Catesby Commaercial Total

£000 £000 £000

Trading property sales 25329 4950 30279
Residential property sales 49307 — 49307
Revenue on construction contracts 7972 — 7972
Rental and other property income 2,260 634 2884
Recoverable property expenses 325 9N 116
Hotel income — 7821 7621
Project management fees and other income 2139 796 2935
Revenue 87,322 14,792 102,114
Cost of trading property sales (16967) (1,698) (176656)
Cost of residential property sales (46529) — (46529)
Costs of construction contracts {6641} — (6641)
Direct property expenses (2,226) (25) (2.261)
Recoverable property expenses (325} (791) (e
Cost of hotel trading — (5,9567) (5.957)
Write down of trading properties (731) — (731
Direct costs (72,419} (8,471) (80,890)
Gross profit 14,903 6,321 Nn,224

Annual Report and Accounts 2019 — Urban&Civic plo 14g



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
for the year ended 30 September 2019

2. Revenue and gross profit continued
for the year ended 30 September 2018

Strategic sites

and Catesby Commercial Total
£000 £000 £000
Trading property sales 1470 79743 NN3
Residential property sales 34464 — 34454
Revenue on construction contracts 6688 — 6588
Rental and other property income 1960 3668 5618
Recoverable property expenses 370 1087 1467
Hotel income - 7976 7976
Project management fees and other income 545 2447 2992
Revenue 56487 94,91 160,398
Cost of trading property sales (3.924) (69,994) (73918)
Cost of residential property sales (29,391) — {29.391)
Costs of construction contracts (4,724) - (4.724)
Direct property expenses {210} (2,832) (4942}
Recoverable property expenses (370) {1.088) {1458}
Cost of hotel trading — (8124) (8124}
Write (down)/back of trading properties (2.608) 38 (2,570}
Direct costs {43127) {80.000) {123127)
Gross profit 12,360 14,91 2727

Othor than rontal and othor property incomo, all of tho Group's revonuo has beon acoountod for undor tho provisions of IFRS 16,
Of'this IFRS 16 revenue, £87.887000 has been recognised at a point in time and £11,343,000 has been recognised over time.

Year endad Year ended

30 Saptember 30 Ssptember

2019 2018

Number of construction contracts 1 1

The above construction contract includes a further £6,369,000 of estimated revenue which will be recognised over time in future periods
as performance obligations are satisfied.

3. Operating profit

Year endad Year anded
30 Saptember 30 September
201 2018
|z arrived at after charging/(craditing). £000 £000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment - inoluded in administrative expenses 561 934
Depreoiation of proporty, plant and oquipment  includod in diroot oosto a67 214
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 13 2
Impairment of trade receivables 83 29
Operating lease charges -~ rent of properties 808 808
Share-based payment expense 3,965 3434
Capitalisation of administrative expensas Lo investment properties (423) (486)
Capitalisation of administrative expenses to trading properties held at year end (5,038) (4,238)
Fees paid to BDO LLP'in respect of:
- audit of the Company 207 167
Other services:
- audit of subsidiaries and associates 104 96
- audit related assurance services 43 37
- other fees payable 79 42

1. Total fees for 2018 payable to the Company's auditor are £432,800 (2018: £340,600). Of this, £310,600 (2018; £261,600) relates to audit services and £43000 (2018: £37000 to
assurance services, £79,000 (2018; £42 000} relates to fees incurred for raporting accountant services in relation to the Cormpany’s premiunt listing application.
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4. Segmental information

Opcrating scgments are reportod in @ manner consistent with the internal roporting provided to the ohief operating docicion mal<or. Tho ohiof

operating decision maker has been identified as the Board of Directors.

The two principal segments are strategic sites and Catesby {being one segment)} and commergial property development. The strategic
sites and Catesby segment includes serviced and unserviced land, consented and unceonsented land and mixed-use development and
promotion sites. The commercial segment includes city centre development and commercial regional developments. All of the Group's

revenue is generated in the United Kingdom.

Segmental information is reported in the table that follows in respeot of the current year in accordanoe with the requirements of IFRS 8

‘Operating Segments’.

The segmental results that are monitored by the Board inolude all the separate lines making up the segmental IFRS operating profit.

This excludes central overheads and taxation which are not allocated to operating segments.

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 September 2019

Stratogic sites

and Catesby Commercial Unaliocated Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

Revenue 87,322 14,792 — 102,14
Other direct costs (71,689) 84 — (80,180)
Write down of trading properties (730) — — (730)
Total direct costs (72419) (8471 — (80,8909

Gross profit 14,903 6,321 — 21,224
Share-based payment expense — — (3966) (3.9656)
Other administrative expenges — — (15920} (16,220
Total administrative expenses — — (19.876) (19.876)

Surplus on revaluation of investment properties 5791 — — 5,791

Surplus on revaluation of receivables 860 — — 860

Share of post-tax profit from joint ventures 8027 12 — 8039

Operating profit/(loss) 2957 6,333 (19,875) 16,029

Net finance income/{cost) 1478 a7 - 307

Profit/(loss) before tax 31,099 5162 (19,876) 16,336

In the year ended 30 September 2019, there were three major customers that generated £11,367,000, £13,036,000 and £12,500,000 of

revenue. Each of these represented 10 per cent or more of the total revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

for the year ended 30 September 2019

4. Segmental information continued
Consolidated balance sheet

as at 30 September 2019
Strategic sites
and Catesby Commercial Unallocated Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Investrment properties 52,937 — — 52037
Property, plant and equipment 3348 299 an 3,968
Investments in joint ventures 103,663 17699 — 121,262
Deferred tax assets _ -— 2666 2,666
Trade and other receivables 45,808 — — 45,898
Non-current assets 206,746 17,298 2,876 226,620
Trading properties 279307 27691 — 306208
Trade and other receivabies 13,782 4,681 — 184863
Cash and cash equivalents — — 24441 24441
Current assets 293,089 32,372 24 441 349,902
Borrowings {101,899} (1.0486) (16,321) (129,265}
Trade and other payables (24.361) {1.384) — (36716}
Deferred tax liabilities (7.806) — (703) (8500)
Total liabilities (134,056) (22,409} (17,024) (173,489)
Net assets 364,779 27,961 10,293 403,033
Consoclidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 September 2018
Strategio sites
and Catesby Commercial Unallocated Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Revenue 55487 94,91 — 160,398
Other direct costs {40619) (80,038) — (1206567}
Write (down)/back of trading properties (2608) 38 — (2570}
Total direct costs 43127) (80000) — (123127)
Gross profit 12,360 149N — 2721
Share-based payment expense — — (3434) (3434)
Other administrative expenses — — (16:378) (15378)
Total administrative expenses — — (18,812 (18,812}
Surplus on revaluation of investment properties 10582 — — 10682
Surplus on revaluation of receivables 1,090 — — 1,090
Share of post-tax profit from joint ventures 1993 66 — 2,069
Profit on disposal of investments —_ 94 — o4
Profit on disposal of investment properties — 1244 — 1244
Operating profit/{loss) 26025 16,316 (18.812) 235628
Net finance cost (449} (812) — 1,281
Profit/{loss) before tax 265786 15503 (18,812) 22 267

In the year ended 30 September 2018, there were two major customers that generated £49.350000 and £22,961,000 of revenue. Each of

these reprasented 10 per cent or meore of the total revenue.
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4. Segmental information continued
Consolidated balance sheet

as at 30 September 2018
Strategic sitas
and Catesby Commercial Unaliccated Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Investment properties 86918 — — 86918
Property, plant and squipment 3423 632 453 4508
Investments in joint ventures 85815 17603 - 103418
Deferred tax assets — - 2788 2,788
Trade and other receivables 20446 — — 20445
Non-ourrent assets 196,601 18,236 3,241 n8077
Trading properties 246617 27153 — 273770
Trade and other receivables 21979 7060 — 29039
Cash and cash equivalents — — 16638 16638
Current assets 268,606 34213 16638 319447
Borrowings (74973) - (19,891} (94,884)
Trade and other payables {33818) (12,970) — (46,786}
Deferred tax liabilities (8,269} — (582) (6,8561)
Total liabilities {115,058} 12,970) (20473) (148,601)
Net assets 350139 30478 (694) 389,023
6. Finance income and finance costs
Year ended Year ended
30 September 30 September
2019 2018
£000 £000
Interest receivable from cash deposits 81 37
Unwinding of discount applied to long-term receivables 1,663 826
Other interost receivable 33 3
Finance income 1,777 866
Interest payable on borrowings (4,044) (3089)
Amortisation of loan arrangement costs (503) (1220}
Finance costs pre-capitalisation (4,547) (4,300}
Finance costs capitalised to trading properties 3,077 2182
Finance costs (1,470) (2127}
Net finance income/{costs) 307 (1261

Finance costs are capitalised at the same rate as the Group is charged on respective borrowings.

6. Directors’ remuneration

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are given in the Direotors’ remuneration report on pages 106 to 126,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
for the year ended 30 September 2019

T. Employee benefit expenses
Year ended Year anded
30 Septamber 30 September
2019 2018
Employes benefit expenses (including Directors) are as follows: £000 £'000
Wages and salaries (including discretionary bonus} 12,386 1601
Employer’s National Insurance contributions and similar taxes 1,783 1682
Defined contribution pension cost 895 584
Share-based payment expense 3,955 3434
Total staff costs (including Directors) 18,819 17,201
Amount capitalised to investment and trading properties (3,301} (2.910)
Amount included within operating profit 15,618 14,201
Your ondad Year anded
30 September 30 September
2019 2018
Number Number
Average number of employees during the year (including Directors) 87 80
8. Tax on profit on ordinary activities
(a) Analysis of charge in the year
Year anded Year ended
30September 30 Septernber
2019 2018
£000 £000
Current tax;
UK corporation tax on profits for the year 2482 916
Adjustments in respect of previous periods —_ B
Total current tax 2482 o1
Deferred tax:
Origination and reversal of timing differences 1,226 2,746
Adjustments in respect of previous periods —_ (9B)
Total deferred tax 1,225 2861
Total tax charge 3,707 3672
(b) Factors affecting the tax charge for the year
Tho offootive rate of tax for the yoar varios from the otandard rato of tax in the UK. The difforencas ean ko oxplained below:
Year anded Year ended
30 September 30 September
2019 2018
£000 £000
Profit attributable to the Group before tax 16,336 29267
Profit multiplied by tho avorage rate of UK corporation taxt of 19 por cent (2018: 19 por cont) 3104 1,231
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 937 694
Difforonces aricing from taxation of shargeable gaine and property rovaluations 180 (1281)
Tax losses and other iterns (524} 121
3,707 3662
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of previous periods — (20}
Total tax charge 3,707 3672

{c) Associates and joint ventures
The Group's share of tax on the joint ventures and associates is £Nil (2018: £Nil).
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9. Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on a profit of £12,629000 (2018 £18,695,000) and on 143442,736 (2018: 143413414)
shares, being the weighted average number of shares in issue during the year less own shares held.

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on a profit of £12,629,000 (2018: £18685000) and on 145,176,846 (2018: 145156,832)
shares, being the weighted average number of shares in issue less own shares held and the dilutive impact of share options granted.
2,729,218 (2018: 2139,020) share options have not been included in the caleulation of diluted earnings per share because their exercise
is contingent on the satisfaction of certain criteria that had not been met at 30 September. The total number of share options in issue is

disclosed in note 24.

2019 2018
Woeighted average number of shares Number Numbar
Inissue at 1 October 145044582 144964808
Effect of shares issued under sorip dividend scheme 49,325 40878

Effect of own shares held

(1861172)  (1502,272)

Weighted average number of shares at 30 September — basic

143,442,736 14343414

Dilutive effect of share options

2,134 1,7/43418

Weighted average number of shares at 30 September - diluted

146,176,846 145156832

10. Dividends
Year ended Year ended
30 September 30 Septemipar
2019 2018
£000 £000
Final dividend of 2.2p per share proposed and paid February 2019 2,957 —
Final dividend of 2.2p per share granted via scrip dividend 199 —
Interim dividend of 14p per share paid July 2019 1,907 —
Interim dividend of 14p per share granted via scrip dividend scheme 102 —
Final dividend of 2.0p per share proposed and paid February 2018 _ 2442
Final dividend of 2.0p per share granted via scrip dividend — 188
Interim dividend of 1.3p per share paid July 2018 - 1798
Interim dividend of 1.3p per share granted via scrip dividend scheme — 61
5,165 4480

The Directors are proposing a final dividend of 2.5p (2018: 2.2p) per share totalling £3,591,000. The trustees of the Employee Benefit Trust
have waived their right to receive a dividend on shares held in the Company. Therefore dividends are not paid on the shares held by the
Employee Benefit Trust. The dividend has not been accrued in the consolidated balance sheet at 30 September 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
for the year ended 30 September 2019

1. Investment properties
(i) Carrying amount reconciliation

£000
Valuation
At1Qctober 2017 990,846
Additions at cost 14172
Disposals (37682)
Surplus on revaluation 10682
At10Q0ctober 2018 86918
Additions at cost 2143
Disposals —
Transfer to trading properties (note 15) (41916)
Surplus on revaluation 5791
Carrying value and portfolio valuation at 30 September 2019 62,937

(ii) Operating lease arrangements
Refer to note 26 for details of the operating leases related to investment properties.

(iii) ktems of income and expense

During the year ended 30 September 2019, £2,657000 (2018: £3,695,000) was recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income in refation to rental and anciliary income from investment properties. Direct operating expenses, including repairs and maintenance,
arising from investment properties that generated rental income amounted to £2,069,000 (2018: £2,760,000). The Group did not incur any
direct operating expenses arising from investment properties that did not generate rental income (2018: £Nil).

{(iv) Restrictions and obligations
At 30 September 2019 and 2018 there were no restrictions on the realisability of investment properties or the remittance of income and
proceeds of disposal.

There are no obligations, except those already contracted, to construct or develop the Group's investment properties.

{v) Historical cost and capitalisation

The historical cost of investment properties as at 30 September 2019 was £30,964,000 (2018: £62,284,000), which included capitalised
interest of £nil (2018: £10,705,000). There was no interest capitalised during the current or prior year, During the year staff and administrative
costs of £423 000 (2018: £486,000) have been capitalised and are included within additions.

(vi) Transfer of properties

On 1 Cctober 2018, based on the site intention set out in the submitted development plan and the commencement of development works,
the Group agreed that the strategy for Grange Farm at Alconbury Weald previously held within investment properties was to develop it for
sale. Accordingly, on * October 2018 this element of the property was reclassified as a trading property.

(vii) Fair value measurement

The Group's investment properties are valued on a semi-annual basis by CBRE Limited (CBREY), an independent firm of chartered surveyors,
on the basis of fair value. Where property assets are bifurcated between investment and trading properties, the Directors have allocated
CBRE's valuation with reference to the nature of the properties in each classification. The valuation at each period end is carried out in
accordance with guidance issued by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Fair value represents the estimated amount that shouid
be received for selling an investment property in an orderly transaction between market participants at the valuation date.

Asg noted above, the Group's investment properties are all carried at fair value and are classified as level 3 within the fair value hierarchy
as some of the inputs used in determining the fair value are based on uncbservable market data. The following summarises the valuation
technigue used in measuring the fair value of the Group’s investment properties.

Valuation technique

Discounted cash flows: the valuation model for the Group's strategic land considers the present value of net cash flows to be generated
from a property (reflecting the current approach of constructing the infrastructure and discharging the section 106 cost obligations), taking
into account expected land value growth rates, build cost inflation, absorption rates and general economic conditions. The expected net
cash flows are discounted using risk-adjusted discount rates and the resultant value is benchmarked against transaction evidence.

The significant unobservable inputs applied in the valuation of the Group's investment properties are listed innote 1.
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12. Property, plant and equipment

Freehold Leasshold Furniture
property improvements and eguipment Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1 October 2017 54256 730 1372 7627
Additions — 86 472 568
Disposals — (78) (248) (324)
At10ctober 2018 b4a25 740 1596 776l
Additions —_ 17 364 381
Disposals — — (203} (203)
At 30 September 2019 5425 757 1,767 7039
Depreciation
At 1Qctober 2017 1313 330 784 2427
Charge for the year 460 183 506 1148
Released an disposal —_ (78) (246) (322)
At1Qctober 2018 1772 437 1044 3,263
Charge for the year 425 132 361 918
Released on disposal — — (190) (190}
At 30 September 2019 2197 569 1,216 3,981
Net beook value
At 30 September 2019 3,228 188 542 3,068
At 30 September 2018 36563 303 552 4508
No assets were held under finance leases in either the current or prior years.
13. Investments
Investments in joint ventures and agsociates
Joint
ventu?:s Agsociates Total
£000 £000 £000
Cost or valuation
At 10ctober 2017 76,7656 2 768157
Share of post-tax profit from joint ventures 2,059 — 2069
Additions 14,918 — 14918
Loans advanced 9686 — 9686
Loans repaid — 2 )
At10ctober 2018 103418 — 103418
Effect of adoption of IFRS 15 78t — 781
Balance at 1 October 2018 as restated 104,199 — 104,199
Share of post-tax profit from joint ventures 8,039 — 8039
Loans advanced 9202 — 9,202
Profits distributed {178} — (178)
At 30 September 2019 121,262 —_ 121,262
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
for the year ended 30 September 2019

13. Investments continued
Investments in joint ventures and associates continued
At 30 September 2019 the Group's interests in its joint arrangements were as follows:

Joint ventures

Manchester New Square LP 50% Property development
SUE Developments LP 50% Property development
Achadonn Limited 50% Property development
Altira Park JV LLP 50% Property development
Wintringham Partners LLP 33% Property development
Joint operatione

Waterbeach Property development

Waterbeachis a joint arrangement with a landowner that is structured through a contractual arrangement, rather than a separate entity.
Decisions about relevant activitios in relation to the Waterbeach development require unanimous consent by the Group and the landowrer.
When the development assets are sold to a third party, the Group will have a right to a proportion of the sales proceeds under a waterfall
agreement which will include recovery of costs incurred and a 8 per cent share of residual proceeds. At 30 Septermber 2019, the Group had
incurred £21404,000 (2018: £18,650,000) of costs in relation to the project, which have been capitalised into investrment and trading
properties.

All of the Group's interests in joint arrangements have their principal place of business in the UK. The registered offices and country of
incorporation of the Joint Ventures are disclosed in note 10 of the notes to the Company financial statements on pages 177 and 178.

Summarised information on joint ventures 2019

SUE Wintringham Achadonn Altira Park JV Manchester New Total

Developments LP Partrers LLP Limited LLP SguareLP 2019
100% £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue 45270 18,839 — 026 — 66,034
Profit/{loss) after tax 14,126 2,890 (2)] 33 2 1704
Total assets 228650 62610 6606 868 88,173 388,797
Other liabilities (163,287) (69,726) (6660) — (89.171) (318,843)
Total liabilities (1863,287) (59,726) (8.680) — (89.11) (318,843)
Net assets/(jiabilities) 86,263 2,885 (54} 858 2 69,954
The Group's carrying value consists of:
Group's share of net assets 33131 961 — 429 1 34,0622
Loans 53466 16:006 2102 — 16167 86,740
Total investment in joint ventures 86,697 16,966 2102 429 15,168 121,262
SUE Developments LP holds the RadioStation Rugby site.
Summarised information on joint ventures 2018

SUE Wintringharm Aschadonn AltraPark JV  Manohester New Total

Developments LP Partrers LLP Limned LLP Square LP 2018
100% £000 £000 £000 £1000 £000 £000
Revenue 17400 — — 54 — 17454
Profit/(loss) after tax 3990 (8) — 63 — 4037
Total assets 1934563 44267 6564 1239 45619 201142
Other liabilities (142,877) (44.273) {6.609) (62) {46619) (239430}
Total liabilities (142,.877) (44273) {6609) (52) {45619) (239430
Nat assets/(liabilities) B0O576 3] (46) 1187 - 81,712
The Group’s carrying value consists of:
QGroup's share of net assets 26,288 (2) — 594 — 256,880
Loans 485146 16,383 209 — 14918 77538
Total investment in joint ventures 70434 16381 2091 6594 14918 103418
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13. Investments continued
Investments in joint ventures and associates continued
Summarised information on associate

2018 20m8
Terrace Hill Terrace Hill
Developmant Development
Partnership Partnership
£000 £00C
Revenue — —
Profit after tax — —
Total assets —_ —
Total liabilities — —
Neot assets — —
The carrying value consists oft
Group's share of net assets - -
Loans — —
Total investment in associates - -
Share of unrecognised profit
At10ctober _ 80
Share of unrecognised profit for the year — —
Profits distributed and recognised in the year - (e4)
— 14

Adjustments in respect of previous periods

At 30 September

The significant unobservable inputs applied in the valuation of the Group's trading properties held in joint venture vehicles for EPRA

purposes are listed in note 1.

A complete list of the Group's subsidiaries is included in note 10 of the notes to the Company financial statements on pages 177 and 178.

14. Deferred tax

The net movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:

Year endad Year anded
30 September 30 September
2019 208
£000 £000
At10ctober (4,063) (1412}
Effect of adoption of IFRS 15 (866) —
At 10ctober as restated (4,719) (1412}
Movement in the year (see note 8) (1,225) (2651)
At 30 September (5,944} {4,083)
The deferred tax balances are made up as follows:
At At
20 September 30 Septembear
2019 2018
£000 £000
Defarred tax assets
Tax losses 2,565 2,788
2,665 2,788
Deferred tax liabilities
Revaluation surpluses 8,036 6,851
Revenue racognised under IFRS 16 474 —
8,609 6,851
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
for the year ended 30 September 2019

14. Deferred tax continued

At 30 September 2018, the Group had unused tax losses of £20,613,000 (2018: £23.118000), of which £15,089,000 (2018: £16,302,000)
has been recognised as a deferred tax asset. £5,104,000 (2018: £6,227000) has been applied to reduce the Group's deferred tax liability
recognised at the balanoce sheet date as required by IAS 12 Income Taxes' in respect of tax potentially payable on the realisation of investment
propertios at fair value at the balance sheet date. No deferred tax asset is recognised in respect of realised or unrealised oapital losses if
there is uncertainty over future recoverability.

Tax losses of £320,000 (2018; £589.000) have not been recognised as it is not considered sufficiently certain that there will be appropriate
taxable profits available in the foreseeable future against which these losses can be utilised.

The UK corporation tax rate reduced to 19 per cent from 1 April 2017 and will, as enacted, reduce to 17 per cent from 1 April 2020, which will
reduce the amount of UK corporation tax that the Group will have to pay in the future. The Group's deferred tax balances have been measured
at rates between 17 and 19 per cent {2018: between 17 and 19 per cent), being the enacted rates of corporation tax in the UK at the balance

sheet date against which the temporary differences giving rise to the deferred tax are expected to reverse.

16. Trading properties

Yoar ended Year ended

30 September 30 Septernber

2008 208

£000 £000

At1October 273,770 289,707

Additions at cost 48,683 90067
Costs written down (730} (2670}
Disposals {62,640} {103424)

Transfer from investment properties (note 11} 41,916 —

Carrying value at 30 September 306,998 273770

At Al

30 September 30 September

2019 2018

Trading properties by class of property £00C £000

Direct interests in completed and development properties 276,634 238557

Indirect interests held through land promotion, option or other contractual agreements 31464 36,213

306,998 273,770

During the year staff and administrative costs of £5,038.000 (2018: £4,238,000) have been capitalised and are included within additions.

Capitalised interest of £6,933,000 is included within the carrying value of trading properties as at 30 September 2019 (2018: £3449,000),
of which £3,077,000 (2018: £2,182,000) was capitalised during the year. Included within disposals is £693,000 (2018: £601000) of interest
previously capitalised and written off on disposal.

The carrying value of trading properties at 30 September 2019 includes £2,266,000 (2018: £2.666,000) measured at net realisable value.
The remaining assets have been measured at cost. In arriving at their net realisable value assessments, the Directors have had regard to the
current valuations of the properties (where relevant) and the future expected profitability of the assat.

The significant unobservable inputs applied in the valuation of the Group’s trading properties for EPRA purposes arelisted in note 1.

16. Trade and other receivables

At At
30 September 30 Septermber

2019 2018

Non-current £'000 £000
Trade receivables 44,366 17,338
Other receivables 1,533 3107
45,808 20445
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18. Trade and other receivables continued

At At

30 September 30 September

2018 2018

Current £000 £000
Trade receivables 1,688 19,034
Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables (83) 29
Trade receivabies {net} 11,6086 19006
Other receivables 1,663 5348
Amounts recoverable under contracts (contract assets) 3,203 1360
Prepayments and accrued income 2192 3336
18,463 29039

Trade receivables include minimum and overage amounts due from housebuilders on strategic land parcel sales which are payable on the
completion of the onward sale of completed units by the respective housebuilders, subject to certain minimum amounts that are payable
annually over a four to five year period post sale. Other receivables include an amount of £2,163,000 (2018: £6582,000) relating to overage
entitiements that were acquired with the Priors Hall asset in the prior year and attributed a purchase price allocation of £9,366,000. Thig asset
is measured at fair value through profit and loss using a discounted cash flow model and is categorised as level 3in the fair value hierarchy.
The key assumptions applied in the valuation are current expectations over future house price values, the timing of housebuilder delivery
and a discount rate of 8.0 per cent (30 September 2018: 9.6 per cent). The fair value movement in the year is £850,000 (2018: £1,080,000}
which has been credited to the income statement. Amounts totaliing £8,357000 have been collected by 30 September 2019 (2018: £3874,000).

At At

30 September 30 September

208 2018

The ageing of trade receivables was as follows: £000 £000
Upto 30 days 4,226 5180
31to 60 days 42 661
6tt0 90 days 184 63
Over 90 days 570 B66
Total 5,022 84569
Amounts not yet due 50,848 29884
Trade receivables (net) 656,870 36,343

The Group has determined that there exists no material loss rate for trade receivables held as at year end on the basis that there exists no
historical credit losses experienced prior to the reporting date. The Group has also considered the current and forward-locking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the Group's customers, including UK house price infiation forecasts.

Furthermore, the Group has considered the nature of the material aspects of trade receivables and contract assets and notes that these
balances are primarily derived from contractual minimum payments and overages due from customer contracts which crystallise in the short
to medium term, discounted at an appropriate rate. The Group maintains legal charges over the asset(s) disposed and, were there to exist,
potential credit losses going forward on any individual contract, the Group would have the ability to mitigate the risk of such losses through
the enforoement of this security, the value of which is not considered to be materially lower than the related receivable.

Given the above, the Group estimates the expected loss rate for current contract receivables to be immaterial to the Group.

17. Trade and other payables

At At

30 September 30 Saptembser

2019 2018

£000 £000

Trade payables 10,751 79718
Taxes and sovial security costs 4,896 3124
Other payablos 7i104 8628
Accruals 11,350 24986
Deferred income 1614 2,07
35,718 46,786
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
for the year ended 30 September 2019

18. Borrowings
At At
30 September 30 September
2019 2018
£000 £000
Bank loans and overdrafts 27,366 19.801
Other loans 101,899 74973
129,265 94,864
At At
30 Eeptamber 30September
2019 2018
Maturity profile £000 £000
Less than one year 1,000 20891
Between one and five years 45218 1424
More than five years 83,047 62,649
129,265 94864

Other loans comprise borrowings from Homes England and Huntington District Council and a conditional grant. Interest on borrowings from
Homes England is charged at between 2.2 and 4.0 per cent above the EC Reference Rate and the facilities are secured against specific land
holdings. The £1,000,000 grant is conditional on certain milestones of construction being achieved before 2020. The grant is only repayable
if these are not reached.

There are two bank loans (the revolving credit facility and Deansgate investment facility), which are secured against specific property
holdings. In the pricr year, there were no bank loans, other than the revolving credit facility, which was not secured against property.

19. Financial instruments
(a) Capital risk management
The Group's primary objective with regards to capital management is to continue as a going concern for the foreseeable future.

The Group's capital comprises equity attributable to shareholders, cash and cash equivalents and borrowings.

Although the Group aims to ensure borrowings are secured against specific property assets without further recourse, banking covenants
have previously placed, and are expected to place in the future, responsibilities on the Group to manage capital to ensure that assets are
safeguarded and early debt repayments or other financial penalties are not forthcoming,

The Group's capital structure is managed through olose monitoring of the Group's business plan, which encompasses a review of dividend
proposals and proposed repayments of shareholder capital as well as identifying any required asset realisations and share issues.

The Group has a progressive dividend policy that is aligned with the performance of the Group’s net asset value.
The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

Details of the Group's significant accounting policies, including the basis on which income and expenses are recognised through the income
statement and the basis of measurement, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed
innote 1.

{b) Financial risk management
The Group's principal financial instruments at 30 September 2019 comprise cash, short-term deposits and bank and other loans, The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to provide finance for the Group's operations at appropriate cost and rigk levels.

The Group has various other financial instruments such as trade and other receivables, amounts recoverable under contracts and trade
and other payables that arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising frorm the Group's financial instruments are interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and these are summarised bslow. The magnitude of the risk that has arisen over the year
is also detailed below.
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19. Financial instruments continued

{b) Financial risk management continued

(i} Interast rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in interest rates.

The Group holds cash balances on short-term deposit. The Group's policy is to monitor the level of these batances to ensure that funds
are available as required, recognising that interest earnings will be subject to interest rate fluctuations.

When necessary and considered appropriate, the Group borrows cash in the form of loans, which are usually subject to interest at floating
rates. Itis recognised that rates will fluctuate according to changes in LIBOR and the bank base or EC Reference Rate. The Group is cognisant
at all times of movements in interest rates and will, as appropriate, enter into interest rate swaps to maintain a balance between borrowings
that are subject to floating and fixed rates, However, at 30 September 2019 (and 2018), the Group had no interest rate swaps in place and
therefore exposure to interest rate risk in respect of its financial liabilities relates to the cost of servicing its floating rate borrowings.

Market rate sensitivity analysis
The analysis below shows the sensitivity of the statement of comprehensive income and net assets to a 05 per cent change in interest rate
on the Group's financial instrumenis that are affected by market risk.

At At

30 Septemnber A0 September

2m9 208

0B per cent increase In nterest rates. £000 £000
Interest on borrowings (657) (482)

Interest on cash deposits 122 83
Total impact on pre-tax profit and equity - loss (636) (399)

At At

30 September 30 September

2019 2018

05 per vent decrease in interest rateg £'000 £000

Interest on borrowings 657 482
Interest on cash deposits {122) (83)

Total impact on pre-tax profit and equity - gain 8356 399

The interest rate risk profile of financial assets and liabilities of the Group at 30 September 2019 was as follows:

Financial

AxBOLE

Floating rate Fixed rate en which

financial financial no interest

Total assety ANsors isearned

£000 E000 £000 £000

Total financial assets 174,374 19,729 4,12 149,933

Financial

linbilitios

Floating rate Fixed rate on which

finanoial financial nointerast

Total linbilities liabilitios ismarned

£000 £000 £000 £000

Total financial liabilities 160,626 131,421 — 29,205
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19. Financial instruments continued

{b) Financial risk management continued

(i) Interest rate risk continued

Market rate sensitivity analysis continued

The interest rate risk profile of financial assets and liabilities of the Group at 30 September 2018 was as follows:

Financial

assots

Flgating rate Fixed rate on which

financial financial no Interest

Total assets assels 18 parned

£000 £000 £000 £000

Total financial assets 140,245 8,687 8079 123579
Financial

liakdlitiea

Floating rate Fixed rate onwhich

financial financial nointerest

Total habilities labilities is earned

E000 £Q00 £000 £000

Total financial liabilities 137678 96,321 — 41367

{ii) Credit risk
The Group's principal financial assets are ¢ash, trade and other receivables, amounts recoverable under contracts and loans advanced to
joint ventures.

Cash deposits are placed with a range of banks to minimise the risk to the Group. Details are provided in the table set out below of the relevant
financial institutions pooled by their respective Standard & Poor long-term credit ratings or Fitch long-term credit ratings where Standard & Poor
ratings are unavailable. All ratings are of investment grade. The principal credit risk is therefore deemed to arise from trade and other
receivables and loans advanced to joint ventures. Trade receivables from the sale of properties are secured against those properties until the
proceeds are received. Rental receivables are unsecured but there is no significant concentration of credit risk as no tenant accounts for more
than 5 per cent of total revenue. Credit checks, rental deposits and third party guarantees are used in isolation or in combinaticn to mitigate
against potential financial loss arising from defaults where considered necessary. Other receivables are predominantly due from housebuilders
on the Priors Hall site, for which a track record of payments has been established. The Group's joint ventures are structured, with the assistance
of professional advisers, in a way that provides the Group with maximum flexibility and security. Furthermore, robust controls and procedures
are applied to these interests in a manner that is consistent with other Group operations.

Credit ratings of the financial institutions holding the Group's cash deposits as at 30 September 2019 are shown below. Included in cash is
£1943,000 that is restricted {2018: £4546000).

Shaort-term
Long-term Cash at bank deposits Total
Financial iInstitution credit rating £000 £000 £000
Bank of Scotland, ING Luxembourg, Nationwide A+ 18,078 83 19141
Barclays, RBS A 661 4634 5,285
HSBG AA- — 16 16
18,729 4,712 24,441

Credit ratings of the financial institutions holding the Group's cash deposits as at 30 September 2018 are shown below:

Short-term

Long-term Cash at bank deposits Total

Finangial institution oradit rating, £000 £000 £000
Bank of Scotland, ING LLuxembourg, Nationwide A+ 6,523 3,229 9752
Barclays A 818 147 765
HSBC AA- -_ 5] 6
RBS BBB+ 1417 4698 6116
8568 8080 18,638
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19. Financial instruments continued

(b) Financial risk management continued

{iii} Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of cash balances and loans.
Cash flow and funding needs are regularly monitored.

The maturity analysis of the undiscounted contractual cash flows retating to financial liabilities as at 30 September 2019 (excluding

£37447000 of liabilities repayable on demand) is presented below:

Betwesnone Betwean two

Carrying  Contractual Irtless than and two and fvg  Inmove than

Currant Year of amount cash flow one year yohrs YOare five years

At 30 September 2018 Currency  interestrate maturity E'0D0 £000 £1000 £000 £000 £000

Bank loan arranged in 2012 Stering 3.28% 20 11,220 12,643 374 12169 _ —_

Other loan arranged in 2019 Sterling 5.09% 2022 8,792 10,235 - — 10,235 —

Other loan arranged in 2018 Sterling 3.34% 2032 37,056 47428 — — — 47428

Other loan arranged in 2018 Sterling 3.59% 2028 1984 2,652 a7 67 200 2,218

Other loan arranged in 2017 Sterling 3.69% 2028 45229 61,209 — - —_ 61,299

Overdraft arranged in 2016 Sterling 3.27% 2024 18,200 20692 844 842 19,006 -

Other loan arranged in 20156 Sterling 3.20% 2021 9,240 9,706 — 9,706 — —

Total 130,421 164,455 1,285 22,784 29441 110,946

Betweenone  Betweentwo

Carrying Contractual Inless than and two and five Int rmare than

Current Year of amount oash flow one year yearg years five years

AL 30 September 2018 Currency interastrate maturity £0C0 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Other loan arranged in 2018 Sterling 31% 2027 28400 37648 — —-— — 37648

Other loan arranged in 2018 Sterling 3.36% 2028 1984 2620 67 134 201 2,218

Cther loan arranged in 2017 Sterling 336% 2028 32164 462256 — - — 45,225

Overdraft arrangedin 2016 Sterling 330% 2019 19,891 20454 20454 — _ —

Other loans arranged in 2016 Sterling 306% 2021 11426 12,336 — — 12,336 —

Total 83864 18,283 205621 134 12,637 85081
The Group has the following undrawn committed borrowing facilities at the year end:

At Ar

30 Saptember 30 September

2019 2018

£'000 £000

Expiring in less than one year — 20,000

Expiring between one and five years 23,100 —

Expiring in greater than five years 13,694 31,310

36,694 51310

(c) Categories of finanocial assets and financial liabilities

The Group's financial assets carried at amortised cost amount to £1688193000 (2018; £133663,000) and comprise cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables and loans advanced to joint ventures. The Group's financial assets carried at fair vaiue through
profit and oss amount to £2163000 (2018: £6,682,000) and comprise other receivables. The Group's financial liabilities, all of which are
financial liabilities at amortised cost, amount to £160,626,000 {2018: £137878,000) and comprise bank loans, other loans, trade payables,
other payables and accruals. At 30 September 2012 and 30 September 2018 the fair values of the Group's financial assets and liabilities
were not materially different from their book values.

The maximum expaosure to credit risk from the financial assets, excluding cash, is £148.933,000 (2018: £97912000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

for the year ended 30 September 2019

20. Share capital
At A
30 Septambar 30 Saptember
2019 2018
Urban&Civic plc £000 £000
Issued and fully paid
145,148,088 (2018: 145,044,582} shares of 20p each (2018: 20p each} 29,030 29000
Movements in share capital inissue
|ssued and
fully paid
Ordinary shares £000 Number
At 10ctober 2017 28993 144964808
Shares issued under scrip dividend scheme 16 79774
At10ctober 2018 20009 145044682
Shares issued under scrip dividend scheme 2 103506
At 30 September 2019 29,030 145148,088
2. Regerves

The movement on reserves in the year is set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 140,

The nature and purpose of the Group’s reserves are:

Share premium account: represents the exgess of the value of shares issued over their nominal amount.

Capital redemption reserve: represents the amount paid to purchass issued shares for cancellation at their nominal value.

Own shares: represents the amount paid te purchase issued shares in connection with the employee share-based payment plan.

Other reserve: represents a non-distributable capital reserve arising on the acquisition of subsidiary undertakings.

Retained earnings: represents cumulative net gains and losses recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income less

dividends paid and reserve movements in relation to share-based payments.
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22, Net asset value, EPRA net asset value and EPRA triple net asset value per share
Net asset value, EPRA net asset value and EPRA triple net asset value per share are calculated as the net assets or EPRA net assets of the Group
attributable to shareholders at each balance shest date, divided by the number of shares in issue at that date, adjusted for own shares held

and the dilutive effect of outstanding share opticns.

At At
30 Septembar 30 September
2019 28

Number of ordinary shares in issue

145148,088 145044582

Own shares held (1,491,248} (1769935)
Dilutive effect of share options 273411 1743418
146,390,951 145018085
NAV per share 275.3p 268.3p
Net asset value (£:000) 403,033 380023
Revaluation of trading property held as current assets (£'000)
- Alconbury Weald 42,302 38,800
- Radio Station Rugby 8,763 105661
- Priors Hall 13,962 9384
- Waterbeach 19,492 —
- Wintringham St Neots 12,297 8461
- Land promotion sites 12,963 1667
- Newark 154 138
- Manchester sites 5600 5023
- Other 424 1292
116,947 86335
Deferred tax liability (£'000) 8,509 6,861
EPRA NAV (£000) 527489 481,209
EPRA NAV per share 360.3p 331.8p
Deferred tax (£G00) (30,539) (23,065)
EPRA NNNAYV (£:000) 496,950 468144
EPRA NNNAV per share 339.5p 3159p

23. Contingent liabilities, capital commitments and guarantees

The parent company has given guarantees totalling £691563,000 (2018: £71,393 000) as part of its development obligations.

Capital commitments relating to the Group's development sites, including the Group’s share of joint ventures, are as follows:

At At

30 September 30 September

2019 2018

£000 EO0O

Contracted but not provided for 60,059 54,744
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
for the year ended 30 September 2019

24, Share-based payments
The Group operates an equity-settled share-based payment scheme for all Executive Directors and certain employees.

Options are granted over the Company’s shares that are capable of vesting in accordance with the rules of the Performance Share Plan.
Shares usually vest on the third anniversary of issue dependent on certain performance conditions having been met. In the year ended
30 September 2019, options over 1981452 shares (30 September 2018: 2,020636 shares} were awarded to Directors and other
participating staff. The performance conditions attached to these awards are as follows:

- EPRA net asset value must increase by greater than 5.0 per cent per annum for 26 per cent vesting and must increase by greater than
12,0 per cent per annum for 100 per cent vesting. Shares will vest on a pro-rated, straight line basis for outperformance between 50 per cent
per annum and 12.0 per cent per annurm; and

« total shareholder return must increase by more than 8.0 per cent per annum for 25 per cent vesting and must increase by more than
12.0 per cent per annum for 100 per cent vesting. Shares will vest on a pro-rated, straight line basis for outperformance betweean 50 per cent
per annurn and 12.0 per cent per annum.

Awards will lapse if not vested at the end of the vesting period.
The performance conditions for the awards granted in the period run from 1 October 2018 to 30 September 2021,
Options grantad prior to 30 September 2017 had the following performanoce conditions attached:

« EPRA net asset value must increase by greater than 3.0 per cent per annum more than RPI for 25 per cent vesting and must increase
by greater than 12.5 per cent per annum more than RPI for 100 per cent vesting. Shares will vest on a pro-rated, straight line basis for
outperformance between 3.0 per cent per annum and 12.5 per cent per annum; and

« total shareholder return must be equal to the movement in the FTSE 350 Real Estate Index for 26 per cent vesting and must fall within the
upper quartile of relative performance of the FTSE 360 Real Estate Index for 100 per cent vesting. Shares will vest on a pro-rated, straight
line basis for outperformance between the medium and upper quartile.

At 30 September 2018 there were 10,345 vested share awards outstanding that were acquired as part of the business combination in May 2014
and had a weighted average exercise price of 20.0p. At 30 September 2019, all of these options remain vested but not exercised.

Year ended 30 September 2019
Number of Fair value

share Weighted of award Shara price

awards AVETage at date at data

granted exarcise price of grant of grant
Awards outstanding at 1 October 2018 5,176,038 1.00p
Awards lapsed (628,644) 0.00p
Awards exercised {466,510) 0.08p

Awards granted {date of grant: T December 2018) 1,981,452 — 81.00p-266.00p 276.00p
Awards outstanding at 30 September 2019 8,162,336 0.0Cp

Year ended 30 Septemnber 2018
Nurritrer of Fair value

share Weighted of award Share price

awards avorage at date at date

granted BXercise prog of grant of grant
Awards outstanding at 1 October 2017 5,089,044 800p
Awards lapsed _ (1833,666) 19.00p
Awards exercised (339.976) 2000p

Awards granted (date of grant: 8 February 2018} 2090636 — 1564.00p-29100p 30000p
Awards outstanding at 30 September 2018 5176038 100p
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24, Share-based payments continued

The fair value of the awards in the year ended 30 September 2013 was calculated by using an option pricing model involving six variables:
share price, exercise price, expected term, expected dividend yield, expected volatility and risk free interest rate. The values assigned to
those variables were: 276.00p grant date share price, nil exercise price, expected term of three years, 1.27 per cent expected dividend yield,
24.38 or nil per cent expected volatility and 0.74 or nil per oent expected risk free interest rate.

The fair vaiue of the awards in the year ended 30 September 2018 was calculated by using an option pricing model involving six variables:
share price, exercise price, expected term, expected dividend yield, expected volatility and risk free interest rate. The values assigned to
those variables were: 300.00p grant date share price, nil exercise price, expected term of three or four years, 1.07 per cent expected
dividend yield, 2347 or nil per cent expected volatility and 0.81.or nil per cent expected risk free interest rate.

For each valuation, the expoctod velatility was dotormined by roforonce to historical volatility over a poriod of time sommeongurate with the
remainder of the performance period immediately prior to the date of grant.

This value is charged to the consciidated statement of comprehensive income over the vesting period. The charge to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year was £3.956000 (2018: £3434,000).

The weighted average share price on the date of the awards exercised in the year was 304p (2018: 305p).

Employee Benefit Trust
Cost
Number £000
At1QOctober 2017 1669437 4,003
Share purchase 452,828 1392
Transferred to employees on share option exercises (262,330) (B47)
At 1Qctober 2018 1769935 4748
8hare purchase 262104 7ob
Transferred to employees on share option exercises and deferred bonus share arrangements (630791 (1417)
At 30 September 2019 1,491,248 4,086

The Company established the Urban&Civic plc Employee Benefit Trust (the “Trust’) to be used as part of the remuneration arrangements
for employees. The purpose of the Trust is to facilitate the ownership of shares by or for the benefit of employees by the acquisition and
distribution of sharesin the Company. The Trust purchases shares in the Company to satisfy the Company's obligations under its share-based
payment plans.

On 30 September 2019 the Trust held 1491,248 (2018: 1,762,936} ordinary shares of 20p each in Urban&Civic ple. The market value of
these shares at 30 Septernber 2018 was £4,832,000(2018: £5,381,000).

26.Leases
Operating lease commitments where the Group is the lessee
The future aggregate minimum lease rentals payable under non-canceltable operating leases are as follows:

At At
20 September 30September

2010 208

Land and bulldings £000 £000
In one year or less 725 1013
Between one and five years 976 841
In five years or more 4102 33
5,803 1887
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
for the year ended 30 September 2019

26. Leasas continued
Operating loase commitments where the Group is the lessor
The future aggregate minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

At Ar
30 September 30 September

2019 2018

Land and buiidings {inoluding investment property) £000 £000
In one year or less 1313 2,996
Between one and five years 213 55680
In five years or more 1,957 4984
5,383 13660

26. Related party transactions

Key management perscnnel

The Directors of the Company who served during the year are considered to be key management personnel. The combined emoluments
for the key management personnel (relating to the period they were a Director), based upon amounts included in the Group financial statements,
are set out in the Directors’ remuneration report on page 118.

The total compensation of key management personnel was £4,718,000 (2018: £4,726,000), which comprised short-term benefits of
£2619,000 (2018: £2,836,000), post-employment benefits of £168,000 (2018: £164,000) and share-based payments of £1,930000
(2018; £1.726.000).

Fees, other income and amounts due from joint ventures and associates
The following amounts are due from the Group's joint ventures and associates. These sums relate to loans provided to those entities and
form part of the netinvestment in that entity.

At Ar

30 September 30 September

2019 2008

£000 £000

SUE Developments LP 53,486 45146
Manchester New Square LP 16,187 14918
Wintringham Partners LL.P 16,006 15,383
Achadonn Limited 3,345 3334
87,983 78,781

The total provision at 30 September 2018 against amounts due from Achadonn Limited was £1,243000 (2018: £1,243,000).

Fees charged by the Group to SUE Developments LP during the year were £952,000 (2018: £9256000). Included in trade debtors

at 30 September 2019 was £241,000 (2018: £273.000)in respect of these fees. Fees charged to Wintringham Partners LLP during
the year were £848,000 (2018: £1,048000) and included in prepayments and accrued income at 30 September 2019 was £228000
(30 September 2018: £801,000).
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27. Cash flow information
Net debt reconciliation

Amortisaticn of Loans and
iseue and borrowings
At 30 September 2019 Rolled up arrangement reclassified
£000 2018 Cagh flows Interest opsts - in 2019 2019
Non-current loans and borrowings 738073 31674 2945 (n8) 19,891 128,265
Current loans and borrowings 20,891 — — — (19,801} 1,000
Total borrowings 94.864 31574 2945 (n8) — 120266
Cash and cash equivalents (16,638) (7.803) — — — (24.441)
Net debt 78,226 23, 2,945 (118) — {104,824)
Amortigation of Loans and
issue and barrowings
At 30 September 2018 Rolled up arrangement reclassified
£000 2017 Cash flows interest costs in2018 018
Non-current loans and borrowings 60,824 {1,362) 2182 184 3136 73973
Current loans and borrowings 24,026 — — — (3135) 20891
Total borrowings 93850 (1.352) 2182 184 — 04864
Cash and cash equivalentg (12,190} {4448) — — — (16638)
Net debt 81660 (5,800) 2182 184 — 78,226
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

as at 30 September 2018
30 September 30 Seprember
2019 2018
Notes £000 £000
Fixed assets
Investments 3 463,547 459,691
483,647 459591
Current assets
Debtors due within one year 4 25,444 27976
Cash at bank and in hand 57 296
256,601 28,270
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 6 (166,379) (169443)
Net current liabilities (140,878) (141173)
Total assets less current liabilities 322,669 318418
Capital and reserves
Share capital 6 20,030 20,000
Share premium account 169,163 168,881
Share scheme reserve 16,482 12,627
Capital redemption reserve 849 849
Own shares {4.086) (4.748)
Merger reserve 97,025 a7026
Retained earnings 14,206 14876
Shareholders’ funds 322,669 318418

Tho Company has taken advantage of the sxemption allowed under section 408 of the Comparios Act 20086 and has net presonted its
owr profit and loss account in these firancial staterments. The Group cunsulidated financial stalerents include 4 profil afler Lax for the year
of £8,073,000 (2018: £2.901,000) attributable to the Company. At 30 September 2019, the entire balance of £15,783000 (2018: £14876000)
in retained earnings represents distributable reserves.

The financial statements ware awived by the Board and authorised for issue on 27 Movembser 20129 and were signed on its behalf by:

Niget Hlghl \ DavidWood (™ / W
DlrectorM \ Director @L d
The notes on pagew174 to 178 form part of these parent company financial statements.

Registered in Scotland No. SC148789
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 30 Septembar 2019 F
Share Sharg Capial

Share premium scherme redemption Cwn Merger Retained

capital account reserve reservg shares resarve earninga Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 October 2017 28993 168648 90093 849 4,003) 97025 16464 317069
Shares issued under
scrip dividend scheme 16 233 — — — — — 249
Share option exercise satisfied
out of own shares — — — — 847 — — 847
Purchase of own shares — — — — (1392) — — (1.392)
Share-based payment expense — — 3434 — — — — 3434
Total comprehensive income
for the year — — — — — — 2,90 2901
Dividends paid — — — — — — (4490} (4.490)
Balance at 30 September 2018 20009 168,881 12527 849 (4,748) 97026 14,875 318418
Shares issued under
sorip dividend scheme 2t 282 — — — — — 303
Share option exercise satisfied
out of own shares — — — — 147 — (1.677) (180}
Purchase of own shares — — — — (7656) — — (755)
Share-based payment expense — — 3956 — — — - 3966
Total comprehensive income
for the year — — — — — — 6073 6073
Dividends paid — — — — — — (5,186} (5165)
Balance at 30 September 2019 29,030 169,163 18,482 849 (4,086} 97.025 14,206 322,669
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 September 2019

1. Accounting policies

Accounting convention

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared under FRS 102 and the historical cost convention and in acoordance with
the Companies Act 2008

The Company has taken the following exemptions as permitted by FRS 102:

« no cash flow statement is presented. A consoclidated cash flow statement is presented on page 141 of the Group financial statements;
+ pertain financial instruments disclosure as equivalent disclosure has been provided in respect of the Group as a whole; and

« related party transactions with wholly owned members of the Group.

Rental income

Where the Company is the lessee, leases in which substantially all risks and rewards of ownership are retained by ancther party are
classified as operating leases. Rentais paid under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over the
term of the lease.

Share-based payments

The Fair value of granting share awards under the performance share plan and the other share-based remuneration of the Directors and
other employess is recognised through the profit and loss account. The fair value of shares awarded is calculated by using an option pricing
model. The resulting fair value is amortised through the profit and loss account on a straight line basis over the vesting period. The charge

is reversed if it is likely that any non-market-based criteria will not be met. The charge is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market vesting
condition or where a non-vesting condition is not satisfied.

Where the Company grants rights in its equity directly to an employee of a subsidiary, the transaction is accounted for as an equity-settled
transaction. In the financial statements of the Company, the grant of rights is recognised as a capital contribution made to the subsidiary.

Employee Benefit Trust

The Company is deemed to have control of its Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) and it is therefore treated as a subsidiary and is consolidated
in the Company's accounts. The EBT's investment in the parent company's shares is deducted from equity in the Company balance sheet
as if they were treasury shares. Other assets and liabilities of the EBT are recognised as assets and liabilities of the Company.

Investments
The investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s balance sheet at cost less provision for impairment.

Where the Company has a legal obligation to a third party in relation to the losses of an associate, the Company fully provides for its share
and the charge is recognised in the profit and loss account of the Company.

Dividends
Dividends are recognised when they become legally payable. In the case of interim dividends to equity shareholders, this is when the
dividends are approved by the Directors and paid. In the case of final dividends, this is when approved by the shareholders at the AGM.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the balance sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrurment,

Trade and other debtors

Trade and other debtors are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost or their recoverable amount. Impairment
provisions are recognised when there is objective evidence (such as significant financial diffioulties on the part of the counterparty or default

or significant delay in payment) that the Company will be unable to collect all of the amounts due under the terms receivable. The amount of
such a provision is the difference between the net carrying amount and the present value of the future expected cash flows associated with
the impaired receivable. For trade debtors, which are reported net, such provisions are recorded in a separate allowance account with the
loss being recognised within administrative expenses. On confirmation that the trade debtor will not be collectable the gross carrying value
of the asset is written off against the associated provision.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade creditors, other creditors, accruals and amounts due to Group undertakings are originally recorded at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost under the effective interest method.
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2. Directors’ and auditor’s remuneration

Directors' remuneration is disclosed in the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 106 to 125. Details of the remuneration paid to the
Company’s auditor, BDO LLP, for audit and non-audit services provided are given in note 3 to the Group financial statements on page 150.

There are no employees other than the Directors who are remunerated by a fellow Group company. The Directors are considered to be the

Company's key management personnel.

3. Investments

2000
Cost
At 10ctober 2018 486729
Additions 1
Capital contribution on the granting of share scheme options to employees of subsidiaries 39565
At 30 September 2019 489,685
Amounts written off
At10ctober 2018 26138
Impairment charge —
At 30 September 2019 26,138
Net book value
At 30 September 2019 483,547
At 30 September 2018 459,601
A complete list of the Company's subsidiaries is included in note 10 of these Company financial statements.
4. Debtors
At At
30 Septernber 30 September
201 2018
£/000 £000
Amounts due within one year:
Trade debtors 1068 337
Other debtors 48 643
Prepayments and acerued income -— 308
Amounts due from subsidiaries 25,292 26687
25444 27975
5. Creditors
At At
30 September 30 September
2019 2018
£000 £000
Armounts due within one year:
Trade creditors 3 189
Accruals and deferred income 763 2013
Amounts due to subsidiaries 149,184 1470089
Bank gverdraft 16,321 19,891
Other creditors 100 341
166,372 169443
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
for tha year ended 30 September 2019

6. Share capital

At At
30 September 30 September
2018 2018
£000 £000
Issued and fully paid
145,148,088 (2018: 145,044,5872) ordinary shares of 20p each (2018: 20p each) 239,030 20009
Movements in ordinary share capital in issue
lssued and
fully pard
Ordinary shares £000 Number
At 10ctober 2018 20008 145044582
Shares issued under scrip dividend scheme 21 103508
At 30 September 2019 29,030 145,148,088

The Company's merger reserve represents the excess over the nominal value of shares issued to acquire shares in a subsidiary undertaking
when the conditions to qualify for merger relief have not been met.

The Company’s share scheme reserve represents the cumulative amount of share-based payment awards made to employees of
subsidiary undertakings.

A description of the nature and purpose of the Company's other reserves is provided in note 21 to the Group financial statements. The Company’s
retained earnings reserve is distributable.

7. Share-based payments

The Company operates an equity-settled share-based payment scheme for all Executive Directors and certain employees of the Group.
Details of the options granted under the scheme and the options cutstanding at the balance sheet date are given in note 24 to the Group
financial statements. On the basis that all awards made relate to employees of subsidiaries, this value is recognised as a capital contribution
to those subsidiaries over the vesting pericd and is added to the cost of the relevant investment. The total capital contribution for the year
was £3,966000 (2018: £3434,000).

Employee Benefit Trust

The Company established the Urban&Civic plc Employee Bensfit Trust {the ‘Trust’} to be used as part of the remuneration arrangements
for amployees, The purpose of the Trust is to facilitate the ownership of shares by or for the benefit of employees by the acquisition and
distribution of shares in the Company. The Trust purchases shares in the Cormpany to satisfy the Company's obligations under its share-based
payment pfans. Transactions in the Company’s own shares in the year are given in note 24 to the Group finangial statements,

8. Financial commitments
Operating lease commitments where the Company is the lessee
The future aggregate minimum lease rentals payable under non-canoellable operating leases are as follows:

At A
30 Septamber 30 September

2019 2018

Land and buildings £000 £000
In one year or less — 265
Between one and five years — -
—_ 2656

9. Contingent liabilities and guarantees
The Company has given guaraniees totalling £69,53,000 (2018: £71,393,000) as part of the Group's obligations.
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10. Subsidiary undertakings

At 30 September 2019 the subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates held directly or indirectly by the Company were as follows:

Proporuonof

voting rights and

ordinary shares
Incorporated in the United Kingdom, unless otherwmse ndicated held Nature of business
Achadonn Properties Limited® 60% Property development
Altira Park JV LLP 60% Property development
Alconbury Weald Estate Management Company Limited' 100% Property management
AW Management Company (KPI1C] Limited® 100% Property management
AW Management Company (KP1R} Limited' 100% Property management
Catesby Development Land Limited? 100% Property development
Catesby Estates (Developments) Limited? 100% Property development
Catesby Estates (Developments |1} Limited? 100% Property development
Catesby Estates (Grange Road) Limited® 100% Property development
Catesby Estates (Hawton) Limited? 100% Property development
Catesby Estates (Newark) Limited® 100% Property development
Catesby Estates (Residential) Limited® 100% Property development
Catesby Estates plc? 100% Property development
Catesby Estates Promotions Limited? 100% Property development
Catesby Land and Planning Limited? 100% Property development
Catesby Land Limited® 100% Property development
Catesby Land Promotions Limited? 100% Property development
Catesby Promotions Limited? 100% Property development
Catesby Strategic Land Limited® 100% Management and administration
Daddon Hill Estate Management Company Limited' 100% Property management
Greyhound Inn Developments Limited® 100% Property development
Manchester New Square (Genera! Partner) Limited' 50% Property development
Manchester New Square Limited Partnership’ 50% Property development
Manchester New Square Nominee Limited 50% Holding company
Manydown Development Vehicle LLP' 100% Property development
Manydown Investco LLP' 100% Investment holding company
Newark Commergial Limited® 100% Property development
Priors Hall Park Management Company' 100% Property management
SUE Developments LP% 50% Property development
SUE GPLLP® 50% Property development
SUE GP Nominee Limited 50% Holding company
T.H (Development Partnership} Limited' 100% Investment holding company
T.H (Development Partnership)} General Partner Limited' 100% Investment holding company
Terrace Hill (Awdry) Holdings Limited' 100% Investment holding company
Terrace Hill (Herne Bay) Limited' 100% Property development
Terrace Hill Deansgate Operations Company Limited' 100% Property management
Terrace Hill Development Partnership LP' 650% Property development
Terrace Hill Development Partnership Nominee Limited’ 100% Investment holding company
Terrace Hill Foodstore Development Company Parent Limited' 100% Investment holding company
Terrace Hill Foodstore Developments Limited' 100% Property development
Urban&Civic (Bradford) Limited' 100% Property development
Urban&Civic (Management) Limited? 100% Management and administration
Urban&Civic (Property Investment No 1} Limited' 100% Property investment
Urban&Civic (Property Investment No 2) Limited' 100% Property investment
Urban&Qivic (Property Investment No 3) Limited® 100% Property investment,
Urban&Civic (Secretaries) Limited? 100% Administration
Urban&Civic Alconbury Limited' 100% Property investment and devetopment
Urban&Civic Aloonbury S.arl. {incorporated in Luxembourg)* 100% Investment holding company
Urban&Civic Armadale No. 1 Limited? 100% Property development
Urban&Civic Bishop Auckland Limited' 100% Property development
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

for the year ended 30 September 2019

10. Subsidiary undertakings continued

Proportion of

voting nghts and

ordinary shares
Incorporated in the United Kingdem, unleaa otherwise indicated held Nature of business
Urban & Civic Buckingham Limited 100% Property development
Urban&QCivic Central Funding Limited® 100%  Investment holding company and property development
Urban&Civic Central Scotland Limited? 100% Property development
Urban&Civic Corby Limited' 100% Property development
Urban&Civic Deansgate Limited' 100% Property development
Urban&Civic Developments Limited' 100% Property development
Urban&Civic Feethams Limited' 100% Property investment and development
Urban&Civic Foodstores Company Limited' 100% Investment holding company
Urban&Civic Galashiels No.2 Limited' 100% Property development
Urban&Civie Group Limited' 100%  Investment holding company and property development
Urban&Civic Holdings S.4rl. (incorporated in Luxembourg)? 100% tnvestment holding company
Urban&Civic Houghton Le Spring Limited' 100% Property development
Urban&Civic Howick Place Investments Limited' 100% Investment holding company
Urban&Civic Investments Limited' 100%  Investment holding company and property development
Urban&Civic Jobs and Skills Limited' 100% Property development
Urban&QCivic (Manchester New Square) Limited’ 100% Property development
Urban&Civic Manydown Limited' 100% Property development
Urban&Civic Middlehaven Limited' 100%  Investment holding company and property development
Urban&QCivic Middlehaven Properties Limited' 100% Property development
Urban&Civic Misceltaneous Properties Limited' 100% Property development
Urban&Civic Molesworth Limited' 100% Property development
Urban&QCivic North East Limited' 100%  Investment holding company and property development
Urban&QCivic Northam Limited' 100% Property development
Urban&Civic Penzance Limited' 100% Property development
Urban&Civic Princess Street Limited' 100% Property development
Urban&Civic Projects Limited' 100% Project co-ordination and management services
Urban&Civic Property Developments Limited® 100% investment holding company
Urban&Qivic Property Developments No 1Limited' 100% Property development
Urban&Civic Property Developments No 2 Limited' 100% Property development
Urban&Civic Property Investments No. 4 Limited' 100% fnvastment holding company
Urban&Civic Redcliff Street Limited' 100% Property development
Urban&Civic Resolution Limited' 100% Property development
Urban&Civic Rugby Limited' 100% Property development
Urban&Civic Rugby {Member) Limited' 100% Property development
Urban&Civic Sandy Limited' 100% Property development
Urban&Civic Stokesley Limited' 100% Property development
Urban&QCivic St Neots Limited' 100% Property development
Urban&Civic Tunbridge Wells Limited' 100% Property development
Urban&Civic Tyttenhanger Limited' 100% Property development
Urban&Civic UK Limited' 100% Management and administration
Urban&Civic Victoria Street Limited' 100% Property development
Urban&QCivic Waterbeach Limited' 100% Property investment and development
Urban&QCivic Westview Investments Limited' 100%  Investment holding company and property development
Urban&Civic Wolverhampton Limited' 100% Property development
Wintringham Partners LLP' 33% Property development

1. Registarad address: 50 New Bond Street, London WIS 1BJ.
. Registered address: 116 George Streat, Edinburgh EH2 4JN.

. Registered address: 40 Avenua Monterey, L-2183, Luxembourg,
Registered address: St Heten's, 1 Undershaft, London EC3P 3DQ.
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS

AGM

Annual General Meeting

Catesby/Catesby Estates plc

Catesby Estates plc and subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

CDC or Commergcial Development

A subcommittee of senior staff responsible for the delivery of commercial sites. Periodic

Committee meetings are held to facilitate cross site collaboration, risk management, problem solving
and lessons learnt reviews

Commergial One of the Group’s business segments that focuses on bespoke City Centre developments
targeting shorter-term and de-risked returns

Company Urban&Civic plc

Earnings per share (EPS) Profit after tax divided by the weighted average number of shares in issue

EBT Urban&Civic Empioyment Benefit Trust

EC Reference Rate

European Commission Reference Rate

Employment land/plots

Land and parcels of land upon which a variety of commercial uses will be delivered in
accordance with a planning consent

EPRA

European Public Real Estate Association

EPRA net asset value (EPRA NAV)

Net assets attributable to equity shareholders of the Company, adjusted for the revaluation
surpluses on trading properties and eliminating any deferred taxation liability for
revaluation surpiuses

EPRA net gearing Total debt less cash and cash equivalents divided by EPRA net asset value
EPRA triple net asset value EPRA net asset value adjusted to include deferred tax on property valuations and
{(EPRA NNNAV) capital allowances

Estimated rental value (ERV)

Open market rental value that could reasonably be expected to be obtained for a new
letting or rent review at a particular point in time

Fair value The price that would be required to seil an asset or paid to transfer a liabiiity in an orderfy
transaction between market participants at a measurable date (i.e. an exit price)

FRC Financial Reporting Council

FRS 102 Financial Reporting Standard 102 *The Financiat Reporting Standard applicable in the
UK and Republic of Ireland’

Gearing Group borrowings as a proportion of net asset value

Homes England Homes England is Homes and Communities Agency (HCA ag it was formerly known)

Group Urban&Civic ple and subsidiaries, joint ventures and asscciates

Gross development value (GDV)

Sales value onee construction is complete

1AS

International Accounting Standards

IASB International Accounting Standards Board

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards

Initial yiejd Annualised net rent as a proportion of property value
ISA Internaticnal Standards on Auditing

Key performance indicators
(KPls)

Significant areas of Group operations that have been identified by the Board as capable
of measurement and are used to evaluate Group performance

LADs Liguidated ascertained damages

Large site discount Represents the difference between the unserviced land values ascribed by CBRE strategic
site valuations {which take into account site scale and build-out duration among other
matters) and the current retail prices being achieved on smaller parcel sales

LEP Local Enterprise Partnership

Licences Agreements entered into with housebuilders, which typically comprise a fixed element {the

minimums) due to the Group upon reaching unconditional exchange and a variable element
(the overage) which is dependent on the final selling price of the house
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS CONTINUED

Listing The 22 May 2014 transfer of Urban&Civic plc from the Alternative Investment Market {AlM)
to the standard listing segment of the Capita! Official List and admission to trading on the
Londen Stock Exchange

Look-through gearing Gearing including the Group's balance sheet attributable to the owners of the Company

LTV Loan to value

MHCLG Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government

Minimums Contractual right to receive a minimum plot value in respect of a minimum number of
plots each year. These minimums are payable on a look-back basis if minimum sales
are not achieved

MOD Ministry of Defence

Net asset value (NAV) Value of the Group's balance sheet atiributable to the owners of the Company

Net gearing Total debt less cash and cash equivalents divided by net assets

NPPF National Planning Policy Framework

Overage Variable consideration which applies an agreed percentage to the house sales price and
then nets off any minimum already paid. No overage is payable where minimums are
not achieved

Private rented sector (PRS) A sector of the real estate market where residential accommodation is privately
owned and rented out as housing, usually by an individual landlord, but potentially by
housing organisations

PSP Performance Share Plan

Resolution to Grant (planning consent)

Where a Looal Authority ptanning committee resclves to grant planning permission subject
to the completion of a planning agreement {such as a Section 106 agreement)

Return on Capital Employed (ROCE)

A financial ratio that measures how well a company is generating profits from its capital

RIDDOR

Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences

$106

Section 106 planning cbligations

SDC or Strategic Development Committee

A subcommittee that functions on the same basis as the CDC, but reviews the Group's
strategio sites

SDLT

Stamp Duty Land Tax

Subcommittees

SDC, CCC and Catesby

Terrace Hili Group

Terrace Hill Group plc and subsidiaries at 21 May 2014

Total NAV return

The growth in EPRA NAV per share plus dividends paid, expressed as a percentage
of EPRA NAV per share at the beginning of the period

Total return

Movement in the value of net assets, adjusted for dividends paid, as a proportion of opening
net asset value

Totat shareholder return (TSR)

Growth in the value of a shareholding, assuming reinvestment of any dividends into shares,
over a pericd

Urban&Civic plc

Parent company of the Group

WACGC

Weighted average cost of capital

180 Urban&Civie ple — Annual Raport and Accounts 2019




SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

F

Key contacts and advisers Company Secretary Registrars

Registered office Heather Williams FCIS Share Registrars Limited

115 George Street . The Courtyard

Edinburgh EH2 4UN g‘gg"f{‘ge“t auditor 17 West Street

Registered number: SC148799 Farnham

55 Baker Street Surrey GUS 7TOR

Principal place of business London WiU TEU Phone: 01252 821 390

50 New Bond Street Email: enquiries@shareregistrars.uk.com

London WIS 1BJ -ena g o

Financial calandar

2019 final dividend' 25p
Announcement date 28 November 2019
Ex-dividend date O January 2020
Record date 10 January 2020
Calculation of scrip reference share price 9-16 January 2020
Last date for receipt of scrip elections/scrip applications 24 January 2020
Dividend payment/scrip issue date 21 February 2020

Annual General Mesting? 6 February 2020

2019 interim dividend 14p
Record date 7 June 2019
Dividend payment/scrip issue date 12 July 2019

2019 half-year results announcement 30 May 2019

1. The Board has recommended a final dividend of 2.5p per share which is payable subject to sharehoider approval at the 2020 Annual General Meeting.

2. The Annual Gengral Meeting will be held at 10.00 am on § February 2020 at The Savile Club, 59 Brook Street, London WIK 4ER.
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION CONTINUED

Dividend Re-Investment Scheme (DRIS)

A Scrip Dividend Scheme (SCRIP} is available through which eligible shareholders may invest the whole of their cash dividends in additional
shares in Urban&Civic plc at the time the dividondao aro paid. Copics of the SONIM tormis and conditions are availalule from the Company's
registrars, Share Registrars Limited (email: snquiries@shareregistrarsuk.com or phone: 01262 821 390), or may be downloaded from the
Company’s website at wwwurbanandcivic.com.

Shareholder fraud

QOvor the lact yoar, a numbor of shareholdoers have received unsolicitod approaches for their shares frorm par ties suggesting they are linked
with potential offerors. The Company believes that these are not bona fide offers for shares and shareholders should be aware that these
unggalieited chare purchase requests are viewed as suspicious by the Company.

Sharoholdors are advicod to bo wary of such oallo. If you reocive amy ungolicited investment advice.

+ Always ensurs the firm is on the Financia! Conduct Authority (FCA) Register and is allowed to give financial advice before handing over
your money. You can check at www.fcaorguk.

« Double-check the caller is from the firm they say they are - ask for their name and telephone number and say you will call them back.
Do not get into a conversation, note down the name of the person and firm contacting you and then end the call.

« Check their identity by calling the firm using the contact number listed on the FCA Register. If there are no contact details on the FCA
Register or you are told that they are out of date, or if you have any other doubts, call the FCA Consumer Helpline on 0800 111 6768.

« Check the FCA's list of known unauthorised overseas firms at wwwifca.orguk. However, these firms change names regularly, so even
if a firm is not listed, it does not mean they are legitimate. Always check that they are listed on the FCA Register.

« Consider that if you buy or sell shares from an unauthorised firm you will not have access to the Financial Ombudsman Service or
Financial Services Compensation Scheme.
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Head office

50 New Bond Street
London W1S1BJ

T: +44(0)20 7509 5566
F: +44(0)20 75089 55899

Urban&Civic plo's commitment to environmental issues is reflected in this
Annyal Report which has been printed on Acroprint, an FSC* certified material.
This document was printed by Pureprint Group using their environmental

print technology, which minimises the impact of printing on the environment.
Vegetable based inks have been used and 98 per cent of dry waste is diverted
from landfill. The printer is a CarbonNeutral® company.

Both the printer and the paper mill are registered to 150 14001

Visit us online at:
www.urbanandcivic.com
info@urbanandgivic.com



